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Transformation: Year 2

Thomas Cook Is the oldest and best
loved name in travel and, over the last
twao years, we have been on a journey
of Transformation

At the end of Year 2, we are making
progress against our targets and KPIs
for our Transformation and profitable
growth strategy, and becoming a
more efficent, more resilient business

We are already delvering greater
value with exciting new products,

a strong digital offening and improved
financial results
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www.thomascookgroup.com

The Thomas Cook Group website provides news

and detalls of the Group's activities, plus links to our
customner sites and up-to-date information, including

» corporate news

> presentations

> share price data

> historic Annual and sustainability reports

> half-year results and intenim management statements
> news alerfs

> careef opportunities




Our year in

Financial highlights

rief

Delvering improved financial results
Underlying EBIT up by £60 rillon year on year

£325m

Delivering a stronger balance sheet
Net debrt reduced from £421 mullion 1n 2013

f£326m

Delivering stronger margins
Underlying gross margin 22 3%
(up 20 baws ponts year on year)

22.3%

Delivering more operattonal cash flow

Cash conversion raticat 62%
onalast 12 maonths basis

62%

Delivening more cost-out and
profit improvement benefits

Cumulative total £400 milion
{FY 14 target of £360 million)

£400m

Financial summary
Year ended Yearended
30 September 2014 30 September 2013
£m {unless otherwise stated) Underlying  Statutery  Underlying Statutory
Revenue 8,588 8,588 9315 5315
EBIT 323 54 263 i3
EBIT margin (%) 3 8% 06% 2 8% 01%
Free cash flow 116 116 57 57
Earrings (Joss) per share (p} 11 3p (8 2)p 50p (X
Met debt (326) (326) {421) (421}

Full financial statements
From page 114
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Transformation S—
Our people making
it happen

A Transformation of the scale we | \a rrle-l-

are undertaking at Thomas Cook
Impacts and involves every person
In the business

Chief Executive Officer’s Q&A
> Gotopll

Our talented teams across the Group have
embraced the challenges and opporturities,
as we all work to further professionalise the

business, become more efficient and effective
and focus on exceeding our custorners’

expectations every tirme they connect with us

The team at Thomas Cook breathe life into Image removed Image removed

our strategy every day and are delivering the
Transformation with passian and energy

Throughout this Annual Report Thomas
Cook employees share their thoughts on our
Transformation and what it means to them n na

Fl’a n k Image removed

Chairman’s
statement Tosee more on
> Golopl0 our Governance

Image removed > Gotop?8
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Our people and
key relationstups
> Gotoph3

Mark
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Tosee more on ourstrategy

» Gotop33

Nikki

Sharon
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Michael

Financal review
> Gotap52
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Overview: Our business at a glance Our brand architecture

Corporate brand

Creafing memorable
holiday experiences

Thomas Cook 1s becorming a fruly omni-

channel partner for our customers, offering Master brand

them the very best support whenever,
wherever and however they choose o
connect with us — from our leading edge
websites, fo our falented and well frained

Loga removed

contact cenfre teams
Ahgned brands

From our excellens retaill network, to our dedicated and

commutted arline and in-destination feams — our focus 1s

on the customer

L d
With a streamiined portfolio of brands, we are focused again 090 remove

an our core products and on delivering memorable holiday

experiences for our customers — through our unigue and

specialised products fo the widest range of exating holiday

Endorsed brands
destinations for our fraditional sun and beach holidays,

as well as cur rapdly expanding Winter Sun and City Break
product portfolo

These are exciting times for Thomas Cook as we enter the

next phase of our Transformarion Logo removed

Standalone brands

Logo removed

Our brand strength
Page 28




Our in-house resources
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Where our revenue comes from

Retail outlets

3,084

Logo removed

Employees

22,672

Image removed

Graph removed

Aircraft

88

Image removed

Departed customers*

22.5m

Image removed

Graph removed

*Includes 2 6 milkon In house customers

Financial review
From page 52
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Overview: Our business by region

Developing our
regional businesses

Thomas Cook Group plc1s ane of the world's leading leisure travel groups
with sales of over £8 5 billion in the year ended 30 September 2014
Thomas Cook s supported by approximately 22,672 employees and
operates from 15 source markets, it 1s number one or two {by revenue)
in allits core markets Thomas Cook Group plc’s shares are listed on

the London Stock Exchange (TCG)

Key facts
Custorners & 170 000
Retall outlets 847

Arcraft 31

Employees

9987*

Graph removed

UK and Ireland Continental Europe
A relentless focus on cost combined with improving revenue quality Improved customer volumes from Germany to key destinations
has delivered the UK s target underlying EBIT margin of 3 5% in FY 14 combined with strategic nsk capacity reduction in France and Russia
up from close to 0% two years ago have helped grow EBIT to £102 million

2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenue £2,585m £2977m Revenue £3,958m £4195m
Gross margn % 261% 259% Gross margn % 14 2% 138%
Underlying EBIT £89m £66m Underlying EBIT £102m £78m
Underlying EBIT % 35% 22%  UnderlyngEBIT% 26% 18%

* Includes 267 Corporate employees




UK and Ireland

Key facts
Customers 7458 000
Retail outlets 2 227

Arrcraft &

Employees

6,563

Airlines Germany

Aurhines Germany performed wellin a difficult market broadly
maintaining revenues while increasing profit, helped by yield benefits

from recent fleef refurbishments

Northern Europe

Arrlines Germany

Continental Europe

Thomas Cook Group pic Annual Report & Accounts 2014 7

Key facts
Customers 1511000
Retall outlets 10

Aircraft 11

Employees

5120

Key facts:
Custamers 7186 000*
Arcraft 50

Employees

2997

Northern Europe

Northern Europe’s robust, defensive model focused heawily
ondifferentiated product and web sales has again delvered

andustry leading EBIT margin

1014 2013 2014 2013
Revenue £1,299m £1312m Revenue £1,153m £123%m
Gross margin% 27 8% 28 6% Grossmargin % 2T 4% 27 4%
Linderlying EBIT £50m f48m Underlying EBIT £101m £109m
Underlyng EBIT % 3 8% 371% Underlying EBIT % 87% 88%

*inciudes 2 & million in house customers

Strategicreport =

Governance NJ

financial statements (N
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Overview' Qur investment case

Why invest?
Our value proposition

We create value by offering a wide range of fravel products and services to suit

all custorner needs, reaching our customers seamlessly through omni-channel
distribution Our value proposition 1s underpinned by the strength of our brand and
our high tech, high touch approach, enabling customers ta search for and book their
travel arrangements through the channel of their choice, while providing a quality
assured fravel experience backed up by strong customer service

The key aspects of our value proposition are as follows

Brand strength Thomas Cook s one of the leading brands in the leisure travel market

1 Bulding on a 17 3-year history in the travel business, the Thomas Cook brand serves as a strong
master brand for the Group and s complemented by a range of well-known regional brands,
including Neckermann Condor JetTours, Ving, Spies and Tjareborg, which are joined by our new
urufying mark, the Sunny Heart

Product breadth We offer 3wide product range and choice of destinations enabling us to meet

2 customer demands and preferences We have a history of successful product development
andlaunch including developing exclusive and differentiated products such as the Sunwing,
Sunprime, Smartline and Sentido concept hotels, which aim fo deliver a consistent, high-guality,
branded hotel experience to our custorners, as well as partnership hotels which also offer a
high-quality and exclusive hotel experience under local brands

Distribuhion reach We benefit from an omni-channe! distribution system for our products,

3 which include refail stores, websites and call centres, as well as third-party travel agents Access to
arange of distribution channels enables us to maximise customer reach and provides choice to
our customers We aim o builld on this strength through the development of a single customer
gateway which will enable the delivery of a consistent, personalised custormer experience with
access to a full range of products, services and persanal recommendations across all distribution
channels

Service and quality Our custorner service representatives are present at many customer

l_| touchpaoints, ncluding instores, on our aircraft and in deshination, providing reassurance and
ensuring a high-quality travel experience We have a health and safety assurance process
for our products Qur product inventory 1s quality assured, taking into account reviews and
recornmendations of our own customers and third-party reviewers For our high volume
destinations and accommodation, we carry out our own professional checks to ensure our
product 1s fully qualty confrolled




Three key drivers
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Measured through specific fargets

The delivery of our investment case
1s based on three key drivers

- Profitable growth supported
by new product

— Digital growth supported
by innovation

- Cost-out and profit improvement

Strong financial planning

Our targets and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for our
Transformation and profitable growth strategy

Y12 FY13 FYi4 FYiu FY15
actual actual actual targel targel
HNew product sevenue HN/A £9Um £280m  >£300m  ~£700m
Web penetration' 3% 3% 38% 240% >50%
Targets (oo our/profit
improvement
feumulative run rate) £60m £194m  £400m  >£360m  >£500m
Sales CAGR? N/A N/A (2 1%) 22 5% =3 5%
Underlying gross margin
KPls improvement? N/A 8% 15% »1 2% >1 5%
Underlying UKEBIT margin 01% 2 2% 3 5% =3 5% >5%
Cash conversion® 11% 48% 62% *55% >70%

Naotes

1 Measuredonalast 12 months departed basis

2 Cornpound annual growth rate from FY13 to FY15 including new preduct revenue

3 Undertying gross margins adjusted for dispesals and shop closures on afike for ike basis

4 Cash conversion defined as net cash from operating achivities less interest paid as o perceniage of underlying EBITDA

Supported by our great people

We have developed a strong financial
plan for profitable growth from a solid base,
underpinned by

1 Anmmproved financial position following
the recent recapitalisation

2 Detalled “bottom up” plans owned
by each of our businesses

3 Embedded targets and KPlIs aligned
with our external commitments

> The Group has a medium-ferm planning horizon
supported by detalled financial projections
prepared and owned by each business

> The plan for each business is ngarously reviewed
by Group and segment management through
asenes of meetings to produce a robust result

> The Group financial plan s reviewed and
approved by the Board on an annual basis
and updated regularly to refiect changes to
projections as they arise

> The approved plan s fully aligned with
externally commurucated targets and KPls
and with management s objectives and
remunerafion schemes

Our people are key to the ongoing delivery and sustainability of our
Transforrmation and profitable growth strategy We have created a single
culture across the ordanisation, supported by our Code of Conduct, and
our 2014 group-wide employee engagement survey results increased
globally over 1% on the prior year and there 15 a clear sign that many
more of our employees support the Transformation and understand
their part init

Our brand approach and our values

Brand approach
High tech, high touch

70% of travellers want a relahionship with their holiday
provider that goes beyond just booking and paying for
atnp 93% of travellers either search for content online
or express a preference for booking online if possible

Brand values

Trusted
Trust, consistency and a sfrong brand are the most
important drivers of custormer choice

Innovative
We continue faenrich our online offer with leading digital
InNovanons fo IMprove Conversion rares

Personal

50% of travellers feel overwhelmed by the amount of
infarmancn and chaice when booking 66% of fravellers
want help in choosing the right product for them

Strategic report  —

Governance NJ

Financial statements (N
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Strong progress is
clearly visible and solid
foundations for the
fufure have been laid
However, we recognise
that there is much
more fo do

Frank Meysman
Chairman

Image removed
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Overview:; Chairman’s statement

More resilient in a
fough and competitive
environment

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to report the continued success of our ongoing
Transformation with progress being made against our
important strategic targets and KPIs We have delivered

a significant improvement to underlying EBIT for the
second consecutive year of our Transformation and have
further reduced our net debt, whilst investing significantly
In the business In the form of capital expenditure and
Transformation costs Importantly, all our businesses have
delivered increased profitability on a like-for-like basis and,
at the Group level, we report our ninth consecutive quarter
of profit growth

Strategic report =

Governance N

Financial statements (N
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Transformation Year 2

Qverview Chairman’s statement confinued

Our people across the organisation are central
to the ongoing delivery and sustainability

of our Transformation

There are great examples of our people working
together and bringing about improvements
in many areas of our organisation

During the first phase of the Transformation
over the last two years the Company has
evalved rapidly and remarkable progresshas
beenmade, Thornas Cook s in much better
shape than before and we have a clear path
for our Transformanon and profitable growth
strategy Iwould like to thank Harriet for her
fireless contribution dunng this cnitical penod
Overall the Company has become mare
resikentin a fough and competitive macro-
ecanomic environment demonstrated, for

example by our ability and speed to offer new

and altemative winter sun destinations to
offset events such as the unrest in Egypt

As the Company entersinta the next phase
of its Transformation and the execution of
our profitable growth strategy we believe it
15 firne fo hand over to a new CEQ The Board
1s dehghted that Peter Fankhauser our Chief
Operattng Officer with a long and successful
career 1n the travet industry, will become our
CEO and will join the Board with effect from
26 November 2014 Peter has astrong and
committed Management Team in place to
fully support delivery inthe future

Our employees

The Board firmly believes thar cur pecple
across the organisahon are central to the
ongoing delivery and sustainability of our
Transformanhon and we are pleased to see

a significant overallimprovement to our
Croup wide employee engagement score
Our progress, now and i the future s due fo
the confinued efforts and successful delivery
by all our management and employees
working together collaboratively Once again,

| and the Board would like fo thank them for
therr huge centribution towards delivering a
sustanable future for all our stakeholders

Transformation 1s net a linear process

We have delivered some aspects of it faster
than originally expected, ke our cost out
programme Other aspects fake more
fimeto achieve our targets even though
continuous progressis made like with user-
generated content We are well on frack to
meet the longer-term targets and strategic
KPls Our Executive Team have shown the
necessary and exemplary leadership during
a difficulr chapter of this great Company's
histary and they remain fully commutted to
delvening our strategy working together as
one Group, across nattons and funchons

Strong progress s clearly visible and solid
foundations for the future have been

laid However, we recognise that thereis
much more fo do and we have the nght
Managerment Tearm in place fo fully deliver
aganst our strefch KPIs in the future

Corporate culture

We fully recognise the importance of
building and maintaining a single culture
amongst our employees across the whole
organisation There are great examples of
our peaple working together and bringing
about improvements in many areas of our
organisation The excellent and profitable
CRM from Scandinavia s being rolled

out across the Group and they nturn

are expanding therr dynarmic packaging
business following success inthe UK and




Image removed

Launch of international
web platform

Frank Meysman Chairman wisits
our Bluewater sfore 1o experience
our new OneWeb plat form and our
omni channe! approach

Enabling customers to access our
services through multiple channels
In @ seamless manner is a key part
of our strategy At the heast of this
omni channel approachisthe
witegration of our online and offine
customer proposition

With the launch of cur new
internahional web platform

OneWeb fo the UK market in May
customners are now able to browse
and book on desktop fablet and
mebile devices and directly connect
their online searches within store
bookings (and vice versa) through
new features such as MyAccount
and Wishhst

Continental Europe We have created a single
hatel purchasing unit for the whole Group
and our segments are sharing allocations
within our concept hotels The One Arrline
says'tall The heart really unites our people
and businesses

| reported last year that as a major feature

of the Transformation, we had made huge
progress in the development and roll-out

of Group wide values ways of working
andstandards combined within a Code of
Conduct Everyemployee has been given
training on the Code and this 1s a feature for
all mew employees as part of therr induction
Givenitsimportance in the sustamnability of
our Transformation, thisimportant area s
monitored on a regular basis and the Board 1s
pleased with theimprovernent to our culture
that implermentation of the Code has brought

The Board and diversity

When Iwas appointed as Chairman in
December 2011 |set out tosirengthen

the Board with the nght mix of high-calibre
individuals who possessed a complementary
range of skills and expenence to meet the
challenges ahead Building a world dass
Board was completed with the appointrent
of Carl Symon and Warren Tucker in October
2013 and Annet Anis in July 2014

We strongly believe that diversity adds
significant value at Board Executive and all
other levels throughout the orgarisahion
At the Board level our new Directorsbring
along with the other Directors strong
diversity across a range of measures

including skills, expenence, gender and
natienalty Our Executive Cornmittee also
has an exemplary range of diversity reflecting
that of our custorners and employees

Our new Directors have been fully supported
by a comprehensive induchion programme
which has been complemented through
aseries of traiming and strategy support
presentations for the whole Board
throughout the year This enhanced the
overall effectiveness of the Board na
relatively short period and ensured that
each of our Directors was able to participate
fully in the Board s review of strategy at i1s
meeting i Septernber 2014

Roger Burnell and Peter Marks retired at our
AGM on 20 February 2014 having served
for over 10 years and two years respectively
Iwauld like to thank thern both for their
contributions to the Board and specifically,
Roger as Senior Independent Director and
Charr of the Remuneration Committee and
Peter as Charr of the Health Safety and
Environmental Commuttee Roger chaired
the Remuneration Commuttee during

a perod when significant change and
improvements were introduced to our
executive remuneration arrangements
These improvernents and our ongoing
palicy were fully supparted by Shareholders
at our AGMn February 2014 | am pleased
that Warren Tucker has taken on the role

of Charr of the Remuneration Committee
Emre Berkinis our Chair of the Health Safety
and Environmental Commuttee, and Carl
Symon s our Senior Independent Director

Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2014 1 3

Our stakeholders

We recognise that all our stakeholders play
animportant role in the sustainable future

of cur Group and we have benefited from
therr loyalty in recent years nadditon to

our Shareholders we thank the banks
bondholders and regulators for their ongoing
support We will confinue to engage with
themn as we progress our Transformation

and strategy for profitable growth

Sustainable future

The Group 1s much stronger and more
efficient as a result of the sound progress
made in the many areas of our Transformation
as detailed within this Annual Report
Ourambitions are high and the fargets we
have set ourselves are tough as we aspire

ta be an industry and market leader in
everything we do “Hightech high touch”

15 and will be a unique positioning and a

road to market leadership

Hawving laid firm foundations our
Management Team under Peter’s leadership,
are totally committed and well positioned

to deliver our strategy of sustainable,
profitable growth Whilst recognising there

is muchmore tado the Board s confident

of asustainable future with the potential to
generate supenor Shareholder returns

Frank Meysman
Chairman
25 Novemnber 2014

Strategic report -t
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Transformation Year 2

At the end of Year 2

of the Transformation,
Thomas Cook is leaner,
fitter and more agile,
with a solid foundation
on which fo build

Harriet Green
Chief Executive Officer

Harriet Green was the CEQ up fo and
including the date of this report

Image removed
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Chief Executive Officer’s Q&A

Focused on game-
changing new products,
digital innovation and
robust execution

The lersure fravel sector Is changing at pace as higher incomes,
more leisure fime, better transport links and technology-enabled
marketing excite imaginafions and inspire more people to fake
more personal journeys, more often It's one of the largest
global industries where the disruption of technology has had a
massive Impact, opening endless possibilities for providers and
custormers alike It's against this fast-changing backdrop that the
Transformahion of Thomas Cook confinues —- arguably the oldest
and best-known name in fravel with a 173-year heritage

Thomas Cook’s Transformation journey began in 2012 and has
made huge progress The momentum of the first 365 days
has continued into the second year and here Harriet Green,
Chief Executive Officer answers some of the questions she's
most frequently asked

StrategiC report  —a
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N

Financial statements




1 6 Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2014

Transformation Year 2

Chief Executive Officer’s Q&A confinued

Q: How has the second year of the
Thomas Cook Transformation
differed from the first?

A Transformations fake time a great
1team ahighlevel of resihence and total
24/7 commitment —Thomas Coak s1s at
least a six year journey and each phase of
the journey will be different as we evolve
and grow

In our first year we had some immediate

and critical achions to take o stabrise and
refinance the business whichwe did with

our successful £1 6 billon recapitahisahionin
June 2013, and our extensive work to remove
cost de risk the business and improve the
quahity of our revenues Dunng the first

year of our Transformation journey we also
unveiled our new strategy for sustainable,
profitable growth and reduced complexity as
we started to build a more agile, respensive
business capable of responding at pace to
customner need and the world in which we
live We built the cnitical foundahons of the
business—creating a new Leadership Team
which combined the strength and expenence
of a third of those already 10 senior leadership
roles saw approximately a third promoted
from within the organisahon and a third

were brought in from outside bringing much
needed expertise At the end of our first year
we rebranded uniting our globai teams more
closely than ever before behind our Sunny
Heart brand, sending a clear message to
cusforners, partners and employees alike
that Thomas Cook was back, stronger than
before Thiswas particularly important for
aur employees as we develop and evolve

our culture and create a renewed sense of
idenfity as a high-performance organisation

If our first year was about beld decisions
and bullding the foundations then our
second year has been about rigorous
delvery resihence inthe face of tougher
trading conditions de nisking our business
significantly mproving the quality

of our revenues and embedding the
changes we began ta make in the first
year All of this whilst focusing on game-
changing product development, digital
innovation, profit improvernent and bullding
ahigh perforrance team and culfure,
capable of consistent long-term delivery

Rebuilding belief internally s viral and taking
our team with us on the Transformation

15 also critical to the long-term success of
the business

We have just completed our second ever
global, all-employee engagemnent survey and
pleasingly engagement was up globally over
4% on the prior year, a strong indication of the
success we are having in changing athtudes
and approach The strang feedback from our
teamns was their belief that we're changing
Thomas Cook for the better

We asked a selecticn of employees from
altparts of the business representing
different segrmenis and functions ro share
what the Transformation means for them
and you will see their thoughts featured
throughout this report Our people own

the Transformation and are commutted fo
delivering our prormises They are at the very
heart of delivering the changes we need It1s
ourteamns that ensure every customner has the
best possible expenence — one that exceeds
therr expectahions — and builds loyalty
ensunng they will want to travel with us again
A passion for customer service lies af the
heart of all we do—a powerful cornponent
when combined with new products designed
tomeet custorner need and a strong omni
channel approach —ensurnng we remain
relevant to our customers changing needs
and avatable to them however, whenever
and wherever they want to connect with us
Inthe year ahead every leader at Tharnas
Cook will have a single measure of customer
satisfachion at the heart of their individual
performance measurement — exceeding
customer expectations and bullding loyalty
are animpaortant differentiator for us aswe
grow our business

Since we began this journey —just 24 menths
ago—we ve improved underlying EBIT

by £200 milion and delivered nine
consecutive quarters of profit growth aswe
continue to strengthen our balance sheet
Gross margin has improved and this year net
debt reduced by over £90 miflion despite
significant capital expenditure and engoing
Transformahion costs

We have focused closely onde nisking our
business and significantly improving the
qualty of our revenue through a number of
measures including a disciplined focus on
our core business partfolio By taking some
tough decisions we have radically improved
the quality of our revenue and earnings—
disposing of £590 million of revenue from
loss-making and non-core businesses that
together delivered a combined underlying
EBIT of just £3 million We ve also cut risk
capacity inour more challenging markets
of France and Russia and discontinued
unprofitable ines elsewhere in the Group
giving us a stronger base on which ta now
build further Our UK business sowvitalin
the Transformation of Thormas Cook has
benefited from the changes we are making
demonsirated by the 1 3% year-on-year
improvernent In EBIT marginte 3 5% inline
with our FY15 UK EBIT target of 5%

It s been hugely rewarding to see some

of the work we've begun start fo come fo
fruihon and delver results —whether our new
OneWeb website delivered for the UK and
now being rolled out into other markets, or
our significantly improved and differentiated
product portfolio Increased by 165 new
partnership and concept hotels this year

with more new concepts in development

Image removed




The significant Improvernents we have made
in our product offering is another important
stepin de-nsking our business and these
changes further strengthen our offering

The success of our cost-out programme

15 already evident and Wave 1 has now
delivered cumuiative cenefits of E4GO million
and we have raised our FY15 target from
E460 million fo over £500 mulon The plans
for Wave 2 —our profit improvernent plan
—which will fundamentally change how

we do business are also becaming firmer
and we are increasing our Wave 2 target by
another £30 milhon to £180 millon We are
reshaping to becorne a more efficient and
effective operating model - as befits a
digital enterprise

We have rmade good progress against our
publicly stated KPls and althoughwe are of
course disappointed that we narrowly missed
a rouple of the more stretching rargets we will
conhnue fo focus on those areas and rermain
confident that we can deliver There sno
complacency amongst the Leadership Team
and our commitment to deliver 1s stronger
than ever

Thomas Cook at the end of Year 2 1s leaner
fitter and rmore agile with a sohd foundahion
onwhich to build —evidenced by our ability
to withstand significant headwinds this year
particularly the effects of the unrest in Egypt,
arrhne aver-capacity fears around Ebola

and the economy in Germany — all factors
that could have been enough toirrevocably
darnage Thornas Cook of old, but now we're
mare resihent and bullding en the solid
foundations laid down over the [ast fwo years

My personal belief s that “getting better
never stops” and ina high performance
business this means consistent execution
being the leaders the environment demands
and keeping our customer at the heart of all
we do

Q: You've been very good

at taking cost out, when will
the Company start to deliver
fop-line growth?

A Inrmajor Transformations ke this ane,
vou have to start with finangial turnaround
—generating cash and reducing cost

We absolutely knowwe can t shrink our way
to greatness and the Management Team
rermain focused on driving top-hine profitable
growth through the nigorous executicn of
our strategy

Ourstrategy s creating a platform for top-line
growth which aswe breathed iife into it 1s set
to deliver

From the start of our Transformation we
idennfied publicly that we needed to develop
a strategy for profitable growth and that's
what we've done The core of our strategy is
built around

Growing profitably through
our trusted product portfolio

Delivening our ommi-channel
vision, there for customers
however, whenever and
wherever they want to
reachus

Optimising costs and cash
through the Thomas Cook
Business System

Owning and taking nisk n the
night assets and capacity

Transforming our
organisation, culture
and capabilities

We are making significant progress in all of
these elements, and the signs are good We re
well positioned for fukure growth, with an
improved balance sheet, a de-risked business
and better quality revenues Lesscast and
amuch improved preduct portfolio has
already delivered incremental new product
revenues of £280 million since 2012 with
much more to cormne as new productsand
conceptscome fo market and begin to
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delver results Our products are targeted

at gving our existing customers what they
told us they wanted through their extensive
feedback whilst attracting new custormers
to our increasingly differentiated and
unigue approach

The right products underpinned by our
assurance of quality and the trust that
comes from being the oldest and best loved
narme In travel brands offers cusiomers a
compelling proposttion

Our omni channel appreach and significant
investment in the web is also changing

our operating model as we focus on being
relevant to our custorners — ensunng our
technology enables us to be there and
connect with them however, whenever

and wherever they need us

The Management Tearn wili cantinue to focus
onwhat we can control as we strengthen

the business 1o aeliver resuirs and build on
the strong momentum we have created
whatever the market condiions

Q: How s Thomas Cook's
product strategy progressing?
What further changes can

we expect to see?

A Our product portfolio wasn t strong
enough in some of our key markets and

we had candidly falled to keep pace with
custorner needs We were missing huge
opportunimes by not offenng our customers
the products they needed and wanted and
our extensive fraveller survey in 2012 gave us
realinsight into our custormers This research,
still some of the most comprehensive in the
industry has helped to guide and shape our
approach fo new product development as we
have dnven hard to become more relevant
and really differenhate our product portfolio

The quality assured trusted holiday
experience thzat customers associate

with our brand 15 a major factar in why
customers choose ta travel with Thomas
Cook —a guarantee of support quality and
commetment —a trusted partner in their
travel experience The survey told us again
and again that this trusted reputation was the
biggest single factor why customers entrust
therr holiday expenences to Thomas Cook

—
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Chief Executive Officer's Q&A continued

Our focus on quality Is now even more
rigorous than before with all properties
subject to regular and ngorous review We ve
strengthened our Quality Team and they now
work across markets to consistent standards
and measures—with stringent improvement
pians put in place and monitored for

any hotel which fails fo meet the required
standards These measures and mare are
designed to give our custormers the peace
of mind they have come to expect and rely
on frormn the oldest name in leisure travel

Profitable growth through personalsed
and trusted productsis one of the essential
pillars of the Thamas Cook Business Systemn
-auroperating methadology fo further
professianalise not only our business but
also our industry

Custorners are used fo personaiisation n all
that they do and therr fravel experience 15

no different Customers want flexibility and
unique experiences Through our wide range
of regional arports and arrline parfners we
are able to dynamically package our hotels
and flight options to give each customer the
perscnal chaices they want

Our concept hotels are central to our strategy
and offer something different to match every
budget —whether for families or adult-only
travellers —they confinue to dnve growth and
profitability Custorners love them and they
result in repeat early bookings

Logo removed

Ourlatest concept — SunConnect — s for
those who want 1 stay connected on their
holidays —as we embrace the future witha
combination of fantashic digital features to
complement the more tradihional features
Full Wi-Fi throughout teen lounges, docking
bars to recharge your devices as well as
yourself all sortsof funactwities for all ages
such as geocaching and GPS treasure hunts
supported by a Connect Scout — our web-
savwvy holiday rep ready to meet your needs

We have other excifing new concepts in
development which we look forward to
shanng in the year ahead and with the
power of the web we are now able tolaunch
new products outside of the traditional
brochure cycle

As well as exciting our customers, our new
products are delivering results Revenue from
new products was up cumulatively to

£288 millon — fantashic progress towards
our FY15 rarget of £700 milhon Bringing on
new properties, destinahions and concepts
takes tirne but the results we are seeing from
those new products as they are launched
isworthwhile

Expanding our Winter Sun and City Break
offenngs also remains a focus for us —and we
have added new destinations in Cape Verde
the Canbbean and the USA — including many
new flight routes

More mformation
Seepage 36

By removing unprefirable high-nsk properties
we are further improving the quahty of our
business and fully expect our cumulative

new product growth to reach £700 million

by 2015 and £1 2 bilion by the end of 2017
withincreased margins

Q: How are you making your
business more resilient and able
to withstand external pressures
on travel?

A Over the last two years we ve confinued

to remove unprofitable, higher-nisk business
and lay the foundanions for further profitable
growth by sigrificant investment in new
products and our strategy Thrs, combined
with the reshaping of our partfolio saw 2
gross margin impraverment of 60 basis paints
across the Group on a like-for-like basis

Strengthening our product portfolio and
rernoving poor performing hotels from our
inventary has been a major factor nthe
improved performance of our UK business
—such a key aspect of the furnarcund of
the Group

Inaddition our significantly strengthened
balance sheet and debt profile has de nisked
our business and 18 already delivening higher
quality revenue This s wital for the long term
strength and success of the business giving
us the ability and strength to withstand the
kind of chatlenges posed by recent world
events and airline over-capacity

We have delivered growth despite these
challenges assisted by an ongoing focus on
reducing cost and maxsmising efficency —
bullding a more agite business capable of
responding quickly to change

Our focus on structural change will continue
to be key as we operate aleaner business - for
example, bringing together our four separate
arhnes fo operate as one arrline segment

has driven huge efficiency reduced cost and
strengthened our cperations Thisis the very
essence of our Wave 2 Profit Improvernent
drive —reshaping our business for the future

Strengthening our product portfolio and
removing poor performing hotels from our
inventory has been a major factor in the
improved performance of our UK business




The Thomas Cook Business System
cperating methadology which we
introduced last year, 1s central fo dnving a
culture of continuous improvement and s
the approach that underpins all we do as

we further professionalise and differentiate
our operations Af the core of the Thomas
Cook Business System s a lean management
philosophy of continuous iImprovement

We have also Infreduced better governance
and a robust approach to nsk management
alt part of becorning a more nimble agle
and responsive business — mare resilient
ang better able than before to anticipate
and cope with change

Q. When will Thomas Cook
reach the “hpping point”
onits digital evolution?

A Enabling customers to access our services
through multiple channels inan ntegrated
and searmless manner and transforming our
business to becore a truly digital enterprise
i1s central to our future and with the "heavy
Iifting that has already taken place in the
last two years we are now paised to take
advantage of the firm foundation for digital
growth that we ve established

Digital progress s never n a straight inen my
expenence We need toinvest in the changes
required drive digitalinnovahion be bold and
prepared to disrupt the old ways of working
Oncethisis done the elusive tipping point

will come

We have made huge stridesn this area —~
with the biggest changes well underway
and poised ro deliver the change we are
committed to as we move ever closer to
the hpping point Where we focus we make
a difference

Qur omni channel strategy s exoiting and
delivering change nght across the business

Our research confinues to show that
customers appreciate the wide range of
channels we offer for them to conneci with
us Intoday s connected world we need to
be there for thern however whenever and
wherever they need fo reach us — fechnology
offers more 1ools and more opportunity for
this than ever before — through as part of our
‘hugh tech, high touch” commitment access

to our expert advisers—whether by phone
or in person —1s also verywmportant for many
of our customers

As part of this omni-channel approach we
now have seven concept storesin the UK
—offering a truly differenttated customer
experience as seen on pages 30 and 31
Whilst our online Transformation enables
seamless connechion across channels
through innovations ke wish-list, which
enables custoimers fo shorthist in-store and
then peruse their personal shorthist from the
comnfort of horme fo make a final decision
before booking through whichever channel
works best forthem  connecting e-fail
andretail

Every online custormer now has access to
"rny account” — their personalised reposifory
accessible through every channel and device
providing a full summary of all the Thomas
Cook news and tools — bringing our high tech,
high touch vision to lite for our customers
and employees alike

We now offer 360 degree videos of our
destinahions easy to-access Tnp Advisor
rahngs and connect our customers through
the power of social rmedia to share therr
expenences, truly harmessing the knowledge
and power of our employee experts and
others whao have visited the destination
previcusly to bring the vacafion experience
1o life for our customers

Image removed

We are bringing the holiday expenence

ever closer, breathing ife into it for our
custorners through the excifing infroduction
of augrmented reality into our brochures
Virtual reality headsets are launching in our
primary retall outletsin the coming weeks
adding anew dimension, allowing customers
to experience and “feel” their next adventure
and see for thernselves the innovative
changeswe re making
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We ve created some exciting apps to support
our customersin therr fravels, providing
information 1o our customersin the way they
want to receive it —we already offer our Digital
Companion app in Northern Europe and very
popular Travelguide in Germany and there 1s
more innavation to come

We've seen growthin our mobile bockings on
thornascook com of 74%, as the expansion
of our mobile services has become a key
elemment of our online and omni-channel
strategy 29% of airline bookings are now
rmade via moble or tablet, and we ve
established a dedicated rmobile hub in
Stockholm with more excifing innavations
tocome

We continue to attract great talent to
strengthen our digital and innovation
expertise and ensure thereisno let upin the
speed and breadth of innovation In addition
to a number of significant appointrments
and promwlwns mcduding a promaotion
internally fo the newly created rofe of Chief
Innovation Officer Inaddition we have
added real digitat expertise to our main plc
Board and our unique Digital Advisory Board,
compnsing external experts n therr fields
and some of our very best internal digitat
talent, continues tokeep us at the forefront
of digital nnovation

Learn more about the Digital Adwsory Board
See page 37
An exating new global markehing nimatve
called the “One Campaign” s being
launched This will work through all channels
in afl markets and really harnesses our
digital capabiliies to excite and delight
our customers

Inthis area, as with many others, Thomas
Coak 1s winning awards and recognition — bast
arline best use of social media and many
more as evidenced on page 22
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Chief Executive Officer’s Q&A continued

Q- How are you sustaining
the pace?

A Tansformations of thiskind are a 24/7
challenge and we have invested trme

and energy in starting the process of
change internally creating a culture of
hugh performance and belief and bringing
our people along withus To affecta
Transforrnation of this scale in just two years
has required real pace and commitment
and our people fold us in the survey that
they felf the rapid pace of change was nghr
for what we need fo do whilst 50% of our
leaders think we should go even faster!

Our people are ultimately the ones driving the
change - their passion for our customers love
of the brand and belief in the Transformation
1sulimately our greatest differentiator and
vital to delivering the change we need ta see

Sustaining energy 15 vital and we are investing
heavily In aur people and leaders through
achve development, engagement and
mentorng programmes We re rebuilding
pride and the power of the external
recognition we re receming across the Group
I1s hugely powerful to our teams We've

lsted some of the awards we've received

on page 22 —usually won in the face of shff
cormpetition frorm other major global players

We are changing the culture of our business
and exciting internal programmes ke ‘let s
go digital” are helping our own feams fo

[Travel] provides food for the mind, it contribufes
fo the strength and enjoyment of the infellect,

it helps to pull men out of the mire and pollution
of old corrupt customs, it promotes a feeling of
universal brotherhood, it accelerates the march
of peace, and virtue, and love — it also contributes
to the health of the body, by a relaxation from the
toil and the invigoration of the physical powers

Thomas Cook (Cook s Excursionist June 1854)

embrace the skills they need 1o better support
our customers in the fast changing world
of travel

Much needs to be done and with a mantra
that 'getning better neverstops” the
Management Team are ready toembrace

and drive forward into year three of our
Transformation Our employees told usin our
latest survey that they really feel we are back
and are better and the averwhelming majority
feel that we are changing the business for the
betrer, and this progress will continue at pace

The Transformation of Thomas Cook into

a ccmpany with a market capitalisation of
just under £2 billon and a share price of over
136 pence™ s one | have been proud 1o lead

| always said that | would move on to ancther
company with fresh challenges once my woerk
was complefe I've been working closely with
Peter Fankhauser duning the Jast two years
and lwish Peter Fankhauser and all of the
team at this re-energised company confinued
success, as they move to the next phase of the
Company s development

Themas Cook s business 1s about delighting
aur custormers every day and delivering the
best weeks of their year Travelss an exating
business as Thornas Cook himself said

N 1854

Harnet Green

Chief Executive Officer
25 Novernber 2014

* Asar 24 Novermber 2014
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Peter Fankhauser

Chief Executive Officer

with effect from
26 November 2014

Image removed
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External recognifion of our Transformation achieverments

in the second year of our Transformation the
Thomas Cook Group receved significant hugh
profile recognifion for our sirong leadership the
actions we have taken fo stabilise the business and
the sirategic direchon we have taken to achieve
sustamnable profitable growth in the longer term

We recerved more than 70 accolades from financial
institutions the travel industry in our segrments and
internationally consumer organisations and, most
importantly, a large number being voted for by our
custorners All strong endarsermnents that we are
moving In the nght direction and giving confidence
to all our key stakeholders We are delighted 1o

have been recognised in many of the areas in
which the Thomas Cook Business Systern guides
us, most notably our strong leadership digital
advances innovation and our sigreficant product
improvements —all underpinned by our obsession
with keeping cusfomers at our heart

Below are just a few of the Group s highlights —
a fuilhist of the awards and accolades bestowed
upon us since we began our Transformation
Jjourney in 2012 including local awards can be
found on www thomascookgroup com under
the “About” menu

42nd Annual Veuve Chquot Business Worman Award -
May 2014
Winner—CEC Harnet Green Thomas Cook Group plc

Travelmole Web Awards UK - 8 October
Best Arline Website and Best use of Social Media for
@thomascockcares Shorthsted in Best Tour Operator website

NED Awards (Non Executive Dhrector) — Apnl 2014
Quoted Company - Official List —Chairman Frank Meysrman
Thomas Cook Group pic

Twenheth Annual Darmsh Travel Awards — B October
Northern Europe

Won Best Damish Charter Airhne and Spieswon Best Danish
Tour Operator

PLC Awards - March 2014
Achievernentin Sustainability Award — Thomas Cook Group
Turnaround of the Year — Thomas Cook Group plc

Congress of the Belgian Data Qualiy Associahion -
9 October, Belgium
Data Quality Award

Business Finance Awards —March 2014
FD of the Year— CFO Michael Healy Thomas Cook Group ple

Acquisition International and Dealfeed
Thornas Cook Group awarded Support Serwces Deal of the Year
for the UK for sale of our Corparate Travel business

UK Stock Market Awards— March 2014
FDcf the Year— CFO Michael Healy Thomas Cock Group plc

Sector Success Awards operated by DealFeed
Voted Best inSector — UK Package Holdays and Sector
Innovator Award for Infernational Leisure Travel

Institute For Tumaround Awards 2013 (Group)
“Turnaround & Transform Listed Company”™ Award 2013
“Leader of the Year 2013 - Thomas Ceok Group plc

Corporate Comms Awards — 26 November UK
Thomas Cook Group plc —Highly Commended for Best Rebrand

National Business Awards (UK) - November 2013
“Leader of the Year 2013" - CEO Harriet Green

Women in Business Award {Travel and Leisure)
Morra Lumsden Dundee siore — Nominated by RSM

World Branding Awards - ceremony 26 October, London
Thomas Cook Group awarded Brand of the Year nthe Nahianal
Travel and Leisure category

ICSA Excellencein Governance Awards - 12 November 2014
Shorthisted for Best rernuneranon report and
Best Board Disclosure inthe FTSE 250

Eye For Travel Award - 1 October, Germany
TC/Neckermann won an award for Travelguide App

Beitish Legal Week Awards - 27 November 2014
Craig Stoehr—Winner General Counsel of the Year

German Fairness Awards — 7 October
Presented to both Thomas Cook and Neckermann —
survey Dy customers




Market overview

The magjonty of this absolute growthis
expected ro come from emerging markets

with Europe forecast to expenence low single-

digit growth over the next five years In these
mature markets, there continue to rernain
substanhial oppartunities within specific
custarmer segments that can be captured by
agile operators who can deploy innovative
services through multiple distnbution
channels fo meet changing customer needs
The ines between tradifionally distinct
intermediary players continue to become
increasingly blurred as online intermediarnes
capture greater value across the value chain

Thomas Cook’s strategy reflects these
industry dynamics We are capturing

growth in our exishing markets by offering a
differentiated qualiiy-controlled and frusted
portfalic of harels and increased flexibility In

Graph removed

3 Spending by outbound toursis abread Including ther payments to fareign carrers forinternational
and local transport that are purchased whenabroad (Source Euromonitar UNWTO)
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Increasing demand for
infernational travel
and leisure

The global fravel and tourism market has grown over the past decade and is
expected to confinue growing at a 4-5% CAGR over the next five years to reach
almost $1 3 trillion Average income per capita 1s forecast to grow by more than
50% worldwide by 2020, thus driving Increased demand for international travel
and leisure As aresulr, by 2030, international tourist arrvals are expected fo reach
1 8 billion per year, having exceeded 1 bilhon for the first time in 2012 worldwicle

allowing customers to build their own tnips
Our omni-channel approach allows us o
leverage our custorner insights deepen our
relationships seamlessty with thern across
multiple touchpoints and serve and delight
them in their holiday expernences

Economic environment

The travel industry s nherently cyclical driven
by GDP, capacity avallability and volafility
shoacks such as political and local weather
evenfs GDP growthnour three largest
markets, the UK Germany and Sweden

met or exceeded expectations in 2013
realsing growth of 1 7%, 05% and 1 6%
respectively Inaddition, despite a modest
downward revision of expected growth the
Eurozane s expected to grow by a further

1 3% n 2015, creating a stable platform for
continued growth in the leisure fravel ndustry
(Source IMF) Emerging economies continue
to be the main driver for overall global growth,
although signs of a slowdown for some of
these econarnies have caused a downward
revision of GDP forecasts by leading

credit agencies
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Market overview continued

The internet continues to strongly influence
the world in which we live, in 2013, online
retailing in Europe grew by 21 1%

Regulatory and political environment

Consumer protechion 1s a constant and
increasing area of focus at the EU leve!
Within the framewaork of reguiahions and
standards in each of our source markets we
offer our custermers the assurance of financial
protechion including the rembursement

of travel costs in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy of a teur operator The European
Package Travel Directive (PTD) places
vanous disclosure and habilty obligations
upon us as marketers of travel packages

The reconsideration of this directive started
atthe EU level nfuly 2013 and 1s expected
to conclude in spring 2015 The proposed
revision s anhopated te enhance consumer
protechon nghts and to create a more level
playing field among operators The UK
Government has announced thar it wall

once the PTD 15 agreed reconsider the
mdustry s ATOL consumer protection regime
We continue to engage with all key European
institutions to seek the best outcome for
consumers and for the industry

The arrline industry s heavily regulated
principally for safety reasons It also faces
increasing levels of taxation and the
enhanced protechon of consumer nghts
European airlines including our own are
subject to air passenger nghts legislahon
whereby arlines may be required tc pay
compensation to passengers whose flights
are delayed by more than three hours

This legislahon is also in the process of
revision within the EU but progress has been
interrupted by a sovereignty dispute between
Spainand the UK regarding the applicability

of this legislation in Gibraltar Dunng this
period, the oniginal EU law has confinued to
be modified by vanious EU countries such that
its onginal scope and application has been
muchincreased

Inthisrespect tworecent UK examples are
of note One 1s where the Supreme Court

in the UK has established rhat claims for
compensatian are permissible in nsfances

of technical fault, even though the onginal
drafting of the EU legislation recogrised that
technical faults were an area for which no
cornpensation would be payable Inanother
UK case it was established that compensation
ctairms for delayed flights are vahd even if the
flight took place up to six years ago and again
this finding 15 nconsistent with the application

elsewhereinthe EU .

Since (ts introduchion this legislation has
impacted the arhnes industry significantly
We continue fo engage in lobbying
governments in the interests bath of our
Industry and of cur custormers and to rermind
themn of the impartance of fravel and fournsm
as a source of employrnent and driver

of growth

Cur holday programmes are also nfluenced
by national and political events and the
responses of governments to them We follow
such governmental travel advice closely and
are able to shift our flying programme and
hotel capacity fo aiternative destinations at
short nofice in order to continue to meet our
customers’ expectations




% of traffic by device, 2013-2014

Desktop Tabler Phone
Image Image
Image removed removed removed
0
52 28% 20%
2014 2014
660/0 21% 13%
2013 2013 o
Key industry trends Online intermediaries have fradiionally

A number of mega-trends continue to
influence and steer the leisure travel market
These include

The growth of digital and online
business models

The internet continues to strongly

influence the world inwhich we live 1n

2013, online retaiing in Europe grew by
211% The accessibility of choice both
through online travel agents and third-party
comparison sites, and also online reviews
sites means that the nse of digitat 1s expected
to conhnue indefinitely This presents a huge
eppartunity for Thomas Cock to combine our
17 3-year experience and depth of knowledge
of the leisure travel industry with the nsing
web presence and increasing use of mobile
technology to drive sales further

InFY14 there has been a shiff inour
customers channelhabits Ahigher
proportion of customers are accessing
ourwebsite via a tablet or a mobile device
whereas the desktop computer 1s becorming
less popular as the dewice for browsing

our website

operated with ane of four business models
content, metasearch agency model

or merchant model These disruptive
technological innovations, fuelled by the
prohferation of start-ups in the sector offer
greater choice and fexibility to the end
consurner than ever before

Against this backdrop Thomas Cook's trusted
product portfoho, high-guality customer
expenence and deep relationships during all
touchpaints of the custormer journey provide
us with an exciting opportunity to leverage
the webs capabilities During the past year
with further improvernents and funchonahty
of our Group websites we have generated
more than £3 bilien through the web, of
which £0 5 billlon came from mobite devices

Low-cost air fravel

Low-cost arlines have grown dramathically

in Europe and are now mowng up the

value chain and becorming integrated tour
operatars, thereby offering more choice

and flexibility to the consurmer than ever
before Excess capacity n 2014 resulted
InIncreasing pressure on the industry asa
whole Combined with the growing threat of
online disruptors consumer power ta drive
compehfive prices remains at an all-nme high
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Desprte these industry dynamics, Thomas
Cook, which operates its own Group
Arrlines but also purchases approximately
45% of its air capacity from third parties

15 able to feverage our strong pasition

in the marketplace to diffeieniiate ow
services Our dynamic packaging engine
allows custormers to customise individual
cornponents of therr travel, backed

by our quality assurance guarantee

The optimised thomascookailines com
website has increased visitors and made
booking easier during 201314 resulting
inimproved conversion We continue to
introduce new long haul flights to popular
destinahons In addihion, our focus onon
time performance has dnven improvernents
dunng 2013-14 from our targeted 82%
to 82 6%, and nsing from 78% during
2012-13 Moreover we are conhinuing 1o
make improvements in the airline fleet by
2016 95% of the fleet will be either new
or refurbished with new cabin design and
intericrs to create greater custormer comfort
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Value creation

How is
value created?

We create value by offering compelling tour products and services, supply
of arrline and seat capacity, digital innavation and multi-channel reach

Q How does Thomas Cook create

A

value throughits business model?

» We offer our custormers an
integrated end fo endiravel
expenence underpinned
by the strength of the
Thomas Cook brands

> Wehelp make sense of the
overwhelrning choice of travel
products avallable to customers

» We differentiate ourselves from
competitors by offening high
levels of service throughout
the customer journey

> We offer the assurance of a
qualty controlled product
portfolio and financial secunty

Purchasing
and supply of
arline seats
and hotel beds

3

v

v

In-house

Shareholder
value

5

Q Whatmakes hotel
partnersandother
suppliers want towork
with Thomas Cook?

A > Curdsinbution strengih
» Qurindustry expernise
and market intelhgence
» Qur deep supplier
relanonships dedicated
service agentsand field
support

>
d packa

Produchon and
marketing of travel
packages
componentsand
ancillaries

1

v

Brands services
and product/

> Service and assurance >

Salesvia

omm channel
distribution system
-~web phone and
face 1o face

4

v

v

e “~
portfolio

Innovation

A

Q How does Thomas Cook
develop and sustain its
competitive advantage?

A > Werespond to custormer
needs and preferences
and toindustry trends

» Wenvest in our core
brands andinour
processes and technology
nfrastructure

> We are proud innovalors
N ourindustry

In house

Customer
value

2

~

Q Whydocustomersbuy
from Thomas Cook and
why do they conhinue
todose?

Where does Thomas
Cook’s compehitive
advantage come from?

A »Productrange and choice
> Value for money
> Sarvice and assurance
» Brand strength

< Service and assurance <




Compelling branded travel packages, components and ancillaries
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Wehave a presence in 14 source markets across Europe and
aur trusted product portfolio allows us to capitalise on the
leisure fravel industry s 4% year-on-year growth worldwide

Our tour products, ranging from our differenniated concept
and partnership hotels to fast-growing flexible fnps”,

meef the needs of a wide array of customer segments

We mifigate the inherent seasonality in the business thraugh
our Winfer Sun offenng and are on-track to reshape cur
business portfolio and realise £1 2 bilkon of new product

revenue growth by 2017

Airshoppen our successful duty-free sales servicein
Northern Europe, provided another area of growthin 2014
and we are currently expanding this to Conder with future
expansions planned to other Thomas Cook airlines

Our product strategy ams fo safisfy a wide array of customer needs
through differentiated hotels and flexible trips

Crow our
differentiated,
controlled hotels

Grow our concept hotels
offening a controlled value-

added holiday experience and

sold exclusively through us

Expand our partnership
hotels delivered by leading
hoteliers with a track record
of quality

Sansfy mare
custorner needs with
flexible trips

Attract new custorners and
rmeet existing custormers’
increasing demand for
flexible trips through
dynamic packaging and
component sales

Support flexible fnps plan
with a competitive low-
cost aperating model for
our Long Taulportfolio and
HotelstU com platform

Mitigate
seasonality through
Winter Sunsales

Push more Sun & Beach
holidays duning the winter
season to delver working
capitalimprovement

Underpin our
portfolo by quality

Implement Quality
Control standards and
ymproverment plans to
provide a consistent holiday
experience in our Concept
and Partnership hatels

Curate our Long Tail portfolio
through a ngorous Quality
Assurance approach
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Value creation confinued

2 Customer value

Industry-leading customer service

We create value by focusing on our customers and bulding
relahionships with them Qur custormer service 1s present

at many different touchpoints including in store online
onthe arcraft and in-destination, and we aimto provide
high quality seamless advice and support from the fime
of booking through to the hohday and return home

Ourexpenence flexibility across platforms and deshinations,
and deep sector expertise means that the level of service
our customers eceve via the internet face-to-face, in resort
phare or on mobile devices cannot be matched by other
tour operafors or online fravel websites

Inaddifton our custorner service is tallored to each
indvidual, meaming the content, tming and structure of
our interactions are personalised o meet the needs of each
indmwidual custorner

Our Voyager
Android vision

Reinvanting travel for the
digrtal age across every
custormer touchpoint empowered by
leading technology

Image removed

Destination
Web Stores Centactcentres services
"Detwveragnostic “Trustedadviceto  “Help to smooth The face

shckuser bring the hohday the hohday of the only
experiencens  tolife wellbefore  experencewhen  Thomus Cook

yourfirstport you setfooton youneedit could do this
of caft hohiday experence ™
Supportwith

Diginahinfrastructure Technology Orginalspintuahsanon

Quality and assurance

We have a high level of trust with our customers Our praduct
Inventory s quality assured taking Into account customer
and third partyreviews For our high-voiume destinations,
we carry out our own professional checks to ensure that
ahigh standard s maintained An active health and

safety assurance process is also in place across our enfire
product range

Brand strength

Thomas Cock 1s ane of the leading leisure travel brands
inthe industry given our 17 3-year hentage

This Thomas Caok master brand is supperted by a nurmber
of well known local brands acrass our saurce markets,
including Condor, Neckermann JeiTours Ving and Spies,
which are integrated with the Thornas Cook Group through
the Sunny Heart logo

We recognise that trust and consistency are two of fhe most
important drivers of conversien across our source markets
66% of fravellers want help in choosing the nght expenence
and rnore than 80% of travellers read numerous reviews
before making a decision on a hotel

What differenfiates Thomas Cook

v§ tour aperafors vs both vs OTAs

Customer

> Larger array of > Customer trust from > True omini channel
exclusive concept and consistent high approach enabling

partnership hotels quality expenence customers to

» Relationstups that > Deeperinsight nto research and book
extendto shorter who our customers when and where
mps pre booking are and how they  SutS e
and post travel are evolving

Cost and capacity

»Estabhished cultureof > Lower cosi of air travel > Access 1o
confinuous cost gut concept hatels
and improvement and to exclusive
and Thornas Cook partnership hotels

Business System

» More asset light
approachto horel
and arrine capacity




Supply of arrline seats and hotel beds
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Qur core business model as a tour operator allows customers
to select erther fulty packaged holidays or ndvidual
cornponents of holidays inline with their preferences
Given our pasitionin the market we are able to leverage
our Group buying power to take measured nsks in inventory
and balance such risks against custormer demands Qur
classic” packaging remains popular for Sun & Beach breaks
which remains cne of the largest and mast popular market
segmenfs within Western Europe There hasalsobeena
growth in the amount of dynamically packaged holidays
over the last year and thus will remain a key strategic focus
for the Company

Classic packages

Classic or pre-packaged holidays combine two or more
components of a holday (for example a charter flight and
hotel) and are sold as a single product to the end consumer
directly through our omni-channel distribution routes and
tothird-party travel agents via partnerships

Dynamic packages

Dynamic packages allow custemers ta tallor their holidays
inline with therr ndividual requirements — destination
duration, quality and price are all custormisable We saurce
these holiday components from a range of third-party
providers package themwith other services, and resell them
ta the end cansumer directly or vo a third party travel agent
with a mark-up or commission

Local adaptations of our business model exist across

our source markets depending on the level of vertical
Infegration among our airlings, tour operators and
distnbution channels Inthe UK Northern Europe and
Belgium, as an example we operate as a vertically integrated
tour operatar providing holidays to customers through our
integrated distribution of retall stores, websites and call
centres nGermany, however, we onginate a significant
proportion of passenger volumes through our German
airline Condor, and the majonty of travel products and
services are distributed thraugh third parties

Airlines and seat only

Our in-house arrlines support our tour operator business,
which provides services to the Themas Cook Group as well
as third parties

Arrlines has also mamtained focus an the development of
the Transformation programme “One Arline  where the
Group's honzontal integrahion has continued apace bringing
several high tech hightouch changes fo create value

What Transformation

Christina

Image removed

Condor flight attendants

assessing what you do and why
you do if, then making posttive
changes for the better We live
in a dynamic world, customers’
needs change and we have to
change We cannot do the same
things and expect different
results We needed to transform

—
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Value creation continued

L Digital nnovation and distnbution

Innovation has always been a core part of what makes
us Thomas Cook, and currently our entire orgamisahion s
re oneniing around digital

To date we have launched successful omni channel
inihiatives such as WishList which enables customers to
move easlly between store and web channels — and recens
winner of the TTG s Leading Edge Award for Innevation —
and MyAccount which enabies web customers to conduct
research, planning and booking actmities seamtessly
across devices

We are undertaking nmiatives to bring 1Pads to maore of cur
stores, allowing staff ta showcase the best of our preducts
more easily than is possible through paper brachures —
and to ourin deshination representatives, enabling them
to unlock inefficiencies and take in resort customer service
toanewlevel

These innovations will provide us with a deeper insight into
our customers needs and behaviours thereby allowing us
to leverage our customer analytics and CRM fo cater more
closely to anindividual

Our digital progression

Web

Our fully responsive website continues 1o be at the forefront
of ourdigital agenda with our new fechnology stack
providing a faster and more reliable expenence More than
£3 billion of web sales and £0 5 billion of mobile sales in
FY14 demonstrates our commitment te innovation and
achievernents to date

Since launching in May 2014 the new UK website has
delvered year-on year online package booking increases
of 11% for desktops, 61% for tablets and 212% for mobile
The continuing channel shift towards the web s not only
more cost effective but also enables us 1o attract a new
generation of custormers Gur Digital Product Developrment
Team s dedicated to making a constant flow of innovative
iterative Improvernents to our websites, based on a test
and learn process and centred around our overall digital
customer vision

Inaddition the launch of the new arhne seat-only website
“flythormascook com” has delivered an increase invisits
and conversion for seat only which aids the Group Airfhne
performance in the face of strong competition The website
15 bullt using responsive design which prowvides an opt:mal
viewing experience across a wide range of devices such as
desktop, tabler and mobile devices

2013/14 S
Building
the foundations

Delver leapfrog performance

2017/18 —2
Aleading
2015/16 J— -_ techinnovator
Atruly digrtal
Thomas Cook

Lead the ndustry in digital
innovation both online and in retail

Act as an incubator for start-ups

on Mobility inthe travel industry
Improve and embed our capabilities Ensure digital is “lived and
across the Group breathed” by our people
Stabilise current platforrn and launch Ensure stores deliver as our
new ways of working “digital fronthne” for customers

Deliver Group wide
IT iIntegration architecture




Stores

Our Retail Transformation 1s continuing We have further
developed OneWeb retal, our new point of sale systemn that
uses engaging content from Oneweb along with Trip Adwisor
scores, pnorty badging of our key properties and red routes

Our latest Concept store at Bluewater has opened including
atnatof Oculus Rift — Virtual Realiry headset — we can walk
customers through our Sentido Resort with soundscape
and Senhdo fragrance and also our arrcraft We have a proof
of concept app developed by Microsoft partner Infusion

In response to customer research from our other Concept
stores This has two elements Inspiration and Inspire Me

We have introduced a kids zone in partnershipwith Disney
with tablets for children to play on

We have reduced the administrative tasks for stores to allow
thern to spend more time with our custormers and improved
ways of working focusing on performance briefs at the start
of each shift and managerment observahian and coaching
Tablets and Wi-Fi have also now been rolled out to all stores

Contact centres

Our contact centres sell directly fo customers, aswell as
providing sales and customer support at any cusiomer
touchpoint In the custamer experence Ahclidayisone

of the mast important items of discretionary spend for
our customers, and we recogntse this importance by
ensurng that all support 1s tallored to each individual calter
and delivered through personal contact rather than an
aufomated computer system

The service Is avallable out of hours, and complerments our
web and refall offering ensunng the custormer is provided
with acomprehensive shapping expenence This offering will
continue to support the growth of our digital organisation
and our omni-channel strategy
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Shareholder value

How we generate returns from our
products and services

We defined seven sirategic KPis in March 2013 to generate
returns from our products and services around two main areas

Sustainable and profitable growth

Several of our targets are articulated around revenue growth
and profit irmprovement Our new and enhanced product
offering 1s expected to deliver the largest part of our future
revenue growth, with a compound annual growth rate of

at least 3 5% over the period FY13-15 Thus growth rate
isunderpinned by our “new product” expansion strategy
where we have targets to grow exclusive and flexible revenue
streams by £700 milion by FY15and £1 2 billenby FY17

In addihien our cost-out and profit improvernent plans focus
on the delivery of efficiency inintiatwves totalling in excess of
£500 million by FY 15 under the current Wave 1 programme
and by a further £400 milhon by FY18 under Wave 2

Cash generahion andstiengthening of balance sheet

Following the successful recapitalisation of the business in
FY13 akey elernent of our corporate strategy remains cash
flow generation and the retentian of a greater proporfion
of our earmings for remvestment 1n the business, debt
reduchon or distnbution ro Shareholders Inthat context
we have a specific cash conversion target of >70% by FY15
as a measure of our effectiveness in translating profitability
to cash Improving the operating cash flow profile of the
business together with the proceeds from our disposal/
de-nsking programrme, will allow the Group fo repay ifs
debt o levels consistent with the reinstatement of dividend
paymentsin due course

How we distribute those returns

Asour first phase of our Transformation reaches its
conclusion our focus rernains onensunng a sustanable
profitable cutlook for the Group our employees and
many stakeholders

Qurstrategy of profitable growth and cash generation will
posifion the business to deliver value to Shareholders in
three main areas

> share price appreciation
> debi reduction
> didend payments

Ourshort term prionty remains debt reduction toimprove
the strength of our balance sheet and reduce the Company s
debt-servicing burden The repayment of the €400 milion
Eurobend which matures injune 2015 represents the first
milestone in deleveraging our balance sheet putting the
Group In a better posinon te arhiculate a dividend pelicy

at the end of FY15

Strategicreport  —
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Image removed

working closely with all of
the segments and measuring
performance and targefs
Everything is ultimafrely about
harnessing People, Products
and Profits to deliver a growth
vision for the Company

What
Transformation
means fo...

dld

Sentor Finance Business Partner
— Functional Reporting
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Review of strategy

Our strategy
IN action

Our strategy, announced in March 2013, 18 to deliver sustainable profitable growth
by providing trusted, personalhsed hohday expeniences through a “high tech, high
touch” approach We are alieady delivering on the targets and KPIs we outlined

as part of the current phase of our Transformation, and we expect further phases
of Transfarmation as we balance speed of change against the lead imes and
mvestment required for successful implementation

The five key elements of our Transformation strategy that will reposition us for
success in the modern travet industry are

Growing profitably through our Offer the very best exclusive and differentiated portfolio

trusted product portfoho inindustry and a low-cost debvery model for undfferentiated
but quahty-assured products

Delivering Voyager Android Aleading tech mnovator with a seamless omni channel

and omni-channel vision approach and an ability to incubate new and innovative ideas

Ophimising costs and cash through  Renowned across industries for our ability to deliver cansistently

Thomas Cook Business System aganst margin and cash targets with professional systems
and processes

Owning and taking nsk i the The industry leader for capacity nsk management rewarded

right assets and capacity by markets with industry leacing multiples

Transforming our organisation, A performance-driven organisation and culture which aitracts

culture and capabilities and develops distinctive leaders 1s focused on custorners

and shimulates innovation

Our aspiration 1s to be anindustry and market leader in every element of our sirategy

Strafegic report  w
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Review of sfraregy confinued

Before addressing our strategy in more detail, we highlight a few
key factors that differentiate us from our competitors

Firstly we seek 1o provide cur custorners with a true omni-channel
experience Custormers can research and book their holidays and
ancillary products when and where it suits themn whether on the
web ormobile devices in-store confact centres or n-destination
This allows us to build relahonships with cur customers beyond their
holiday across a number of touchpoints, in @ way that sets us apart
from online travel agencies (OTAs)

As custorners are traveling more frequently than before, we are able
to extend our relationship with the custormer beyond therr annual
summer vacation fo winter sun and shorter city breaks pre-booking
and post-travel giving us deeper insights into who our custormers
are and how their needs are evolving and allowing us to offer the
mos! suifable hohdays and ancillary products to fulfil therr needs
The strength of our 173-year-cld brand and our holishc approach
towards our custorners has earned Thornas Cook a reputation

for providing a trusted consistent and hugh-quality expenence
Combined with our large array of exclusive concept and partnership
hotels this approach sets us apart fromother operators in the leisure
travel market including many tradinonal Tour Operatars

The Thomas Cook Business System

Secondly, whilst keeping the customer at the heart of everything we
do we manage our business cost efficently and seek to ensure that
we are rewarded for taking capacity rskin airlines and hotels We have
asignificant advantage over other Tour Operators through our asset-ight
approach fo hotel and amine capacity re-balanang our hotel portfolio
to take capacity nsk only in higher-margin differentiated hotels
Relative to OTAs our established relationships and scale of organisation
with over 20 millon customers, give us a significant advantage by
enabling us to gain exclusive access totop qualty hotels

Our established culture of continuous cost out and profit
improvernent sets us apart frarm other operators in the leisure fravel
market This culture 1s encapsulated in a disaphned aperating model
that we call the Thomas Cook Business System, illustrated below

We built our unique Thomas Cook Business Systern by studying
best practices across many industries sncluding consurmer high tech
and industrial industnes The systern s reflected throughout our
strategy and forms the basis of our second wave of cost outand
profit improverment It will professionalise our business helping us
drve profitable growth theough four major pillars (as illustrated)
while keeping the custormer at the heart of our business Itis central
to our whale Transformatian, supporting our ongawng iourney and
helping us shape the future of the Group and successfully dnive
continuous improvement

Profitable growth through trusted,

personalised products

» Customer centred design of frusted
personalsed products

> Quality assurance of preducts
and service

» Controlled concepts delivering
enhanced value

High Tech, High Touch

adigital business

> Business system shifted
increasingly online

» Digmsing achivifies to bring Voyager
Android alive

> Structurally lower costs increased spans
and fewer layers

> Future growtn through operzhional
strengths, new partnerships
and internationalisaticn

Image removed

> Accelerated new product developrnent

Top-to-bottom leadership and

relentless performance management

> Systernatic performance ranagernent
agamnst aligned strategic and
operational targets

> Infegrated risk processes

> Leaders throughout wha inspire and
support people to deliver

This system 1s underpinned by

Customer
at the heart

Efficient structures, systems and

processes throughlean & innovation

» Group-wide horizontal processes
supporting vertical businesses driven
through a Wave 2 of cost-out and profit
improvement inifiatives

» Lean operafing system driving
continuous Innovathion and improvermnent

» Consolidated shared services enabling
local delivery

> Listening to and acting on the voice and insights of custormers
> Employees wha ive for delivenng our brand prormise and
products consistent with core values

> Leanwith ourselves lavish with our customers
> Our customer at the heart of all goals for all employees




Growing profitably through
our frusted product portfolio

Qur product strategy aims ta sahisfy a wide array of custormer needs
while generating significant revenue and margen growth We are
expanding our high-margin differentiated hotels (including concept
and partrershup hotels) and shifting high-cost cornmaodity products
to a trading hotels operafing model with low-cost automatic souraing
and no capacity nsk We are also meefing the increasing customer
demand for flexible products through dynamic packaging enabling
us to attract new custormers who would not typically cansider booking
a “package” holday In addition we offer a wide range of component
travel praducts whether this s a hotel or fight anly Throughout our
product portfolto s underpinned by rigorous quality conirot and
assurance to ensure that we meet custorners expectations

Within concept hotels we are expanding our five concept chains
SunConnect Sunwing Sentido, Sunprnme and Smartline across
the Group We are also sharpening these concept definiens and
looking to develop new ones fo drive further growth These hotels
have a central concept design and have a successful track record In
Northern Europe and Continental Eurcpe Concept hotels now span
13 destination markets including Turkey and Tunrsia where we are
the biggest leisure chain as well as Spain and Greece Over e last
year the number of guests at our concept hotels iIncreased by 42%
—animpressive result so early inour new product strategy

We aim to cover the investrment costs of our concept hotel expansion
beth by removing underperforming hatels from the Group s hotel
portfolio and leveraging our scale fo secure better rates The Group
utilises a number of operafing madeils, Including franchises o deliver
this concept hotel offering

Concept hotelks offer a controlled, value-added and consistent
holiday experience based on a defined list of features tailored to
meet customer demands These hotels generate, relative to other
products in the Group, higher margens as a result of earlier booking
rates and greater customer loyalty and are mostly marketed and
sold rhrough Thomas Coak
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A range of high-quality holiday experiences
that appeal fo a variety of customers

Logo removed

image removed

Sunwing Family Resorts are
our prime family hotels wath
spacious family-friendly
apartrents loaded with smart
detais All hotels have excellent
locations With akids club spa
and gym thereissomething

for the whole farmily

Lego removed

Image removed

SENTIDO Hotels & Resorts
are aimed teward discerning
travellers, who value health-
consclous cuisine and
wellmess facilities along with
wide-ranging <ports and
entertainment programmes

Loge removed

Image removed

Sunprime Hotels are our
adulr-only resorts for those
that appreciate the “good
things intife”, with pnme
locations, peaceful pools
and modern restaurants

Logo removed

Image removed

Smartlne hotels are a great
value option for young travellers
The eye-catching colourful
interior designis chic and inviting

Logo removed

Image removed

SunConnect isthe first digirally
enabled hotel brand making the
holiday expernence evenmore
relaxed through technology
Extrafeatures at these farmily-
friendly resorts include the
ability to browse and book daily

activihies through phone or tablet
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We are also expanding the number of hotels we partner with
These are leading giobal hoteliers, such as H10, Iberostar, Meli3,
Paloma and Sunrise These hotels are selected for their track record
of quality and customer valued features such as family-friendly or
over 60 or specific themes such as “wellness’ Selected hotels from
our partners are exclusively available fo Thomas Cook Over ime

all partnership hotels will be exclusively available to our cusiomers

Since the end of FY 2013 we have increased the number of concept
and partnership hotels to 475 and we are confident that we will
achieve our previously announced roll-aut plans We airm to have
640 and 8OO concept and partnership hotels by FY15 and FY18
respectively aswe focus on maximising occupancy levels at our
concept hotels through advanced inventory rmanagernent

Image removed

In addinion to driving differentiated product growth we are meeting

the increasing demand for more flexible trips with dynamic packaging What

We have achieved early success in the Nordics with a 55% increase Transformation
In bookings since launching in January 2014 and no corresponding « Mmeansto
reduchon in demand for other products We believe that dynamic

packaging will also boost our Group-wide profitabiliry as we offer din M a l I n

acost efficient way partly through our high quality Long Tail portfolio
and HotelstU platforms It wilkalso help drnive component sales

Logo removed HR Services Adviser

We are also growing our port foho of Ciry Breaks This 1egether with

Sun & Beach holdays offered dunng the winter helps smooth the be,ng fru[y ,nsp”fed It’s certain [y

seasonality of our cash flow Specifically we have added a number of
new wirter hatels in Winter 14/15 and introduced new deshinations an ambitious Transformanon

such as Cape Verde We have already seen positive early signs with

improved bookings for Winter 14/15 and are currently evaluating journ e)/ W’Th some Cha”eng’ng
growth opportunifies in destinations such as Turkey and the Canaries times ahead Whaf / hke abour
Tostrengthen the leng haul oty business and the winter sun business

Thomas Cook has launched new routes to Windhoek Grenada and Thomas Cook Is that it doesn’t

increased capacity to Bangkak in Winter 14/15 For Summer we

continue to expand our profitable long haul business with the new matter Where yOU Work in rhe

routes from Manchester to New York and Miarmi, as well as from

Frankfurt to Prowidence and Porfland Organfsanon' the vision is so CIQCH’,
and this makes people work even
harder fo achieve great things

and to be part of something big
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Together with our eCormnmerce Centre of Excellence our Digital
Adwisory Board {DAB) has beennstrurnental in vastly improving and
substantially embedding our digital capabilities across the Group and
helping restructure our business to focus on the web The DAB s an
important conduit to identify and attract the brightest and best digital

Delivering the Voyager Android
and omni-channel vision

Our "Voyager Android” vision respands to changing customer needs
and aspires to reinvent travel in the digital age acrass every custorner

—

teuchpoint or channel (web or mobile devices, in store contact
centres or n-destination) We are reposinoning Thomas Cook from a

retall-based travel company to a truly omni-channel digital company,

offenng a seamless customer experience through all avallable
channels spintuahsing a digital approach across our organisation
from the inside out Intime we plan to be a true technology innovator
leading the industry in both ontine and in retall This Transformation
will be supporied throughout by leading technology infrastructure
bullding o the substanhal consehdanon and simphfication of our 1T

infrastructure that we have already achieved

Digital Advisory Board

talentinfo the Group It also adwses the Group s Board on leading
edge frends for online businesses and digital Transformation

One significant current trend 15 @ major shuft in customers' channel
preferences specifically the move within the online environment
fram desktop to mobile devices Inthe pastyear anincreasing
number of our own custerners have booked therr holidays on atablet
or on their mobile phones whereas the percentage of onhine bookings
via desktops, albeit still high has declined Since launching our new

UK website in May 2014, bookings on tablefs have increased by 54%
and bookings on mobile phones have jumped by 175%

External advisors Internal advisors
A Group of external evperts, specialistsin Kate Smaje McKinsey Partner Harriet Gre(en Peter Fankhauser
ﬁc thi Group CEQ (unnl Formerly COO nov.
ther different fields who work with our Image 25 Navernber 2014) Group CEO from
ownteaders and talented performers fo removed 26 November 2014
drive a culture of leading edge innovation
at Thormas Cook and ensure the continued
momentum of cur digital strategy Laurence John CEC and founder John Straw Marco Ryan
of CTRLio Entreprengur Chief Innovation
Image in Residence Officer (from
removed and Chaurman of january 2015)
the DAB for 2014
Simon Darling Partner at jenny Peters Tin Van Genechten
jack & Anna Ltd GroupHead aof Group Head of Brand
image Communications 8 Strategic Marketing
removed
Nick Suckley founder of agenda21 SandraCampopiano  Magnus Wikner
and DataShaka Chief People Officer tanaging Director
image Northern Europe
remoaved
Jo Hickson Head of Innovation Salman Syed Chnstoph Debus
image at Home Retall Group Managing Director UK Chief Air Travel Officer
removed
Tom Woeds Partrer at Foolproof Tomasz Smaczny Michael Tenzer
Chief Technology Managing Director
image Officer Central Europe
removed
Kathsyn Parsons co founder Remo Masala
of Decoded Chief Marketing Officer
Image
removed
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Review of sfrategy confinued

Annual web booked revenues now represent approximately

£3 billon including mebile and fablet bookings of almost £0 5 billion
This demonstrates our abity fo respond raprdly fo changing custormer
oreferences and aim taleapfrog our competitors threugh superor
mobile delvery of our products Through innovation we have clearly
become more refevani to a new generation of customners in the

travel market

Web and mobile/fablet booking revenue

Image removed

£3bn £5200m

2014 014

These dramatic changes are also reflected in our web penetranon
results from 34% rwo years ago to 38% today as we progress
towards our future target of 50% Our revamped UK website and

our Investment In OneWeb and MyAccount (a fealure that enables
custorners to transact and inferact with us seamilessly across multiple
channels) are confributing to this as are substantial improvernents to
the content we pravide on the web, ncluding adding videos of resorts
and additional information about the hotels and surrounding areas
We expect web penetration toimprove further as we roll-out our new
website to other markets beyond the UK with benefits expected
from F¥15

This digital Transformation not only benefits customers thiough an
enhanced online expenence, but # also improves the profitability of
our business We eshimare that the cost fo serve our custorners via the
web 1s approximately £50 lower than doing so in-store As we steadily
migrate our customers onfing, we also expect fo reduce the number of
contact centres and stores we have with associated cost benefits

We have not oniy consalidated the number of stores We are also
adaphing many stores to deliver as our “digifa! fronthine™ which
includes developments such as the award winruing Wish List
where custamers enter astore research hohdays withthe help of a
consultant who then emails a selection of hotels fo the customers
so they can discuss it at home and book iF online whenever they
wish We have alsc introduced iPads in our concept stores thersby
reducing the need for brochures

For the first ime 1n the travel industry on a irial basis we have also
offered customers a full sensory virtual reality expenence in our
Bluewater cancept store in the UK This * try before you buy” facility
using Oculus Rift 3 head mounted virtual reality 30 display allows
custarners to enter” a wirtual world where they experience a 360
degree stereoscapic four of one of our concept hotels as well as the
in-fiight expenence fromour anhnes 1his recent trial in Blugwater
demonstrates our ambition ta leverage digital advancements to
further improve the custormer experience - in this instance to enhance
what our customers expenence in retail today and in the years
tocome

We have launched a new programme fo address the culture shift
toward digitisation in our organisation which focuses on increasing
awareness and engagerment in digital as well as improving the digital
knowledge of all pecple inthe business Our business segments are
runrung “Let s go Digital* awareness weeks which involve a range of
activihies to exaite and engage people in all things digital including
presentations from leading digital companies, such as Facebook and
Twitter aswell asthose currently undergoing digital Transfarmation
such as Waitrose and Vodafone Practical sessions are offered to help
people get hands enwith digital ways of working

Tosupport further engagement in our new digifal products, we
launchedthe Eagle Eyes mitiative which encourages our people
1o log onto our websites and identify improverents we can make
to the online custorner experience This has been met with a
fantastic response

We continue to offer ichmics our bitesize digital knowledge sessions
which gives our people insight into the fast changing world of aigital
nspiring them ta mprove their own learning Following the success of
the ichinics we plan tointroduce a TC Digital Academy in 2015 We also
offer a reverse mentoring initiative which pairs up our leadership
with digital experts across the business ta create an addihonal digital
learning oppertunity for our leaders

Finally n-destination we are enhancing and differentiahng our
customer service and customer satisfachon to set ourselves apart
from other travel companies especially TAs We look after cur
custarmersin destinahon and our customers feel secure Inthe
knowledge that no matter the situation that may anse whilst they
are abroad we are there to help them We are embedding new ways
of working through our Group Destination Managerment (GOM)
Academy and drawing on pockets of excellence that exist today

for example in the Nordics Allour GOM and Quality colleagues will
have access to tablets inked to our CRM system to allow for rapid
response to customers and also improve the sales process We are
already applying the ‘Lean” principles in sarne destinahions and
improving all our processes including those crihical moments of truth
atthe arrport the transfer process the customer communication and
engagement processes and how we bring the holiday to Iife through
our Welcome meetings
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Optimising costs and cash through The Thomas Cook Business System is also a key enabler of the

: successfulimplementanon of our Wave 2 cost-out and profit
the Thomas Cook Business SyStem improvement programme We expect that Wave 2 will deliver henefits 1
Oui approach to cost cut and improving owr cash flow and working of around £400 million (for more detarls, see below) Key drvers 5
capital s underpinned by the Thomas Cook Business System include improving our hote! and airline yield management, integrating &
astllustrated on page 34 By adophing these best practices and our IT HR and finance funchions digihising our business and optimising g
becorning a more professional organisation we have been able to the delivery channels through which we operate o
significantly accelerate andincrease our delivery of cost out and prefit g
improverment benefirs, wirh higher Wave 1 cosf-out fargets at each
market announcement Ulhmately, we will operate as one integrated
busmess sirmphifying our systerns and processes and focusing on our
core praduct
]
5
£400m
3
Annual benefits S
delvered by Hoteland arrline
Fy18 yield management
Yield management
Cemmon product processes & systems
Ophimised yield management
Gmup airlines synergies
Enablers "
T transformatron L Channels and digrhisation g
Synergies from coordinahign of Wav.e 2 Inlhahves Group-wide CRM E
support funchions =
Fit for purpose HR organisation Ognl-ch?n:il a::proa;h %
annel shift througl A
Group wide {T function web presence .
Culture of continuous E
improvemnent & efficiency +
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Review of strategy continued

Owning and taking risk in the right
assets and capacity

Our asprration 1s to rove from 1aking capacity risk inundifferentialed
arrline and hotel capacity t¢ focusing nsk on differenhiated products
with higher margins Since 2012 we have “de nisked” our portfolio
and improved revenue and earmings quality by exiting unprofitable
and high risk business induding disposing of loss making and
non-core operations, Implementing strategic reduchonsin risk
capacity n France and Russia and discenhinuing low quality
unprofitable commodity products At the same hme we have been
Investing in and expanding our higher return exclusive core product
offening (cencept and parinership hotels) where we are rewarded
for taking capaaity risk

Graph removed

Image removed

FY13 FY15 FY17
Target number exclusive hotels 309 640 800
Revenue contribution from concept Ontrack
and other core product ¢ 80% todeliver >95%

Image removed Image removed

We are focused on managing our airline as efficiently as possible

With 88 aircraft we are the eleventhlargest combined arkine in
Europe by fleet size We are renewing our fleet by replacing clder
arcraft with 25 brand new A321 aircraft between summer 2013

and summer 2016 and we are also nvesting around £100 millonin
refurbishing and reconfiguning our fleet This gives us a very efficient
and modern high quality airine which supperts our own tour cperator
business with fully competitive market-based seat rates We also have
a successful, standalone and profitable seat only business We are
driving ancillary sales such as meal concepts anshort/medium

haul fights upgrade offers and pre-order duty free shopping which
substantially enhances and diversifies cur arline revenues

In recent years there has been a significant increase inarline capacity
specifically inlow cost carners which has led to very compehifive
pricing We are able to benefit from this as we already procure more
than 45% of our arr travel capacity from third-party arrlines Qur four
airhnes have combined vanous operations allowing usto befter
manage our capacity ihreughout the season and we confinue fo
drve operanonal improvements and synergy benefits which will

total £130 rmilhon by 2015

Image removed Image removed

Ourupgraded fleet

We are making significant nvesiments to improve the quality of our awline
customer experience including cabin refurbishments and the introduction
of 25 brand new aircraft resultingin a jump in customer satisfachon scores
while akso delivening operahing efhcienaies




Transforming our organisation,
culture and capabilities

Ourvision s to have a high performance culture focused on successful
delivery of our strategy We have continued to build a more effective
organisation by strengthening our Managerment Team both through
external recruiiment as well as internal promotion, realigring the
Executive Commiftee and breaking down regional silos We have
improved sfaff engagement and we are bullding a culture and
organisation that firmly places the custormer at the heart of everything
they do

From where we sfarted in 2012, faced with huge organisational,
cultural and capability changes, and not necessarily able fo attract
top talent we have substantially transformed our Leadership Team
by promoting existing talent and also attracting new talent from
outside Forexample, in 2014 we strengthened our Quality Assurance
funchonwith the addition of 50 people frem within the Group

Of our 40 person Semor Digital Team over half are new tures many
Jjoming from leading digital companies We have also strengthened
our Marketing Team by appointing a new Group Head of Marketing
who s overseemng the development of the Group’s online and offline
marketing pragrammes and brings awide range of experience fo help
enhance Thomas Cook's strong market pasition and brang

For mere information on our people and our culture, please refer to
the sechion on “Our People” from page 43 Here we provide more
detail on communicating and engaging with cur employees our most
recent employee engagement survey and our recognifion schemes
and our talent development programmes

Notwithstanding these achievernents we are fully committed to
achieving even more so that Thamas Cock s full potenhial is realised
We are accelerating the development of our new products improving
the nsk/reward profile of our portfolio driving further efficiencies
enhancing our IT systems and digifrsing the business, while confinuing
to ensure we aftract and retain the very best pecple Our relentless
focus on delivering sustainable profitable growth remains as does
our commitment to transform Thomas Cock inte a beacon of best
practice for the whole fravel industry

Qur people section
from page L3
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What
Transformation
meansto

Brett

Image removed

Desktop Support Engineer

1S a bit like the theatre
A person, when in character,
1s able to tfransform from the
ordinary fo the extraordinary
Transformation means going
beyond your form and the
process begins with imagination

—
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Image removed

What

Transformation
means 1o...

Rosie

Deputy Group Financial Controller

For me, the
Transformation means
opportunity, for change,
for growth and for
learning, for the Group,
for the finance team and
for me as an individual




Thomas Cook Group plc Annuat Report & Accounts 2014 LI 3

Our people and key relationships

Our culture and people
are central o delivering
our Transformation

Background

The Board and Executive Committee strongly believe that our
cuiture and people are central to the ongoing delivery and
sustainability of our Transformation It 1s understood that the
success of our Transformation 1s equally dependent on both
the seamless execution of our strategy for profitable growth
and the creation of a culture which supports this delivery

The “tone from the top” drives the considerable support and
focus from leaders at all levels Group-wide as described in

the Thomas Cook HR Vision “to attract, develop, engage and
reward diverse talenf, who deliver results in a fit for purpose
organisation reflecting our culture and values” Outlined In this
section are some of the key activities which are driving this
cultural shift to successfully execute our Transformation

—_—
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Our people and key relationships confinued

Our values Our Ways of Working

» Kill politics
» Make data-based decisions
» Stick to the decisions we make

> Engage empathise and
mvalve employees deep down

> Take personal responstbility
» Present a urited front

» Give and take feedback
in front of people not
behind them

» Be cost-conscious lean
with ourselves lavish with
our customers

» Have fun

» Succeed as one team

> Delver for our custorers
> Engage each other

> Dnve for results

> Act withintegnty

Values, Ways of Working and Code of Conduct

Thomas Cook developed and raintamns Values, Ways of Working

and a Code of Conduct which expresses all that we value and believe
—what we do and who we are These principles provide a solid and
unified framework across the Group rhat guide our behaviours

and howwe conduct our work All employees were frained face-
to-face with the anginallaunch of the Code 1n 2013 Toensure the
Code remains embedded on a sustainable basis allemployees are
requested to confirm each year that they have read understood and
will abide by the Code of Conduct All new employees also undergo
training as part of their nduction This s fracked and the status s
reviewed by the CEO the Senior Leadership Tearn and the Board

We will look to refresh aur Cocle of Conduct dunng 2015 to ensure 1t
remains relevant for our employees and continues to positively impact
the Thornas Cook culture Employees will be refreshed and engaged
through face to face training for the re launch and this will be tracked
using online technology

We moriior our Ways of Workmng throughinterviews and through

our Group-wide Employee Engagement Survey Feedback from
ernployees on our Code of Conduct has been overwhelmingly positive
throughout the organisation

Communicating and engaging with our employees

We confinue to share infermahon and collaborate more effectively
together as a Group and there are a number of regular forums and
channels to ensure effective communicahien and governance for
our organisation

The Themas Cook Leadership Council {TCLC) meets every quarter
and each one s connected to our Transformahan to communicate
inspire, share progress and ownership Feedback suggests these
meetings have been instrumental in engaging the Top 140 leaders
and providing a platform for ' Groupness” and collaboration

TCLCs have been held both virtually and face-to face the former
providing the opportunity for leaders to role model digitisation
inaction In addition, the CEQ regularly meets with the Executive
Committee and also chairs amenthly strategy review meeting with
senior leaders across the Group to discuss progress and plans fo deliver
all elernents of the Transformation The CEO also carries aut manthly
one-to-ones with all direct reports to review progress on objectives,
ensure alignment on key decsions and offer support

In addiion to regular forums to engage our Leadership Teams we
also have arange of channels to communicate with our employees
Signeficantly in March 2014 we launched a new social collaborative
intranet —“HeartBeat This one system replaces 17 diverse Thormas
Cook Intranets — 1t does not represent just a system change but isa
symbol of a culturatshift which marks a new era of coflaboration,
enabling cross funchional working as all parts of the Group come
together on one system for the first fime On “Heartbeat” there

15 a range of blogs, videos and cascade maternials avalable and it
also provides the opportunity for employees tointeract together

to share, participate and collaborate together Inaddition fo digital
communications such as Transformation eNews there are also regular
programmes of face fo-face interachive “Town Halls heldlocallyin
each segment

Engagement Survey — Every Voice 2014

In September 2014, Thomas Cock conducted its secand Group

wide Employee Engagernent Survey across 39 countniesand in 16
languages 75% of employees responded, a 2% increase on last year
Of those who participated, 27% chose to share comments allof
which were read by the CEO

The engagemant score this year increased by 4%, animproverment
regarded as significant by the provider TNS, particularly for an
organisation experiencing Transformation In all categones and
indhices of the core index which measures organisational performance
and the ability to generate sustainable profitable growth and value
for customers, there has been a posttive improvernent since last
year, with the most notable beng in the categonies of Learring

and Development Innovation and Alignment to our strategy

Thus significant improverment in our engagernent score 1S simportant
to the sustainable future of our Group as many more employees
are clear about the Transformation ownand understand their part
in it and are drving our future success




Throughout the organisation, our values are better understood and
our people feel more able to speak up Ourleadership scores have
improved significantly with anincrease of 4% of managers who are
Judged as strong by our teams and a decrease of 5% in those who
are seen as needing development

The results will be cascaded throughout the organisation and plans
are already In place fo address the feedback, including a range of
activities that will ernbed important achens from last year, evolve work
that we have starfed and invest In sorme new projects that will make a
difference to our peaple

The Milllon Hearts programme was created In response o key

thermes that emerged from the survey and 1s aligned to the Thomas
Cook Business System This programme ts designed to respond to
employee feedback and aims fo Increase levels of engagement

by connecting employees more closely with our customers aur
Transforration and increasing pride In our products and services

The programme has four key companents (custamer eadership,
innovahon and digital cubture) and witroduced CEO Awards for
outstanding custorner service awarded on abi annual basis

Sharing success stanes across the Group ensures the nght behaviours
supnort our values and are embedded and replicated All the work
streamns have delivered against the success critena set and are

of strategic sigrificance However to further bughlight using two
examples the purpose of the Great leadership programme was

to develop leadership capacity so leaders can actively engage and
develop employees effectively A bespoke leadership programme

was designed and delivered by trained internal coaching charnpions
and an external provider specalising in ccaching fo over 500 leaders
since March 2014 These one day sessions enable our leaders to learn
how to engage in powerful development discussions fo unlack the
potential of our people with aur commitment that every employee will
have a credible develapment discussion by the end of 2014 secondly
Digihising Our Culture 1s crihical if we are to change mind-setsand
engage our leaders and employees Improvernents have been made
through a number of activities to ensure that employees have the
opportunity tothink digstal For example employees can now hook
their holidays online and receive staff concessions Launch weeks have
beenheld for “Let s Go Digital” in every segment to raise awareness
and we are looking to drive digital know how through the Thomas
Cook Digital Acaderny A reverse mentoring programme has also been
created which allows our digitat natives to guide our less digital-aware
leaders to gaininsight and embrace digital Segment programmes and
education achivities have been delivered using an external company
that specialises indigihising cuttures and organisations

Engagement achion plans are tracked and reviewed monthly ina
meeting chawed by the CEQ and Every Voice sponsors, who deliver the
programme We will continue with an Every Voice 2014 survey to track
our progress and make the relevant adjustments fo the Million Hearts
programme inresponse fo the feedback recetved
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Performance management

Ahgnment of abjectives and goals fo our Strategy and Transformation
Is key to our successful execution Todeliver this all employees

rmust understand what 1s expected of themn and how success will be
measured bothin ferms of what they deliver and the behaviours
they demonstrate All employees have objectives set and agreed

at the beginning of the financial year and these are formally

reviewed hwice a year and informally during monthly one-to-ones
During 2014, we mplemented a high tech, high tauch systern

— MyPAD" (Performance Aspirahions and Development) to capiure
employees’ objectives and development plans with an aim to give
indviduals more ownership and accountability for their careers and
development MyPAD prowides a crifical link for all employees to our
strategic plan targets and KPIs shared af our Capital markets day in
March 2013 We have implemented MyPAD successfully across the
Croup providing the appropnate traning and tools for our leaders to
ensure effechive review meetings Thisis another example of digitising
and professionalsing our culture The system will allow us to track
performance against objectives andrate potential across the Group
allowing the development of robust succession plans

Thomas Cook talent and succession development

o

Led by our CEQ, we continue to invest ana strengthen our leadsistup
capability by both attraching and hinng world-class talent infokey
appointments fwith virtually 100% success rate), and driving a
renewed focus on development and succession Qur phulosophy 1s to
achieve optimum balance in our arganisation, by premoting a third
fromwithin keeping a third in current roles and attracting a third from
outside, bringing rich and valuable experience with them fo further
increase our leadership bench sirength Developing and maintaining
strong leadership and succession will be significantly enhanced with
our online performance and falent system The next phase of aur
Talent Strategy will be ta systernatically review our functional and
segrment talent and ensure robust succession plans are in place across
the Group There are plans in place for this beginning in early 2015,
following the first online year end review process

—
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Our people and key relationships continued

Talent development programmes

We launched the first Executive development programme in 2013
and following successful evaluation will launch a further programme
for our next 50 leaders In the autumn of 2014 Evaluation of the
2013 programme evidenced behavioural change andincreased job
perfarmance from the majonty of participants, Including many role
changes and promaohons In addition participants really valued the
opporiunity to gain insight on therr leadership style ang found the
process professional and helpful

To further suppart our succession planning the Nawvigator programme
was designed for and targeted at our Emerging Talent population

This has been successfully piloted duning 2013 in the Arrines

segment We willlaunch a second stage later this year targeted at

our Emerging Talent Group-wide This programme wallidentify and
deveiop a fast track for our high potential taient to form a leadership
pipeline for leadership roles Group-wide to further sustain and deliver
our Transformation

Pay for performance

We were pleased with the overwhetming support by Sharehaiders for
our Remuneration policy and remuneration report at the February
2014 AGM The performance measures communicated within our
report confinue to be fully aligned with our strategic business goa'ls
These performance measures are reflected in the annual bonus and
share Incentive award programmes that our leaders partiopate in
which ensures management are incentivised to deliver aganst cur
strefching strategic goals and that they will be rewarded for ther
success We attach a great deal of importance to communicating
reward opporturity and performance achievernent and provide
regular performance updates to enable people to monitor progress
against the targets

Details of our Remuneration Policy and practice can be found on
pages9Lto 110

Recognition

Throughout the year our peer-to-peer recognition scheme  From
The Heart” has been rolling out to the Group and s now accessible
to colleagues in over 14 countnies and throughout resorts FY14 has
seen over 35,000 awards made and continues to be at the forefront
of recognising those who demonstrate our core values The online
platforrn has evolved during the year and colleagues can use mobile
and video technelogy to make awards — achieving a truly high tech
high touch and personal approach The scheme has been used to
recognise those who have made a significant contribution o our
Transformanon and helps to share and communicate those successes
amongst colteagues throughout the Group

Image removed

Nawvigater programme

The proposed Emerging Talent programme aims to deliver aready group
of talented mama%ers inorder 1o feed the senior leadership pipeline

This high potential group will receive rargeted leadership developrment
to support the defivery of sustainable Transformation embed a culiure
of tugh performance and close identified skilfs gaps across the business

The programme comprnses three core areas of learning

— Authenhc Leadershap —role of the leader leading cthers coaching
and mentonng and career planning and development

- Busmess Skills — A bespoke experientiailearning salution business
simulahon” to run Sunny Co over a three year financial

- Buswness Specific - Airline Management Winning the Custormer
commercial and product and Serving the Customer operational and
custorner delivery

How inspired, open and honest | felt
Cannof wait for the next module

Thanks for this oufstanding
opportunity to grow personally
and professionally




Executive Committee
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Logo CE0
removed Harnet Green
Logo Logo Loge Logo Loge Logo
removed removed removed removed removed removed
Chief Cheef Chief Head Chief Technology General Counsel Chief
Financial Officer Operating Officer of Air Travel Officer and MA People Officer
Michael Healy Peter Fankhauser Christopher Debus Tornasz Smaczry Crang Stoehr Sandra Campopiano

The above reflects the position as of the date of this report (25 Novernber 2014) On 26 November 2014, Harniet Green stepped down from the

business and was replaced as CEQ by Peter Fankhauser

Diversity and inclusion

We believe diversity s an essential part of how we do business and
meet the needs of our equally diverse customer base We operate
n 141 countries employng peaple and working with customers and
suppliers from a broad range of backgrounds and cultures

We conhinue to make a number of senior appointments ta strengthen
dwersity across a range of measures including skills, experience,
gender and nationality We do not tolerate any form of discnmination
and am e reflect the diversity of the communities in which we
operate We are committed to treahng people fairty and ensuring that
cur employment prachices are free from any lawful discrimination
against any employee on the grounds of sex, gender reassignment,
sexual orientahon, pregnancy, race colour, nationality, ethnic or
national ongin religion or belef and age disability

The table below shows the split at different levels wathin the
organisation as at 30 September 2014

Led by the CEQ ourleaders have a new focus on diversity inits
broadest sense and this begins with our attraction and selection
processes We are fraining all our managers through a bespoke
programmme designed for Thornas Cook fo help our managers to
understand best practice guidelines for the recruitment and selection
of diverse talent and fo avoid unconscious bias

We are atso faunching a Group-wide Diversity and Inclusion policy
and through this and other forums we are educating all our leaders
on the importance of diversity and inclusian to business growth

and sustainability As part of this work we will look fo extend our
already very successful Apprenticeship Scheme We have recognised
the value of Apprenticeship schemes for over 20 yearsin the

UK and aver 35 years in Germany In the UK we already recrus
200-250 apprenticeships every year for a two-year programme
The programme results ininfermediate and advanced quahficahions
in Travel Services and on completion the apprentices are offered a
Sales Consultant position Qur success rate on the latest programme
was 92% In addition to this Scheme, we will also launch a work
placernent programme in 2015 to enhance our sustainability, which

% %
Male Female Total Male remaie Wil ensure we offer much needed business contact fo our schools
Plc Board 5 4 9 56 yy  andcolleges for short-termn work expenence Finally we are explonng
Executive Commiitee 5 2 7 7 29 howto best support the orientation and development of our maost
Semor Management important front kine staff in destination with a Group Destination
(TCLC and Subsidianes) 275 75 350 79 7 Management Academy
TCLe 134 u7 181 74 26
Subsicharies 1 28 169 83 17 Conclusion
Whole company 8028 18 507 26535 30 70

During the last year, we have continued fo strengthen our foundations
and build a culture which will deliver in a sustainable way the
Transformahion and profitable growth strategy This requires having
the nght people i the nght roles focused on the nght prortties
Cetting the best people 10 do their best work requires structure

and disciphne as described in the Thomas Cook Business System
onpage 34 We are making great progress and with our HR
Transformation we will continue to iImprove the value and service
propositien for our employees and our custorners This work will

not only deliver the Transformation but a sustainable and profitable
Thomas Cook

—
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Risk management

Embedding a culfure of
risk management

Our nsk management strategy

The Board 15 responsible for maintaining the Group s nsk managemeni
and internal control systems with a mandate that includes defining
nsk appente and monitorng nsk exposures to ensure that the

nature and extent of risks taken by the Group are aligned withits
strategic objectives

Risk appetite

The Board has undertaken a detailed exercise to consider the nsk
appetite in a number of key areas for the business Theresults of
this review indicate the refative appetite of the Board across the risk
factors and behaviours It)s evident that this represents aview at a
point in hime and changes in the economic environment, strategy
and performance of the business willimpact this evaluation

The Board 1s aligned on the relative nsks and has agreed the appetite
for nsk taking for Transformation inmahives and operational defivery
15 entrepreneurial This position aligns with the strategic ams of the
Transformation programine and targets set for the business

The Board seeks to minimse alt Health and Safety and Reputational
rsks Inall other aspects the Board takes a balanced view on
risk taking

[t 15 the intent of the Board to use the risk appehite fo support its
ongoing decision making and fo review annually in she hight of the
changes to the econormic environment, strategic pragress and
performance of the business

Our approach to risk management

Operating in a dynamic and rapidly evolving ermvironment reguires

a flexible and responsive risk managernent process that can match
the pace of change and provide management with a concise view

of the Group s nisk profile at any pomntin ime We confinue to focus

on further ermbedding a culture of nsk management that will
contnibute tawards effective strategy execution ensurning bothnsk and
opportunihes are identified and managed to deliver long-terrn value

creation Dunng 2014 we have formalised our dual frack approach
to risk management consishing of top down oversight form the Board
and serior management and bottorm up defalled nsk assessments

Top down oversight

The Risk Matters Group {"RMG ) and the broader sk management
framework has been designed to ensure the scope of coverage
includes transformarional/sitategic operahonal, financial and legal
nsks withun a single framewaork The purpose of the RMG 1s 1o provide
leadership, direchion and aversight with regard to the Group’s overall
risk framework appetite, and relevant risk policies, processes and
controls The RMG meets on abi-monthly basis, attended by senior
execuhves from across the Group and our external advisers in order
ta provide a further dmension of insight and validation The chair of
the Audit Commuttee also regularly attends the meetings of the RMG
The RMG reports 16 the Audit Cornrmittee and Risks and Disclosures
Cornrmittee and the CEQ of the Group

The Risks and Disclosures Commuttee receves inputs from the
RMG and maintains executive oversight of the Group's key nsks and
mitigation strafegies

The Audit Cornrrittee considers risk exposure against nsk appetite by
profiling key nsks in respect of thewr potential impact and hikelihood
of occurrence, after consideration of mitigating and controlling
actions that are in place Duning the year the Audit Committee has
reviewed both top down and bottom up nsk analyses and the Board
has underfaken a detalled exercise to consider its nsk appetite both
n relahion to the Transfermation achvity and the business as-usual
eraronment The aim of these activities has resulted in 8 Combined
Assurance Plan which will enable arisk-based approach tothe
ongoing internal audit and assurance programme Onan annual basis
the Board reviews nsk appetite to ensure it 1s calibrated to the Group s
strategic obyjectives
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The Risk Matters Group

Top down

Oversight and assessment

of risk exposures atf the
corporate level

Overallresponsibilities
for the nsk management
system

The Board

Sets strategic objechves and

defines nsk appetite

Receves and reviews Audit
Committee reports onnsk
governance

»Set1one af the top

CEO and CFO

» Drive aculture of governance
controls and sk management

» Ensure capabihty and capacty
of the Risk and Audit Team

Audit Commiftee
> Supports the Board in
MOMoNNg fisk exposure
aganst nsk appetite

Executive Committee
> Maintains executive oversight
of the Group s key nsks and
mitigatien

Risk & Disclosure
Committee
> MONItars rhe risk
management process

» Sets the sk management

» Provides oversight and challenge

process

> Considers emerging rrsks
for nsk managerent plans

Bottomup
Identification and assessment
of nisk exposures at segment
and function level

> Group wide niskidentficahion
assessment and monitoring

> Mainienance of nisk registers

Operational level

» Risk awareness and culture
embedded across the Group

> implermentation of nsk mitrganon
plans and controls

Boftomup assessments

Our priortties for 2015

Risk registers are continually updated through an ongoing programme
of nsk workshops with operational and financial management Riskis
formally assessed as a standing agenda item at all monthly segment
level board meetings Additionally, each segment now has a quarterly
Segment Risk Committee attended by the nisk owners of all strategic
inthiztives as well as the Group Enterprise Risk and Audit Team with
key nsks being escalared and discussed within the Risk Matiters Group
("RMG™) The Segment Risk Committees analyse key segment risks
and ensure implermentation of nsk mitigation plans

The Thomas Cook Business Systemn (see page 34) outlines our
commitment fo defining excellence in governance and adopting
principles of nsk management across the organisation and our
processes Our wision for the Thomas Cook Business Systern extends
beyond the parameters of conventional nsk management we are
now implementing our plans to ensure principles of sk management
influence our approach to leadership orgamisational structure,
business policies performance monitorning decision making and
day-to-day processes are aligned o our Profitable Growth Strategy
We do not see this s as a one-hime transformational achwity but an
opporturity for governance and nisk management to influence the
culture and ethos of our operahons and people

We will cantinue to develop our existing risk managerment framewaork
enhancing risk governance and improving the nisk culture of our
orgarusanion Our prionties for next year consist of imgproving our
reporting capabilifies and the underlying nsk data by utiising our risk
software Our ongoing work with key sk indicatars enables effective
and efficient risk monitering and control

—
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Risk management confinued

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The fable below lists the principal iisks and uncertainties that may affect the Group and highlights
the mitigating actions that are being taken The content of the table, however, 1s not intended to be
an exhaustive list of all the rnisks and uncertainties that may anse

Principal risks

Mitigation

1

Fatlure to turnaround our UK business will
have a sigmificant impact on the success of
the overall Thomas Cook Transformation
and may be viewed negatively by our
Shareholders, impacting our share price

UK profitability has improved significantly i £Y 14 refleching the effechiveness
of the Wave 1 cost out and profitimprovernent measures Significant progress
has been achieved in the profitable growth strategy through new preduct
development and by strengthening web performance

Fatlure to transform Thomas Cook into a
digital busmess may have an impact on our
market share, as more and more customers
use the web to research and purchase

ther holidays

Ourstraregy of digital growth 1s supported by the design and delivery of the new
One Web platform Addionally our plans to roll-out Concept stores will enable
the digifisation of the in-stare experience and closer integrahion between on and
off-ine Best practice and innovation support for our digital growth strategy is also
provided by the Digital Advisory Board led by the CEQ and top external experts

Our Transformation inttiatives faul to delwver
our strategic and operational fargets

The CEO reviews all aspects of strategy every two weeks with the Executive
Team and with the Board of Directors at every Board meeting The CEO's
Transformation Office {CTmG} holds monthly strategy review meetings dunng
which progress and issues are discussed and addressed Furthermore our
project management framework enables project governance, transparency
and reporting As part of this framework, regular updates are provided to project
sponsors and any ofher key deciston makers on the progress of projects aganst
the agreed basehne interms of cost nime and qualty/specifications

Failure to expand our products and
services may have an adverse impact
on customer demand

Our current strategy of profitable growth s underpinned by 1he continued
expansion of concept and partnershrp hotel programmes Our centralised
Group Hotel Procurement Team which has recently been sirengthened by
several quality hires enables process efficency gains and synergies and will
seek to minimise the lead time 1o the market to ensure the expansion of our
hotel programmes s on frack

Failure to recrust or to retain the right
people at the night time willlead to alack
of capability or capacity to enable the
implementation of our business strategy

We continue fo make significant investment in our people attracting woerld-
class talenr to strengthen our leadership across the Group Our career site now
reflects the Cempany s high tech high touch strategy andis designed fo engage
apphcants Ournew performance management system was implementedin
2014 10 track the performance and potential of all our employees Our high
potential talent isidentified and nurtured through an Executve development
programme and cur Emerging Talent programime is currently being developed
Finally, our reward schemes are constantly evaluared to dnive and reward
performance and to ensure retention of key talent

Our IT operating model fails to support
the business through the Transformation
and our business as usual activities

Qur IT transformation 1s proceeding as planned but same aspects require more
work to be done This project will ensure delivery of IT services and technology
will be fit fo meet the needs of rapidly changing technologies whilst maintaining
infegrty and performance of existing systems and operations




Principal risks

Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2014 51

Mitigation

/4

Failure to build an accurate understanding
of the customer means that we are unable
to adequately tailor and target custormer
demand leading to reduced sales

Our customer centric vision aims at improving the customer expenence along
the customer journey and developing a trusted product that canbe seen as
a key differentiator in the medium and long-term strategy of Thomas Cook

A decision or a course of action is percerved
negatively by the media, investors and/or
general public, whichin turn impacts the
corporate reputation of the Group and its
share price

We have a clear plan in place to respond to the potential reputational
consequences of an event whichincludes close cooperation between investor
relations, public relations HR and legal teams to idenhfy and prepare responses
toincidents and potential Issues We also monitor stakeholder and polincal
reactions to ensure we react to ermerging political and regulatory developments

Cash generation does nat enable debt
repayment using the most commercially-
favourable terms

We proactively moniter our short medium and long-term cash requirements
and hquidity headroom Our cast-out and profit improvement IniMatives

are successfully contnbuting to cash availability We continue to monitor all
opportunities ta manage hquidity requirernents and maintain an adequate
level of contingency as well as lowening the average cost of debt over the
medium term

10

A major health and safety madent
impacting our customers or colleagues

The assessment of health and safety nisks is inbuit into daily managernent
routmes and s menitored by a comprehensive structure of health and

safety committees that are in turn overseen by a corporate Health, Safety &
Environmental Comnmittee with Board level aversight Our Health and Safety
programme measures standards, audits hotels and includes a clear escalation
and decision process

11

Soao/pohtical uncertainties in particular
theincreasing ncidents of political

and terronst achivity in the Middle East
regionimpacting our key markets, as

well as macro-economic condihions and
environmental factors reduce the demand
for travel related products

Our flexible business model allows us to align our committed capacity to
fluctuating demand We continue to add new desfinahens to our port folio
thereby rmitiganng the effect of factors which may negatively impact demand
for travel to certain regrons Our achive coordination of Group wide nisk actmty
ensures teams have early indication of emerging nsk and by working with risk
specialsts deliver robust and effective rimigations

12

Management information required for

the Company to deliver its strategic targets
and objechives s not clearly defined and
readily available

The Group Finance Transfarmation has standardised structures processes
and systems and provide data driven support for decision makers

13

Falure to comply with legislative
requirements in the legal jurisdictions
where Thomas Cook operates

We have a dedicated Legal Team to ensure full commpliance with formal regulatory
requirements which monitors all current and emerging regulatory developrments
The team receives regular training to provide awareness of crihical changes in
relevant legislation or case law

—

Strategic report

Governance NJ

Financial statements (N




52 Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2014

Transformation Year 2

Michael Healy
Chief Financial Officer

The past financial year
has seen a continuation
in the Group’s progress,
building upon the
foundations laid in 2013

Image removed
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Financial review

Creating strong
momentum for future
profitable growth

Financial results and performance review

Group
Year ended Yearended Like for-like
50September 30September Change change
Em{urtess otherwlse stated) 2014 _ 2013 £m £m
Revenue 8,588 G315 {727) (180}
Underlying gross margin 22 3% 221% Q2% C6%
Underlying profit from operanons (EBIT) 323 263 50 93
Underlying EBIT % 3 8% 28% 10% 12%
EBIT separatety disclosed iterns (269} (250) (i9)
EBIT 54 13 4l
Loss after tax® (115} (213) 98
Basic EPS™ (8 2)p (17 p B9p
Underlying EPS 11 3p 50p 63p
Free cash flow 116 53 63
Ner debt {326) “21) 95

* FY13 separately disclosed interest ncame restated by £5 millon as a result of new pension standard

1 “Like for hke change 15 quoted fowmprove the comparakxlity of prior year data by adjusting the pnor year comparative for the impact of disposals
foreign exchange translation and any ather factor that distorts the true performance of the business The detailed like for like adjushments are shown
onpape S4

2 The term “Linderhying refers to frading resulis tat are adjusted for separately drsclosed tems that are sigrificant in understanding the ongoing cesults
of the Group Separately disclosed items are included onthe face of the income staterment and are detalled onpage 140

Overview

The past financial year has seen a coniinuation In the Group’s progress, bulding
upon the foundations laid in 2013 and creating strong momentum for future
profitable growth, underpinned by enhanced financial reporting and controls

In FY13, we set out our medium-term strategy for the three years ending

30 September 2015 and concluded a £1 6 billion recapitalisation exercise to
raise additional equity, extend debt maturnities and strengthen the Group’s
capital hase During FY14, we completed the first phase of delivering against
the detailed measures of our plan to position the Group for long-term
profitable growth
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Financial review continued

At the same time the Group has increased like-for-like EBIT by

£98 million to £323 million, which has been achieved, while like
for-like Group revenue has reduced to £8 6 bilhon The reduchionin
revenue Is due to the disposal of non core businessesin the UK and
the discontinuation of less profitable activities At the sarme hime
we have Increased our port folio of more profirable higher-qualty
products This has de-risked the Group s operahions

The main drivers of improved profitability in FY 14 are the benefils
from the expansion of our new product offering fogether with
the conninued delivery of Wave 1 of our cost out and profit
Improvement programme

Qur assef divestiture programme has now been concluded having
generated gross proceeds of £138 mullion frorn 15 disposals in

15 months, meeting our target of £100 mullion to £150 million more
than 15 months ahead of schedule

Free cash flow of £116 million (FY13 £53 million) was generated in
FY14 as our improved underlying EBIT perfarmance was partially
reinvested in the business through higher capital expenditure and
excephional costs related to the Transformation The remaining
improvement inunderlying EBIT together with the net proceeds
from asset disposals, has been used to reduce net debt

As a consequence of our progress over the past year Group net

debt has been reduced from £421 million at the end of FY13 to

£326 millon strengthening the balance sheet and better posihoning
the Group for profitable growth We expect fo continue fo improve
the Group's finances through further deleveraging and through
pursuit of refinancing opportunities in order to Improve the efficency
of our capital structure

Like-for-like analysis

In tmplementing the Transformation, the Group has undertaken
activities which, combined with the normal translational effect of
foreign exchange movements impact upen the comparabilty of
underlying performance for FY13 and FY14 To assist in understanding
the impact of thase factors and to better present year on-year trading
progression, we corsider like for-ke” growth during FY 14 inour
analysis below

The ‘ike-for ke adjustments and resultant year on-year movements
are as follows

Gross  Qperating

Revenue  margin  expenses EBIT

fm % Em £m

FY13 reported (continuing) 3315 221% (1,796) 263
Disposals/store closures (207) (0 3% 33 (15)
Accounting changes” o)y (01N% 23 (0}
Impact of currency movements (300) Q0% 40 {23)

Year ended September 2013 “like-for hke” 8,768 217% (1,700) 225

Year ended Septermber 2014 reported 8588 223% (1593) 323

Like for ike growth {F m) (180) {9) 107 98
Like for ike growth {%) {2 )% 06% 63% G36%

*Accounting changes adjust prior year comparative {o ensure consistent presentatonwith FY 14

Revenue

Revenue of £8 588 million was £727 million lower than last

year mainty as a result of business disposals in the UK {impaci of

arrca £207 rmillion) and foreign exchange franslation (mpact of

orrca £300 miullion) excluding those factors revenue decreased

by £180 millian (2 1%) on a like-for-hke basis reflecting lower demand
to Egypt which impacted FY14 revenues by arca £177 million and
straregic reductions in risk capacity in cerfain markets The lafter s
consistent with our focus an higher margin business as part of our
strategy for sustainable profitable growth

Throughout FY 14 the Group has continued to closely manage
commutted capacity in order to optimise priang and yield InFY14
the Group reduced overall committed capacity by approximately
£179 millon mainly in the UK France and Russia

The negative impacts on revenue due to discontinued business and
the downturn in demand to Egypt were offset by the benefit of our
new product expansion strategy, which contnbuted £186 milhon of
addinonal revenue In FY 14

The main components of like far-like revenue movement are

Graph removed

Gross margin

Gross margin of 22 3% represents an increase of 20 basis points on
FY13 Onalike for like basis, FY14 gross margin has increased by
60 basis paints resulting in a cumulative improvement of 150 basis
pontssince FY12 achieving our target for FY15 one year early

Like-for-like gross margin smproved in all of our geagraphical segments
compared tolast year A rmajor factor in this improvement has been
the continued delivery of our cost-out and profitimprovermnent
programme which has had a positive impact of 70 basis paints on
grossmargin Key ininatives include the continuing benefirs of our
Group Arrhne steategy wish further investmentinthe fleet together
with Lean and standardised processes reducing maintenance costs

Pricing and Yield improvements have contnibuted a further 50 basis
poinfINcrease IN grass margin as we increase our range of new
progucts which carry ahigher average seling price and sell more
hugh margin ancillary products




Costinflanon of 60 basis points has partially offset the underlyng
growthin gross margin The impact of the redirechion of demand
from Egypt during the winter season led to a short-term increase
in hotel costsin the Canary Islands Inaddition trading conditions
became increasingly competitive in the second half of the year
with overcapacity in the short/mediurn haut airline sector creating
downward pressure on prices and margins

The major drivers of this like-for lke movementin gross margin of
60 basis points are outhned below

Graph removed

Operating expenses/overheads

Operating expenses for FY14 of £1 593 million represent a year-on-year
reduchicn of £203 million {11 39%), broken down as follows

Yearended Yearended
September Septemnber

0y 2013 Change Like for like

£m £m £m change

Personnel costs {913) (1036) 123 80
Met operahng expenses (507) (598) 1 44
Subfotal {1,420) (1634) 214 124
Deprecahon 73) (162) 1) n
Total {1,593) (1796) 203 107

Like-for-like operating expenses reduced by £107 rmillon (6%) dniven
by Wave 1 of the Group s cost-out iIninatives which delivered a further
£14%1 million of savings, partially offset by the £34 milion impacr of
strategic operating investments and an ncrease in depreciation

The largest coninibution to cost reduchion came from our UK busingss
inchuding the full year benefit of our store closure programme and
further measures to streamiine the four operator business which were
implementednFY13 alongside new measures intiated n FY14

There were also savings elsewhere in the Group most significantly
from restructuning activities in France and Russia and through further
operational efficiency inihatives in the Group Airine These benefits
were partialty offset by further investment in strategic operating
expenditure investiments as sef out below
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Strategic operating investments

We continued to make investment in sirategic operating costs to
support the Transformation and our cost-out and profit improvermnent
inmatives These totalled £28 million in FY14 pnmarily for senier
management appointments investment in T and strategic
marketing expenditure focused onweb fransinion o support
ouromni-channel strategy

The structiral cost-out that has been delivered over the first two years
of the Transformahien has directly benefited Group EBIT This has been
partly offset by strategic operating investrnent of £53 mullion aver the
same period Strategic operahing nvestment totalled £28 million in
FY1t below our previous guidance of E40 million and we expect to
incur further costs of £40 mulion In FY15

Underlying EBIT

INFY14, the Group generated underlying EBIT of £323 rlhion, an
increase of £60 millien {23%) on FY13 EBITof E263 milkon Ona

like-for-ke basis Group EBIT increased by £98 rmillion (44%) with
every peagraphucal sousce market reporting EBIT growth

The improvernent in EBIT during the year s primarily due to the
continuing delivery of Wave 1 of our cost-out and profit improvernent
measures of £206 milion, including a posifive impact of £65 million
onour Gross Margin

However £61 milhion of thisimprovement has been offset by
underlying trading pressures, which impacted profitability particularly
in the first half of the year in our UK business. Included in underlying
trading are the initial benefits amounting to £21 rmullion frorm the
expansion of our New Products and £10 milhon of additional costs
for custorner compensahon payments relating to EC Regulation
261/2004 Inaddition unrest in Egypt impacted EBIT by £20 rillion

We have also reduced our overhead cost base through our ongoing
cost-out measures by a further £141 milkon (of the £206 million
total Cost-cut and Profit Improvernent) Some of those savings have
been re invested in the business erther through strategic operating
Investrments and increased depreciahion from our arline floet
animpact of a6 millson
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Financial review continued

We have also benefited this year from lower Corporate overhead costs
primarily as a result of the incidence of foregn exchange differences
together with revised provisions for emplayee incentive plans and
other reruneration schemes, which have animpact of £19 mullon

Graph removed

Separately disclosed items

The fable below summarises separately disclosediterns charged to
the income statement for FY14 of £296 milllon whichare £15 million
higher than the prior year (FY13 £281 rmillion) They have a cash
impact of £119 rmillion broadiy in ine with last year (FY13 £120 millkon)

FY14 FY13

Cash Non cash Total Cash Non cash Total

£m fm £m £m fm fm

Restructunng costs (1) o) (W) (107) (200 (27)

ELI261 related costs {5) (36) {u1) - - -
Prowisions and

imparments - Qou)  (04) % (310} (123)

EBIT related items (19) (1500 (269) (1200 (30 (250)

Finance costs - (27) (2n - (31 {31)

Total (119) (77 (296) (120 (e (281)

1 Non cash iterns encompasses bath non cash entnes and cash effects whichhave not been
realised before the end of the penod

A full description of these items s disclosed on page 140

Net finance costs

Net interest charges before anrcraft financing for FY 14 totalled

£113 mulbon (FY13 £114 millon) Arrcraft financaing charges and fee
amortisation totalled £21 sillion and £9 million respectively bringing
the total net interest cost for FY 14 to £143 million (FY13 £346 million)

FY14 FYi3
Netinterest and finance costs £m £m
Total bank and bond interest (82) (83}
Commyiment fees B &) (7
Lettersof credit and bonding (17} (16)
Other interest costs (8) @
Underlying netinterest and finance costs before
aircraft financing (13) (114
Arrcraft inancing {21) (25)
Fee amarhsation (9) (M

Underlying net interest expense (143) (1u5)

Operating lease charges

Y1 FY13
Included within net operating expenses £m £m
Aircrafl operating lease charges 106 101
Retall operanng lease charges 49 59
Hotel operating lease charges 30 34
Total 185 194

Retait operating lease charges have reduced by 17% primarily due to
the full year impact of the reduction in the UK retail footprint following
the closure of stores in FY13

Taxation

FYiy FY13
Current fax £m £m
UK 0 &)
Overseas an (39
Total current tax (17) (us)
Deferred tax 16 &
Total tax charge (1 (50}
Cashtax
UK 0 5
Qverseas (32) (36)
Total cash fax (32) (31

The overall tax charge in the year reduced from £50 mullion to

£1 millon A major contributor 1o the reduchion in charge 1s the
increase in deferred tax assets recognised in the year mainly in
respect of our UK business fax losses The Group continues to pay
corporation tax in its profitable markets in particular in Northern
Europe and Belgiurm Excluding deferred tax movements and other
specific adjustments the Group’s annual fax charge should be broadly
consistent with the cash fax cost whichis expected to remain inthe
range of £30-40 milhon per year

Basic loss per share

The basic loss per share for the year was & 2 pence, delvering a
year-on year mprovement of 89 pence (FY13 loss 171 pence)

FY14 FY13*

Loss after tax (£m) (115}  {213)
Attributable to minonty interest (£m}) (3 8
Adjustedloss after 1ax (Em) {118y (205)
Weighted average number of shares {m) 1,440 1196
Loss per share (pence) (82) (71

FY13 sepacarely disclosed inferest income restated by £5 millien as a result of the new
pension standard




Underlying earnings per share

The underlying earnings per share after taking into account
separately disclosed iterns was 11 3 pence delivering a year on-year
improverment of 6 3 pence (FY13 5 0 pence)

FY14 FY13
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Cash conversion

The Group uses a measure of cash conversion reflecting the amount of
cash flow retaned by the business which can be used for investrment in
capital expenditure debf repayment or payment of dividends

Cash conversion has improved from 48% to 62% in the year refleching
improved trading and the benefi of disposal proceeds

Loss after rax {fm) (15 (13
Excephionals (Em) 296 281

Attributable to minonty nterest {£m) (3) 8
Excephional fax (15) (16)
Adjusted loss afrer tax (Em) 163 60
Weighted average numberof shares {m) 1,440 1196

Earrungs per share {pence) 13 50

Summary cash flow statement’

F¥13
FY14 reported
£m £m
Underlying EBIT 323 263
Depreciation 173 162
EBITDA 496 425
Warkng rapital 38 77
Tax (32) (31)
Pensions and ofher (22) (18)
Operating cash flow 480 453
Excepticnalitems? (u3) (120)
Capnal expendrture {156)  (150)
Aircraft related costs? (35) 0
Netinterest pad (130) {130}
Free cash flow 16 53
New equity Q 43
Other* (9 (65)
Net cash flow 107 w9
Opening net debt m21)  (788)
Net cash flow 107 419
Cther movernentsin net debt® a {52)
Closing net debt (326} (121)

1 The Group uses thiee non statutory cash flow measures e manage the business Operanng cash flow
1s net ¢ash from opearanng activinies excluding intereshincome awrcraft related costs and the cash
effecrof separately dsclosed items impacting EBIT Free cash flow is cash fromaperating activiies
less capital expenditure and interest paid InFY 14 free cash flow also includes the net cash recerved
ondisposals et cash flow is The net (decreasel/sncrease in cash and cash equivalents excluding the
net movernentin borowings finance lease repayments and facility sef up fees

2 Excephonaliterns nclude net cash from disposals of £78 ruthon n FY 14

3 Awcraft related costs reflect maintenance cash flow relahing 1o aircraft inanced under operanng
leases which woutd otherwise be treated as capiral expenditure if financed under finance leases

& This figureincludes a £ 38 mifhon cash outflow relating to restncted cash within the Thomas Cock
North Amerxa busmess which was discbosed as a liscontinued Operation in the FY1 3 staterments

5 Representsreiranslation of foreign currency debt items and amornhsahon of capitalised fees

Net cash flow of £107 millon (FY13 £419 millon} was generated

N FY14 Improved underlying EBIT was resnvested in the business
through higher capital expenditure and exceptional costs related fo
the Transformation The remaining improvernent in underlying EBIT
in addition to disposal proceeds has been used to reduce net debt to
£326 rmillion (FY13 £4271 rmullion)

FYla FY13

£m £m

Operaning cash flow' 480 453
Interest 130y (130}
Cash exceptionals w3y (120
Converted cash 307 203
EBITDA 496 425
Cash conversion? 62% Lg%

i Operating cash flow defined as net cash from cperating activiies excluding interestincome
arcraft related costs and cash exceptionals

2 Cash conversion defined as net cash from operating activities for 2014 this alsoincludes disposal
proceeds less interest paid as a percentage of underlying EBITDA

Balance sheet

The summarised Group balance sheet is as follows

30Sep)  30Sept

2014 2013

fm £fm

Totalintangibie assets 2,873 3155
Total tangible fixed assets 755 801
Other 337 324
Non current assets 3965 4282
Current trade and other recevables 705 785
Cash and cash equivalents’ 1019 1089
Other 105 129
Current assets 1,829 2003
Current trade and other payables (2,083) (1995
Current borrowings' @u9)  (177)
Short term obligahans under finance leases’ (34) (43)
Revenue receved in advance 999) (1120)
Other G299 (370
Current habihhes (3.8%4) (3709)
Lang term borrovangs' (715}  (1114)
Long term obligancns under inance leases' 147y {182)
Other {(753) {(736)
Non current habilihies {1,615) (2032)
Net assets 285 548
Net debt’ (326) (u21)

1 At 30 September 2013 cashof £ 5 million wasnduded in assets held for resaleon the Group s
balance sheet

The Group's net asset value fell by £263 million from £548 mithon

to £285 rmullion dunng FY 14 This was mainly due to areductionin
intangible assets as a result of the write off of goodwill associated with
the disposal of businesses in the UK {arca £41 mullion) together with
the impact of foreign exchange translation due to an 8% fallin the
value of the Euro aganst GBP
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Financal review continued

What
Transformation

Image removed

Apprentice Sales Consultant

being part of something very
spectal, working with great
leaders and watching our product
portfolio expand and grow fo
offer some of the best holiday
experiences in the marker

Net debt

The Group sources debt and finance facilinies from a combination of
the internanticnal capital markets and its relationship banking group
During the year the Group reduced net debt from £4271 million to

£326million

The principal components of this reduchion are as follows

Graph removed

The composition and maturity of the Group s debt 15

surmmansed below

30September 30 September

£m 2013  Movemeni Maturity
2015 Eura Bond {310) {335) 25 Jun 15
2077 GBP Bond (297) (300) 3 Jun 17
2020 Evro Bond {408) {uu0) 32 Jun 20
Commercial Paper (82) (13L) 52 Oct/Nov 14
Revohving Ciedit Faclity 0 Q nfa
Term Loan o 0 4} n/a
Finance Leases (181) (224) 43 Vanous
Other external debt 92) {122) 30 Vanous
Arrangement fees 25 40 (1% nfa
Totaldebt (1,345) {1515) 170

Cash 1,019 1094 {75}

Net debt’ (326) (Lz21) 95

1 A1 30Septernber 2013 cashof £5 millon was included in assets held for resale on the Group s

balance sheet

The Group s £500 millon Commutted Faciity comprises a Revolving
Credit Facility of £300 milon which was undrawn at 30 September
2014 and a £200 million bonding and guarantee facility of which
£126 milhon was drawn at 30 September 2014 Thus Facility matures
partly in May 2015 (£30 million) and partly in May 2017 (E470 rmilion)
The Group also has access to an Addimonal Faciity of €164 rmihon
(onginalty €224 million) which is available from 2015 fo parhially repay
the 2015 Bonds The Additional Facility must be further reduced by
£57 mullon by May 2016 with the remainder maturing in May 2017




Treasury management

The Group s funding liquidity and exposure fo foreign currency,
interest rates commodity prices and financial credit nisk are managed
by the centralised Treasury function and are conducted within a
framework of Board approved policies and guidelines

The principal aim of Treasury activities is to reduce volatility by
hedging providing a degree of certainty to operafning segments
and ensure a sufficient level of iquidity headroom at all tirmes

The successful execution of policy 1s intended to support asustainable
low-risk growth strategy enable the Group to meet its financial
commitments as they fall due and will enhance the Group's credit
rating over the medwm term

Credit rating

In April 2014, Standard & Poor s upgraded the outlook on the Group to
“Positive” from “Stable™ Alsoinuly 2014 Fitch Rahings affirmed their
“Posifive” outlock for the Group Both ratings agencies referenced the
significant progress made in the Transfermation of the Group under
the new Management leam and the outlock reflects expected future
debt reduction leading to a more efficient capital structure

2014 2013
Corporaterating Rating Outicok Rahing Outlock
Standard & Poar s B Positive B Stable
Fitch B Posihve B Positve
Cash management

Due to the seasonalty of the Group s business cycle and cash flows, a
substantial amount of surplus cash accumulates dunng the summer
months Efficient use and hight control of cash throughout the Group
15 facilitated by the use of cash pooling arrangements and the net
surplus cash s invested by Treasuryin high quaity short-term iquid
instruments consistent with Board-approved policy which s designed
to mihigate counterparty credit sk Yield 1s maarnised within the
constraints of the palicy but returns in generat remain low given the
low interest rate environrment N the UK the US and Europe

Cash culture has been further strengthened wathin the Group with
clear tone from the top, re-enforcing the importance of the 26-week
rofling cash forecasting process, dniven and embedded by Treasury
and supported by business segments providing confidence mthe
Group's abity to manage cash effectively and predict accurately the
liquidity headroom requirernents during the seasonal low pant

A small portion of the Group s cash s restnicted in overseas junsdichons
pnmarly due to legal or regulatory requirements Such cash does not
form part of the hquidity headroor calculation
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Hedging of fuel and foreign exchange

The Group operates a rolling programme of hedging to smaoth
fluctuations in the price of fuel and currency

Hedging allows the business to plan with certainty for the forthcoming
holiday seasons in the knowledge that input costs for fuel will be

orca £60-80 milhon lower in FY15 than FY14 The net gain to profis
will be influenced by compentive pressures at the time of booking

but we expect to retain at least 20% of the total fuel cost reduchan
through improved margins

In addirion to being substanhially hedged for FY15 as the table below
shows, hedging for FY16 has already commenced and will progress in
Iinewath the policy

Winter Summer
2014/15 2015

Eurg 1% 75%
US Dollar 94L% 71%
let fuel 93% 7%

Asat 31 Qctober 2014

Exchange rates
The average and year-end exchange rates relevant to the Group were
Averagerate Year endrate
FY1g FY13 FY14 FY13
GBP/Euro 122 119 129 119
GBP/US Dollar 166 156 162 162
GBP/SEK 1098 1023 172 1037

Currency mavernents impact the Group s cost base for purchasing
product and fuel and also impact the franslation into Sterhing of
prefits made outside the UK The Group does not hedge against the
translation into Sterling of overseas profits and so consolidated Group
profits remain subject to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates

Business disposals

As part of the Group s diveshiture prograrmme we concluded the
disposal of certain non-core UK businesses during the year We made
disposals to focus on our core businesses and have appled net
disposal proceeds of £78 mullion to reduce our indebtedness

This divestrnent strategy has improved our bustness mix and enabled
us to facus mare on our core assets that we believe witl deliver
sustained profitable growth

Our farmal divestiture programme has now come toanend having
generated gross proceeds of £138 5 milhon from 15 disposals in

15 months thus meeting the Board s target of £100millon to
£150 milhon
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Segmental review

Sources of growth In underlying EBIT

Cost-out and Profit Improvement

The adjustments ta reflect year-on-year
growth in like-for-like EBIT, on a segmental
basis are summarised as:

FY13 like-for-like reconcihation
United Continental Northern  Airlines

The improvements in Gross Margin and
Overheads are driven primarily by the
cost-out and profit improvement programme
as noted below.

United Continental Northem  Airlines

£m Kingdom Europe  Europe Germany Corporate  Group £m Kingdom Europe Europe Germany Corporate Group
FY13reported 66 78 109 L8 (38) 263 DeliveredinFY14
Disposals/store closures 15} o] 0 0 o 0% Gross margin 1 14 13 37 0 65
Impact of currency Operaling expenses 58 31 6 g 2 141
movemnents o] (%) {1 (3} 0 (23) Total 99 s 9 R 7 206
FY13 ke for hke 51 69 98 45 (318) 225 Asrepartedm FY13 162 14 3 12 3 194
FY 14 reporied 8% 102 107 50 9% 323 Cumulatve fo FY14

Gross margin 73 19 15 Lo 0 153
In FY14, the Group reported an improvement Operating expanses 158 0 - 7 o
inunderlying EBIT of £98 million on a like- Total 261 59 22 53 5 400

for-hke basis with all segments reporting
improved results

United Confinental Northern  Airlines

£m Kingdom Europe Europe Germany Corporate Group
Revenue 2585 3958 1153 1299 (LO7)* 8,588
Gross margn (%) 261% 2% 274% 278% na 223%
EBIT 8% 102 101 50 (19) 323
EBIT growth 23 24 (8) 2 19 60
Like for like

EBIT growth 38 33 3 5 19 98

*Asaresult of imter company elvminanons

Across the Group the drivers of EBIT growth were

United Continental Northern  Airlines

£m Kingdom Europe Europe Germany Corporate Group
FY13 like for ke EBIT 51 69 98 45 {38) 225
Volume (83) 1 ] 1] 0 (62)
Gross margin change 35 3 Q)] 9 7 53
Qverhead reduction 86 26 [#)] 8 12 107

FY14 EBIT 89 102 1 50 (19 323

The financial performance of each segment s considered on the
following pages




United Kingdom and Ireland

FY13 Like-for ke

Em FY1y FY13  Change LFL change
Revenue 2,585 2978 (393} 2756 Q71)
Gross margin (%) 261% 259% 02% 254% 07%
EBIT 89 66 23 51 38
EBIT margin (%} 35% 22% 13% 19% 16%
Deparred custermers (000s) 6,170 7289 N9y  697¢ {809)

The UK business continued on its path of Transformation with growth in
new products significant progress in the development of omni-channel
and diginsanion of the business accornpanied by continued delivery of
cast outand profir imnprovernent measures

Qurnew web site, OneWeb was launched in May 2014 consistent

with the development of our omni-channel strategy Customers are
now able fo use a browser designed specifically for use with tabler and
mobile devices, and directly cannect their onhine searches with In-store
bookings (and vice versa) through new features such as MyAccount and
Wishlist Since the launch of OneWeb bookings made on thomascook
com have increased by 12% compared to the same peniod fast year,
with parficularly strong performances on mobile and tablet

These operational achons together with the further delivery of cost out
have underpinned animproved EBIT result of £89 mihon in FY14 which
represents growth of £38 million on alke-for-like basis This brings the
UK's EBIT margin to 3 5%, in ine with our farget, despite the UK arrline
incurnng charges of £6 milkon relating fo the EU261 legislation which
has been offset by changes in UK arrline maintenance provisions as part
of the Group wide arrine integration {impact of £10 mullion}

The UK successfully concluded (s divestiure programme in FY 14

in addition fo the disposal of non-core businesses the UK also took the
opportunity fo tfim capacity further better matching cusiomer dermand
and focusing onimproved quality product Thisled to a like-for ike
reduction in revenue of £171 mullian (£392 mullion on a headhne basis)

FY14 grass margin was maintained at around 26% despite the pressure
onmargins inthe first half of the year Asa consequence of the swirch i
customer demand from Egypt fo the Canary Islands margins in the UK
business came under pressure during the winter season but recovered
inthe second half of the year Improved margin performance in the
second half of the year reflects the early benefits from improvernent

in product quality with a higher proportion of customers staying

in our exclusive hatels and the continuing delivery of our profit
IMprovement programme

Further cost reductions were achieved through the smplification of the
corporate structure with the rernoval of duplicated back office functions
and rebalancing of the retail store network, which were implemented
inFY13 andhada full year effect nFY14 Asaresult UK overbeads
reduced by £86 millon in FY14 1o £587 millian

InFY¥15, our UK business 1s expected to continue to deliver the
rernainder of the first wave of our profit impravernent imtiatives
supplemented by anincreasing proportion of new products such
as Concept hotels whichis expected to dnve margin improvernent
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What
Transformation

Judith™

Director of Group Tax

It is about letting go of old
ways, trusfing the process,
of personal growth, new
experience and sharing your
view It's becoming the best
we can be, working together

—
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Segmental review continued

Continental Europe

FY13 Like for ke

£m FY1y F¥13  Change LFL change
Revenue 3,958 4195 {237y  4M3 (55)
Cross margin (%) 1h2% 138% 04% 138% 04%
EBIT 102 78 24 69 33
EBIT margin (%) 26% 18% 038% 17% 09%
Departed customers {000s) 7,458 7429 29 7429 2%

Revenue and EBIT performance by key market within Continental
Europe s set out below

Revenue by market

FY13  Like for like
Revenue £m FYi4 FY13 Change LFL change
Germany 2,449 2462 13) 2366 83
France 329 413 (84) 399 (70)
Russia 181 228 7 219 (38
Other canhnental markets 999 1092 (93) 1029 {30)
Continental Europe 3,958 4195 (237) 5013 (55)
EBIT by market

FY13  Like for like
EBIT £m FY1h FYi3 Change LFL change
Germany 77 71 <] 68 9
France {9) (15) 6 (&} 7
Russia 3) ©) 6 N il
Other continental markets 37 31 3] 26 i1
Conhinental Europe 102 78 24 69 33

Continental Europe performed strongly in FY 14 with EBIT of

£102 milion, £33 milllon hugher than last year on a like-for-like basis
after adjusting for the negative impact of currency franslation

All of our rmarkets continued fo benefit from our cost-out and profit
improvernent programme with gross marginimproving by 40 basis
points and a £29 million reduchion in overheads on a ke for-like basis

Overall revenue was £55 milkon lower than last year on a like-for-like
basis, mainly due to a strategic reduchion in risk capacity n France
and Russia as part of the restructuring plans for those businesses
Although these reductions in capacity impacted revenue as a result
of facusing on more profitable business losses were significantly
reduced in both of those source markets

Our German business performed strongly during the year improving
EBIT by £5 milhon on a like-for-like basis, mainly through improved
passenger volumes to Turkey and Greece However as we noted in cur
Pre-Close Staternent, competitive market condifions combined with
weaker consurmer confidence impacted trading during the later part
of the summer season whichimpacted margins and profitability

As noted above, our businesses in France and Russia continued

to reduce losses through execution of turnaround plans

sirategic reductions in capaaty and right sizing their cost bases
France reported aloss for FY 14 of £9 milllon £7 million better than
last year on a like for-Iike basis and Russia reduced losses by £6 million
to E3millon These improvernents represent a strong performance
in challenging trading conditions, which have been impacted by
economic and geopaohhical factors The French tounsm market
continues to be depressed by reduced demand to North Africa

and weak economy while the polifical situation in the Ukraine and
the consequent depreciaticn of the Rouble has adversely impacted
our Russian business

Qur other businesses in West/East Europe performedwellin
competisive market conditions with Belgum reporting a £7 milion
improvement i like-for-like EBIT assisted by the release of excess
arrcraft maintenance provisions and the Netherlands improved EBIT
by £3 rmullion

Trading conditions in most of our source markets within Conhinental
Europe remnain challenging, particulasiy in Germany where censurmer
cenfidence has fallen in recent months and in Russia as dernand to
Eurozone destinations has been inhibited by a significant depreciation
of the Rouble as a result of the Ukraine situahion In addihon

macro econoric condimons remain weak in certain other markets
such as France However we are confident that our actionsin
expanding new products and in reducing risk and costs will delver
further benefits InFY15

o

o




Northern Europe

FY13 Like for-like

£m FY14 FY13  Change LFL change
Revenue 1153 1239 (86} 1149 4
Gross margin (%) 274%  274% 00% 272% 0 2%
EBIT 101 109 (8) 98 3
EBIT margin (%) B7% 88% (0% B6% 01%
Departed customers {000 5) 1,511 1u86 25 1486 25

Northern Europe reported an EBIT result of £101 ulionin FY 14
shghtly ahead of last year on a like-for like basis as it maintained its
industry leading EBIT margin of almost 9%

The operating environment in the Nordics has been challenging with
Increased margin pressure from low cost carners and overcapacity

in the fight market Aswell as competitive conditions in the summer
lates market which led to Increasing margin pressures, the winter
season was disrupted by the impact of the political situation in Egypt
and consequent flight over capacity fo the Canaries Accordingly in
such arcumstances, our Nordic business has performed well fo deliver
like-for-like EBIT resuft ahead of last year

Revenue of £1,153 million 1s 1n hine with last year on a hike-for-Nke

basis and demonstrates the resilient nature of our business model
and its strong differentiating factors incleding a high proportion

of exclusive product, strong online penetration, focus on custarner
relationship managernent and the ability to successfully yield manage
itsinventory In FY14 we conhinued fo develop our range of Concept
Hotels which helped toimprove average selling price and increased
the volume of departed customers, especially by growing the scale
and profitability of our dynamic packaging business

Further benefits to both revenue and gross margin were delivered
through higher margins from the ancillary sales such as the continued
growth of the insousced duty free business, and growih in revenues
and gross margin in our Concept Hotel operations

Our Nordic business continues to mnovate and to find ways of further
streamlining its cost base, for example by faking advantage of
econormies of scale in our business model In FY15, we will continue to
expand cur successful dynamic packaging business while investment
inthe airhine fleet and improved mainienance processes are expected
to deliver cost savings In the arhne These measures should help
maintain our industry leading margins and mitigate the competitive
pressures that have been evident in the market during summer 14
and the early part of the winter 14/15 season
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What

Image removed

Transformation

Dinara

Group Treasury Risk Manager

streamlining the core
financial processes across the
Group and fully utilising the
advanced technical solutions
It reduces the number of daily
manual operations, increases
effectiveness and adds real
value to the Company’s growth,
and realises the full potential
of our Team’s talents
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Segmental review confinued

Airlines Germany

F¥13 Like for like

£m FY14 FY13  Change LFL change
Revenue 1,299 1312 {13y 1258 41
Gross margin (%) 278% I86% (D8%) 209% 09%
EBIT 50 L8 2 4b 4
EBIT margin (%) 38% 3I7% Q1% 3 6% Q2%
Departed customers 7,196 6631 265 6931 265

Condor our German arine, performed wellin a competitive market
charactensed by overcapacity in the short/medium haul secter to
report EBIT of £50 million in FY 14 £4 milion higher than last year

on alike-for-ike basis As a consequence, Condor delivered an EBIT
margin of 3 8% in FY14 alike-for ke improvernent of 20 basis points
compared fo last year

Revenues increased by £41 million on a like for-like basis despite
substantial competitive pressure 1n the European arrline market
Despite a yield reduction of 3% and a slight decrease of 0 7% inload
factor for short/medum haul lights revenues in this market increased
by 16% dnven due to hagher earming capacity The increased seat
capacity resutted from the replacement of A320 aircraft by larger
A321 arcraft and the benefits of a newly refurbished A320 fleet with
higher seat capacity per aircraft

In the long haul market Condor increased revenues by 1% witha
constant seat capacity and a yieldincrease of 2% Yields benefited
from the refurbishment of the entire 767 fleet with the introduction
of acompetitive lie-flat” business class ophion

The like-for-like improvernent in gross margin of 90 basis points
reflacts the successful mplementation of the Group’s cost-out and
profit improverment programme which delivered profit improvements
of £37 million and compensated for price increases inlanding and
overflight costs, maintenance costs and irregulanty costs (especially
EU261 custormer compensation) Inaddition ancillary revenues
increased by more than 10% due to a focus on dass upgrades and
the ntroduchion of pre-flight sales concepts

Aircraft ownership cost increased by 8% due to the higher cost of
the new A321 aircraft and increased depreciation following the
cabin refurbishment programme However the benefits of those
operahaonal actions are expected to be reported in future periods
through improved margins and greater fuel efficiency

We will continue ta delver cost efficiencies through cur One Aidine
strategy and will seek to improve margins further by offenng our
custormers a wider variety of ancillary services The recent reduction in
fuel prices should provide us with greater flexibiliry fo manage yields
during FY15, although the proportion of the savings that are retamed
imimproved profitability will depend on market conditions and
competitar behaviour

Image removed

What
Transformation
means to

Michelle

Group Head of Talent and Organisation Development

creating a sustainable
Thomas Cook Ensuring the
aftraction, development
and retention of talent fo
execute our strategy is key
Our robust talent process,
strong leadership and values
will ensure we have 'the right
people in the right roles focused
on the right prionties’




Corporate

FY13 Lke for like
£m FY14 FY13  Change LFL change
Operating expenses (20) {32) 12 (32) 12
Foregnexchange 1 (&) 7 (©) 7
EBIT 19 (38) 19 (38) 19

Corporate cverhead s £19 million lower than last year on a like-for-like
basisat £19 milion (FY13 £38 million)

The Corporate centre continues to provide Group-wide support
with several key senior management appainiments during the
year reflecting the additional skifl-sets required 1o deliver the
Croup Transformation

In addition, the Corporate result for FY14 has beenimpacted by the
incidence of foreign exchange losses in FY 13 which were nof repeated
N FY 14 (year-on year impact £7 milhon), together with revised
provisions for employee share incentive plans ana other remuneration
schemes (mpact £12 rmillion)
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What
Transformation
. Meansto

IZal

Software Engineer

We know that If customers
are delivered a service that

is merely

‘acceptable’, theirr

heads will be easily turned if a
better service provider comes
along Itis very pleasing to see
more and more interactions
throughouf the Company,
encouraging transformation
from the ground up, to deliver
for our customers and fo
engrain it as part of our goals
and Company culture fo deliver
customer excellence [ am very
enthusiastic about the future

fo come
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What image removes
Transformation
means 1o...

Jesus

Technical Development
Manager for CRM

opportunity fo change,
fo evolve info something
bigger, better! It gives us the
chance to look ahead and
move closer to our goal
I'm a fransformer
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Sustainability

A sustainable Transformation
for a better future

We are committed fo ensuring that the Thomas Cook Transformation is
sustainable, In suppart of the long-term success of the Group Sustamability 1s
critical in every element of the Transformation and at the heart of our customer
-focused profitable growth strategy Our vision for sustainability 1s to meet our
current needs and to contribute to the future of our business, the environment
and the people and communities with whom we work In this way we will create
a strong and robust business that will operate responsibly and ethically and
create value for our people and customers over the long term Our vision Is
underpinned by the Thomas Cook Business System

Sustainable Transformation and the Thomas Cook Business System

To ensure the sustainability of our Transformation the Group has developed the Thomas Cook Business System
(TCBS) and during the year we have used the TCBS framewark to also structure our approach to sustainability
The balance of this section will use the structure of the TCBS to explain the key activities and progress during the
financial year ending 2074

By worleng with suppliers By digitising our business
to gevelop a sustainable and for example reducing
supply chan and papes consumphion we are
developing new products delivering our lugh tech,
we are enabling profitable high touch approach
growth through trusted

personalised products

Image removed

By engaging and energising By increasing efficiencies and
our employees through rminimising wasteful practices
talent development we are we are becoming aleaner and
enabling top to bottom more innovative business

leadership and effective
performance management

Strategic report —
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Sustainability continued

The cornerstone of sustainability is the Code of Conduct 1 defines cur
values, our ways of working and how each and every one of us should
actresponsibly We are embedding sustainable practices in all parts of
our business and engaging our colleagues custorners suppliersand
stakeholders in our endeavours Sustainability s at the heart of how
we behave and being incorporated into every stage af our customers
expenence with us Duning the year sustanability has therefore
become a greater part of every employee srole, and every memorable
experience we creafe for our cusiamers

Througheut the Annual Report we set out our significant progress
to build a sustainable future in hne with our visian In 2010, we

first shared the sustainability targets that would take us to 2020
Since then thousands of colleagues around the world have worked
together to deliver some fantashic achievernents Examples include

> Engaging all employees in sustainability in the roil out of qur Code
of Conduct

» Bringing sustainability to Iife for more than 65 mitllion customers
through consumer campaigns including the Travel Foundation s
Make Holidays Greener

» Supporting chantable activities and community programmes
by raising more than £7 million

> Running one of the most efficient arines in the industry with
715 gC0; per passenger kilometre, cornpared with an average for the
five largest Eurcpean airines of 93 11 gCO; per passenger kilometre

In recogruton of the scale and pace of our industry and how
infrinsically inked it1s to alf key socio and gecpolitical trends we are
now reviewing our sustainability fargets that we developed in 2010
Over the next financial year the Group will launch a programme fo
ensure we continue to focus on our matenialissues, and the outcomes
will be cornmunicated in our 2015 Sustainabiity Report

Governance in our sustainability approaches

We see sustainability as the responsibility for every employee and
an achvity that requires strong leadership that starts with the Chref
Executive and her direct reports The Board retains responsibility
for the fong term success of the Group and the Health, Safety and
Environmental Committee has oversight of the consistent policy
for managing health safety and environmental risks fo the Groups
businesses Further information about this Committee s disclosed
on page 89

Mindful of the value of strong governance we established a
Sustainability Steenng Group {55G) in 2014 The SSG meets quarterly
and comprises senior leaders from across the business It provides
leaderstup direchion and oversight to the overall approach 1o
sustanability and, to the actvities of the Sustamability Working Group
(SWG) and close stakehalder group links

Sustainability 1s rhanaged using robust polices and procedures

that moniter performance and seek continuous iImprovement
Related risks are governed through our nsk management process and
mclude the potenhial impacts of supply chain management, chmate
change and greenhouse gas emissions energy costs and secunty
recruitment and retention of talent and sustainability of destinations
and commurities

We recognise the UN Guiding Principles en Business and Human
Rights and are aligned wirh the UN Global Cormpact Our Code of
Conduct provides practical gaidance for all employees on living cur
values and we have infegrated hurman nights related clauses into our
supplier contracts We make it very clear that thisis an area of zero
tolerance for us We are also parhcipating in ajoinf industry inihative
to understand how we can work collaboratively towards a human
rights approach tailored to our value chain and have inthiated internal
stakehelder consultatians in this area

What
Transformation
means to

Felicity

Image removed

Commumcations Executive

making sure Thomas Cook’s
strategy, priorities and successes
are shared across the Group
clearly and consistently, using
innovative technology and digital
fools fo engage and inspire




Profitable growth through trusted,
personalised products

Throughout the year we have continued to work with suppliers
1o develop a sustainable supply chain and products as part of our
ongoing Transformation

We know from research that customers look to the tounsmindustry

to take the lead In susfainability so we continue to develop and
communicate a range of achwhes to both meer therr expectahons and
make it as easy as possible for them to play their part Our approach
therefore ncludes sustamnable chowces that range from our unique
Local Label sustainable excursion programnme through to our
highhghting of responsible hotels

Customers are at the heart of what we de andin order to create the
most memorable expenence for them we have a diverse value chain
that 1s compnsed of Indwduals as well as sall and large businesses
We operate a robust quality assurance programme to develop the
services and standards our customers expect and have strengthened
this further with the establishment of a unified Group Quality
Assurance Teamn We conhinue to bulld sustainability into our quahity
assurance approach through the use of the Travelife and EU Eco Label
cerfificahion schernes Both schemes are internationally recogrised
and each provides an independent certification system which helps
hotels understand their sustainability performanice as the basis for
implementing change and ongoing evaluation and improvement

Thomas Cook has a long tradition of social commitment and
chantable activity We strive fo create thriving communities where
our employees live and work, as well as where our customers travel
By collaborating with industry partners, supporting destinations and
investing incommunities we are ensuring a high-quality service

for residents and wisitors alike We do thisin a number of ways for
example during the 2014 Make Holidays Greener annual consurner
awareness campaign we reached over 20 000 customers with
engaging messages and joined them together with employees
suppliers and local residents, to coliect more than three fonnes

of waste from beach cleans in 17 destinations including Kenya

and Cyprus

We collaborate with a vanety of indusiry specialists to keep
destinations special forexample the Futouns project in Cambodia
which protectsirreplaceable cultural assets such as the templates
in Angkor Park

Sinilarly, child safety and protection i1s central to our business and

the Thomas Cook Group 15 fully committed fo the UN Convention on
the Rights of the Child We believe it 1s our responsibility to promote
and safeguard children’s welfare and are committed to  The Code’
(anindustry-driven nfernationat code of conduct) The Thomas Cook
Group corporate chanty aims to improve children s lives by working
with partner organisations Irs remit gives parhicular emphasis to the
provisicn of safe clean drinking water, improving education, well being
and healthcare facilities The Charity has raised over £5 millon inthe
last five years through a mixture of sources ranging from custorner
donations to paysoll gving and staff fundraising ininatives It engages
staffat all levels as all actwvities no maltter how small or big create
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benefits for therr local communities Forexample dunng 20142
team of eight employees, including the CEQ Harnet Green cycledin
Prudential’s Ride London — Surrey 100 event The team raised over
£100 000 and this sum was equally sphit between the Thomas Cook
Children s Charity and Whizz Kids, a chanity that works to transform
the lives of disabled children in the UK

Key highlights

> Increased the number of Local Label sustainable excursions
by 80% 1n one year

> Highhighted 296 hotels with sustamable certifications
to our customers

» Raised £1 9 milhon for communities and chantable achivihies

» A team of eight employees, indluding the CEO Harniet Green,
cycledin Prudenhal’s Ride London - Surrey 100 event
raising over £100,000

tmage removed What
Transformation
meansto

Fva

Group Head of Finanaial Planming

The progress is tangible —

the journey continues to be
inferesting, and it’s a fantastic
career opporfunity
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Sustainability continued

Local Labels

Last summer we launched an exciting range of excursions so that
custorners could immerse therselves in the culrure of a destination
and create lashng memeries of their holiday We call these Local
Label excursions as they are designed to bring a place s people
and their traditions to life celebrating authentic food and drink,
sharing personal stornes withlecal people, and contnbuting to

the protechion of ancient sites or natural habitats The Local Label
excursions generate direct benefits for local communities by
helping to preserve fradiional cultures and positively impaching

lecal econemies

Image removed

The 100% Mayan excursion in Mexico
bringslocal tradhens to hfe and
supports lecal food produchon with
avisit to a Mayan family home
There 1salso the oppartunity ta
expenence nature and conservafion
with a tnp tothe Sian Kaan tiosphere

This year we have significantly ncreased the
number of Local Label excursions fror 4O across
23 destinahons to 72 across 42 deshnations

as well as awarded our first roundtnip Highlights
Nicaragua” with a Local Label This four offers the
opportunity fo learn about Nicaraguan culture
and nature by wsmnF alocal farrm and finching
our abour sustainable farrming methods

A great example of a Local Label excursion 1s

our 100% Mayan excursion in Mexico This gives
customers an oppertunity to spend hme with

a real Mayan community whose village 1s
situated near the SianKa an Biosphere Reserve

a protected area nchin biochversity Alocal guide
brings the staries of the village to hife and

Image removed

The Gran Canaria Premiuim excursion
Spain helps support the local
economy and foad producnon with
afood and wine fasting eveni in
avilage Arrptoamuseumn that
showcases local handmade arnsan
productsis alsoincluded along
withan opportunity to purchase
these products

customers can experience fhe natural wonders
ona boat tnip through the reserve as well as taste
the locally grown food Funds fram this excursion
contribute to the purchase of food for the villagers
and provide access to an organic gardener who
teaches them how best to cultivate the land to
make the most from the natural produce grown
there Funds are also being put fowards developing
more robust housing capable of withstanding
hurricane damage

Qur custorners value the new excursions with 76%
of them ha:ffpyto recammend Local Label to
friendsand family and 78% rahing their overall
expenence as good or excellent

Image removed

The Sicily Cooking excursion inItaly
brings local fraditions rofife and
supports the economy there by

visiting ihe local market to purchase
ingredients whichwill then be used in

a cooking class with a Sicilian chef

image removed

The Turtle Time Excursionin Turkey
helps to support nature conservation
and provides an educahonal
expenence Afthe Turtle Rescue
and Rehabilianton Centre you can
see how the turtles are nursed
back ta healsh before being
released into the wild




Top to bottom leadership and relentiess
performance management

Engaging our employees in sustainability 1s a big part of what we

do Pecple who are passionate about ensurnng the longevity of our
business and the destinations on which we depend become our
greatest advocates and will encourage similar behaviours in others
while shaning best practice across the Group Thisin turn creates top
to bortom leadership and effective performance management and 1s
consistent with the comprehensive people approach in Thomas Cock
which embraces diversity developrment performance, recognition
and reward

Looking after the health, welfare and well-being of our employees is
a key prioriry and we have forumsin all our markets to monitor and
implernent programmes of work Our Code of Conduct confinues to
support our Values and Ways of Working and provides a frarnework
across the Group to guide behaviours and enable employees to
cenduct their work to the highest standards

We facilitate and support employees who wish to undertzake voluntary
wark within the cammunity ¢r for chantable instifutions In 2014

we have enabled 101 volunteers to spend 123 hours of volunteening
fime Our employees have a wide range of skilis ana knowledge wiich
when shared can have a big impact on the organisations they wish

fo support while also Increasing personal ndividual engagement

and mativahion

Thus year our people supported the annual Flight of Dreams which
offers children from disadvantaged backgrounds or those with
special educational needs the chance to experience a magicat and
festive fight over the UK Within our Condor business employees
have chosen to be involved through the ConTribute Tearn This teamn
focuses its activiiies pnmanly oninhiatives for children that also
involve cultural exchange sustainable travel and support during
natural disasters Conlnibute in partnership with Help Alliance an
independent aid organisahion supports the Guarabera children s
village n Brazil The village fosters 70 young people who are in need
of ahome and education A Condor employee regularly volunteers
with the village and has used donations from the ConTribute and
Help Alliance programme to help build a new playground

Key highlights

» 123 hours of employee volunteening

» Achieved the Gold seal award in the 2014 Mit gutern
Gewissen survey by Focus and Focus Money
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Communicahing sustammabhty

With the launch of HeartBeat we now have a dedicated forum for all
employees to be actively nvolved in sustanability From regular news
articles to collaboranion groups celebrating the Urited Nations World
Toursm Daﬁ tonreractive lunch and learn sessions Communications
onsustainability have increased and “green teams™ within the different
business se%menrs are successfully drving a vanety of sustainabiliry
inhatives These inmatives cover implernentation of the globally recognised
environmental management standard 1IS014001 inthe Northern European
and UK Arhines and also include Condor s charisable and community led
ConTrbute programme which won a gold seal award inthe 2014 Mit gutem
Gewissen survey by Focus and Focus Money
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Sustainability confinued

High tech, high touch. a digital business

The very essence of the strategy for our ongoing Transforrmahon
15 $hat we are present for our customers wherever, whenever and
however they wani to connect with us By becoming more high
tech andhightouch we are harnessing fhe power of technology
foimprove tha customer expenence making it easier for themto
select their destination book and engage with us at every point in
ther journey

Ahightech high rouch approach allews us fo run our business more
efficiently throughous the customers interachion with us For example
we can use technology to provide information fo gur customers in
more effective and innovative ways than allowed by the tradifional
holiday brochure by using MyAccount the personalised, web based
funchonalty that supports our ornni-channel strategy MyAccount has
helped over 10,000 customers access and share personalised content
such as Wish Lists, potenhal holiday ophions and self-service tools to
take advantage of tallor-made offers and promotions By developing
our digital approach we reduce reliance on paper-based brochures

In resort, two of our concept hotels have ploted innovatve heat
purnps this year The pumps produce cool arr for ar conditioning
andresidual heat for heating swimming pools We are one of the

first comnpanies in Europe to use this fechnology in botels and are
benefiting with a 25% average saving in energy consurnption

While in flight electranic flight bags rather than the paper manual
equivalent, have helped us to reduce aircraft werght and so reduce fuel
consumphion and onland, the infroduction of e tickets has also saved
on paper usage

The investrment in a web based tool has allowed us to modernise

our sustainability data collection processes, Improving accuracy

and allowing more frequent collechion The chief advantage of this
modernisation 1s that if creates a better data quality and speeds up the
cyclen which impravemnents can be made and enjoyed For example
the Group's UK head office monitored its energy consumption and
was prompted fo conduct a full site audit that in turn identified 81
quick, energy saving wins

Key tughlights

> By digitahising the business, we have reduced paper
consumption by 53% aganst our baseline year

Image removed

Digitising our communicahons

Concept hotels are a strategically important part of the Thomas Cook
product portfolho and within this Sunwing Sunprime and SunConnect
have along standing commitment 1o sustanability with all of our Surwing
properties having achieved the EU Eco Label and Travelife Gold awards

With innovation a1 thewr care our concept hotels continue fo pioneer new
ideas InMay 2814 ahot spot area was intreduced in each hotel reception
replacing paper based informanonwith a new responsive website At the
touch of a butron hatet guests now have access to extensive and current
resort information and have helped to save paper and replace the former
two tannes of paper used for this purpose




Efficient structures, systems and processes
through lean and innovation

Chmate change remains a global challenge and we recognise the
part we play n addressing this According to the United Natiors
World Tourism Orgarisation Network (UNWTO) travel and toursm
s responsible for around 5% of global CO; emissions, with arr travel
contribuhing 40% towards this

We are focused on becoming a leaner business and doing more with
less toreduce our reliance on valuable natural resources and increase
cost efficiencies This means reducing fossil fuel consumption from
our arknes, and energy consumption at our carporate and retail

sites to reduce our carbon footprint, managing waste and reducing
waste ta landfill and so enabiing the reuse of valuable rescurces

and managing water consumphon across our hotet chains ro reduce
theirimpact on the local water supply

In 2013 we transformed the way our airfines work together and
brought them inta a single Group Airines segment with greater
opporfunities for shanng resources and bess practice We have also
invested in a new fleet and over the next three years will have 25

new A321 aircraft with the latest engine fechnology and improved
aerodynarnics The new addinons to our fleet will reduce fuel
consumption and improve noise pratection The aircraft are also firted
with “sharklets” on the wing tips which deliver fuel efficiency that is

up to 6% better In compansonwith the current Airbus arcraft in the
Group Arrlines’ fleet

Forus resource efficency brings both environmental and cost
benefits For example, the UK business s transforming the retail
business to bring the high tech, high touch approach to the high street
It 1s ploneerning new concept stores which allow customers to browse
holiday options independently on in-store tablets with our agents

on hand te provide advice and bring therr holiday dreams fo life

Qur programme of nvesting i our retail network has led us to replace
older highting systems with new LED hghting technology saving more
than 15 millon kWh electricity, reduang our carbon footprint by
800tonnes saving £170,000 and improving the stores’ look and feel

At Thomas Cook sustainability i1s animportant and integral part of
what we do and the way we do business By continued focus involving
all employees and supported by the Board we will strive to meet

our sustainability vision and will create a strong and robust business
that will aperate responsibty and ethically in the generation of value
creation over the long term

Key highlights

> Awrline fuel efficiency 71 5 gCO, per passenger kilometre,
animprovement of 5 6% against 2009

> 35% reducttonin electricity across our office and retail
estatenone year

> Winners of the 2014 DRV Award for Environmental
Protection and Social Responsibility in Tourism
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Managing water

Water s essential fo cur business Itis used for showers swimming pools
cfeaning and o grow food for the hotel restaurants Many of aur destinations
aren areas recognised as being water scarce” with insufficent water
readiy avauiable to meet the needs of the cormmunities lving there

inonder to understand he . tebalarce the water evpactanans of our
customers with the nights of local people and their environment we
inimiated a pilot project inRhodes Greece in 2014 We partnered with a
waler expert fo assess 12 of our differentiated concept hotels toidentify
how much water they consume and what it 1s needed to help the hatels
understand how to better manage their water consumption The ultimate
goal 15 to develop a warer management handbook that all of our hotels
can use so that they manage and significantly reduce their water use

This innovative project was awarded the Ecotrophea in the International
CRY Awards for Environmental Protection and g::mal Respansibility in
Tourism Highlighting innovationsin sustainable fourism since 1987 the
DRY awards one inittative or project each year This inihative wonbecause
water scarcity 1s an 1ssue in many hullda{desnnatlons sothe strrengthening
of responsible conduct with regards to this precious resaurce is one of the
most impaortant future tasks for the fourism industry The jury highlighted
the inngvative approach of including indirect water consumptionin the
E‘rnjecr scope the development of water footprints and the inclusion of
otel staff in the form of water management framings

Greenhouse gas emissions

2014 3

Tonnes of Tonnes of

C:requivalent  (0:equivalent

TotalScope 1 —Direct Emissions 3,969,957 412491%
Total Scope 2 —Indirect Emissions 32,539 38658
Total Emissions 3,969,496 4163577

We have reported on all the emission sources required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic report and Directors reports)
Regulahons 2013 These sources fall within our consolidated financial
staternent We only have responsibility for the ermission sources that
are includedin our consolidated statement

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard (revised edition), data from EU Emission Trading Scheme
and ermission factors from the UK Government GHG Conversion
Factors Guidance 2013

—
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Chairman’s letter

Our commitment to sound
principles of governance

Dear Shareholder

We have bullt upon the progress we made last year by further
strengthening our governance arrangements, parficularly in
the areas of composition of the Board and its Committees,

rnsk management, corporate culture and engagement

with Shareholders

Qur Board s af the forefront
of gender diversity with an
almost equal balance of
four women and five men,
who together represent

five different nationalities

Frank Meysman
Chairman

Image removed




The Board and Governance

We have completed our task of bullding a world-class Board with

the appointment duning the year of Carl Syrmon Warren Tucker

and Annet Ans These appointments further strengthened the
competenaies of our Board across a range of measures, including
skills experience, gender and nationality Our Board s at the forefront
of gender diversity with an almost equal balance of four wornen

and five men who rogether represent five different nationalines

To ensure we put that diversity to best use, we also reconstituted

the membership of the 8oard's Committees

Upon the rehrement of Roger Burnell and Peter Marks on

20 February 2014 Warren took over as Charr of the Remuneration
Commuttee Emre Berkin was appointed Chair of our Health, Safety &
Environmental Cornmittee and Carl became our Senior Independent
Chrector Marhine Verluyten rernains as Chair of our Audit Committee

Ourinduchion and traiming programme has been a key prionity during
the year In addition ta our well developed programme falloredto
the needs of the individual Director, we have also conducted a senes
of training and strategy support presentations for the entire Board
ateach of its meetings This programme, which is detailed fully in

our Governance report and cur notiel ungaing business revews
ensured that ali members of the Board had sufficient knowledge

to be able to contribute fully to the Board's review and developmeni
of strategy af its two day meefing in September 2014

Tareflect the new approach fo managing the businesseson a
Group-wide basis, we have significantly strengihened our nternal
management governance arrangements with the creahon of
Harriet s Executive Committee a Tour Operator Councl and an
Arr Travel Councyl These structural changes were reflected in a
revised delegafion and decision making matrix

Thomas Cook Group pic Annual Report & Accounts 2014 7 5

Risk management and corporate culture

Building on the progress of last year and fully supported by the
“tone fromthetop setby Harret and the Executive Committee the
Group now has a developed rsk framework and we are continuing
to promote and embed a nsk-aware culfure across the organisahon
In view of the progress with the Transformation and to take account
of the views of the new Directors the Board s nsk appetite whichis
used to support ongoing decision making across the organisation
was reviewed and refreshed dunng the year

The Group s Code of Canduct, which 1s the cornerstane of our
improved culture was developed and launched to all employeesin
early 2013 and s now fully embedded across the Group To ensure
this posihion s sustainable, robust arrangements aren place for all
new employees to be trained as part of therr induchon programme
and the Code will be refreshed in 2015 and additional training will
be given to all employees More specific training programmes are
in place In support of our legal and regulatory compliance in areas
such as data protechion, anfi-bribery and corruption and competifion
law as we professionalise the organisaion under rhe Thomas Cook
Business System

Engagement with our Shareholders

Throughout the year we have continued to engage with our major
Sharehalders and the governance bodies, mainly in respect of our
remuneration policy and the performance measures for our incentive
arrangernents which are fully aligned with our targets and KPIs for
our Transformation and profitable growth strategy and within our
pay for performance” culture We were pleased with the support
and constructive feedback throughout our discussiens and the
overwhelrming votes in favour of both aur Rernuneration Policy
and report af the 2014 AGM

Further detalls of our governance and rernunerafion arrangements
are detailed on pages 78 to 113

Duning the year we have significantly strengthened our governance
arrangements and applied the highest standards of governance in
all that we have done Our strong cormmitment to applying sound
principles of governance will confinue in the year ahead

Frank Meysman
Charrman
25 Novernber 2014

—
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Board of Directors

The Board 1s chaired by Non-Executtve Chairman, Frank Meysman
In addition to the Chairman, the Board currently includes two
Executive Directors and six Non-Executive Directors Each of the
committees of the Board 1s chaired by a Non-Executive Director

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Directors

1 Frank Meysman
Non-Executive Chairman 62

Appointment October 2011

Committee memberships
Charrman of Nominatians Commuitsee

Slalls & expenence Frank Meysmanwas
apponted Charman Designate of the Cormpany
an 1 Cctaber 2011 and became Chasrman on

1 December 2011 He enjoyed asuccessful
executive career In dynamic global brand
companies including Practer & Gamble between
1977 and 1986 Douwe Egberts between 1986
and 1990 and the Sara Lee Corporation between
1890and 2003 where from 1967 hewas
Executve Vice President and a memberof the
Board of Directors Since leaving Sara Lee Frank
has beana Non Executive Director including
Chairman of a number of public and private
international companies InApnl 2074 he won
as Charman inthe "Quoted Company — Official
List” category at the Nan Executtve Director
Awards 2014

Other appomtments Charrman of United
Biscurts Betafence and JBCNV He s alscan
Independent Representative Director of Picanol
NV Warehouses De Pauw {(WDF} and Spadel 5 A

2 Harnet Green ose
Chief Executive Officer 52
Appomtment July 2012

Committee memberships Member of Health,
Safety & Environmental Comrmuittee and
Nominations Committee

Skills & experience Harriet Greenjoined the
Company as Chief Executive Officeron 30 July
2012 Pror tothis she was Chief Executive Officer
of leading high service technalogy distributor
Premier Farnel! plc Harniet is a global executive
with extensive mulh channel business leadership
experience of the worldwide technology and
ingusinalmarkefs She has driveninnovation and
strategic transforrmation through profitable global
growih strategies and delivered industry leading
results Harriet has areal focus on employee
engagerment having lived and worked on four
continents running businesses for Premier Farnell
and volurne distnbutor Arrow Electronics inc

In recognifion of the ongoing Transformation

of Thomas Cook she was named “Leader of the
Year 2013 i the National Business Awards and
inMay 2014 she was announced as the winner

of the “Veuve Clicquot Business Woman Award”

Other appointments Nan Executive Director
of BAE Systems plc and Emerson Electric Co
She s also a member of the UK Prime Minister s
Business Advisory Group the British Chambers
of Commerce International Advisory Council
and a founder member and trustee of the
PeaceWorks Foundation

3 Michael Healy

Chief Financial Officer 54

Appomtment July 2012

Skills & expernience Michael Healy joined the
Company on 14 May 2012 and became Chief
Financial Officeron 1uly 2012 Prior to this he
was Group Finance Director of Kwik Fit Group
where he played a keyrole inimplermenting a
business development plan to reduce riskin a
highly levered business Michaelhas considerable
international experience acrossa broad range
of Industnes and was previously Chief Operating
Officer and hinance Director of the Hong Kong
Iisted First Pacific Comnpany Limited and
subsequently Chief Financial Officer of ebookers
plc He s amember of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland InMarch 2014 Michael
won the accolade of “Finance Director of ihe
Year” at both the Business Finance Awards and
the UK Stock Market Awards

4 Dawn Arrey

Independent Non-Execuhive Director 54

Appomtment Apnl 2010

Committee memberstips Memberof Health
Safety & Environmental Committee and
Remunerahion Committee

Sktlts & expenence Dawn Airey was apponted
as an Independent Nan Executive Director on

12 Aprt 2010 She has over 29 years expenence
inthe mediaindustry and has held semior positions
at some of the UK s leading media companies

She s currently Senior Vice President of Yahoo!
EMEA Unnl Aprit 2013 she was President of CLT
UFA UK Television Lirmited wathin the RTL Group
and prior ta this she was Charr and Chief Executive
Officer of Five TV after joining the company from
her rale as Managing Director Global Confent at
ITV plc Between 2004 and 2008 she wasalso

a Non Executive Director of easylet pke

Other appointments Charr of the Nafional
Youth Theatre
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5 Annet Ans

Independent Non-Executive Director 56

Appomtment July 2014

Committee memberships Member of Kealth
Safety & Environmental Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Skills & expenence Annet Arnswas appointed
as an Independent Non Executive Director on

1 July 2014 She s Adjunct Professor of Strategy
at INSEAD, France, a position she hasheld since
2003 and before that was a partner of McKinsey
& Company 1n Germany where for a nurmber of
years she was the only female partner and one
of the leaders of its Transportation and later its
Med.a practice

Other appointments Vanous non executive
roles InGermany the Netherlands and Finfand
including Board member and Charr of the Audit
Cornmittee of Kabel Deutschland AG Board
member and Char of the Nomination and the
Rernuneration Committees of ASR Netherlands
NV Board member and Vice Charr of the Human
Resources Committee of Sanoma Group Board
member of Jungheinrich AG, and Board member
and member of the Audit and the Compensation
Commutteesof ProSiebenSat1 AG

6t Emre Berkin

7 Carl Symon

Independent Non-Executive Director and
Sentor Independent Director 68

Appowtment October 2013

Committee memberships Member of Audit
Committee Nominations Commuttee and
Rernuneration Committee

Skills & expenence Carl Symonwas appainted
asan Independent Nan Executive Director on

3 Gctober 2013 and became Senior Independent
Director on 20 February 2014 He has extensive
global business operations and management
expenience, having refired In 2001 from 1BM
after a long career during which he held various
sanior posihons both globally and as Charman
and Chief Executive Officer of IBM UK His other
former posihions include Non Executive Director
of Rolls Royce Group plc BT Group plc and
Rexarn plc and Chairman of HMV Group plc

Other appomtments Non Executive Director
of BAE Systems plc

8 Warren Tucker
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Skills & expenence Martine Yeriuyten was
appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Director on' 9 May 2011 She has significant
international financial and IT expertise and

has hetd a number of senror finance pesiions
acrass the telecommunications electronics
and matenals sectors Between 2006 and 2011
she was Chief Financial Gfficer of Umicore a
Brussels based materials technology group and
from 2000 to 2006 she was Group Controller
and subsequently Chief Financial Officer of the
mobile telephone operator Mobistar

Otherappointments Non Executive
Directar of 31 Group plc Supervisory Board
member and chair of the Audif Lommittee

of STMicroelectronics N V and Independent
Director ot Group Bruxelles Lambert She also
chairs the Audit Comrnittee of the Flemish Region
in Belgium

Group General Counsel and
Group Company Secretary

10 Craug Stoehr

Independent Non-Execuhve Director 52

Group General Counsel 47

Appointment October 2013

Appomtment April 2013

Independent Non-Executive Director 53

Appointment November 2012

Commuttee memberships Charman of
Heath, Safety & Environmental Committee
and mermber of Nominations Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Skills & experience Emre Berkin was appointed
as an Independent Non Executive Director

on 1 November 2012 and was appointed as
Chairman of the Health, Safety & Environmental
Committee on 20 February 2014 He has
considerable expesience acioss the technological
sector and international markets and being
based in Turkey he has vital knowledge of one of
the key deshinations for rrullions of our custarmers
Between 1993 and 2006 he held a number of
senior pasitions at Microsoft latterly as Chairman
Middle East & Africa and Vice President Europe
Middle East & Africa where he led all aspects

of Microsoft business in 79 countries

Other appointments Non Executive Director
toanurmber of companies including Pegasus
Arlines Turkey s leading low cost carner, hsted
on the lstanbul Stack Exchange and a broad
range of technology companies

Commuttee memberships Charman of
Remuneration Commuttee and rmermber of Audit
Comrnittee and Nominations Committee

Skills & experience Warren Tucker was
appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Orrecioron 3 Octaber 2013 and became
Charrman of the Remuneration Committee

on 20 February 2014 He hassignificant
expenence In infernational business and strategic
transformations He was from 2003 unnil

May 2013 Chief Financial Officer of Cobham plc
He 1s a chartered accountant and has previously
held senior finance positions at Brihish Airways plc
and Cable & Wireless plc

Other appomtments Non Executive Director
of Reckit; Benckiser Group plc and Non Executive
Chairman of PayPoint plc

9 Martine Verluyten

Independent Non-Executive Director 63

Appointment May 2011

Commuttee memberships Charrman
of Audit Committee and member of
Nominahions Committee

Skills & experience Craig Stoehrjoinedthe
Company in April 2013, as Group General
Counsel Priar tojoining the Company Craig
served as General Counsel and a member of the
Executive Management Commitiee of Easigate
Capital Group the private equity arm of The
National Commercial Bank of Saudi Araba

Prior to joining Eastgate Craigwas a partner at
Latham & Watksns, a top tier global law firm
Craig also has a sigmificant amount of business
experience having served as chief executive of
several small sports media and entertainment
businesses in Europe and the United States

11 Derek Woodward

Group Company Secretary 56

Appomtment April 2008

Skills & expenence Derek Woodward joined the
Company as Group Company Secretary in April
2008 Prior tothus he spent six years as Head of
Secretanat at Centrica plc From 1998 he was
Company Secretary of Alled Zunch pic the UK
listed holding cornpany of the Zurich Financial
Services Group and between 1990 and 1998 he
was Assistant Secretaryof B A Tindustriesp | ¢
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Corporate governance report

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

This report sets out how the Company applied the principles of the

UK Corporate Governance Code ('the Code’) and the extent ta which
the Company comphed with the provisions of the Code in the year

to 30 September 2014 Throughout the year the Company fully
comphed with the provisions of the Code except for Provision B 33 in
relation o Executive Directors taking on more than ane non executive
directorship ina FTSE 100 company An explanation inrespect of this
Provision 1s given within the Remuneration report on page 100

The Group’s business model and strategy

The Group's business model and sirategy are summarnsed on pages
2610 41 of this report

The Board of Directors

The Board i1s responsible far the long-term success of the Group and
for ensuring that there s a framewaork of effective controls which
enables nisk fo be assessed and managed Dunng the year the Board
its Commuttees and management have continued to focus in the
areas of business and financial controls, along with risk ident fication
and management The CEO CFO and the Executive Commitiee have
continued to set the tone from the top to drive a strong culture of
perfarmance governance controls and nsk management across
the Group The hughly expenienced and dedicated team of risk and
audit professionals under the leadership of Lee Bradley, Director

of knterpnse Risk and Audit has driven a significant improverment
agenda to support management in thisimportant area Thisis
complemented by a Group Finance Transformation that 1s well
underway fo significantly improve financial controls and the support
given by the Finance function to the businesses More information is
given below and in the Risk management section on pages 48 to 51

Ina majoriniiiative to bulld a mare effechive organisation at the

start of the Transformation in 2012 the Thomas Cook Leadership
Council (see page 84) led by the CEO redefined the Group's Values
Leadership Behaviours and Ways of Working This inimiative together
with the focus on sk and controls and our trust commitments fo our

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is specifically responsible for

» guiching the Group s strategic aims, leading toits approval of the
Group s sirategy and ifs budgetary and business plans

> approval of significant snvestments and capital expenditure

> approval of annual and half-year results and inferm management
statermnents accounting policies and, subject to Shareholder
approval, the appointment and remuneration of the
external auditors

> approval of the Group s dvidend policy and the payment
of intenim and the recormmendahion of final dvidends

» changes to the Group s capital structure and the issue
of any securnties

> establishing and maintaning the Group’s risk appetite, systern
of internal contrel, governance and approval authorities

» monitoring executive performance and succession planning and

> reviewing standards of ethics and policy in relation to health
safety, environment, social and commmunity responsibilites

people and our stakeholders were brought together under anew Code Ve have continued to sef the

of Conduct The Code of Conduct which guides the way our people
wark towards a mare susfamnable future has been fully embedded
across the Group The Board recewes regular reports and monitors
progress In thisimportant area Further information on the Code of
Conduct and the action being taken to ensure the positive cultural
changes brought about by the Code are sustainable 1s given on pages
hirand 92

The Board s governance structure and the
roles and actvities of its Commuttees are descnbed
onpages 84to92

tfone from the top to drive a
strong culture of performance,
governance, controls and risk
management across the Group




Board activity during the year

At each Board meeting the CEO presents a comprehensive update
an the Transformahion the strategy and business 1ssues across

the Group and the CFO presents a detalled analysis of the financial
performance, both at Group and segment level Senior executives
below Board level attend relevant parts of Board and Committee
meetings in order io make presentations on their areas of
responsibility This gives the Board access fo a broader group

of executives and helps the Directors make assessments of he
Group's successionplans The Board held one of its meetngs at the
main offices of the UK business and conducted in depth reviews
of that business operations and strategy as well as gaining more
presence and visib ity amongst management and staff The Board
has plans for the current year to wisit the Northern European
Business Segment and cne of the Group s pnmary destinations

Atits meetings duning the year, the Board
discharged its responsibilifies and n
particular, it reviewed

The composition Progressand The Group s lnancal
of the Board on the developments plan fnanaal
recomimendanion nrespeci of the pe formance

of the Nominations Transformation and reperting
Cornmittee andstrategy

Risk and rmutigation Therevised casporate Key corporate
matters ncluding a governance framewerk governance

review of the Board s anddelegation of developments

risk appetite authonty

The effactivenass The Graup s tax pohcy Feedback from

of the Board and 1ts nstitutional investors
Commuttees

A number of fraiming and strategy support presentations were
also presented to the Board as detaled in the relevant section

on page 81
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board andits Committees have regular scheduled meetings
throughout the year and supplementary meetings are held asand
when necessary The table below shows the number of scheduled
Board and Committee meetings attended by each Director out of the
number convened dunng the hime served by each Director on the
Board or relevant Cornrmitiee dunng the year

Warren Tucker missed one Board meeting and one Audit Committee
rmeeting (both on the same date) Annet Ars missed one Board
meeting and one Health Safety & Environmental Committee
meenng (both on the same date) Both Warren and Annet missed
these meefings due to other meetings that they had arranged

prior to joining the Board Dawn Airey rissed one Board meeting
one Remuneration Committee meeting and two Health Safety &
Envircnmental Committee meetings (on two separate days) due to
unavoidable business commitments with her new employment from
August 2013 Warren, Annet and Dawn gave inpuf on the agenda
rrerns to the Chairman prior fo those meetings The Charrman and
each Non-Executive Director have provided assurance to the Board
that they remain fully comnmitted to their respective roles and can
dedicate sufficient time to meet what 1s expected of them

Aswell as the scheduled meetings, the Directors attended additional
Board and Committee meetings (please see the notes below)
mainty in respect of Board appointments and business matters that
the Chairman and CEO decided should be considered by the Board/
Commuttee pnior to the next scheduled meeting Despite these
meetings being held at relatively short notice, attendance levels

for each of the Directors was high

Current Dwectors (in office as at 30 September 2014)

Health

Safety &

Nominations Audit Remuneration Environmental

Name Board Committee Committee Committee Commitiee
Frank Meysman 6/6 4fh - - -
Harnet Green 5/6 L/l - - LTL]
Michael Healy 5/6 - - - -
Dawn Airey 5/6 2/2 272 4/5 274
Annet Aris 172 144 - 171 0/1
Ernre Berkin 5/6 4y - 5/5 LT
Carl Symon 5/6 2/2 2/2 3/3 -
Warren Tucker 5/6 272 1/2 3/3 -
Martine Verluyten 6/6 iy 4y 2/2 -

Notes

As wellasthe meetingsdetaled above the Board held a further four meehings and the Normuinations
Cemrittee held 3 further Twe meehngs dunngthe year to drstuss the issues referred to above

Changes tothe Committee Chairs and membership 1s detailed in the relevant Commuttee sections
enpages sl 1o92

—
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Former Directors who served duning the year
Health
Safety &
Nomnahons Audit R Er tal
Name Board C tee Commi Commiitee
Roger Burnell 2/2 2/2 242 2/2 2/2
Peter Marks 212 - - - 2/2

Nofes
Roger Burneil and Peter Marks retired frorn the Board on 20 February 2014

Graph removed
Graph removed

Board composition

As at 25 November 2014 the Board comprnised the Chairmnan
two Executive Directors and stx Independent Non-Executive
Directors Biographical details of all Directors can be found

on pages 76 and 77 and on the Company's corporate website
at www thomascookgroup com

The Chairman
Frank Meysman was the Chairman throughout the year

The roles of the Chairrnan and CEO are separate and distinct There s
a Board-approved Division of Respensibilines which clearly sets outin
writing their respective responsibilifies This dacument can be found

on the Cornpany s corporate website at www thomascaokgroup com

The Senior Independent Director

Carl Symon was appointed as the Senior Independens Director on
20 February 20141n place of Roger Burnell who retired from the
Board on that date The Senior Independent Director s avallable to
Shareholders should they have concerns that cannof be resolved
through the normal channels involving the Executive Directors or
the Chairman

Changes to the Board

The following individuals were appointed to the Board as Independent
Non-Executive Diractors on the dates set alongside therr names

> Carl Symon and Warren Tucker — 3 Ociober 2013
> Annet Ans— 1 July 2014

The search, selechion and appointment process for Non Executive
Directors is fully descnbed in the section on the Nominations
Committee on pages 87 and 88

The following individuals retired from the Board on 20 February 2014

> Roger Burnell {Independent Non-Executive Director)
» Peter Marks (Non Executive Director)

Changes to the Committees

Inview of the changes to the membership of Board as detalled above
a number of changes to the Chairs and memberships of the Board s
Committees was agreed dunng the year These are detalled in the
relevant Comrmittee sections on pages 84t 92

Board induction and training

Aninduction programme tailored to meet the needs of Individual
Directors is provided for each new Director Overall the am of

the induction grogramme s fo introduce new Directors to the

Group s business, Its operations and its governance arrangerments
Such induchons typically include meetings with sentor management
visits to the Company s business segments where they receve a
thorough briefing on the business and meef with the Management
Tearmn, and the receipt of presentations on other key business areas
and relevant documentation Individual induction requirements are
rmonitered by the Chairman, with the support of the Group Company
Secretary, 1o ensure that new and recently appointed Directors gain
sufficent knowledge about the Group to enable them fo contnbute
ta the Board s deliberations as swiftly as possible As anumber of
new Directars have joned the Beard in the past two years there

has been a high level of induction activity New Directors also ge en
a destination visit dunng which time they meet with in-destination
staff and are raken through every aspect of the customer expernience
The induchion content and process has evolved significantly aswe
bulld on the expernence of induching each new Director We are now
using that experience for the benefir of our longer-serving Directors
by giving them the opportunity to accompany and participate in any
aspect that they feel would further enhance therr knowledge and
understanding of the Group

In response to the 2013 Board evaluationin arder to fully support
the new Directors and ensure they ganed a high level of knowledge
about the Group s businesses our strategy and the transformational
initiatives a sernes of fwo-hour training and strategy support
presenfations were given to the Board after each of its meetings
This programime which wasin addition to the normal business
reviews ensured the new members of the Board had sufficient
knowledge to be able to conirnbute fully to the Board's review and
development of strategy at its meehng in September 2014




Image removed

Warren Tucker on a site visit fo our UK Arrline hangar at Manchester Airport

Image removed

Annet Ans on a site visit to our UK Arline hangar at Manchester Airport

Board fraining and strategy support presentations, and major business
updates given duning the year

> transforming the web
> customer-led product strategy
> strategy background session covenng
— market developments,
- consumer frends,
- compehtive landscape
— ourstrengths and assets
> IT wision, strategy and roadmap,
» comprehensive analysis of the UK Transformation and strategy,
» strategic update on Wave 2 and
> strategic update on our customer insights used for Group-wide
marketing and commercial actions

The Board has a programme for holding some of its meetings at the
business segments where, inaddition to ifs normal business the
Board will focus on the strategy and operations of that segment and
meet with management and staff in March 2014 the Board held

its meeting at the main offices of the UK segment where it received
presentations on and met management and staff of that business
The Board has plans to wsit the Group s Northern European Business
and one of the Group s key deshnations durning 2015 At other Board
meehings and, where appropniate Committee meetings, the Directors
recewve updates and presentahions on developments and changes

to the business, and te the legislative and regulatory environments

In addition to the benefit of the training given these programmes also
Increase the exposure of senior talent to the Board and gives the Board
presence acress the Group

Director independence

Atits Septernber 2014 Board meeting as part of its annual review of
corporate governance agamst the Code, the Board considered the
independence of the Nen Executive Directors against the cntera
specified in the Code and deterrmined that each was independent

Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2014 8 1

Directors’ conflicts of interest

Frem 1 October 2008, the Companies Act codified the Directors’ duty
to avod a situation in which they have, or can have aninterest that
canflicts, or posstbly may conflict with the interests of the Company
A Directorwill not be in breach of that duty if the relevant matter has
been authonsed in accordance with the Articles of Associahon by the
other Directors

The Board has established a set of guiding principles on managing
canflicrs and has agreed a process to identify and authornise conflicts
As part of that process, it has also agreed that the Norminahons
Commuttee should review the authorised conflicts every six months
or mare frequently if a new potenhial conflict anses for anexsting
Director The Nominations Committee reviews the interests of
candidates prior o making recommendatiens for the appointment
of new Qirectors The Nominations Commitree and Board applied the
above principles and process throughout rhe year to 30 September
2014 and confirm that these have operated effectively

Re-appointment of Directors

In accordance wath the Code and the Company’s Articles of Association
all Directors are subject to elechion by Shareholders At the AGM held in
February 2014 each of the Directors {other than Roger Burnell and
Peter Marks wha retired from the Board at that meehing) were
subrmitted for election/re-election The Board has agreed that the
Directors will continue to be sutwect to annual election in the future
Non-Executive Directors are inihially appointed for a three-year term,
subject to annual election by Shareholders and subject fo ngorous
review by the Neminations Committee and continued annual

re elechon by Shareholders can serve upto a maximumof three
such terms

Operation of the Board

Throughout the year, a fully encrypted electronic portal system was
operated which enabled Board and Commuttee papers to be delivered
securely to the Directors This enabled a faster and more secure
distnbuhon of information accessed using electronic tablets and
reduced resource usage The CEC kept the Board updated on matters
affeching the business between meetings

The Group Company Secretary, who was appointed by the Board 15
responsible for advising and supporiing the Chairman and the Board
on corporate governance matters as well as ensuning that there s
asmocth flow of nformation to enable effective decision making

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
Company Secretary and the Group General Counseland through
themn have access to independent professional advice in respect

of their duties at the Company's expense The Group Company
Secrefary acts as secretary to the Board and its Commit tees

Inaccordance withits Articles, the Company has granted a qualfying
third party indemnity, to the extent perrmitted by law to each Director
and the Group Comnpany Secretary The Company also mantains
Directors and Officers habity insurance

Strategic report =
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Our Board evaluafion process

1 -~ 2 -~ 3 - 4 = 5

The Chairman discusses  The external facilitator The external facilitator The report of the The achion plan
and agrees thescopeof  reviews past Board and prepares areporf of findings and the 1s continually
the evaluatonwiththe  Committee papers and the findings from the recommendations s monitored by
external facilitator minutes then conducts review identifying discussedby the Board, the Chairman
indmidualinterviews with  strengths, challenges whichagreesanaction  withregular
eachof the Directorsand  andprionihies Anumber  planforthe yearahead  updatereports
other senior executives of recommendations to the Board
Feedback sessions are are also included for
alsoheld discussion by the Board
Board evaluation
The Board recogrises the benefit of a thorough Boardand Commuttee  The report recognised that due fo the short fenure of many of
evaluation process leading to achon to improve its effechiveness the Directors there was opportunity and potenfial to continue to
develop the Board'seffectiveness recognising the huge investment
Athcrough evaluation of the Board andits Committees was ininduction and traiming to ensure that the Board were fully abreast
conducted duning the year Thiswas facilirated by Dr Tracy Long of of the Group's businesses and challenges that lay ahead
Boardroom Review* under the direcion of the Chairman The process
involved Dr Long conduching individual interviews with each of the The recommendations focused mainly on the further developrnent
current Directors {other than Annet Ans who joined the Board on of the Boardroom culture and dynamics and reinfarced many of the
1 July 2014) Roger Burnell and Peter Marks prior to their retirement exsting prachices The Board has agreed an achion plan (see page 83)

from the Board on 20 February 2014, the Chief Cperating Officer the  which 1s being monitored by the Charman with the support of the
Group General Counsel and the Group Company Secretary reviewing  Group Company Secretary and reported regularly to the Board
past papers and minutes and attending the Board and Committee Progress will be disclosed in the 2015 Governance report

meetings n May 2014 The review focused on the Board environment

and the work of the Board and inrespect of each of these two areas Separately the Non-Executive Directors under the leadership of
idennfied the strengths challenges and prionties The output fromthe  the Senior Independent Director and with input from the Executive
evaluahion was compiled into a repert which also includedanumber  Directors, conducted an evaluation of the Charman The outpuis
of recommendations by Dr Long Individual feedback sessions were from that evaluation were debated by the Boardin the absence

then conducted by Dr Long and the report was then presented to of the Chairman and feedback was given to hirn by the Senior
the Board af its meeting inJuly 2G14 for conssderation and debate Independent Director

The report recognised the Board as high calibre and asthe The Company's performance management system apphes
Transformation progressed, the work of the Board had moved from 1o management ai all levels across the Group The mdividual
short-term crisis management to more future-looking and strategic performance of the Executve Directors is reviewed separately

by the Chairmnan and the Remuneration Commitree
Significant progress had been made in the past two years and
that was a reflection of the quality of and close collaboration with
the Senior Management Team

*Nerrher Or Tracy Long nor Boardroom Review carry out any other wock for the Group




Outputs from 2013 evaluation
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Agreed action in 2013 and delivered in 2013/14

Strengthen the Board with the appointment of additional
Non-Executive Directors to meet succession requirements

Three Non-Executive Directors appainted cne of whom was
appointed as Chair of the Remuneration Committee and another
who was appointed as the Senior Independent Director following the
AGM inFebruary 2014 when Roger Burnell retired from the Board

Continued recrutment of tugh-calibre management and
ongoing talent management and development being regularly
reported to the Board

Ongoing programme in place with regular reporting to the Board
Senicr management exposure to the Board as described on pages
7910 81

Requirement for an ongoing comprehensive Board traming
programme to keep pace with the transformational activiies

In addition to the new Director induction programme and the regular
business reviews presented to the Board a series of addimonal
training and strategy support presentations have been delivered

to the Board after each of its meehings throughout the year

Request for increased market information and intelligence

Increased information has been provided in the additional fraining
and strategy support presentations that have been delivered tothe
Board dunng the year

Continued review and development of strategy

Qutputs from 2014 evaluation

Built into the above training and strategy support presentations
throughout the year leading to the review of strategy over the
Board stwo day meeting in September 2014

Agreed achonin 2014

Further develop the induction programme for newly
appointed Directors to create a common platform of
understanding of the Company’s challenges, assets and key
performance indicators

The existing induction programme has been further developed

and has been complemented significantly by the comprehensive
programme of additional training and strategy support
presentanions that have been delivered throughout the year, leading
tothe review of strategy af the Septernber 2014 Board meeting

The Board should continue with its ongoing visits to the
Business segments to ensure the Board develops and
maintains a good knowledge of the businesses, 1s visible to
the operations and has access to a broad group of executives

Continued business and destinations visits planned for 2015

The Board should develop the right balance between challenge
and support for the Transformation work and clanfying the
long-term vision and strategy of the Company The aimshould
be to ensure that all Board members fully understand the
ongomg Transformation and the importance of the successful
execuhon of each element, leading to a sustainable future

for the Company

The Board has agreed the balance which has been built into the
Board programme for 2015

Strategic report =
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COFPOFBTE' governance report continued

The Board and Its primary committees

Board The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its approval and has a formal struciure of delegated

Charrman CEQ CFOD
and six Nan Executive

authonty whereby specified aspects of management and control of the Group have been delegated
tothe CEQ the Tour Operator and Air Travel Councils and the Board s Committees This was reviewed
and revised during the year Inaddihion the Board has agreed the rerms of reference for the Audit

Directars Rernuneration Nominations Risks and Disclosures and Health Safety & Environmental Committees
and the Division of Responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO
Nominations Committee Remuneration Committee Health, Safety & Environmental  Audit Committee
Chairman CEO the Senior Six Independent Commuttee Three Independent
Independen: Direcsor and the Nan Executive Directors CEO and three Independent Non Executive Directors

three Independent Non Executive
Drrectors who are the Chairs of
the Audit Remuneration and

Non Executve Directors

The schedule of matters reserved the terms of reference of each of the
Board s Committees and the Dvision of Responsibilities between the
Chairman and the CEQ are available on request and on the Company 5
websife at www thomascookgroup com The powers of the Directors are
set out in the Company s Articles of Association These are also available
on the Company swebsite

HSE Commuittees
Commuittee report Commitieereport Commuttee report Committee repart
onpage 87 onpage 90 onpage 89 onpage 85

The papersinrespect of the Audit Remunerahion Nominations and
Health Safety & Enwironmental Cornmittees are circulared to all the
Non Executive Directors, regardless of Cornmittee membership
Major decisions taken under the Group s Delegation of Authonty
arereportedto the next Board meeting

Image removed

Image removed

Group Executive Committee

The CEO formed the Group Executive Commuttee on 1 November
2013 comprising the most senior business leaders and funchion
heads Like the Themas Cook Leadership Cauncil, the membership
of the Executive Committee is both culturally and gender diverse
reflecting the wide range of diversity amongst employees across she
Group The Executive Commuttee (@nd prior toits formation the CFO s
direct reports) meets regularly to focus on a range of issues in relation
to the strategic and operatienal developrment and performance of
the businesses

Thomas Cook Leadership Council

The Thomas Cook Leadership Counal ! TCLC ) comprises thetop 130
leaders across the Group The TCLC meets four hirmes a year to review
performance and help develop the Graupss strategy

Toreflect the new approach to managing the business en a Group
wide basis we significantly strengthened our internal management
governance arrangements with the creation, inJanuary 2014 of the
Tour Operator Counciland the Air Travei Counal

Tour Operator Council

The Tour Operator Counail 1s responsible for providing a streamlined
Group-wide forum for strategic financial, operational and trading
decisions affeching the Tour Operator business within clearly defined
lirmits under the Group delegation and decision making matrix

Air Travel Council

The Arr Travel Coundil s responsible for providing a streamlined
Group-wide forum for strategic, financial and operational decisiens
affecning the Group's arines within clearly defined mits under

the Group delegation and decision-making matrix




Audit Committee

The Committee focused on the
confinued improvement to the
Group’s risk management and
nternal control arrangements

Image removed

Charrman
Martine Verluyten®

Meetings
Four

Other members
Carl symon
Warren Tucker*

Directors bloglr‘zphles
onpages 76and 77

Meetings also regularly attended by

The Chairman and the ather Non-Executive
Directars, Harnet Green (CEQ) Michael Healy (CFO),
Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsel)

Lee Bradley {Drector of Enterpnse Risk and Audit)
Derek Woodward (Group Cormpany Secretary)
Gavin Mansen (Group Head of Financial Reporhing)
and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“Pw( ")

Compaosition of the Committee

Roger Burnell and Dawn Airey stepped down
from the Commuttee on 20 February 2014 and
17 March 2014 respectively Carl Syrmon and
Warien Tucker were appointed to the Commuttee
on 17 March 2014

*Marhine Verluyten and Warren Tucker are considered by the Board
to have recent and relevant financial expenence as required by the Code
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Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Cornrmitree responsibility for
overseeing the financial reporting internal nsk management and
control functions and for making recornmendations 1o the Board
inrelation to the appontment of the Company s infernal and
external auditors

In accordance with its terms of reference the Commirtee which
reports its findings to the Board 1sauthorised to

> monitar the integnty of the annual and half-year results and intenim
managerment staternents including a review of the significant
financial reporting judgernents contained in them,

> review the Company's nternal financial conrals and internal consrol
and nsk management systems

> monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company s internal
audit funchion

> establish and oversee the Cormpany s relahonship with its external
auditors, ncluding the monitoring of therr ndependence, and

> rmoritor matters raised pursuant to the Company s
“whistleblowing” arrangements

Toenable 1t to carry aut its duties and respensibilies effectively the
Committee relies oninformation and support from management
across the business The full terms of reference of the Cornmittee are
avallable at www thomascookgroup com or from the Group Cornpany
Secretary at the registered office

Principal activities during the year

The main focus of the Audit Committee dunng the year has been to
support and oversee the continued improvement led by execubive
management fathe Groups nsk managerment and infernal control
arrangements In that regard the Committee welcomed the
strengthening of the Enterprise Risk and Audit function and the
Finance funchion with ahigh-calibre and diverse team of professionals
The Committee is supported inits work by the Risk Matters Group
which reports into the Audit Committee, the Risks and Disclosures
Committee and the CEQ —see page 48 for detalls The Committee
also welcomed the cormmencement of the Finance Transformation
that willimprove centrols and the support it gives o the Group s
businesses The significantly increased activity in respect of nisk
management, controls and internal audit for both transforrmational
and business as usual actiwhes has been summarised in
comprehensive reports thai have been presented 1o and reviewed by
the Committee at each of its meetings during the year This activity
together with reports from the external auditors, has supported

the Audit Cornmittee in providing ifs adwice to the Board in respect
of the effectiveness of iInternal control (see secnion headed "Risk
management and internal control” on page 91 below) At the end of
two of its meetings during the year, the Commiitee (and also those
Non-Executive Directors who are not on the Cornmittee) met with
the Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit and the external auditors in
the absence of management

Strategic report —
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Committee activities

In addition toits facus on risk management controls and internal
audit described opposite the Commitiee has discharged its
responsibilities dunng the year and has reviewed

Financial Governance
» The full and half year results > The Committee sown work
{including accounting issues plan for theyear and areview
andjudgements) and the of tustonc actwiry against
inferim management the Commuttee sterms
staternents issued of reference
during theyear and the » The effactiveness of the
processes underpinning Group Enterprise Risk and
the preparation of those Audit funchon
documents » The effectiveness of the
> Information n support of the external audit process
staternents inrelalion 1o going » The Group s cormplance
concern fair balancedand programmes
understandable and disciosure
of information tothe auditors
» The annual work plan for
each of the internal and
external auditors

Withinits terms of reference the Cornmifree 1s authonsed fo
monitar the integnty of the annual and half-year results and intenm
management starements including a review of the significant
financiatreporimg judgements contained inthem At its meeting

in Novernber 2014 the Committee reviewed a comprehensive
paper prepared by the Group Head of Financial Reporting which
set out the Group s accounhng policies and basis of preparafion
gave consideration to a number of key disclosure considerations
including going concern separately disclosed items and ike-for ke
analysis, marters arising in the preparation of the Group accounts,
and the impact of new accounting developrnents The Audit
Committee also reviewed a paper prepared by the external auditors
which included the significant reperting and accounting matters
Both papers were reviewed and discussed by the Audit Committee
The Cormmittee pays particular attention to matters that it considers
tobe important by wirtue of their impact on the Group results and
remuneration of senior management or the level of complexity,
Judgement or estimation in their application in preparation of the
Group s inancial staterments The significant issues considered

by the Audit Committee were as follows

Sigreficant issue considered
by the Commitiee

How the issue was addressed
by the Commitlee

GoingConcern The appropriateness of
prepanng the Group financial statements
for the half year andfull year ona going
concernbasis

The Commitiee conskdered papers prepared
bymanagement and faking into account
the external audions review of these papers
andther assumphions concluded that
management s recomimendahon to prepare
3CCOUNts 0n a going concern basis was

appropnate

The Group's accounting policies and
apphcatienof them Dunrg theyear the
Group conducted acomprefensve reviaw
of ks accounting polioes and therr consistent
application across the Group Thisinduded
focus on the treatment of arcraft leases and
associated Mantenance provisons

The Committee reviewed a paper preparediy
management covenng theimpact of thereview
onaccounhng matters across the Groupand
consideration of any required drsclosure

Having conmdered the paper the Cornmitiee
agreedwith management s pioposals

Impairment and deferredtax Inview

of the Group s losses inrecent years the
Committee considered whether there wasa
need toimpar certainassetvalues including
goadwalland the reasonableness of the
Croupsrecognihon of deferred Lax assers

The Committee considered a paper presenting
managemeni sintended approachand having
takeninput from the auditors agreedwith
managemenl s proposals

Separately disclosed tems. The Group
has an established pohicy of separatety
disclosing items that are erther exceptional
or detract from the reader s undersranding
of theunderiying performance of the Group

The Commitee considered management §
presentationof separately disclosed items
andinparhculariternsrelating o the Group s
Transforration and certain non cash finance
allecations Having considered the matter the
Commit tee agreed fo adopt management s
proposed presentation

Hotelprepayments. The Group advances
payrnents fo certain strateg hotel
partners both across mulnple years and
withinyears The Group sdeveloping

The Committee considered a paper prepared
by management covering the current
position n respect of advances to hoteliers
and proposed developrnent of processes

the controlemvironmment around making andcontrols The Committee endorsed
andrecovenng advances rmanagerment s proposals
Controleraronment cunng The Committee considered the broader nsks

Transformation The Group s currenily
engagedn afundamental Transformation
eNCoMPassINg most aspects of tsactvties
The Transformation requires evoluhon

of several aspectsof the Groupss financal
reporfing and controf environment and
processes Dunng the year the Group
commenceda comprehensive finance
transformatien project

assocated withthis Transfarmanion as well as
focusing on the aperation of the Group s control
ermronrmient throughout the Transformation
pencd The Committee consdered papers
preparedby management that highlighted

the development requirements.and plans
within finance (endorsed) and areport by
management onthe operation of financial
andnon financal controls throughout the year

Auditor Rotation The Group s required

10 comply wath developing regulatory
requirenment sin respect of Auditos ratation

The Comrrittee considered a paper prepared
by rmanagernent whichhighlighted the
developing regulatory and povernance
framework and highlightedthe relevant
npact anthe Group

PwC have confirmed therr independence as auditors of the Company
in & Jetter addressed to the Directars

External auditors

A policy 15 in place which requires all matenal non-audit work proposed
to be carned out by the external auditors to be pre authorised by the
Comrnittee in order o ensure that the provision of non audit services
does not imparr the external auditars independence or objectmity
The pohcy whichis appended as a schedule to the Audit Commuittee s
terms of reference 15 published on the Company s website at

www thornascookgroup com An analysis of the fees earned by

the Group s auditors for audit and non-audit servicesis disclosed in
Note 6 to the finanual statements PwCwere apponted as the sole
auditars ra the Group in 2008 and since that dafe have complied with
the partner rotation requirement sef out in the Etbucal Standards for
auditers PautCragg a Partner of PwC was appointed Sentor Statutory
Auditor in February 2013 PwCwere re appointed as the Company s
auditors by Shareholders at the AGM held on 20 February 2014

At its meeting in Novemnber 2014 the Audit Comeittee reviewed the
effectiveness of the external audir process Thisincluded reviewing
comprehensive papers from both management and the external
auditors, which sef out rhe planning and execution of the conduct of
the audit The Audit Commuttee then held a meeting with the external
auditorsin the absence of management to discuss further Uponthe
recommendahion of the Audit Cammmitiee, PwC waill be proposed for
re-election by Shareholders at the AGM to be held on 23 February
2015 Inreaching its decision to propose PwC for re election the Audit
Committee took Into account the effectiveness of the external audit
process the length of tenure of PwC as auditors and the objectvity
and independence cf the external auditor




Nominations Committee

The Board is strengthened
by the appointment of three
additional Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Image removed

Charrman
Frapk Mevsman

Meetings
Four

Other members
Emre Berkin Harnet Green Cart Symon,
Warren Tucker and Martine Verluyten

Directors’ biographies
onpages 7Toand 77

Meetings also regularly attended by

The other Non-Executive Directors

Desek Woodward (Group Company Secretary}
and Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsel}

Composition of the Committee

A majonity of the members of the Commuttee

are Independent Non-Executive Directors

Roger Burnell and Dawn Arey stepped down from
the Commuttee on 20 February 2014 and 17 March
2014 respectively Carl Symon and Warren Tucker
Jjoined the Commuittee on 17 March 2014
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Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for
reviewing and praposing appomntments to the Board and for
recommending any other changes to the compaosition of the Board
orits Committees The principal responsibility of the Committee 1s

to make recommendations to the Board on all new appointments to
the Board as well as Board balance and composiion The Committee
ensures that there is clanty in respect of the role descriphion and
capabilities required for such appointments The Committee 1s also
responsible for reviewing af least every six months, or more frequently
if required the Directors’ potential conficts of interest and for making
recommendations to the Beard inrespect of authorising such matters

The full terms of reference of the Committee are available at
www thomascookgroup com or from the Group Company Secretary
at the registered office

Principal activities during the year

Atifs meehings duning the year the Committee dischargedits
responsibilities as listed above and in particular

Committee achivihies

Governance
» Considered the re appointrment of the Directors before making a recommendation
to the Board regarding ther re election ai the 2014 AGM
» Cenducted a thorough process and made recommendations to the Board
to appont addincnal Non Executive Directors ta strengthen the Board
> Conaidered Girectors potential canficts of interests

—
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Board appointments policy

Appointments to the Board are made on merit against objective
cntena and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the

Board This processisled by the Committee which after evaluating
the balance of skifls knowledge and experience of each Director
makes recommendations fo the Board The Board appointments
policy reinfarces the Board's principle that appointments are made
on menf in newithats current and future requirements and reflect
the UK hsting and international activity of the Group The policy

also recognises the benefits of dversity, including gender dversity
Appointments during the course of the year have beeninline with
that policy and have reinforced the diverse composition of the Board
A table llustrating the diversity of the Board s shown on page 80
The Board endorses the aimns of the Davies’ report enhtled “Wormnen
on Boards™ The Board's gender diversity af 44% female 1s in excess
of the Davies report aim of 25% The Chairrman 1s a member of

the 30% Club, which has the aim of promaoting the achievernent

of 30% women on FTSE 100 Boards by the end of 2015 A copy of
the Group s Board appointments policy can be found on our website
at www rhomascookgroup com

Non-Executive appointments

One of the key areas of focus in the 2013 Board effectiveness

review was to evaluate the breadth of skills and expenence on the
Board The output from that evaluation (see page 83) helped shape
the candidate profile for the search for addihional Non Executive
Directors Egon Zehnder* an international search and selection firm
was appointed 1o assist the Chairman ro idennfy a range of suitable
candidates for review by the Normnahions Committee As aresult of
the ongoing process Carl Symon and Warren Tucker were appainted
tathe Beard on 3 October 2013 and Annet Anis was appointed on
1luly 2014 The Charman and the Commuttee will continue their wark
In the current year to confinue fo monitor and develop the Board s
succession plans

*Egon Zehnder does not carry out any other work for the Group

One of the key areas of focus in the
2013 Board effectiveness review was
to evaluate the breadth of skills and
experience on the Board The output
from that evaluation helped shape
the candidate profile for the search for
additional Non-Executive Directors




Health, Safety & Environmental Committee

The Health, Safety & Environmental
Commuttee has overseen a wide
range of improvements, including
the appointment of a new Group
Head of Health, Safety & Security,

a new outsourced partner fo support
our heafth and safety audit and
quality assurance programmes

and a new Head of Government
Affairs and Sustainability

Image removed

Chairman
Ernre Berkin

Meetings
Four

Other members
Dawn Airey Annet Anis and Harnet Green

Directars biographies
onpages76and?7

Meetings also regularly attended by

The other Non Executive Directors, Lee Bradley
(Director of Enterpnise Risk and Audif), Peter
Welsh (Group Head of Health, Safety & Security)
Steve Solomon (Director Group Aviation Safety
Compliance and Security), Anna Campopianc
(Director of Government and External Affairs)
Derek Woodward (Group Company Secretary)
and Crarg Stoehr (Group General Counsel)

Composition of the Commuttee

Roger Burnell and Peter Marks stepped down from
the Commuttee on 20 February 2014 Annet Ans
was appointed to the Commuttee on 1 July 2014
Erare Berkin was apponted Chair of the Comrittee
1N place of Peter Marks on 20 February 2014
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Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated 1o the Cornmitiee responsibibty toreview,
develop and oversee consistent policy, standards and procedures
for managing health, safety and ervironmental nisks to the Group s
business It i1s also responsible for the review and oversight of
comphance with relevant legislation and regulahion retabing to health
safety and the environment across the Group

The full terms of reference of the Committee are available at
www thormascookgroup comn or frorn the Group Company Secretary
at the registered office

Principal activities during the year

At its meetings during the year, the Comrmittee discharged its
responsibilities as isted above and in particular reviewed monitored
and agreed

Committee activities

» The apponiment of anew > Customer and employee

Group Head of Health
and Safety
» The Group s health and
safety imprevement plan
including the appontment
nf anew outsourced
partner {¢ suppart our
healrh and safery audit
and quality assurance
programmes
» The appointment of a
new Head of Government

njunes and incidents
» Group Airline safety
and reperts from the
Group Aviation Safety
Management Board
» The Group aviation drug
and alcohol policy
> Government Affairs
updates
» Emaronment updares
> Approval of the Group s
sustainability report

Affars and Sustainability
» Transfers and Transport
audit

The Group s sustainability report is available on

www thomascookgroup com/sustainability and contains the Group s
health and safety and environmental policies, an explanation of how
Themas Cook manages sustanability and progress against targets

Asummary of the approach and the Group s performance
inrelanon tosustanabifity 1s contained
onpages67to73

StrategiC report -
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Corporate governance report continued

Remuneration Committee

The Board was pleased with the
overwhelming Shareholder support
given in favour of the resolutions

at the 2014 AGM in respect of

the Group’s remuneration policy
and practice

Image removed

Chairman
Warren Tucker

Meetings
Five

Other members
Dawn Airey, Annet Ans, Emre Berkin
and Carl Syrmon

Directors biographies
onpages 76 and 77

Meethings also regularly attended by

Frank Meysman (Chairman) Harnet Green (CEO)*
Martine Verluyten, Roger Burnell (Independent NED)**
and Peter Marks (NED)** Sandra Campopiana (Chief
People Officer) Judith Mackenzie (Group Head of Reward
and Performance) Derek Woodward (Group Cornpany
Secretary) and Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsef)

*Harriet Green daes not artend in(espect of matters relating fo her remuneration
** Unnt 20 February 2014

Composshon of the Committee

All mermbers of the Commuttee are Independent
Non Executive Directors Warren Tucker was
appointed as a member and Chairman of the
Committee on 20 February 2014 to replace
Roger Burnell who retired from the Board
onihat date Annet Answas appointed asa
rnermber of the Commifree on 1 July 2014

Principal activities during the year

Dunag the year the Committee made significant progress
implementing best practice as it pursuesits Pay for Performance
policy In this connection the Chairman and the Charman of

the Commuttee conducted extensive consultations with major
Shareholders and governance bodies Areport detailing

the composition responsibiities and work carned out by

the Rermnuneration Committee during the year including an
explanation of how it apphies the Pninciples of the Code in respect
of Executve Directors remuneration, i1sincluded within the
Rernuneration report on pages 102 10 110

Finance & Administration Committee

To facilitate swift and efficient cperahonal management decisions
the Board has established the Finance & Administration Commuttee
which has delegated authonty within clearly idennfied parameters
inrelation 1o day fo-day finanang and administrative mattess

Risks and Disclosures Committee

The Board has established a Risks and Disclosures Commitiee,

which 15 responsible for implementing and monitonng systerms and
controls in respect of the management of inside information and the
dsclosure of such nformation to the market n accordance with the
Company’s abligations under the UK Listing Authority s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules The Committee also recewes inputs from the Risk
Matters Group and maintains executive oversight of the Group s key
risks and mitigation strategies The Cornmittee meets regulary durng
the year to consider the Group's disclosure obligations and to review
allresults announcerments following cerhfication fremindmdual
executives from across the businesses The Committee comprises the
CEOQ, who s the Chawrman the CFO, the Director of Enterprise Risk and
Audit the Group General Counsel and the Group Company Secretary
Other artendees include senior managers from Group Finance and
Investar Relations

Shareholder communication and engagement

The Board promaotes open communicafion with Shareholders Thisis
formalised within the framework of an invesiar relations programme
conducted by the CEQ, the CFO and the Investor Relations Tearm

The programme included the presentation of preliminary and

half year resutts, which can be accessed on the Thomas Cook Group
website af www thomascookgroup com along with financial reports,
Infenm management staterents other market announcements
and trading updates During the year the CEQ and (CFO have
conducted a large number of meetings with institutional investors
and welcome the dialogue that this enables with Shareholders

and potential Shareholders

Additionally, the Board responds to ad hoc requests for information
and all Shareholders are entitled to attend the Annual General
Meeting Shareholders are given the opporfunity to lodge their votes
by way of proxy and/or to attend such rmeetings in person where
they have the opportunity to ask questions of the Board including
the chairs of the Board Cornmittees vote by way of a poll and meet
informally with the Directors to discuss any 1ssues they may wish
toraise




The Company makes every effort to ascertain investor perceptions
of the Company and regular reports of investor and analysf feedback
are provided to the Board

During the year both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee had ongoing dialogue with
Shareholders in respect of Executive remuneration matters
Between September and November 2013 they conducted a

wide scale engagement with alarge number of the Company's
major inshtutional Shareholders (representing over 50% of the
Company s shares nissue) and governance bodies to hear their
views on the Group's proposed performance targets for both the
2012 and then forthcoming 2013 awards to the Executwe Directors
under the Performance Share Plan and proposed amendments to
the Company’s Executive Remuneration Policy presented in ine
with the new Directors Remuneration Regulations These meetings
were both supportive and construchive and the Board and the
Remuneration Committee were briefed on the feedback from the
above discussions The views expressed by Sharehalders were taken
into account when finalising executive remuneration arrangements
The Board were pleased with the overwhelming Shareholder support
gvenin favour of the resolutions at the 2014 AGM in respect of the
Group s remuneration policy and practice

In ine with the authonty given atits 2008 AGM the Company uses
its website and email as the primary means of communicafion with
its Shareholders Thus arrangement provides significant benefits for
Shareholders and the Company 1n terms of imeliness of information
reduced environmentalimpact and cost Shareholders may shill opt
to receive ther communicationsin a paper format The Company s
corporate website contains information for Shareholders including
share price information and news releases I can be found at

www thomascookgroup com

Risk management and mternal control

During the year there has been confinued progress made in the area
of nsk management and internal control This has beenledwith a
distinct tone from the top’ by the CEO and the Executive Committee
with the support of the Board and the Audit Committee Ahighly
expenenced and dedicated teamn of sk and audit professionals under
the leadership of Lee Bradley the Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit,
has driven a significant improvement agenda to support management
in this important area Furthermore, high calibre professionals have
also been recruited into the Group and Segment Finance Teams

50 1mprove cash managernent, forecashing and finanoial controls

and to dehver the Finance Transformarion

The Board recognises its ulhimate accountability for maintaining an
effective systemn of internal control and sk management that 1s
appropnate In relation to both the scope and the nature of the Group s
activifies and complies with the Turnbull Comaittee Guidance on the
UK Corporate Governance Code {the “Tumbull Guidance™) and has
approved the framework and the standards implemented

TheBoard s nsk appetite and the Group s approach to nsk management
1s mare fully described in the Risk management section
on pages b to 51
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Such asystem s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of
fallure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
but not absolute, assurance against matenal rissiaternent or loss

Review of system of mternal control

Dusing the year the Board through the work of the Audit Commitiee
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's system

of nternal cantrol There 1s anongoing process for the identification
and evaluation of risk management and internal control processes
which has been in place and sigrificantly improved throughout the
year and rernams in place up to the date of the financial statements
This includes the process by which management prepares
consolidated accounts The work conducted by managerment 1s
complemented supported and challenged by the controls assurance
work carried out independently by the external auditors, PwC, and
the Group Enterprise Risk and Audit function Regular reportson
contrel ssues are presented to the Audit Committee by the Director
of Enterpnse Risk and Audit The Board in reviewing the effectiveness
of the systern of internal control can confirm that necessary actions
have been cr are being taken to remedy any significant failings or
weaknesses dentified from rhat review

Going concern

After making appropriate enquires and taking into account the
matiers set out tn the Risk managemnent section on pages 48 and

51 the Directors have areasonable expeciahon that the Comnpany
and the Group have adequate resources fo continue in cperational
existence for the foreseeable future For thisreason they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

Internal control and nsk management inrelation to the
financial reporting process

The Group has a thorough assurance process in place in respect of the
preparation venfication and approval of penodic financial ceports
This process includes

> the involverment of qualified professional employees with an
appropnate level of expenence (both in Group Finance and
throughout the business)
> formal sign offs from appropriate business segment managing
directors and finance directors
» comprehensive review and, where appropriate, challenge from
key internal Group functions
> atransparent process to ensure full disclosure of nformanon
1o the external auditors Engagernent of a professional and
expenenced firm of external auditors
> oversight by the Group s Audit Committee involving (@mongst
other duties}
- adetaded review of key financial reporting judgements which
have been discussed by management
- review and where appropnate challenge on matters including
— the consistency of and any changes tc sigrnificant accounting
policies and practices durng the year
— sigmificant adjustrments resuliing from an external audit
- the going concern assumption, and
— the Company s statement cninternal canirol systerns, prior to
endorserment by the Board

Strategicreport —a
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Corporate governance report confinued

The above process, and the review by the Audit Committee of a
comprehensive note that sets out the details of the preparation,
internal venfication and approval process for the Annual Report

& Accounts provides comfort to the Board that the Annual Report
& Accounts taken as a whole 15 fair balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for Shareholders to assess
the Company's performance business model and strategy

Code of Conduct

The Group's Code of Conduct whichwas launched in 2013 sets out
the Group s Values Leadership behaviours and Ways of Working
—how we expect our employees to conduct themselves in therr
everyday working life |t covers areas such as behaviour towards
our custormers and our people health and safety, reputation
rmanagement, sustainable operation supplier relationships, anft
bribery conflicts of interest competttion law nsk management and
controls fraud theft and false accounting, IT securtty, share dealing
and our prohibition of political donahons The Code also includes
guidance to employees about therr responsibility to report problems
and i1ssues that come to therr attention and the alternative ways

of raising suchissues in escalating order —hine management, HR,
the ask-Harriet email facility which promotes feedback fromall
ernployees, and the Trustiine —see below

The Code of Conduct was issued to all emplayees in paper copy and
is also available on the Group’s infranet and website In addition the
Group Cormnpany Secretary is avallable for advice on any matter which
may give rise to cause for concern

The Code of Conduct 1s the comerstone of the Group s cultural
Transformation and to ensure It became fully embedded across

the Group every employee participated in a thorough fraiming
programme dunng 2013 To ensure the progress made 15 fully
sustainable and the Code remains embedded across the organisation
there 1s a robust process to ensure that all new employees receve
training as part of their inducrion programme and the Code will be
refreshed in 2015 and further training will be given to all emnployees
Inview of its iImportance to the Group training is measured through
local HR Departments and every employee has 1o confirm they have
recewed therr training and understand the Code in their annual and
half year performance and development reviews

The Board receives regular reports and monitors progress in this
impartant area

Code of Conduct process

Drafted through engagement with stakeholders Group-wide

Thorough training programme for aliemployees

Inclusion in Group wide survey and performance reviews
to confirm awareness

Ongoing monitonng

Further trainingin 2015

Whistleblowing

Asmentioned above the Code includes guidance to employees
about ther respansibility fo report problemns and 1ssues that come
tathew attention and also the alternative ways of raising such

issues Thisincluded a therough re launch of the independenily run
whistleblowing helpline re named the Trustline Detarls of the Trustine
are published in the Code of Conduct beoklet and also onthe Group s
intranet site Alsoincluded in the Code of Conducs were details of the
“ask-Harnet” email facity which allows every employee across the
Group to raise 1ssues or make suggestions for improvernent directly
with the CEO Significant issues brought to management's attention
through the Trusthine or “ask-Harniet email facility are reported to the
Audit Committee




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the Annual Report, the Directors’
remuneration report and the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,

the Directors’ remuneration report and the financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and regulations Company law
requires the Cirectors to prepare financial staternents for each
financiat year Underthat law the Directors have prepared the
Group and the Company financial staterments in accordance with
Infernational Financial Reparting Standards ( IFRSs”) as adepted by
the European Union The financial statements are required by law
to give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penied

In preparing those financial statrerments, the Directors are required fo

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

» make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, and

> state that the financial staternents comply with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union

The Directors confirm that they have comphed with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper acceunting records
that show and explain the Company’s fransactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Cormpany
and the Group, and for ensuring that the financial staternents and the
Directors remuneration repost comply with the Companies Act 2006
and asregards the Group financial statements, Arficle 4 of the |AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the
Company's website, and legistahon in the United Kingdom governing
the preparahon and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jJunsdictions
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Each of the Directors who were In office af the date of this report
whose names and responsibilihies are listed on pages 76 and 77,
confirmthat tothe best of theirknowledge

> the Group financial statements which have heen prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, iabilihes financial position and profit of the Group
and

> the Strategic and Directors’ report cantained on pages 1410 73
incdludes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group togefther with a descnphion
of the principal nisks and uncertainties that it faces

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors confirm that they consider the Annual Report &
Accounts, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for Shareholders fo assess
the Company’'s posihon and performance business model and
strategy In making this confirmanon the Directors 1ook into account
therr knowledge of the business which s kept up to date with
regular reports, updates and business reviews circulated priar to and
discussed ar each Board meeting, and supplemented by a vanety
of written reparts, verbal updates and presentanions (ncluding the
training and strategy support presentations detailed on page 81)
given at Board and Committee meehngs as well as & regular flow of
information about the business between meefings The Directors
then took info account the thorough preparation and verfication
process in respect of the Annual Report & Accounts which included
sufficent hme for the Directors to review the Annual Report &
Accounts and to feed in their comments o management before
approving the document

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Directors who held office at the dafe of approval of this
Directors’ report confirms that so far as he/she 1s aware there s

no relevant audit information of which the Company's audrtors are
unaware and thaf he/she has taken all steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director to make him/her aware of any relevant audit
informathion and to esfablish that the Company s auditors are aware
ofthat information

Share capital and related disclosures

Disclosures inrelation to the share capital of the Company including
the Company s major Sharehclders are given inthe “Other disclosures”
sectionon pages 111to 113

Strategicreport =
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Annual Statement by Chair of Remuneration Committee

Our approach to
remunerafion

Dear Shareholder,
| am pleased to present our report on Directors’ remuneration

My appointment as Chair of the Remuneration Committee coincided with
Sharehotders giving their support for our Remuneration Policy and report at our
AGM in February 2014, with votes in favour of 98 9% and 99 56% respectively

We are encouraged by this acknowledgement of the significant progress in the
Company’s performance and our positive, ongoing engagement with Shareholders

My colleagues and | on the Remuneration Committee intend fo continue to
operate a “best In class” approach to remuneration governance and Shareholder
engagement Our overriding objective is for our executives to be remunerated
within our pay for performance philosophy so as to promote the long-term success
of the Company

Our overriding objective

is for our execufives fo

be remunerated within

our pay for performance
philosophy so as fo promote
the long-ferm success Image removed
of the Company

Warren Tucker
Charrman of the Remuneration Committee




Our performancein FY14

We conhinue to make good progress as we deliver our Transformation
and profitable growth strategy Our achievernents agansi our targets
and key perforrnance indicaiors are shown on page ¢

Asdescribed on page 43 we have continued to build a peaple and
performance centred culture with our custorners at the heart of
everything we do o deliver in a sustainable way the Transformation
and profitable growth strategy This required having the nght people
in the nght roles focused on the nght prornties with the structure
and disaiphine described in the Thomas Cook Business System

We have delivered these achievements in the context of challenging
macro economic factors and a tough market for travel globally

Remuneration outcomes in FY14

Despire the achievernents outlined above and significant progress
against our strategrc KPls we have not met the two financial hurdles
the Commuttee required to be met in full before pay out could be
made against any Group Bonus Plan measure Consequently the
Commuttee has determined thar no payment will be made under

the Group Bonus Plan for FY 14 for any participant including Executive
Directors Although the Group Bonus Plan targets for FY14 are shll
considered to be commercially sensitive the targets for FY13 are
disclosed retrospectively on page 104

The performance conditions for the June 2012 PSP and COIP awards
have been met in full and accordingly the shares will vest injune 2015
The 2011 PSP and COIP awards lapsed as performance conditions
were not mef

Our targets and KP!s for our Transformation
and profitable growth strategy
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Alignment with our Transformation and
profitable growth strategy

In 2013 we developed and consutted widely on our Remuneration
Policy and the performance measures for the Performance

Share Plan which together with cur Group Bonus Plan fully align
executive reward with the goals of our ongoing Transformation

as demonstrated in the chart below

We do not propose any changes to our shareholder approved
Rernuneration Policy this year but have made sorme refinerments to
our practices inline with developing best practice In particular, we
have added a malus provision (clawback of unvested shares) for our
PSP consisrent with that atready in place for the Group Bonus Plan

Reflecting the views of our Shareholders

We will consult with our key Shareholders on the performance
measures and targets for our next award under the Performance
Share Plan, which we propose to grant in early 2015

We look forward to your support at the 2015 AGM and throughout
the year ahead

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow members of the Commuttee
and the peaple who have assisted us for their contnbuhion over the
past year

Warren Tucker
Chairman of the Rermunerahon Committee
25 Novernber 2014

How our remuneration is aligned with our Transformation and profitable
growth strategy

FY15 Target Group Bonus Plan FY15 Performance Share Plan

New product revenue >E700m'  Reflected asacore measure -

Web penetration »50%  Reflected as a core measure -

Cost out/profit improvernent >£500m'  Reflected in Group EBIT measure and Reflected in our Group EBIT core measure
CEO and CFO iole-specific objechves

Sales CAGR (three year) >35%  Role-specific objectives where appropriate -

Grass margin improvement >15% Reflected in Group EBIT and CEQ and CFO Reflected in our Group EBIT core measure

role specific objectives

UK underlying EBIT margin >5%  Role-speafic objechives where approprate -

Cash conversion >70%'  Reflected as a core measure Reflected as a core measure

for 2012 and 2013 awards

Share price performance N/A - Reflected as a core measure

Notes

1 Asdescrebed on page 104 three of the targers setout above have been sigmificantly increased since March 2013 whenthey were fist set and cormmunicated 1o the market {refiecnng the pace and

exient of progress inrespectof the continuing Transformation)
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Directors’ remuneratfion policy

This Policy report on pages 96 to 101 was approved by Shareholders at the Cornpany's Annual General Meeting held on 20 February 2015 with
98 9% of allvotes cast in favour Accardingly 1t had binding effect on the Company from that date As no changes have been made fo the policy
since Its approval by Shareholders 1t 1s not proposed to submut it to the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 23 February 2015
Although no changes have been made to the policy certain best practice refinements to how we operate the policy have been made which are
fully descrnibed in the Annual rernuneration report on pages 102 to 110 The Committee 1s satisfied that 1he refinements do not prowide for any

additional payments above that permitted by the appraved palicy are inline with best practice and are in the interests of Shareholders

Future policy table

Element

Purpase andlink fo sirategic objectives

Operation

Base salary » Provides fixed remuneranon for the role » Salanes are paid monthiy and are normally reviewed annualty
whichreflecrs the size and scope of the » Consideration 1s typically gnven 1o a range of factors induding
Executive Director s responsiilines — size and scope of the Executive Director sresponsibdihies
> Aftracts and retains the high cabbre talent - performance and expenence and
necessary lodeliver the business strategy - typical pay levels for comparable roles in comparies of a similar size and complexity
1n the relevant market
Retirement > To provide competitive post retiremnent benefits » Payment may be made errher into a pension scheme (for exarnple a defined contribution plan)
benefits or cash allowance equivalent or delivered as a cash allowance with Company contributions set as a percentage of basic salary
> Alracis and retains the high calibre ralent » Level of benefit s dependent upon seniornty
necessary fo deliver the business sirategy
Benefits > Ensures the overall package s compefitive » Prowision of a range of benefits by the Company Such benefits may include those currertly provided

> Altracts and retains the hugh calibre talent
necessary fo deliver the business strategy

to Executive Direcrors as disciosed on page 103 These arereviewed annually by the Committee fo
ensure that they provide a competitve package and faciltate the delivery of the business strategy
» The Company reserves the nght to deliver benefits ro Executwe Directors depending on their indwidual
crcumstances which may include housing travel education healthcare and other allowances
»Inthe case of non UK Execuhives the Commuitee may consider addinconal allowances intine with
standard practice

Annual bonus

> Energises and focuses management on ngorous
execution of Thomas Cook 5 strategy onan
annual basis

> Rewards annual performance against challenging
annual targets and key performance indicators
which are crihical to the realisation of our business
sirategy

> Compulsory deferralinto the Company sshares
provides alink to the creation of long term
suslainable value and alsoaretention element

» The claw back provision enables the Company
torrunigate nsk

> Measures and fargets are set annually and pay out levels are determined by the Committee after
the year end based on performance against those rargets

» The Comrritiee has full dscretion to amend the bonus pay out (Upwards or downwards) ifinirs
Jjudgement any farmulaic output dees not produce a fair result for ether the indvidual Executive
Dwector or the Cornpany faking account of the overall business performance or situation of
the Company

» Executive Directors must defer one third of ther annual bonus inio Company shares which then
vest hwoyears after the cash bonus payrment date subject 1e continued employment and claw back
prowsions but no addimonal per formance conditions Regarding the claw back provisions. unvested
share awards lapse in certain scenanies as described on page 98

» Good leaver terms are described inmare detal on page 99

» At the Commuttee sdiscretion Executive Dhrectors may receive the value of dividend equivalents duning
the holding peripd on the vested shares

Long term
share-based
incentive plan

» Energises and focuses management on ngerous
execuhon of Thomas Cook s strategy over the
longer term

» Rewards sustaned performance against
challenginglong term targets and key
performance indicators which are enhcal 1o
the realisanhon of our business strategy

» Long ferm performance targets and share based
rernuneration support the creation of long term
Shareholder value

» The current Performance Share Planwas approved by Shareholders in 2007 and s gaverned by

the rules of the plan A surmnmary of the key features 1s set out below

~ awards may be made in the form of condihional shares or options with vesting dependent upon
the achievernent of performance conditions set by the Committee Vesting of awardswill be subject
toa three year pecformance penod

- the Commirtee has full discrenon toamend the number of shares that vest (upwards or downwards)
ifin s judgement any formulaic output does not produce a fair result for either the individual
Executive Drrector or the Company taking account of the overall business parformance or situation
of the Company

—the award will lapse if the participant leaves empleyment before vesting unless in specific good
leaver arcumstances Good leaver terms are described inmore defal onpage 99

—the Committee may in the event of a vaniation of the Company s share capiial adjust or amend the
terms of the awards in accordance with the rules of the plan and

—1f the Company pays any dwidends in respect of record dates falhing inthe penod from the award
datetothevesting date the Committee may censider that the Executive should receve a payment
following delivery of the sharesin sahisfachion of hisaward the value of which is equivatent to the
cashvalue of the dvidends in respect of any shares that vest

Chawrmanand

Non-Executive

Director fees

> Ta reward ndmduals for fulfiling the relevant rale

> Attracts and retains individuals with the skiils
expenence and knowledge to cantnbute fo an
effective Board

» The Commuitee 1s responsible for defermiming the fees for the Chairman of the Company
The fees for the other Non Executive Diectors are set by the Board
> The fee structure may include
—abasic fee
- additional fees for charmanship of Board commuttees
—addimonal fees for further responsibilities (for example Semior Independent Direcrorship) and
—travel and hotel costs that are deemed tobe an employment benefit by the relevant tax authonty
may alscbe pad

The Comimittee reserves the nght 10 make any iemuneration or loss of othce payments (incuding the satisf xchion of any outstanding awards of vanable remunerahion made 10 Executive Diectors)
where the terms of rhal payment were agreed (1} pnor fo the approval of this policy under thewr onginal terms — fer these purposes the terms of ashare award are agreed at the imeats granted or
{i) at a hime where the iIndwidual was not a Directar of the Company andn the opinion of the Comimutfee the payrent was notin corsderanon for the indimdual becoming a Direcior of the Company
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Maximum opportunity

Performance metrics

»Lurrent salares are disclosed on page 103
> Increases may be made te salary levels in certain circumstances
asrequired forexample foreflect
—increase In scope of role or responsidility
—performancenrole and
—an Executive Director being moved to market posihoning over hime
> QOrdinanly salary increases will not exceed the average increase
awarded to other empioyaesin the Group

Performance thiough our perfarmance management processes 1sone of the key considerations
insetting and reviewing salary

> Current Company contribuhion rates are disclosed on page 103

> Sef al alevelwhich the Commutiee considers s appropniately posinioned
against cornparable roles in compames of a similar size and complexity
n the relevant market

None

» Benefits may include those currenvly provided ro Execunve Direcrors
asdisclosedon page 103 however the Commit tee reserves the nght
to provide such level of benefirs as it considers appropriate to support
the ongoing strategy of the Company

Nane

> For maximum performance
- 150% of salary

» The Cornmuittee will have regard to vartous perforrnance metrics {iwhich will be determined by
the Commuttee} measured over the relevant financial year when detarmiming bonuses

» Noless than 70% of rthe award 1s based on financial measures and up fo 30% of the award may
bebased anthe achieverment of rote specific objectives which may be finanaial or non financial

» For achievernent of a threshold performance level (the minimum level of performance that resulis

inany payrment] na more than 20% of the masamum for each elament of the bonws pays out
»Forachievernent of a mid performance level na more than 60% of the maxirmum for each
performance metric in relation to the bonus pays out
> Forachievernent ofa maximum’” perfarmance level 100% of the maximurm pays out

> Under the plan rules the aggregate value of all awards made within any
12 maenth pened must not exceed 200% of base salary {or such other
penod as the Comeittee may determine i exceptional arcumstances)

» The normal maximum face value of awardsis 150% of satary However
the Committee has a discretion to award up to the plan rules maamurn
when it believes the situation warrants a higher level of award

» The performance measures for the Performance Share Plan willbe a combination of financial
measures and share price based measures measured over ar least a three year performance
period Normally the weightings will be as foliows
—at least 50%will be based on financial measures
- at least 30% will be based onshare price based measures and
— theremaining 20% may be based erther on financial or share price based measures

» The Comnmuttee will deterrmine more specific performance measures for future awards as the
Company makes progress with its Transformanion cuning 2014 and will consult wath major
Shareholders ahead of the next award

» The performance measures may be adjusted following grant by the Committee to ensure a
consistent basis of calculation and re provide a fair reflechon of the Company s performance

» For achievernent of a “rhreshold  performance level (which s the minimum level of performance
that results in any part of an award vesting} no more than 30% of each respective element of
the award will vest

»Forachievernent of a maximurn” performance fevel {which 1s the highest level of performance
that results in any additional vesting} 100% of each respective element of the award waill vest

»MNormally there will be straight lne vesting for any performance level between threshold”
and “rnaximum

» The Committee may substitute vary or waive the performance targets if anevent occurs which
causes the Commuttee to consider that the target 1s nolonger appropriate

» Set at alevel which the Committee (or the Board as appropnale}
considers
—reflectsthe time commutment and contribution that is expected
from the Chairman and Mon Executive Directors and
- apprapriately posihoned against cormparable roles in companies
of asimilar size and complexity in the relevant market

None
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Directors’ remuneration policy confinued

Explanatory detail for future policy table
Changes made in the year

No changes have been made o the policy dunng the year

Explanation of chosen performance measures and the
target sethng process

Performance measures have been selected to reflect the fargers and
key performance indicators that are crihcal fo the realsanion of our
business strategy

Challenging performance targats are sef by the Committee each year
for the annual bonus plan and the PSP When setting these fargets
the Commirtee will take into account a number of different reference
ponts including the Company s business plan and consensus analyst
forecasts of the Company s performance Full vesting will only occur
far what the Committee considers to be strefching performance

Claw-back

As highlighted In the policy table, a dlaw-back arrangerment 1s 1n
place Under this arrangernent, the unvested deferred annual bonus
shares may lapse inwhole or in part if a claw-back event occurs,
which includes

> amatenal adverse missfaternent of the Company s
financial staterments

> the participant or their team having engaged in gross misconduct
ornconduct which resulted in significant losses as determined
by the Committee and/or

» the Company having suffered serious reputational darmage
as determined by the Cornmittee, as a result of any action faken
by the parficipant or histeam

Inaddition underthe PSP the Committee has discretion to amend
the final vesting level should any formulaic output not reflect the
overall business performance This discretion allows the Committee
todecrease or Increase the pay-out in the range of 0%-100% of the
number of shares awarded

Safary, pension and benefits are not subject to claw back

Policy for the remuneration of employees generally

Rermuneration arrangements are deterrminad throughout the Group
based on the same principle that reward should be achieved for
delivery of our business strategy and should be sufficent to attract
and retain high calibre talent without paying more than s necessary

Thomas Cook has operations based in a number of different
countries and at different levels of serwonty and though based on
the overarching principle above reward policies vary depending
upon these factors

Senior Execubves with a significant ability fo influence Company
results may participate in the annuat bonus ptan and the PSP

Approach to recruitment remuneration

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of new
Directors the Committee will apply the fallowing principles

» The package will be sufficient ro artract and reiain the high calibre
talent necessary to develop and deliver the business strategy

> The Commuttee will seek to ensure that no more is paid than
I5 necessary

> Inthe next Annual rermuneration report, the Committee will explan
to Sharehalders the rationale far the relevant arrangements and
if and when the transition to the policy described onpage %6
will occur

The following elernents may be considered by the Committee
for inclusior in a recrurtment package for an Executive Director
in addihan to the policy elements sef out in the Table on page 96

Elerment

Imtial long term
wcentive award

Approach

Aninihal long termincentive award may be made

which may be higher than the maximum PSP opportunity

assef ouf on page 96

The Cornrmittee will ensure

» The award s linked to the achievernent of appropriate
and challenging performance targets

> The award will be forfeited if the performance and
centinued employment condihions are not achieved

Inhal annual
bonus opportunity

The nihal annual bonus opportunity may be set higher than
the approved pohcy

The Commuttee will ensure the award is inked fa

the achuevement of appropriate and challenging
performance targets

Compensation for
forfeited awards

The terms of any campensation wil be deterrmined by
taking nfo account the terms of any forfeited awards
including

> Performance achieved or Iikely to be achieved

» The propornon of performance/vesting penad remaining
» The form and timing of the onginal award

Sign on awards In certan imited arcurnstances for example inorder to
compensate for atoss af a previous employer other than
for forfeited awards the Comrmttee may make a one off
sign onaward as pari of the Inimal package

The Commuttee retains the discretion to determine based
on the cireumsrances at the me whether this would be
incashor shares whether or not performance conditions
or anaddmaonal holding pensd would apply

The inmal notice penod may be langer than the Company s
six month policy (up to a maximum of 24 months)
However thiswall reduce by ome maonth for every month
served untll the Company s policy position is reached

Notice period

Relocationcosts Where necessary the Company wil pay appropriate
relacation costs 0 inewith standard practice The
Committee will seek to ensure that nc more s paid than

1S NeCessary

An enhanced inihal notice period sign-on awards or increased ininal
annual bonus or leng-terr incenhive award opporfunities would onfy
be made avallable in exceptional arcumsrances




Under the reporting regulations Thomas Cook isrequired to set
out the maximum amount of vanabie pay which could be paid to a
new Director in respect of their recruitment In order to provide the
Company with sufficient flexibility in a recruitment scenario the
Committee has set this figure as 500% of base salary This covers
the maximum annual bonus and the maximum face value of any
long-term incentive awards

This level of vanable pay would only be avallable inexceptional
arcurnstances, and in order fo achieve such a level of vanable pay
stretching targets would need 1o be met over both ane year (for
the annual bonus) and at least three year (for fong term incentive)
performance penods

Forindwiduals becorning Executive Directors as a result of an internal
pramotion from within Thornas Cook or as a result of an acquisition
any awards under other arrangements which were made prior to
Jjoning the Board may be allowed to confinue under the onginal terms,
orunder arevised basis {(such as a roll over into Thomas Cook shares}
if the Committee determines appropriate

Fee levels for a new Chairman or new Non-Execufive Directors will be
determined in accardance with the policy set out in the future policy
table on page 96
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Service contracts andloss of office payments
Executive Directors

Executive Directors have Company service contracts For Harriet Green
and Michael Healy, the service contracts provide for a six-month notice
penod, from both the Company and the Executive Director

If the Company terminares the employment of the Executive Director
withimmediate effect a payment nlieu of notice may be made
This may include base salary pension and benefits

Outstanding awards under the performance-linked elemments of the
package will normally lapse f an executve leaves the Cornpany before
the payment or vesting date However, In “good leaver™ scenarios
these may vest

This may include

> If the participant leaves during the annual bonus performance
year and before the payment date a bonus payment inrespect
of the year may be made pro-rated tarefiect the portion
of the performance year elapsed andwith reference to
perfarmance achieved

> [fthe particpant leaves before the end of the holding penod
any unvested deferred bonus shares may vest

> Outstanding urwested awards under the PSP vest to the extent
determined by the Commuttee taking into account the period of
tune the individual has held the award and performance achiever
aganst any relevant performance fargets

For reference “good leaver’ scenanos include death disability injury
il health, redundancy, retirement the award holder s employing
company or business being sold aut of the Group, or any other reason
that the Committee defermines appropriate

Other than in the “good leaver™ scenarios described no pay outs will
be made under performance inked elements

Any “good leaver” awards may vest or be paid cut immediately upon
termination or in ine with the onginal vesting or payment date at the
discrehion of the Committee

Awards granted under the PSP shall lapse at the hime of cessation of
employrment unless the Committee has used its discretion to deermn
fthat anindividual 1s 8 “good leaver’ when the Committee has the
discretion to determine when awards vest and if relevant when they
may be exercised Awards structured as ophons shallbe exercisable
for a period of six manths (or 12 months n the case of death}) from
vesting unless the Commuttee deterrmines any other penod should
apply Awards may also vest early (fthe participant smoved toa
country where therr capacity to hold the award or deai in shares would
be restricted or they would suffer a tax disadvantage in connection
with the award

Inthe event of a takeover or winding-up of the Cornpany (other than
as part of an internal reorganisation of the Thomas Cook Group)

PSP awards may also vest to the extent deterrmined by the
Committee faking into account the period elapsed since grant

and the performance achieved against any relevant performance
targets The awards may also be ‘rolled over info new shares of an
acquInng company

StrategiC report =
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Directors’ remuneration policy confinued

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Exacutive Directors, including the Chairman are appointed
pursuant to aletter of appointment The notice pericd for the
Charman s three months, and one month for the other Non
Executive Directors Afl Non Executive Directors are subject to
annual re election by sharehalders at the AGM The Non-Executive
Directors’ letters of appointment continue unhil the date stated in
therr appointment letter unless they are terminated for cause, or
on the notice period stated or f they are not re-elected at the AGM
The Directors service confracts and fetters of appointment are kept
for nspection by Shareholders at the Company's registered office

Outside appointments

The Company recognises the benefits 1o the ndividual and to the
Group of Executive Directors taking on external sppointments as

Non Executive Directors Subject to the approval of the Cornmittee an
Executive Director may accept such appointments at other companies
or other similar advisory or consultative roles The Committee has set
alimit of one external appointment for each Executive Directer toone
FTSE 100 or 250 company or an infernational company of a similar
size unless there 1s justification for a further appaintment The Board
will review the ime commitment of all outside appointments and
ensure that it is satisfied that this will not negatively impact upon

the Executive’s time commutment to the performance of Thormas
Cook duties

The Committee may allow Executive Directors fo retain ary
fees payable

Statement of consideration of conditions
elsewhere in the Company

When setting the policy for Directars remuneration the Committee
has regard to the pay and employment conditions elsewhere within
the Group This includes consideration of

> Salary increases for the general employee population

> Qverall spend on annual bonus

> Parhicpation levels in the annual bonus and any long-term incentives
» Company wide benefit (including pension) offenngs

> Any other relevant factors as determined by the Committee

In order to take into account the views of the general employee
population when formulating Director pay policy the Committee may
review informatien provided by the HR funchien and feechack from
ernployee engagement surveys

Statement of consideration of Shareholder views

The Company 1s committed to ongoing engagerment and seeks major
Shareholder views in agvance of proposing significant changes to its
remuneratien policies

The following describes the 2013 consultation

> Inresponse to the adwisory Shareholder vote on the Directors
remuneration report at the 2013 AGM the Chairman of the Board
met with major Shareholders to discuss the issues raised by them

> In addition, after the announcement of the Company s new strategy
in March 2013 the Chairman of the Board and the Remuneraiion
Commuttee chairrman met with major Sharehelders, representing
cumulatively over 50% of the Company’s share capitalin June
and July 2013 to discuss the approach to perforrnance conditions
for the September 2012 and September 2013 PSP awards
and fo present the Rermmuneration Policy set out under the then
draft rewised (hrectors Remuneration Report Regulanons, which
included the increased annual bonus deferral and the intreduction
of shareholding requirements At these meetings soundings
were taken inrespeci of Executive Director base pay rises

> Subsequent follow up consultanon was carmed out duning
Septernber, October and Novermnber

We were pleased with the level of engagernent from our Shareholders
and the positive supporfive and constructive feedback we received
onaur proposals Views from all Shareholder meetings were taken
into considerahonwhen formulating Executive remuneration pohcy
An example of how Shareholders' views were taken into account was
that the Committee decided to amend the share-price measurement
basis tobe inline with Shareholder requiremments
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lllustrative performance scenarios
As at 20 February 2014 whenthis policy was approved by shareholders
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Graph removed Graph removed
The charts show the level of remuneration that would be received by the Directors abave in accordance with the Directors remuneration pohcy
i the first financial year it apples (e financial year FY14 as at date of AGM approval} The charts show three scenanos {a) base salary benefits
and pension, (b) mid and () maximum
In developing the scenarios the following assumptions have been made
Basesalary, Based on what an Executive Director would receve if performance was in line with the following scenano
:ﬁ:e?:s.on Only total fived pay s recerved e base satary, benefits and pension This is calculated as follows
p » Base salary as at 20 February 2014, when this policy was approved by shareholders
» Benefits measured at benefits in single figure table inthe FY13 report when this palicy was approved by shareholders
» Pension measured by applying cash nlieu rate against base salary as at 20 February 2014
Base Benefits Pension Total fixed
CEO £680 000 £186 000 £204 000 £1 070000
CFO £500000 £22000 £125,000 £647000
Mid Based on what an Executive Director would receve if performance was in line the Company’s expectanons
which would result n the following scenano
> Annual bonus pays out at 60% of maximum for mid performance
> A PSP award with a face value of 150% (n line with the ‘normal grant policy) pays out 30% of maximum
being threshold level of veshing
Maximum Based an what an Executive Director would receive If performance was in ine with the following scenanio

» Full pay out of annual bonus 1e 150% of salary

» APSP award with a face value of 200% (in line with the maximum ' passible award under the plan rules) pays out
atr 100% of maximum

Ngte

As required by the regulahions Performance Share Plan awards {and amountsincluded within the bonus which have been deferred into shares) are set oul at face value withno share price
growth assumphions

Financial statements (N
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Annual remuneration report

The Remuneration Committee presentsits Annual Report on
Drractors’ remuneration which 1s set out below

Consideration by the Directors of matters
relating to Directors’ remuneration

The following Directors were members of the Remuneration
Comrnittee when matters relating to the Directors’ rernuneration
for the year were considered

> Warren Tucker (Chair and member since 20 February 2014)
> Roger Burnell (Chair and member until 20 February 2014)

> Dawn Arey

> Annet Ans (from 1 July 2014)

» Martine Verluyten {unhl 17 March 2014)

> Emre Berkin

> Carl Symon (from 17 March 2014)

The Commuitiee invites Indiwviduals to attend meetings as it deems
beneficial to assist it in reviewing matters for consideration Dunng the
year, these indwiduals included Frank Meysman (Chairman) Harnet
Green (Chief Executive Officer) Peter Marks (Non-Executive Director),
Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsel), Sandra Carpopiano {(Chief
Peaple Officer) ludith Mackenzie (Graup Head of Reward and
Performance) and Derek Woodward (Group Company Secretary)
Martine Verluyren, Warren Tucker and Carl Symon are also members
of the Audit Commmittee and, as such ensure there is coordination
inrespect of nisk and accounting 1ssues

No Director or senior executive is present at meetings when their
own remunerahion arrangements are discussed

Single figure of total remuneration

External advisers

Deloitte LLP were formally appointed as advisers by the Commutiee
following a competifive tender processinJune 2012 They were
appoinfed specifically to provide the Cornmittee with objective and
ndependent advice on executive remuneration matters Deloitte s
one of the feunding members of the Remuneration Consultants
Code of Conduct and adheres to this Cade in its dealings with the
Committee The Commirtee is satisfied that the advice prowded

by Deloitte 1s obyective and independent The Commuttee s also
comfortable that the Deloifte engagernent partner and team

that provide rernuneration advice to the Commuittee do not have
connections with Thomas Cook that may imparr their ndependence
Total fees paid to Deloit te in relation to advice to the Committee
amounted 1o £76 050 (charged on a ime plus expenses basis)
Other prachices of Deloitte separate from the executive rernuneration
prachice, have provided consuling services inrelation to systems and
organisational design projects and general tax and corporate finance
advice to the Company dunng the year

During the year Alithos provided assistance to the Committee
regarding the calculation of tetal Shareholder return, for which

the rotal fees were £7 200 (based on the number of awards for
whuch calculations were performed and the reports produced)
Althos was selected by the Company as a service provider and the
Commuttee s sahisfied that the advice 1s independent and chjective
Alithos prowided no other services fo the Company

The following table sets cut the single figure of toral remuneration for Directors for the financial years ending 30 September 2013 and 2014

Salary/fees Benefits Group Bonus PMan P5p Pension Total
£'000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
FY14 FY13 FY14 FY13 FY14 FY13 FY1u F¥13 FY14 FY13 FY14 FY13
Executive Drectors
Harnet Green 687 680 153 186 1785 - - 206 204 1,046 2 855
Michael Healy 505 L80 24 22 720 - - 126 120 655 1342
Non Executive Directors
Frank Meysman 215 275 u1 38 - - - - - 316 313
Dawn Arrey 60 60 - - - - - - - 60 &0
Annet Ans' 15 - - - - - - - - 15 -
Emre Berkin 66 55 -~ - - - - - - 66 55
Carl Symon? 1] - - - - - - - - 66 -
Warren Tuckes® T2 — - - - - - - - 72 -
Marhne Verluyten 80 80 - ~ - - - - - 80 80
Past Non Executive Directors
Roger Burnell* 3 80 - - - - - - - 31 80
Peler Marks® 29 70 - - - - - - - 29 70
Notes

T Annet Arswas apponted 1o the Board with effect from 1july 2014

2 Carl Syman was apponted fo the Boarg vath effect from 3 October 2013

3 Waoren Tucker was sppointed 1o the Board with effec! from 3 Gorober 2013
4 Roger Burnellretred from the Boardon 20 February 2014

5 Peter Marks retived from the Board an 20 February 2014




Additional disclosures

Further information in respect of the salary benefits pension
annual bonus and PSP amounts included in the previous table are
given below

Salary

The table below shows Harnet Green and Michael Healy s salanes
dunng FY14

Salaryat
Salacy at 30 September 2014 Percentage
10October 2013  (effective 1 April 2014) increase
Harrier Green £680 000 £694L 280 21%
Michael Healy £500 000 £510 000 2 0%

The Committee s approach to base pay rises for the CEQ and CFO
was clearly set out inthe 2013 rernuneration report

Harriet Green

Asdisclosed in the 2013 remuneration report the Committee believed
the leadership wision and excephonal achievemnents delivered by the
CEO justified a salary increase in 2013 however, both the Committee
and Harret Green were mindful of the wider pay context, and they
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shared the view that it would have been inappropriate fo award a
salary increasein 2013 Instead the Comrmittee decided to recognise
her performance and continued significant futurercle with a
maximum PSP award of 200% in Seprember 2013

Duning the course of 2014 as pari of the Group-wide Annual Salary
Review the CEC was given a base pay rise of 2 1% with effect from

1 April 2014 As shown on page 107, this compares with a 2 74%
average pay nse for UK empioyees in the same review period

Michael Healy

As disclosed in the 2013 Annual Report, Michael Healy s base salary
was increased from £480,000C to £500,000 (4 2%) with effect from
1 October 2013 Thisincrease reflected the exceptional performance
delivered by Michael Healy throughout the year his continued and
significant role in the future and inhis case, internal relativities with
other senicr executives

In Apnl 2014, as part of the Group-wide Arnnual Salary Review

the Committee increased Michael's salary by 2% (from £500 000
1o £510 000) providing recognition and retention, in line with

the average increase awarded to other employees in the Group,
as shown on table on page 107

Benefits
The following table sets out the benefits receved and the tax paid by the Company in respect of certain benefits
Taxon

Car Private Life Income  Ace dation acc dat Travel Taxon Y14 FY13
Name allowance medical assurance protection costs costs costs fravelcosts Total Total
3 £ 3 £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Harniet Green’ 15000 1887 1416 2906 41 894 34277 26736 21875 152991 185 767
Michael Healy 20000 1887 G943 - - - 212 664 24306 22 489
Frank Meysman’ - - — — 14 B93 12185 14038 - 41116 37794

Harriet Graen recerved provision of accommadahion in London and travel costs rembursed by the Company and includes the ncome tax assessed by HWRC as payable an accommadation and travel

slements Of thebenefts disciosed for Harrlet Green circa £6% 000 net relate o accornmeodation and ravel costs which are considered necessary due 1o late and early meetings necessitated by the scale
and pace of aur ambitious Transformahon The overall benefits igure for Harriet Green for FY 14 has reduced by 17 6% from FY 13 which includes a redugtion in hotel costs (31% year on year reduchon)

and removal of the £20 000 car allowance for Harrel Green from 1]uly 2014 enwards

]

The figure discloser for Frank Meysman isin respect of accommaodanon m Londen and travel costs rembursed by the Company and the income tax assessed by HMRC as payable on the L ondon

accommadatienelement Frank Meysman s fravel expenses between Belgum and the UK are not taxable as heisdomiciled in Belgiumand s enfitled to a speaific deduction under HMRC rules

Other than noted above income fax and employees NI is not paid by the Company on any other elements of the benefits receved by

Harriet Green, Michael Healy and Frank Meysman

Pensions

The Company contnbutes for each of the Executive Directors

into either a pension scheme or as a cash allowance an amount
equivalent to 30% and 25% of annual base salary for the CEO and
CFO, respectively Currently both Harnet Green and Michael Healy
receve their pension confnicutions as Cash allowances

Group Bonus Plan

FY14 Group Bonus Plan

Far the year the maximum Group Bonus Plan award opportunity for
both the CEQ and CFO was 150% of salary, one-third of which would
be deferred into shares for two years subject to malus {claw-back
before the vesting date) as described on page 108

The Group Bonus Plan for FY 14 had the following measures, which
were selected 1o reflect the strategic and Transformational objectives
of the Group

Harniet Michael

Measures Weighting Green Healy
Group EBIT 25% v v
Group cash conversion 25% v
Core measures
Web rargets 0% v v
New product revenue 10% v v
Group cost out 10% v v
Role specificstrategic Group gross margin 10% 4 v
objectives

Organisation people
and strategy 10%

<
<

As described in this Annual Repori Thomas Cook has made good
progress in FY14 In line with our pay for performance philosaphy

the Group Bonus Plan performance targets set at the start of the year
which are Iisted in the rable above were strefching and reflected our
ambition for FY14 Included within those targets the Committee
also set two financial hurdles which were both required to be mer

in full before pay-out could be made against any measure

Strategic report =

Governance IJ

Financial statements (N



’t O l4 Thamas Cook Group plc Annual Repart & Accounts 2014

Transformation Year 7

Annual remuneration report continued

The financial hurdles for the FY 14 Group Bonus Plan were Group be made under the Group Bonus Plan for FY 14 for Executive Directors
underlying EBIT and Cash Conversion InFY14 Group underlying EBIT desprte their strong performance to deliver good results in a difficult year
was £ 323 millien and Cash Conversion for incentive purposes was 40%
Cash Conversion for Incentive purposes excludes the benefit of ner
disposal proceeds of £78 milion with arrcraft maintenance cash flows

of £35 million being deducted The basis of calculating our reported

Cash Conversion, whichimproved from 48% to 62% in FY 14 1s explained
inthefable onpage 57

The actuat performance targets set at the beginring of the performance
penod are not drsclosed as we consider that they remain commercially
sensitve af this hme We will disclose these targets (including the financial
hurdles) af such point that the Committee considers they are no longer
commercially sensitive

FY13 Group Bonus Plan

Inrespect of the payments made under the Group Bonus Plan for FY13,
we have sef out below refrospective disclosure of performance against
targets, nline with our Cormmitments to Shareholders, as the Committee

Despite these achievernents and significant progress against our
strategicKPIs the FY14 outcormnes described above were below the
financial hurdle levels set at the beginning of the penod

Consequently the Commiftee has determined that no payrment will considers these are no longer commercially sensisive
Group CEQ
Resulting level
Weight of award Comparnisonto FY12
Measures {asa%ofmaxaward} FY13 targets and actual performance achieved (% max opportunity) performance
Financial  Group free cash flow 15% » The £53m achieved exceeded the maximum target of £37m 100% £(103)m
Group underlying EBIT' 10% > The £263m achieved exceeded the mammum farget of £256m 100% 68 48% improvement
UK underlying ERIT 10% » The £65m achieved met the maximurn target of £65m 100%  413%improvement
Internal savings 10% > Maxamum target toidentify cost out of £200m (by end of §2) and realise 100% n/a
£15m by year end
» Savingsof £250mannouncedtothemarket at half year and £70m realised FY13
External funding 15% = £1 bnrefinancng plan successfully executed in June 2013 100% n/a
Management information Reporting 5% » Significant improvements delivered bethin quality of reporting and iming 100% n/a
Strategic and people 35% > Performance judged excepticnal against targets set 100% n/a

» Highhights include successful approval and launch of the new strategy
crifical new leadership appointments andsignificant mprovermenrs
ninternal and external communication and effective ways of working

GroupCFQ
Resulting level
Waeight of award ComparisontoFY12
Measures (asa%of maxaward) FY13targdetsand actual performance achieved (% max opportunity) performance
financial Group free cash flow 35% »The £53machieved exceeded the masmumitarget of £37m 100% £(103}m
Group underlying EBIT' 35% = The £263m achieved exceeded the maxmum target of £256m 100% 68 4B% mprovement
UKunderlyng EBIT 3% »The £65machieved met the maximum target of £65m 100%  413% mprovement
Internal savings 45% »Maxmum target toidentify cost out of £200m (by end of Q2) and realise 100% nfa
£15m by year end
» Savingsof £ 250mannounced fo the market at half year and £70m realised FY13
External funding 9% = £1 6bnrefinancing plan successfully executed inJune 2013 100% nfa
Management Informanion Reporting 15% > Significant improvements delivered beth inquality of reporting and irning 100% n/a
Strategic financial and people 12% = Performance judged exceptional aganst targefs set 100% nfa
> Highhights include leading the successful capital refinancing in May 2013
and continuous improvement of Group Finance processes
Notes

3 Group underlying EBIT performance of £26 3 mmullior for FY 13 resulted in 180% achievement of the bonus stretch target In addiien the Remuneration Committee made anadjustment tathe FY13 actual
performance and bonus targets fonclude the resulis of the Morth American business for the perioad pror to dispesalinFY 13 Although ths calculation reduced actual performance and increased the bonus
target as the North Amencan business matle losses prior fo disposalwhile iwas budgeted fo be profitable the result showed that 100% of the strerch rarget would stll have been actieved

Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) awards Payments within the reporting year to past Directors,

and loss of office payments

There are no pay-outsin respect of the PSP as no awards made fo

the Executive Directors have yet reached their veshing dares There were no payments fe past Directars whowere not in position
asa Director at the fime a relevant payment was accrued There were
Scheme interests awarded duning the financial year also no loss of office payments made within the year

No Performance Share Plan awards were rmade duning the year,

as the next award date s scheduled for early 2015 Current Executive Director service confracts

The dates of the service contracts for Harnet Green and Michael Healy
In March 2014 Group Bonus Plan deferred shares were awarded to are 23 May 2012 and 8 May 2012 The service contracts are available
hoth Harriet reen and Michael Healy in respect of the FY13 Group forinspechon at the Company s registered office
Bonus Plan payment

Full details of the scheme inferests held by Executive Directors are setout
onpage 109




Non-Executive Directors
The Chairman 1s paid a single, consohdated fee of £275 000

The Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee plus additional fees
for chawrnanship of Board Committees

The annual rates of Non-Executive Director fees are shown in the
table below

Positlon Annual fees £'000
Non Execuhve Director 60
Addinonal fee for the Chairman of the Audit

Committee 20
Additionat fee for the Chairman of the

Remuneration Committee 20
Addihonal fee for the Senior Independent

Director 10

Addinanal fee for the Chairman of

the Health Safety and Environmental

Comrmltee 10
Note Fee rares were reviewed during the year and following a benchmarking exerase were

lefr unchanged

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has been appointed pursuant
to a letter of appointment, which are available for nspection at the
Company’s registered office The appointments under these letters
conhnue until the expiry dates set out below uniess termmated for
cause or on the period of notice stated below

Date of latest leter of

Director appointment Expiry date Notice penod
Frank Meysman 27 March 2013 N/A 3 manths
Dawn Arrey 27 March 2003 11 Aprl 2016 1month
Annet Ans 30 Apnl 2014 30 June 2017 1 month
Emre Berkin 27 March 2013 300crober 2015 1 manth
Carl Symon 3 October 2013 2Qctaber 2016 1 month
Warren Tucker 3 Qciober 2013 2Q0ctober 2016 1 manth
Martine Verluyten 8May 2014 7 May 2007 1 month
External Appointments

As set out in the Policy report the Cormpany recogaises the benefits of
Executive Directors taking on external appointments as Non-Exacutve
Directors subject fo the imitations sef out inthe Palicy report and fo
Comrmuttee approvai

Harret Green s a non-executive director of BAE Systems plc and
Emerson Electric Co Bothroles were held prios to her appointment as
CEQ On her appointment the Board agreed that she should continue
toserve on both boards being sahsfied that she will devote sufficient
time and energy to the Company and that being a non-executive
director 15 a mutual penefit fo the executive and the Company For the
period from 1 Octaber 2013 until 30 September 2014 she received
feesof £84 000 and $107,000 respectively, which she is allowed to
retain She was also granted 1,964 Emerson restricted stock unitsin
the year (with a value at the date of the award of $125 000) which
may not be sold until the restrichons lapse The restrictions are
currently expected to lapse in February 2035
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Performance graphs
Performance of market capitalisation since 31 July 2012

The graph set out below shows the increase in the Company ssfock
market capitalisation dunng our ongoing Transformation in the
period 31 July 2012 to 24 Novernber 2014 (the peniod between the
appointment of Harriet Green as CEO and the date of sigming this
Annual Report)

Graph removed

TSR performance since 31 July 2012

The graph set out below shows the Total Sharehotder Return

(‘TSR" descrnbedin more detall further below) for holders of

Thomas Cook Group plc duning our ongotng Transformation from

31 July 2012 to 24 Novernber 2014 (the penod between the
appointment of Harnet Green as CEQ and the date of signing the
Annual Report) based onastarting value of £100 invested compared
tothe FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Lejsure Index

Graph removed
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Annual remuneration report continued

Statutory graph

The graph belaw shows the TSR for holders of Thornas Cook Group plc €0 10 Ordinary Shares (€0 01 Ordinary Shares from 3 June 2013) for the
six year period since 30 Septernber 2008 measured aganst the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure Index These indices
were chosen as relevant comparators as the Company 1s a rnember of both indices, wath ore reflecting a broad equity index and the other
being specific fo the fravel sector The calculation of TSR s 1in accordance with the relevant remuneration regulahions and 1s broadly the change
in market price fogether with reinvestrnent of dividend income  This graph shows the value of £100 invested in Thamas Cook Group plc en

30 Septernber 2G08 compared with the value of £100invested in the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Lersure Index

The intermediate points are the values at the Cormpany's financial year-ends

Graph removed

CED FY09 FY10 Y1 FY 12 FY13 A4L]

CEO Single figure Harriet Green' - - - £717000 £2 855000 £1 046000

afremuneratian Sam Wethagen? - _ £153 000 £1171 000 _ -

Manny Fontenla-Novoa® £2996 000 £2 322000 £2175000" - — -

Gioup Bonus Planpay out Harmet Green - — - Seenole S 100% %

{as % maxiImum opportunity) SamWeihagen _ _ 0% 3% — ”

Manny Fontenla-Novoa 6% 80% 0% - - -

PSPveshing Harnet Green - - - Seenote b Seenofe & Seenote b

{as % of maxmum Sam Welhagen - - 0% 0% - -
opportunity)

Manny Fontenla Novoa 67 5% 0% 0% - - —

The table above shows the prescribed remuneration dafa (as shownin the left hand side calurn) for the Cirector(s) undertaking the role
of Chief Executive Officer duning each of the last five financial years

Notes

1 Harniet Green was apponted CEQ on 50 July 2012

2 SamWeihagen was apponted CEO on 3 August 2011 and remamed in post until the appointment of Harnel Green

3 Manny Fontenia Nevoa stepped down as CEQ on 2 August 2011 .

4 The single figure for Y11 for Manny Fonlenls Novod includes his rermination payrment whichwas atotal of £1 166 639 (in1espect of contractual entitlerients to base salary pension ellowance
and benefits inlieu of nonce)

5 No GroupBonus Plan targetswere sefin respect ofthe two month penod between Harniet Green s appointment inJuly 2012 and the Seprember 2012 year end
6 Therewas no PSP award veshng inFY12 FY13 and FY14 as none of Harriet Green s awards had et reached the end of therr performance penods




Percentage change in remuneration of
Chief Executive Officer

The table below sets out the percentage change in the remuneration
of the CEOQ It also sefs out the percentage change in the remuneratian
other employees in the Group A peer group of UK-based employees
has been selected (excluding any employees whose pay 15 subject to
long-term collective agreements) We have selected this peer group as
the Chief Executive Officer 1s UK-based and therefore pay mavernent
In this peer group s subject to similar external pressures We have
excluded employees subject tolong term collective agreements

for the same reascn in order to ensure that the comparnson 1sona
like-for like basis, we have excluded any new hires or prornotions

% change n remunerahion from FY13 to FY14

% changein % change in % change in
basesalary benefits annual bonus
o 2 1% ~17 6%? -100%
UK based employees 274% 0% —100%"

Notes

1 Detalls of theincrease made in FY 14 te Harret Green s salary are set out on page 103
Harriat Green s salary rema:ns at a lower level than her predecessors Sam Wehagen and
Manny Fontenla Novoa Then respective salary rates are shown below

{EO Salaryrate per annum (£)
Harnet Green 694 280
Sam Weihagen (3 August 2011 to 30/uly 2012) 750 000
Manny Fonterda Novoa (fo 2 August 2011) 850000

2 Thereduchonin Hamet Green s benefits s descnbed on page 103

3 The main taxable benefts provided 1o UK based employees are private medical insurance
and car allowance dependent upon senionty There has beenne change inthe Policy level of
benefits provided

i In arder to provide the most direct cormpansen possible the Cormmirtee considers a focuson all
employees participabing n the Group Bonus Planis appropriate as the performance targets have a

Group focus similar tothe performance targetsin place for Harnet Green Assetouton page 102

as the twa financial hurdles under the Group Bonws Plan were notmet no pay outwas made under
this plan

Relative importance of spend on pay

The chart below displays the relative expenditure of the Company on
various matters asrequired (in the case of Group employees’ pay and
shareholder distributions) by the relevant Regulanions

Graph removed

Group underlying EBIT s shown above as this 1s a key performance
indicator for the Cornpany Overall Director pay has also been included,
to give an indication of its context compared to cverall ernployee pay
The figures shown in the table are extracted from the Group's financial
statements The amounts for Group employees’ pay and Directors’
pay both include employer social security payments
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Statement of implementation of remuneration
policy in the following financial year

Group Bonus Plan measures and weightings - FY15

Maximum oppertunity for Executive Directors will be 150% of salary
In hne with our Policy at least 70% of the Group Bonus Plan will be
linked to the achievement of financial measures and 30% wilibe
linked to role-specific strategic objectives For FY15, the measures will
be as follows

Weighting % overall
Measures opportumty CEQ CFO
Group EBIT 25% v v
Group cash
C CONVETSION 25% v v
ore measures
Web targefs 10% v v
New praduct
revenue 10% v v
Croup costout 10% v v
Role specific Qroup gross margin 10% v v
strategic objectives Organisation
people and strategy 10% v v

Before any payment can be made under any element of this plan
Group cash conversion and Group EBIT hurdles must be met

The performanca meagureg ahove were selacted fo reflect the
strategic and transformational objectives of the Group Along with
the Performance Share Plan targets, these measures create full
alignment of our reward with cur Transformation fargets and KPls
asdemonstrated on page 95 Qurtargetswill be set on a fixed
currency basis at the beginming of the performance period

The Committee cansiders that the targefs are commercially sensitive
so these have nat been disclosed We will disclose these targets

at such paint that the Committee considers they are no longer
cormmercially sensitive

The Committee considers it 1s imporfant that all seniar executives
share in the same strategic targets and KPIs that will focus Thomas
Cook on defivery and success The Group Bonus Plan described above
(with 70% focus on core measures” which are consistent for all
participants and 30% on role-specific” strategic objectives) 1sin
place for the Executive Directors and other senior executives with
responsibility for delivering our Transformation

Strategic report =
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Performance Share Plan

The Committee will grant the next award under the PSP for Execufive
Directors inearly 2015 We wili consult with our key Shareholders
onthe perfarmance measures and rargets {(Unless commercilly
sensitive) and will disclose these inthe RNS announcement af the
time of grant, as well as in our 2015 annual remuneration report

Best practice refinements

Certain best practice refinements in how we operate our Policy
have been agreed dunng FY 14 as set out below

> From the awardsin early 2015 PSP awards made fo Executive
Directors will be subject to claw back on unvested shares
{ie amalus prowision) i ne with the approach taken for
the Group Bonus Plan deferred shares Thiswill be enacted
in the following scenarios
— There has been a matenal adverse misstatement or
misrepresentation of the Company’s financial staternents or
of the results of any member of the Group or part thereof

— The parficipant (or fus/her teamy, in the Board s opinion
has engaged in gross misconduct and/or

— Any member of the Group or part thereof has suffered serious
reputational damage or financial downturn, as determined
by the Board as aresult of any achon taken by the Participant
(or hus/her tearn)

» Thomas Cook does not have claw-back on shares vested or
payments made The Committee will continue fo morutor market
developments on this matter

» 2015 PSP awards and from March 2014, Group Bonus Plan deferred
share awards will lapse if an executive gives or recewves notice of
termination of employment with the Cormpany (rather than lapsing
upon terminahion of employment as for previous awards)

Directors’ share and share planinterests

The following tables show the interests of the Directors in the shares
of the Company as follows

» shares held beneficially

» shares held as part of the deferred bonus arrangements and

> share plan interests (under the Performance Share Plan) held by
the Executive Directors

Total beneficial holdings of the Directors

The beneficial nterests of Directors in the shares of the Company are
Isted below
Beneficialholdings

{Number of shares as at
30September 2014}

Current Directors

Harriet Green 732700
Michael Healy 4371
Frank Meysman 420000
Dawn Airey 42000
Annet Aris -
Ermre Berkin -
Carl Symon 45000
Warren Tucker 30800
Martine Verluyten 165000
Past Non Executive Directors

Roger Burnell 271169
Peter Marks 145051
Notes

All share interests shown above were unchanged as at 25 November 2014

The shares shownin the benefioal holdings fable above were acquired by the Lirectors using

then own funds and nof Ihrough vested share awards with the exceplion of 5 753 shareswhich
Michael Healy acquired froma vested Group Bonus Plan deferred share award in March 2014

Shareholding guidelines

Executive Directors are required o hold the Company s shares to the
value of 100% of base salary under the Thomas Cook shareholding
guidelines operating policy

Executive Directors are allowed a bulld up period which ends after
sufficient awaeds under the PSP have vested fo provide shares ra the
value of 100% of base salary {after tax has been paid on the shares)
Until the sharehotding gundeline 1s met, after tax proceeds of vested
PSP shares cannot be sold Atthe yearend Harniet Green had mef the
shareholding guidelines in advance of the end of the build up pericd
with a holding of 133% of salary Michael Healy continues to make
progress towards the one times salary holding
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Group Bonus Plan deferred shares

The table below sets out the shares held as part of the Deferred Annual Bonus arrangements as at 30 September 2014

Scheme Dateof award Number of shares awarded Share price on date of award (pence) Earliest vesting date
Harnet Green Group Bonus Plan deferred shares 31 March 2014 251 266 1776 31 March 2015
Michael Healy Group Bonus Plan deferred shares 31 March 2014 101 351 1776 31 March 2015

Further details of the Group Bonus Plan deferral process are described on page 96 Group Bonus Plan deferred shares are not subject to any further
performance conditions, however claw-back may be applied to unvested shares (e amalus provision), as described on pages 98 and 108

Performance Share Plan (PSP)
The table below sets out the Directors PSP interests as at 30 Seprember 2014

NMumberof  Share price ondate Earliest
Scheme Dateofaward shares awarded"? of award {pence) veshngdale  Performancemeasures
Subjectio share price and financial performance
measures further detal avalable inthe 2011/12
P5P 28/09/2012 7195316 75 28/09/2015  Directors remuneration repert andinNote 1 below
Harnet Green
Subject to share price and financial performance
PSP 30/09/2013 922033 1534 30/09/2016  measures asset outin Note 2 below
Total 8,117,349
Subject toshare price further detaifavalableinthe
2011/12 Directors remuneration repart and in
PSP 12/06/2012 576780 165 12/06/2015  Note 1below
Subject to share price and financial performance
Michael Healy measures further detal available inthe 2011412
PSP 78/09/2012 2 307120 175 28/06/2015  Directors remunerationreport andin Note 1 below
Subject tp share pnce and financial nerformance
PSP 30/09/2013 610169 153 4 30/09/2016  measures as set outin Note 2 below
Total 3,494,069

Notes
1 The 2012 PSP awards made to Executive Directors are subject to performance measures set out in the tabie below The weightings of the performance conditions described in the rable below for
Michael Healy descnbe the overall 2012 award (1 e June 2012 and September 2012} though the June 2012 awards will vest subject to share price targets only

Share price Group EBIT Cash conversion
(45% of the overall award) (30% of the overall award) (25% of the overall award)

Apphes to 45% of Michael Appliesto 20% of
Healy'saward and 25%  Harniet Green's award
of Harnet Greensaward  only

Performance Shareprice Vesting Shareprice  Vesting Performance Group Vesting Performance Cash Vesting
level (asadjusted (% ofthus  (asadjusted (%kofthus level EBIT (% of this level conversion (% of this
for the portion) forthe porhon) portion} portion}
Rightslssue) Rights Issue)
Maximuam B6 69p 100% 12136p 100% Maximum Seebelow 100% Maxemum 55% 100%
Threshold 26 01p 30% 48 55p 0% Threshaold 30% Threshold ~ 55% 30%
Share price performance 1s measured as the highest 60 day average Croup EBIT performance nrespect of FY15 Cash conversion performance measured in
share price achieved in the final year of the performance period whichis the final year of the three year respect of FY15 cash conversion which s the
As described in the FY 13 Rernureralion report this approach has performance penod final year of the three year performance penod
beenamended for the 2013 PSP awards Croup EBIT excludes excephonal iterms Cash conversion is definedas free cash
flow post exceptionaliterns. before capital
expenditure/EBITDA

At the ime the performance rargets were set, the Comnittee considered that these were challenging The Cornpany’s share price when
Harnet Green joined on 30 July 2012 was 16 25p and in Septernber 2012 when these share price targets were being set it rermained around
the same level Therefore even the thresheld terget represented a significant increase Maximum achievernent of the cash conversion target
would represent achievernent of our publicly stated FY 15 target of 60% (subsequently ncreased to 70%)

The Committee also considers the Group underlying EBIT targets to be stretchung however due to our arbihious plans for the business
transformation we censider that these targets are commercially sensitive at this point We commut to disclosing the target range on a
retrospective basis af the end of the performance period We have discussed this approach with our rmajor shareholders who are supportive
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Annual remuneration report confinued

2 The 2013 PSP awards made ta Executive Directors are subyect to performance measures set outin the table below

Share price Group EBIT Cash conversion

(45% of the overall award) {30% of the overall award) {25% of the overall award)

Performance  Sharepnice  Vesting Performance  Group EBIT  Veshn Performance  Cash Vestin

level (% of this level (% of this level conversion (% of this
portion) portion) porhon)

Maximum £300 100% Maximum See above 100% Maximum 0% 100%

Threshold £2 25 30% Threshold 0% Threshold 70% 30%

Share price performance 1s measured as the average
share price performance over the fixed penod of
30 trading days from the release of the preliminary

Group EBIT performance nrespect of FY 16 whichis
the finalyear of the three year performance period

Group EBIT excludes excephional irerns

Cash conversion performance measured in respect
of FY16 cash conversion which s the final year of the
three year performance period

FY16 results with the intention of capiuring the

Cash conversion s defined as free cash flow post
market sreachon tothe financial results

excephonaliremns before capital expenditure/CBITDA

The Committee has reviewed where the Company's performance to date s tracking in relahion to the targets and s satisfied that overall the
plan continues to provide sufficient levels of Incentivisahon to partcipants

The scherne Interests shown In the tables above (regarding the PSP and Deferred Bonus Plan) were unchanged as at 25 Novermber 2014

Statement of Shareholder voting
The table below sets out the results of the vote on the Rernuneration repart at the 2014 AGM

Votes for Votes against Votes cast Voteswithheld
Number % Number %
Directors remunerarion policy 922 208978 9890 10242 471 110 932451 449 4297020
Annual remuneration report 623517925 9956 4100757 Q44 927618 682 $122007

Auditable sections of the Annual Report onremuneration

The auditable sections of the Annual Report are shown on page 102 (single figure of total remuneration section cnwards) fo page 105
{up to and Including the section on Non-Executive Directors) and on page 108 (fotal beneficial holdings section onwards) to page 109
{up to and including the Performance Share Plan sechion)

This Annual Report on remuneration has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on ifs behaif by
Warren Tucker

Chairman, Remuneration Committee
25 Novernber 2014

.
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Other disclosures

Share capital
The Campany has the following three classes of shares in 1ssue

Number of sharesinssue
Name a1 30 September 2014

Ordinary Shares of €001 each 1460776 413
Deferred Shares of €0 09 each Q34981938
Deferred Shares of £1 each 50000

The Ordinary Shares carry the right to the profits of the Company
available for distribution and to the return of capital an a winding up of
the Company The Ordinary Shares carry the right 1o attend and speak
ai gereral meehings of the Company, each share holds the nght to
one vote The Ordinary Shares are admitted to the premium segrment
of the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange s
main market Both classes of Deferred Shares carry no right ta the
profits of the Company On awinding up the holders of the Sterling-
denominated Deferred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount
equalto the capital paid up on each sterling denorminated Deferred
Share and the holders of the euro-denorminated Deferred Shares
would be ennitled fo receive an amount equal to the capital paid up

on each euro denorminated Deferred Share anly after the holders of
the Ordinary Shares and sterling-denominated Deferred Shares have
receved, n aggregate, the amounts paid up thereon The holders

of both classes of Deferred Shares are not enfitled to receive notice,
attend, speak or vote (whether on a show of hands or on a poll) ai
general meetings of the Company

As part of the £200 millien bank facilify announced on 25 November
2011, the Company issued Warrants to certain of its fenders gving
halders the right af any tirne until 22 May 2015, to subscribe for
uptoan aggregate of 42 914 639 Orchinary Shares (representing
approximately 4 9% of the 1ssued share capiral of the Company at
the date of Issue} at a subscnption price per share of 19 875 pence

On 10 May 2012, the Company 1ssued Warrants as part of the bank
facility amendment announced on 5 May 2012 tocertain ofits
lenders giving holders the right at any time until 22 May 2015, to
subscribe for up to an aggregate of 43,749,517 Ordinary Shares
representing approximately 5 0% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of issue (subsequently increased by 4,440,376
Ordinary Shares ta reflect the Company s Rights Issue and Placing in
June 2013) at a subscnption price per share of £0 10 (subsequently
adjusted to €0 0857282 to reflect the Company s Rights Issue and
Plaoing inlune 2013) Inaddition the Warrants issued as part of the
bank facility announced in November 201 1 were re priced to the
same exercise price As at 24 Novemnber 2014, three Warrantholders
had exercised thewr Subscription Rights inrespect of 7 373 186
Warrants (exercised into Ordinary Shares on a one for one basis) As
at 24 Novernber 2014 Warrants over 1,939 126 ordinary shares
were outstanding
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Arhicles of Association

The Cormpany s Articles of Associahon {the "Articles ) may only

be amended by a special resolution af a generat meeting of
Shareholders The Articles are avallable on the Company's website
af www thomascookgroup com

Authority to purchase shares

The Company currently does not have authenty to purchase its
own shares

Share transfer restrictions

The Articles are designed to ensure that the number of the Company s
shares held by non-EEA nationals does not reach alevel which could
Jeopardise the Company s enfitlernent to continue to held or enjoy

the beneht of any authonty permission icence or privilege which 11, or
any of ts subsidiaries holds or enjoys and which enables an air service
tobe operated (each an “Operating Right") In parhcular, EC Council
Regulation 1008/2008 on the licensing of air carners requires that

an air carrier must be majonity owned and effectively controlled by
EEA nationals

The Articles allow the Directors from tirne to hme, to set a “Permitted
Maximum™ onthe number of the Company’s shares which may

be owned by non-EEA nationals of such level as they believe s in
comphance with the Operaning Rights provided that the Permitted
Maximum shall not be less than 40% of the total number of

1ssued shares

The Company maintains a separate register (the Separate Register”)
of shares inwhich nan-EEA nationals, whether individuals, bodies
corperate or other entihes have an interest (such shares are referred to
as “Relevant Shares inthe Articles) Aninterestin this context 1s widely
defined (see below) The Directars may require relevant members or
other persons to provide them with information to enable them to
determmine whether shares are, or are io be treated as, Relevant Shares
If such information 1s not provided, then the Directors will be able
attheir discretion fo determine that shares to which their enquires
relate be treated as Relevant Shares Registered shareholders will also
be obliged to nohfy the Company if they are aware either {a) that

any share they hold cught to be treated as a Relevant Share for this
purpose or (b) that any share they hold which 1s treated as a Relevant
Share should no longer be so treated Inthis case, the Directors shall
request such information and evidence as they require to satisfy
themselves that the share should not be treated as a Relevant Share
and onreceipt of such evidence shali remave particulars of the share
from the Separate Register If the Directors determine that such achien
1snecessary to protect any Operating Right due to the fact that an
Intervening Act (an “Intervering Act” being the refusal, withholding
suspensson ar revocation of any Operating Right or the imposition of
materially inhibiting condinions or limitations on any Operating Right
inerther case by any state or regulatory authonity) has taken place or
15 conternplated, threatened or intended or the aggregate number

of Relevant Shares s such that an Interverung Act may occur or the
ownership or control of the Company 1s such that an Intervening Act
may occur the Directors may ameng other things
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Other disclosures continued

> identfy those shares that give nise to the need to take action and
treat such shares as affected shares ("Affected Shares™) (see below)
or

» set a Permitted Maximum on the nurmber of Relevant Shares that
may subsist at any time (which may not, save In the arcumstances
referred to below be lower than 40% of the total number of 1ssued
shares) and teeat any Relevant Sharesin excess of this Perrmitted
Maximurn as Affected Shares (see below) The Directors may serve
anotice (an ‘Affected Share Notice”) in respect of any Affected
Share An Affected Share Notice can if it so specifies have the effect
of depriving the registered holder of the right 1o attend vote and
speak af general meetings which they would otherwise have had
as a consequence of helding such shares Such an Affected Share
Notice can if it so spacifies also require the recipient to dispose of
the Affected Shares (so that the Relevant Shares will then cease
to be Affected Shares) within 27 days or such longer peried as the
Directors may determine The Directors are also given the power to
sell such Affected Shares themselves where there 1s non-compliance
with an Affected Share Notice at the best price reasonably
obtainable at the relevant time on behalf of the shareholder

In deciding which shares are 10 be dealt with as Affected Shares

the Directors in their sole apinion will determine which Relevant
Shares may give nse to the fact of risk of an Intervening Act occurnng
and subject to any such determination, will have regard to the
chronological order inwhich parhiculars of Relevant Shares have been
orare fohe enteredin the Separate Register unless to do sa would in
the sole opinion of the Directors, be inequitable (fthereis a change
in any applicable law or the Company or any subsidiary receives any
direction, notice or requirernent fror any state or regulatory authonty,
which in either case necessitates such action to overcome, prevent
or avoid an Intervering Act then the Directors may either

> lower the Perrnitted Maximum fo the minienum extent that they
consider necessary 1o overcome prevent or avaid an Intervering
Act,or

» resolve that any Relevant Shares shall be freated as Affected
Shares The nights of the Directors referred to above apply unhil
such time as the Directors resolve that grounds for the making
of a deterrmination have ceased to exist whereupon the Directors
must withdraw such determinaticn The Permitted Maximum s set
at40% This Permitted Maximum may be vaned by the Directors
If the Directors resolve to vary the Permitted Maximum to deal with
shares as Affected Shares or relax the ownership bmitations they
shall publish in at feast one national newspaper in the UK (@nd in
any other country inwhich the shares are listed) notice of the
determination and of any Permitted Maximum

The Directors shall publish, from time to time

» informathion as to the number of shares particulars of which
have been enfered on the Separate Regrster and
» any Permitted Maximum that has been specified

As af 24 Navermnber 2014, 469153 032 Ordinary Shares (32 12%)
were held on the Separate Register

The Directors may not register any person as a holder of shares unless
such person has furmished to the Directors a declaration, together with
such evidence as the Directors may require, stating (@) the name and
nationality of any person who has an inierest in any such share and (f
the Directors require, the nature and extent of such interest or {b) such
other inforrmaticn as the Directors may from firne to time determine

The Directors may decline ta register any person as a Sharehatder
if satisfactory evidence of information s not forthcoming
Existing holders of shares will be recorded on the Special Register
unless and unfil they have certified to the satisfaction of the
Company that they are EEA nationals

A person shall be deemed to have aninterest in relation to Thomas
Cook Group plc sharesif

» such person has an interest that would (subject as provided below)
be taken into account, or which they would be taken as having in
deterrmining for the purposes of Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006
whether a person has a nofifiable interest, or

> they have any suchinferest as is referred toin Part 22 of the
Companies Act 2006, but shall not be deemed to have aninferest
in any shares in which their spouse or any infant, child or stepchild
{or in Scotland pupit or minor) of theirs 1s interested by virtue of
that relationship or which they hold as a bare or custodian frustee
under the laws of England or as a simple trustee under the laws
of Scotland and interest shall be construed accordingly




Provisions of change of control

The Company has a facilities agreement {the “Agreement”)

in place which consists of £300 million revalving credit facility

and £200 miltion bilateral banding and guarantee facilines and

€164 milion additional facility The Agreement provides that an any
change of control of the Company, the Lenders under the Agreement
are obhgated to negotiate (for a period not exceeding 30 days, unless
extendad by agreement for a further penod not exceeding 30 days)
terms for continuing the facil:ies bui where agreement on new
terrms cannot be reached any such Lender s enhitled to (1) receve a
repayment of amounts owing to such Lender, and/or (1) cancel all of
its commifments under the Agreement

The Company s subsidiary Thomas Cook Finance plc has outstanding
€525 milhion 775% guaranteed notes due 2020 On the accurrence of
certain change of control events relating to the Company each holder
has the option to require Thomas Cook Finance plc (the issuer of these
bonds) torepurchase all or any part of the holders notes af a purchase
price In cash equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and
unpaidinterest

The Company also has cutstanding €400 millicn 6 75% guaranteed
notesdue 2015 and £300 millon 7 75% guaranteed notes due 2017
(rogether, the “Notes”) Upon the occurrence of cerfain change of
contrel events relating to the Company (and then only if certain rating
condimons in respect of the relevant Notes are met) each helder has
the option torequire the Corpany fo redeem or {at the option of

the Company) fo purchase the Notes of such holder at par value plus
accrued inferest
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Political donations

The Company did nof make any political donations during the
financial year (2013 nif)

Major shareholdings

Asat 24 Novernber 2014 the Company had been notified in
accordance with rule 5 of the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules
ofthe UK Listing Authonity of the following major shareholdings in the
Ordinary Share capital of the Company

Percentage of Percentage of
Numberof 1ssued capital Number of issued capital
shares held as at (%}asat sharesheld asat (%) asat
24 November 24 November 26 Novernber 26 Novermnber
Name 2004 2004 2013 2013
Invescoltd 156,195,950 1070% 156195950 1074
The Capital Group 106,678,173 7 30% N/A N/A
Standard Life
InvestmentsLtd £9,896,360 615% N/& NZA
BlackRock Inc 72,899,276 4L99% 728991276 502
Marathon Asset
Management LLP 69,384,130 475% 66 384130 477
OrbisHeldingsLimited 43,905,280 301% N/A N/A
Independent auditors

PricewarerncuseCoopers LLP have expressed rheir wilingness to be
re-appainted as audifors of the Company Upon the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, resolutions to re appoint therm as the
Company s audifors and fo authonse the Directors to determine therr
rernuneration will be proposed fo the 2015 Annual General Meeting

The Strategic report and Directors’ report compnsing pages 1410 113
have been approved and are signed by order of the Board by

Derek Woodward

Group Company Secretary \,3

25 Novernber 2014 QO N\
Registered office

3rd Floor, South Building

200 Aldersgate
London ECTA 4HD

Registered number
6091951
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Thomas Cook Group plc

Report on the financial statements
Our opimion

In our opinion

» Thomas Caok Group plc’s Group financial statements and Company
financial statements (the financial staterments ) give a frue and fair
view of the state of the Group s and of the Cormmpany s affairs asat
30 Seprernber 2014 and of the Group's loss and the Group s and the
Company's cash flows for the year then ended

» the Group financial staternents have teen properly prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(*IFRSs™) as adopted by the European Union

> the Company financial staternents have been properly prepared
In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("FRSs ) as adopted by the European Union and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

> the financial staterents have been prepared in accordance with the
requirernents of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements Article 4 of the [AS Regulation

Our audit approach

What we have audited

Thomas Cook Group plc's financial staternents comprise

> the Group and Company balance sheets as at 30 September 2014,

> the Group iIncome statement and statement of other
comprehensive incorne for the year then ended

» the Group and Company cash flow statements for the year
thenended,

> the Group and Cornpany staternents of changes n equity for the
year then ended, and

» the notes to the financial staterments which include a summary of
significant accouniing policies and other explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere inthe
Annual Report & Accounts (the “Annual Report™), rather thanin the
notes to the inancial staterments These are cross-referenced from
the hnancial staternents and are Identified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the financial statermenis s apphcable law and [FRSs
as adopted by the European Union and as regards the Company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006

QOverview

> Overall Group matenalty £15 Omwhichs based on 5% of the last five years average underlying profit
from operations, being profir from operations adjusted for the impact of separately disclosed terns

> Fullscope audits performed on 32 of 106 units from across the four geographic operating divisions
» Our audit scope provided 77% caverage of the Group's underbying profit from operations

Image removed

> Separately disclosed items
» Going concern assessment

» Recoverability of hotel prepayments
> Treasury operations and use of dervative instruments
> Defined benefit pension valuanion

» Carrying value of goodwill and deferred tax assets
= Aircraft leases and associated maintenance provistons
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Thomas Cook Group plc

continued

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audif in accordance with Infernational Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) { 1SAs (UK & Ireland) )

We designed our audit by determining materniality and assessing

the nisks of material misstaterneni in the financial statements
Inparticutar we looked at where the Directors made subjective
judgements for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain Asin alt of our audits we also
addressed the nisk of management overnde of internal controls
including evaluating whether there 1s evidence of bias by the Direciors
that may represent a nsk of matenal misstatement due to fraud

The risks of marenial misstaternent that had the greatest effect on
our audit ncluding the allocation of our resources and effort are
identified as “areas of focus’ in the table below togetherwith an
explanaticn of how we tallored our audit to address these specific
areas Thisis not a complefe list of all nisks identified by our audit

Areaaffocus

How cur audit addressed the area of focus

Carrying value of goodwill and deferred tax assets

Refer to page 129 (Accounhing pohcies) and pages 144 and 157 (notes)

The Group holds significant goodwill and deferred tax assets on
losses on the balance sheet of £2,469m and £179m respectively
Deterrmining the carrying value of these assets is dependent on
complex and subjective judgements by the Directors about the
furure results of the business

In parhcular we focused on the value In use of the UK cash
generafing unit which makes up 66% of the total goodwill balance
and the UK holds a deferred tax asset for losses of £117m

The value of these assets s highly dependent upon the successful
implementation of the engoing UX Transformation programme

If the future forecast results are nof achievable the value of goodwill
and recognition of the deferred tax assets may not be appropnate

Arrcraft leases and mamntenance provisions

We challenged management s future cash flow forecasts by
comparing the forecasts to the latest Board approved three year
plan We performed a critical review of the historical accuracy of
budgets and forecasts by forexample companng the budgets used
In the prior year value in use model against the actual performance
of the business in the current year These procedures enabled us to
determine the quahty and accuracy of the forecashing process

The key assurmptions in the UK forecasts are the successful
implernensation of the cost-out and profit improvernent
Transformation programme and resulting growthrates

In assessing the appropriateness of management’s assumptions
we consigered factors such as independent forecast growth rates
for the wider travel industry progress compared fo the plan for the
Transformation programme and we benchmarked the external
data used in the discount rate calcutation against rates used by
comparable companies

We applied sensitivity analysis fo management s calculations o
ascertain the extent to which reasonable adverse changes would
etther individually orin aggregate require the imparrment of goodwill
or the deferred tax assets

Refer to pages 130 and 134 (@ccounting policies) and pages 158 (notes)

Fixed assets for leased arcraft of £578m and prowisions of £235m
for the maintenance of leased aircraft are held on the balance sheet

This was an area of focus for our audit due to the size of these
baiances, the inkerent fevel of estimation included in the calcutahon
of the maintenance provisions {based upon forecast arcraft usage
and maintenance costs) and the judgement needed to determine
whether leases are operahing or finance in nature

We exarmined the appropriateness of the mamntenance provision
calculations prepared by management by performing an assessment
of new abligations venfying key assurnphons such as the quantum
and himing of maintenance expenditure to contracts confirrming
flying hours to the plane log books maintained by the engineenng
department and understanding any significant provision releases

We examined the terms included in new or updated aircraft lease
contracts o confirm that they have been appropnatety accounted
for as operating or finance leases




Area of focus
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How our audif addressed the area of focus

Separately disclosed ifems

Refer to page 133 {accounting pohicies)and page 140 (notes)

The Group continues fo have a high level of separately disclosed
itemns which are presented within a separate column on the

face of the Income Statement These items are excluded from
management's reporting of the underlying results of the business

The nature and use of separately disclosed items s explained

in the Group’s accounting policy and includes losses on the
disposat of subsidianes restruciunng costs (including redundancy
and consultancy costs) and onerous contract provisions

which are primarily a result of the aforementioned Group
Transformation programme

We focused on this area because separately disclosed items are
nat defined by IFRSs as adopted by the European Unionand it
therefore requires judgement by the Directors foidentify such
iterns Consistency inidentifying and disclosing irems as separately
disclosed s important to maintain comparability of the reporting
year on-year

GOII"Ig concern assessment

We challenged management s rationale for the presentation of
separately disclosed iterns assessing this against the Group s
accounting policy and consistency of treatment wath prior periods

We also considered items that were recorded within underlying profit
that we considered tobe excephonat’ in nature and challenged
management as fo whether thay should be presented within
“separafely disclosed items

We assessed the appropnateness of management's presentation
of these iterns wirhin the finanoal starernents as a whole

Referto page 91 for the going concern staternent made by the Directors

This was considered to be an area of audit focus due to the seasonal
nafure of the Group s cash flows which at certaintimes can put
pressure on the Group s headreom under its funding arrangements

Recoverability of hotel prepayments

We evaluated management s going concern assessment by
challenging the key jJudgements within the Group s forecasts
including underlying frading, the mpact of the Gioup
Transformation cost out programme and the seasonal nature
of the Group's cash flow

We examined the Group s funding agreements that are in place
and performed a downside sensitmity analysis aver the Group s
headroom assessment In respect of its lquidity and compliance
withits bank covenants

Consistent with our work performed an the carrying value of goodwill
and deferred tax assets we checked the forecasts to the three year
approved Board plan and assessed the historical accuracy of the
Group s forecasts by comparnng prior year budgets to actual results

QOur conctusion on the Directors’ Going Concern statfement 1s set
out below

Refer to page 134 (key sources of eshimation uncertamnty) for further information

Significant deposits and prepayments of £290m have been made
to hotelers Thiswas an area of focus as management exercised
Jjudgement in assessing the recaverability of these balances baseg
upoen current bookings histoncal trend data forecast future
bookings and consideration of the credit worthiness of the hoteliers

We assessed management’s ability to utilise these hotel
prepayments based on actual and forecast bookings at the hotels
We also examined contracts to check that contractual agreements
were in place to roll forward prepayments to future seasons

We evaluated management s contingency plans regarding certain
aged prepayments or those deemed to be higher risk due tothe
geographic location or credst risk of the hotel including security over
hotel assets to assess whether an appropnate provision had been
recorded against thase prepayments

—
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Independent auditors’ report fo the members of Thomas Cook Group plc

continued

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Treasury operations and use of denvative instruments

Refer to page 130 {accounhing policies) and 152 notes for related disclosures

The Group uses a number of complex hedging structures including
options to manage Its exposure #0 adverse movernenis i fuel prices
and foreign exchange rafes

The accounting for options andrelated structures s complexand
therefore we focused on this area to check that hedge accounting
had been properly applied and the impact of hedging had been
properly presented

Defined benefit pension valuation

We used our specialist treasury knowledge 10 assess the
reasonableness of management s assumptions and the
appropriateness of the financal instrument valuations

These assumptions include the methodology used to value the
financial instrurnents and the marke! data that was used

We evaluated the design of the systerns and controls in place wathin
the Group treasury function and tested manual adjustments to the
systern generated valuaton of foreign exchange contracts

Far the options used to hedge movements in the fuel prices we
examined the structures to check that there were no net written
optionsand fhat hedge accounting could be appled

Refer to pages 131 and 134 (accounting policies) and page 163 (notes) for detadls of the Groupdefined benefirschemes

The Group has defined benefit pension plans with net post-
retirerment labilities of £447m which s significant inthe context
of the overall balance sheet of the Group

The valuation of the pension labilities requires significant levels

of judgermnent and technical expertise 1n choosing appropriate
assumphions Unfavourable changes in a number of the key
assurmphions (including salary increases nflation discount rates
and mortality) can have a matenal impact on the calculation of
the hability particularly for the Condor pension schemes which
are unfunded There s also some judgement in the measurement
of fair value of pension assers

We used our specialist pension knowledge to evaluate the Directors’
assessment of the assumptions they made in relation 10 the
valuations of the hiabiliies and assetsin the pensicn plans and the
assumphions around salary increases and mortality rates te national
and industry averages

We also focused on the valuahons of pensien plan liabilities and the
pension assets as follows

> We agreed the discount and inflation rates used in the valuaticn
of the pensson liability to our infernally developed benchmarks

> We obtained third-party confirmaticns on ownership and valuation
of pensior: assets

We checked thar there was no impact of specificevents such

as changes to schermes and redundancies ansing from the
Transformation programme which should have been incorporated
Into managerment’s calculation

We tested underlying inputs, such as employees in the scheme to
the hability valuation used by the schermne actuary We also evaluated
and tested management s controls and processes over pension data
such as leavers to the scheme




How we tailored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be ahle to give anopirion on the financial statements
as a whole, taking into account the geagraphic structure of the Group
the accounting processes and controls, and the industry inwhich the
Group operates

The Group is currently ordarused into four geographic operating
dwisions Airines Germany, Continental Europe, Northern Europe and
the UK Each cperahing dwision comprises numercus management
entimies which sub consolidate at a geographic operating dwisior: level
and ultimately at a Group level The Group financial staternents are
ulhrmately a consolidation of 106 reporting units representing the
Group s operating businesses within these geographicbased divisions
and the centralised functions

The reporting units vary (n size and we identified 32 reporting unis
from across the four geographic operating divisions which required
an audit of their complete financiak information due to their ndividual
size or nsk charactenshics These repoarting units accounted for 77%
of the Group’s underlying profit from operations and 73% of the
Group's revenue

Specified procedures were performed on certain balances in a further
12 reporting units compnsing the Groups internal IT development
company (because of the matenal internally generated intangible
assets) rhe Russia operation (because of its size}, two Group financing
companies {because of the matenal bonds and denvatives held by
these companies) and the cash and accounts recevable balances in
certain UK management enfifies (duetatherrsize)

Qur audit work at these reporting units, which included visits by

the Group Engagement Team to the Sub-Consolidation Teams

and attendance at therr clearance meetings together with the
additional procedures performed at Group level, gave us the evidence
we needed for our opinion on the Group and Company financial
statemnents as awhole

Matenahty

The scope of our audit s influenced by our apphication of materialty
We sef certain quantitative thresholds for materiality These fogether
with qualitative considerations helped us fo determine the scope of
our audit and the nature, iming and extent of our audit procedures
and fo evaluate the effect of missratements, both individually and

ori the financial staternents as a whole

Based on our professional judgement we determined matenality
for the financial staternents as a whole as follows

OverallGroup  £15m (2013 £15m)

matenahty

How we
determined it

Based cn 5% of the last five years average
underlying prefit from operations being profit
from operations adjusted for the impact of
separately disclosed items

Rationale for
benchmark
apphed

We believe that the underlying profit from
operahons provides us with a consistent year
on-year basis for deterrmining materiality and s
the metnc against which the performance of the
Group s most commonly measured We used a
five-year average because the Group's results have
been particularly volatile over the past few years
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We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would repart to them
misstaterments identified dunng cur audit above £1 0m (2013 £10m)
aswell as misstaterents below that amount that in our view
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required fo review the Directors'
statement, set cut onpage 91 in relation to going concern We have
nothing ta report having performed our review

As noted in the Directors’ statement the Directors have concluded
that it 15 appropriate to prepare the financial staterments using the
gaing concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes
that the Group and Company have adequate resources 1o rermain in
operation, and that the Directors intend thern to do so for at least one
year from the date the financial statements were signed As part of our
audit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going cancern
basis is appropriate

However because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, these statements are nof a guarantee as to the Group s
and Company’s ability o confinue as a going concern

Other required reporting
Consistency of other mnformation

Compames Act 2006 opinion

In our opiign, the infgrmation gp'req 1 the Sfrafeglc repgr‘r and

the Oirectors’ repert for the financial year for which the financial
staterments are prepared Is consistent with the financial staterments

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under ISAs {UUK & treland) we are required to report fa youif,
1N QU OpINION

Information in the Annual Report s We have no
> matenally inconsistent with the informationin - excephions to
the audited inancial starements or report arising from

> apparently matenally incorrect based on or
matenially inconsistent with, our knowledge of
the Group and Company acquired in the course
of performing our audit or

= 15 otherwise misleading

this responsibility

The statement given by the Directors on page We have no
93 inaccordance with provision C 11 of the excephions to
UK Corporate Governance Code ( the Code™) report ansing from

that they consider the Annual Report taken as a
whole to be farr, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for
members toassess the Group s and Company’s
performance business model and strategy s
materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the
Group and Company acquired in the course of
performing our audit

fhis responsibility

The section of the Annual Report on page 48 We have no
as required by provision C 3 8 of the Code exceptions to
describing the work of the Audit Committee report arising from

does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

this responsibiliry
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Thomas Cook Group plc

confinued

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations recesved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if
inour opNicn

> we have nof received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit or

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company
or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from
branches not wisited by us or

> the Company financial statements and the part of the Birectors
remuneration repost to be audited are nat in agreement with the
accounting records and refurns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibiiity

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opimion the part of the Directors’ remuneration repart to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Compames Act 2006

Other Comparues Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report ko you if
inour opinion cerfain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified
by law are not made We have no excephons to repori ansing from
this responsibibity

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statemnent relafing to the Cormpany s
comphance with nine prowisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nathing to report having performed our review

Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit

Our responsibslities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilties
set out on page 93 the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial starements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statementsin accordance with applicable law and 1SAs (UK & Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Audifing Practices
Board s Ethical Standards for Audiors

This report including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter

3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose
We donot in giving these opinions accept or assume responsibifity
far any other purpose or ta any other person to whom this report s
shown or info whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in wnting

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit nvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staterments sufficient to give reasonable
assurance fhat the financial staterments are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of

> whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group s and
the Company’s crcumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

> the reasonableness of sgnificant accounting eshirmates made by the
Directors and

» the overall presentation of the financial staterments

We pnimanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors
Judgements against available evidence forrming our own judgements
and evaluating the disclosures in the financial staterments

We test and exarnine information using sampling and other auditing
techniques, to the extent we consider necessary fo provide a
reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence
through testing the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures
oracombination of both

Inaddition we read all the financial and non financial information
inthe Annual Report to ident fy materal inconsistencies with the
audited financiat statements and to identify any nformation that is
apparently materally sncorrect based on or matenally inconsistent
with the knowledge acquired by usin the course of performing the
audit If we becormne aware of any apparent matenal misstatements
he implications for our report

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
25 November 2014
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Year ended 30 September 2014 Restated Year ended 30 Seprember 2013
Separately Separately
Underlying disclosed items Underlying  disclosed dems
results (Note 7) Total results (Note 7) Tatal
Notes £m £m £m £m im £m
Continuing operations 1
Revenue 4 8,588 - 8,588 9,315 — 9315 -
Cost of prowiding fourism services (6,672) ws) (6,720) {7256) (39 (7,295) §
Gross profit 1,916 (:i8) 1,868 2059 (39 2,020 %
Personnel expenses 5 (913) (26) {939) (1036) (L) (1.078) 2
Depreciahion and amortisation 12/13 a73) - (173) (162) (Y] (172) &
Net operating expenses & (507) (126) (633) {598) (122) (720)
Loss on disposal of assets - (19) 19) — 8 (8)
Irnpairment of goodwill and amortisation of
business combination ntangibles 7 - (50) (50) - (31) (31}
Profit/(loss) from operations 323 (269) 54 263 (250) 13
Share of results of associates 14y 2 - 2 1 - 1
Finance income 8 10 - 10 6 - b
Finance costs 8 (153) 27) (180) (152) &1)] (183)
Profit/(loss) before tax 182 (296) (114) 118 (281) (163)
Tax 9 1)) (30) p)
Loss for the year from continuing operations (115) (213) o
e
g
T
Attributable to 3
Owners of the parent (118) (205)
Non-controlling interests 3 (8)
(115) (213)
Basicand diluted loss per share (pence) 1 82 {171)

Financial statements (N
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Group statement of other comprehensive iIncome
For the year ended 30 Septermber 2014

Restared
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septermber
2014 2013

Notes £fm fm

Loss for the year (115) (213)

Other comprehensive Income and expense

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes 32 (91) )]

Tax on actuanallosses 25/9 19 -

items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Foreign exchange translation losses (103) (20)

Fair value gatns and losses

Losses deferred for the year - {14)

Tax on losses deferred for the year - 2

Losses fransferred to the income statement 22 45 9

Tax on losses transferred to the income statement 25/9 (10) (N

Total net other comprehensive expense for the year (140) (96)

Total comprehensive expense for the year (255) (309)

Arfributable to

Owners of the parent (258) (301)

Non-controlling interests 3 ®

Total comprehensive expense for the year (255) (309)
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Restated
Year ended Year ended
30September 30 Septernber
2014 2013
MNotes £m £m
Conhnuing operations 1
Loss before tax (114) (163) 'é
Adyustments for @
Net finance cosfs 170 177 Piﬂ
Net investrnent iIncome and share of results of associates 2 Q) :E
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 233 225
Loss/(profit) on disposal of assets 19 8
Share hased payments ] 8
Write up of Investments - (29
{Decrease)/Increase In provisions (61 4
Addimonal pension contributions (26) (26)
Inferest receved 9 6
Decrease/(increase) in working capital
Inventones (8) Q)]
Recawvables 86 112 2
Payables 447 80
Cash generated from operations 367 400 g
Income taxes paid G2 (31 g
Net cash used in discantinued operating activities 27 - (30) é
Net cash from operating achivihes 335 339
Dividends received from asscciates 2 3
Proceeds/(loss) on disposal of subsichanes (net of cash disposed) 15 78 (38)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 4
Purchase of subsiciaries (net of cash acquired) 15 ()] (2
Purchase of tangible assets (118) (103)
Purchase of infangible assets (38) (3]
Proceeds from other investments - 2
Net cash used in iInvesting achivities (78) (182)
Interest paid (139) {138)
Diwvidends paid to non-controlling interests (L) - 3
Draw down of borrowings 125 1,370
Repayment of borrowings {208) {1084) %
Payment af facility set up fees - (38) £
Shares purchased by Employee Benefit Trust )] {16 é
Net proceeds on the 1ssue of Ordinary Shares 28 1 414 T
Repayment of finance lease obligations (L) (32) E
Net cash (used in)/from finanang activities (278) 476 =
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 1) 633
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,090 455
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (52) 2
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of year 1,017 1090
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Group balance sheet

At 30 September 2014
305eptember 30 Seprember
2614 2013
Notes Em fm
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 2,873 3155
Property planr and equipment
— awcrafs and anrgaft spares 13 578 603
—other 13 177 198
Investments in assoaates 14 14 14
Other investrments 1 1
Deferred tax assets 25 195 168
Tax assels 2 -
Trade and other recevables 17 106 143
Dervative financial instruments 22 19 -
3,965 4 282
Current assets
Inventories 16 34 28
Tax assets 3 b
Trade and other receivables 17 705 785
Dernvative financial instruments 22 68 25
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,019 1,089
1,829 1933
Assets held for sale 27 - 70
Total assets 5,794 6 285
Current habihhes
Retwrement benefit obligahons 32 {1 (1}
Trade and other payables 19 (2,083) (1995}
Borrowings 20 (u49) (177}
Obligations under finance leases 21 (34) L3
Tax habilities (15) (un
Revenue received in advance (999) {1120)
Short-term provisions 26 (247) (247)
Dervative financial Instruments 22 (66) (64)
(3,894) (3.688)
Liabilities related to assets held for sale 27 - a7
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305eptember 30 5eplember
2014 2013
MNotes £m £m
Non-current labilihes
Retirement benefit obligations 32 (Lu7) (L03)
Trade and other payables 19 90) (57)
Long term borrowings 20 (715) {1114)
Obhgations under finance leases 21 (147) (182)
Non-current tax habilihes (21) (8)
Deferred tax habilities 25 u9) (53)
Long-term provisions 26 (143) 72
Denvative financial nstruments 22 (3) (3)
1,615) (2032)
Total habilities (5,509) (5737)
Net assets 285 548
Equity
Called-up share capital 28 69 68
Share premiurmn account 435 434
Merger reserve 1,547 1,547
Hedging and franslation reserves 133 202
Capnalredemption reserve 8 9
Retained earnings deficit (907 (1721)
investmeni in own shares {(38) (30)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 247 509
Non-controlling interests 38 59
Total equity 285 548

The financial statements on pages 121 to 167 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 Novermber 2014

Signed on behalf of the Board

Michael Healy
Group Chief Financial Officer

Strategic report =
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Group statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 September 2014

Share capual Arnbuiable 1o
and share Cther Hedging Tranglahon  Accumulated  equity hakders Non controlkng
prermium reserves reserve reserve losses  of the parent interests Total

Restared £m Em fm Em £m £m £m fm
Opening balance at 1 October 2012 89 1542 (22) 247 (1450) 4G6 51 457
Loss for the year - - - (205) (205) ® (213)
Other comprehensive expense

Foreign exchange transtation losses - - - (20) - (20) - (20)
Actuariallosses on defined benefit pension

schemes (net of tax) - - - - (72) (72} - (72)
Farr value gains and losses

Loss deferred for the year (net of tax) - - (12) - - (12} - 12
Gains transferred to the income statament

(net of tax) - - 8 ~ - 8 - 8
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - () (20) 277 (301) ® (309)
Equity credit in respect of share-based

payments - - - - 8 8 - 8
Issue of shares — exercise of warrants 5 - - - - 5 - 5
Issue of shares—rights issue 431 - - - - 431 - 431
Issue of shares —rights issue transachon costs (22) - - - - (22) - (22)
Investrment in Employee Berefit Trust - (16) - - - (16) - (16)
Acquisition of Russia shares - - - - (2) (2 (L) (®)
At 30 September 2013 503 1,526 (26) 227 {1,721) 509 39 548
Loss for the year - - - - (118) (118) 3 (115)
Other comprehensive expense

Foreign exchange translation losses - - - (103) - (103) - (103)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension

schernes (net of tax) - - - - (72) (72) - @2)
Fair value gains and losses

Loss deferred for the year {net of tax) - - - - - - - -
Gains transferred to the incorne statement

{net of tax) - - 35 - - 35 - 35
Total comprehensive mcome/(expense)

for the year - - 35 (103) (190) (258) 3 (255)
Equity crecht in respect of share based

payments - - - - 4 4 - 4
Issue of shares —exercise of warrants 1 - - — - 1 - 1
Investrment in Employee Benefit Trust - 9 - - - (9) - 9
Divdends patd to non-controling interests - - - - - - ()] ()
At 30 September 2014 504 1,517 9 124 (1,907) 247 38 285

Other reserves consist of the merger reserve, the capital redemption reserve and own shares held The capital redemption reserve was created

as a consequence of the Share buy back prograrmnme durning the year ended 30 September 2009

The merger reserve arose on the reverse acquisiion of Thornas Cook Group plc and MyTravel Group plc by Thomas Cook AG In the case of
Thomas Cook Group plc the merger reserve represents the difference between the existing share capital and share prermium of Thomas Cook
AG and the share caprtal of Thornas Cook Group ple ssued in exchange and in the case of MyTravel Group plc, the merger reserve represents
the difference berween the fair value and the nominal value of the share caprtalissued by Thomas Cook Group plc
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Thomas Cook Group plc 15 a imited hability company incorporated and dormicled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 and
Iisted on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered office 1s 3rd Floor South Bullding 200 Aldersgate London EC1A 4HD
The principal actwities of the Geoup are discussed in the Directors report — business review on pages 4 to 41

Ihese consohidated financial statements were approved forissue by the Board of Directors on 25 Novemnmber 2014

2 Basis of preparation

These financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with EU IFRS and IFRIC interpretations and with those parts of the Cormparnies Act
2006 applicable to groups reporting under IFRS The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the
European Union and therefore comply with Arnicle &4 of the EU IAS Regulation

The financial staterments have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention except for revaluation of
certan inancial assets and financial labilines Gncluding denvative mstruments) at fair value through the profit or loss share based payments
and defined benefit pension obligations

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparanon of the financial information presented in this decument are set out below
These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented unless otherwise stated

3 Significant accounting policies
3a Changes in accounting policy and disclosure

Adophion of new or amended standards and interpretations in the current year

Inthe current year the following new or amended standards have been adopted

IFRS 7 (@mendment)} “Financial nstruments disclosures™ is effective for annual reporiing penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and
amends the disclosures required where cerfain items have been offset

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 This standard apphes 1o IFKSs that
require or permit far value measurements or disclosures and provides a single IFRS framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures
about faw value measurement

1AS 19 (rewised 2011) “Emnployee benefits” 1s effective for annual perniods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The most significant change was
that both the expected returns on pension plan assets (currently based on expected returns) and the finance charge (currently based on the
unwinding of the discount rate on schemne liabilities) was replaced with a single net interest expense or income that was calculated by applying
the discount rate used in determining the present value of scheme labilities to the net defined benefit asset or lability As a result of applying
this standaid retrospectively the Group's profit before tax for the previous financial year has been restated by £5m

New or amended standard and interpretahions in issue but not yet effective or EU endorsed

The following new standards amendments to standards and interpretations that are expected to apply to the Group, which have not been
apphed in these financial statements were inissue but are not yet effective or EU endorsed

IFRS9  “Financal instruments™ s effective for annual reporting penods commenang on or after 1 January 2018 The standard will eventually
replace |AS 39

IFRS 10 “Consclidated finanaal staterments” s effective for annual reporting periods beginning onor after 1 January 2014 This standard
buillds on existing principles by idenhfying the cencept of control as the deterrnining factor in whether an entity should be included
within consclidated financial staternents

IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements” s effective for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2014 This standard provides for a more realistic
reflection of joint arrangements by focusing an the nghts and obligations of the arrangement rather than its legal form Thisis not
expected to have a matenalimpact

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entines’ s effechive for annual penicds beginning on or after 1 January 2014 This standard includes
the disclosure requirernents for all forms of interests in other entities Including joint arrangements, assocates special purpose
vehicles and other off balance sheet vefucles

IFRS 15  “Revenue fram contracts with customers” is to establish the pninciples that an entity shall apply to report about the nature armount
tirming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows ansing from a contract with a custorner Application of the standard 1s mandatory
for annual reporting penods starting from 1 {anuary 2017 onwards

IFRIC21 “Levies”, sets our the accounting for an obliganhion to pay levy that i1s not incorme tax The interpretation addresses what the obligating
eveni s that gives rise to pay alevy The Group s not currently subyect fo significant levies so the impact on the Group 1s nof material
Effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1January 2014

Strategic report —
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued
3b Sigruficant accounting pohcies

AS27  (revised) "Separate inancial stalemenis” s effective for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2014 This standard includes
the provisions onseparate financial staterments that are left after the contral provisions of 1AS 27 have been included in the new
IFRS10

AS28  (revised) Investments in associates and jont ventures s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
This standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates to be equity accounted following the 1ssue of IFRS 11

1AS32  “offsething financiat assets and habilies 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2074 and provides
clanfication on the application of offsetting rules

The Group consinues to assess the impact of adophing these new or amended standards and interpretanions in future accounting periods

Basis of consohdation

The Group's financial staterments consclidate those of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings Subsicharies are all entities (including
structured enfities} over which the Group has control The Group controls an entity when the Group 1s exposed to or hasnghts jo vanable
returns fromts involvernent wath the entity and has the atility to affect those refurns through its power over the entity Subsidianes are
fully consohdated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group They are deconsohdated from the date that control ceases
Inter-company fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions berween Group companies are eliminated

Interpretation guidance included within SIC Interpretahon 12 ' Consolidation — special purpose entifies  indicates that certain special purpose
entrhies {SPEs), which are involved in arrcraft leasing arrangerments with the Group should be interpreted as being controlled by the Group, and
therefore subject fo cansolidahion even though the Group has no direct or indirect equity interest inthose entities Asa consequence the Group
has cansolidated six (2013 six) SPEs that own five (2013 five) aircraft operated by the Group on operating leases

Business combination
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group

The cost of an acquisition s measured at fair value of she assets gven, equity Instrument s 1ssued contingent consideration arrangerents
entered into, and liabiines incurred ar assurned at the date of exchange Directly attributable transaction costs are expensed as incurred

Identifiable assets acquired and labilines and confingent habilihes assumed in & business combination are measured inhally at their fair values
af the acquisition date These values are finalised within 12 months of the date of acquisiion Amortisation of business combinafioninfangbles
s a separately disclosed tterm

When the ownership of an acquired company is less than 100% the non-controlling interest 1s measured at esther the proportion of the
recognised net assets attributable fo the non-controlling interest or at the fair value of the acquired company at date of acquisition The excess
of the cost of acquisihion over she fairvalue of the Group's share of identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwilt

Associales
Entities other than subsidianies over which the Group exerts significant influence but not control or joint control are associates Enfities which
the Group jointly controls with one or more other party under a confractual arrangement are joint ventures

The Group s Investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method

Under the equity method the investment in an assocate s ininally recogrised at cost The carrying amount of the investment 1s adjusted to
recogrise changes in the Group s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date Goodwill relating to the associate 1sincluded in
the carrying amount of the investrnent and s neither amortised nor indmidually fested forimpairment

Foreign currency

The presentation currency of the Group 1s sterling

Average exchange rates are used to translate the results of all subsidianies and assoaates that have a functional currency other than sterling
The balance sheets of such entities are ranslated at perod end exchange rates The resulhing exchange differences are recorded through
aseparate cormponent of equity

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of an enhity are translaied af the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
Foreign currency monefary assets and habilities held at the year end are translated at period-end exchange rates The resulting exchange gain
orlossis recorded in the income statement When a foreign entity is partially disposed of or sold exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the iIncome statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Non-current assets held forsale

The Group classihes non current assets as held for sale if their carrying amaount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use To be classified as held for sale the assets must be available for immediate sale in their present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and custornary for the sale of such assets and their sale must be highly probable Saleis considered o be hughly
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3 Significant accounting policies confmued
3b Significant accounting policies continued

probable when management 1s committed to a plan to sell the assefs and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has
been:nitiated at a price that is reasonable in relation ta their current fair vaiue, and there 1s an expectahion that rhe sale will be completed within
one year from the date of classificanion

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are carned on the Group's balance sheet at the lower of their carnying amount and fair value less
coststosell

Intangible assets - goodwill

Goodwillis recognised as an asset and 1s reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changesm arcumstances indicate
a potential impairment Any impairment is recogrised immediately in the Group s income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed

Fer the purpose of impairment testing goodwill acquired in a business combination s from the acquisiion date allocated toeach of the
Group s cash generating units that are expected o benefit from the combination irrespective of whether other assets or labilities of the
acquiree are assigned fo those units

On disposal of a subsidiary jont venture or associate the attnbutable amount of goodwillis included in the determination of the profit or loss
on dispasal

Intangible assets —other

Intangible assets other than goodwill are carried on the Graup's balance sheet af cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment

Internally generated infangible assefs, excluding capitalised development costs are not capitalsed and expenditure is reflecied in the income
statement in the year n which the expenditure 1s ncurred

Amornsahion s charged on a straight-ine basis over the intangible asset's useful ife when finite as follows

Brands 3 years loindefinne hfe
Customer relationshups 11015 years
Computer software and concessions 3to 10 years

Indefinite lved intangible assets principally comprise those trademarks for which there s no foreseeable hmit 1o the penod over which they are
expected to generate net cash inflows These are considered fo have an indefinire ife given the strength and durability of our brands and the
level of markehng support The nature of the industry we operate In 15 such that brand obsolescence 1s not commeon, If appropriately supported
by adverfising and marketing spend

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually at the CGU level by companing therr carrying amount fo
therr recoverable amount All other intangible assets are assessed at each reporting date for indications of impairment If such indications exist
the recoverable amount 1s estimated and compared 10 the carrying amount If the recoverable amount isless than the carrying amount the
carrying amount 1s reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprent s stated at cost net of straight line depreciation and any provision for impairment Where costs are incurred as
part of the start up or commissioning of an itemn of property, plant or equipment, and that iterm s available for use but ncapable of operating
in the manner intended by management without such a start-up or commissioning penod then such costs are iIncluded within the cast of
thererm Costs that are not directly attributable to bringing an asset to the lacation and condifion necessary for It to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management are charged to the tncome statermnent as incurred

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than freehold land, upen which ne depreciation 1s provided 15 calculated on a straight-line
basis and aims to write down their cost ta their estimated residual value over their expected useful ives as follows

Freehold buldings 40 to 50 years

Leasehold properties Shorter of remaining lease penod and 40 years

Aurcraft 23 years {or reraining lease penod if shorter) (2013 18 years)
Arcraft spares 5 to 15 years {or remaining lease perod f shorter)

Other plant property and equiprent 3to 15 years

Estimated residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriale ar each balance sheet date The accounting
eshimate for the useful life of aircraft was revised from 18 yearsto 23 years in 2014 This had animmatenal impact onthe financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued
3b Significant accounting policies continued

Arrcraft overhaul and mantenance costs

Major overhaul expenditure including replacement spares and labour costs 15 capifalised and amortised over the average expected life
between major overhauls Allother replacement spares and other costs relaling te maintenance of fleet assets (including maintenance
provided under “pay as you-go conteacts) are charged to the Income statement on consumption or as incusred respeciively

Provision 15 made for the future costs of major overhauls of operating leased engines auxiliary power units and airframes by making appropriate
charges fo the income staterment calculated by reference ro heurs flown and/or the expired lease period, as a consequence of ohiigations
placed upon the Group under the terms of certain operating leases

inventonies

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents purchase pnice Net reaiisable value represents the estirmated
selling price less all costs to be incurred in marketing, seling and distnbution

Denvative financial nstruments

The Group uses derwvanive financial instruments to hedge its exposure To inferest rate foreign exchange and fuel price risks ansing from
operational, financing and investrment actvties In accordance with its treasury pelicy the Group does not hold or ssue dervative financial
instrurnents for trading purposes However denvatives that do nat qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments

Dernvative financial instrurnents are inihally recogrised at fair value on the date a dervative contract s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at farr value The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derwative 1s designated as a hedging
instrument and 1f so the nature of the item being hedged

The gain or loss on re-measurement fo fair value, on dervafives not designated as a hedging instrument s recognised immedhiately in the
incorne staterment

Dervatives are presented on the balance sheet on a gross basis A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas
a denvative with a negative far value s recognised as a inancial iability A dervahive 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current hability
if the remaining matunty of the Instrument 1s more than 12 months and it is not expected 1o be realised or seftled within 12 maonths

Hedge accounting

For fair value hedges changesin the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designared as fair vatue hedges are recognised in the
Income statement as part of finance Income or cost ine where they offset the changes in fair value on the hedged irem Where the hedged
iterns designated in a fair value hedge relahionship of a financiak hability held at amornsed cost the change in fair value in respect to the hedged
risk is recorded as a fawr value adjustment within finance Income or cost

Fair value hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging nstrument exprres oris sold terminated or exeroised or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting At that pointin firme the changes in fair value an the hedging instrument will continue to be recogrised mmedately nto the
income statement, while the hedged temwill no longer be adjusted for farr value changes

The gain orloss on re measurernent o fair value on derivative finanaal instruments that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges of
future cash flows s recognised directly inoiher comprehensive incorne and the ineffective portion s recognised immediasely in the income
statement within nef operahing expenses

Forward points on foreign exchange forward contracts and tme value of options are not designated as part of the hedging relationship and
therefore arerecorded inthe income staternent within finance costs and costs of providing tounsm respectively

Changes in farr vatue deferred through the hedge reserve are recognised in the iIncome statemnent in the same penod of penods in which the
hedged highly probable forecast transactions are recogrised in the incorne statement

Cash flow hedge accounting 1s discantinued when the hedging insirument expires or 1s sold terminated or exercised or nolonger qualifies

for hedge accounting At that peint in fime, any cumulative gains or fosses on the hedging instrumment recognised in other comprehensive
incormne are retained unhl the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transachion s no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income 1s transferred fo the Incorne statement for the perod

Non-denvative financial instruments

Financiat assets and labilihes are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the insirument Financial assets
are derecegnised when the Group transfers the financial asset or when the contractual nights expre Financial habilities are derecogrised when
the obligation s discharged cancelled or expires The measurement of particular financial assets and habilines 15 set out betow

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents comprise cash balances and term deposits which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insigrificant nsk of changes in value and have an original matunty of three months or less Where the Group operates centrally pooled
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3 Signiftcant accounting policies continued
3b Significant accounting pohicies conttinued

accounts and has the intention and ability to pool account balances the net cash or overdraft position is disclosed Where the intention or abiliy
to pool balances fogether is absent, the cash and overdraft are disclosed on a gross basis in the consclidated balance sheet and the overdraft is
excluded from cash and cash equwalents for the purpose of the consahidated statement of cash flows

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised af therr farr value and subsequently recorded at amornised cost using the effective inferest method
as reduced by allowances for eshimated rrecoverable amounts An aliowance for irrecoverable amounts 15 established whenthere is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to callect all arounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables

The amount of allowance 1s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estirnated future cash flows

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assers are recogrised and subsequently recorded at therr fair value Gains or losses (excepr forimpairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses) are recogrised directly in equity unhil the financial asset 15 derecogrisec At thispoint the curnulafive gain or
loss previously recogrused in equity 1s recognised in the iIncome statement Any impairment fosses foreign exchange gains or losses or dividends
recevable are recognised in the income staterment

Held for trading investments

Short-term investrments and denvatives that are not designated in a hedge relationship such as natural hedges of a balance sheet exposure
are classified as held for trading and are recognised and subsequently recorded at therr fair value Gains or losses are recognised inthe
Incore staternent

Other non-current asset investments

The farr value of investments in equity instruments that de not have a quoted market price in an achive market are measured using an
appropriate valuahon techrigue Where a fair value cannot be rehably measured the investrent s measured af cost Loans and recevables
are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method Any impairment losses are recognised i the income statermment

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are ininally recognised af their fair value and subsequently recorded at amorhised cost using the effective
interest method

Borrowings
Interest beaning borrowings are snihally recognised at their fair value net of any directly atinbutable transaction costs They are subsequently
recorded at amaorhsed cost using the effective Interest method

Borrowings that are designated as hedged iterns in a fair value hedge relahonship are adjusted for changes in ther fair value in respect of the
hedged nsk The adjustment will be amortised to the income staterment af the time when the hedged itern ceases fo be adjusted for changes
inits fair value attrbutable to the hedged nisk

Provisions

The Group recognises a provision when there 15 a present obligation as a result of a past event f 1s probable that an outflow of resources wall
berequired to sertle the obligation, and a reliable esmate of the amount of the obligation can be made

Provisions are recognised at the Director s best estimate of the expenditure required to seftle the obligation af the balance sheet date
Where the effect of the tme value of money ismatenal the prowision 1s discounted fo its present value

This policy s applied to all elass of provisions

Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes The pension liabilifies recognised on the balance sheet in respect of these schemes
represent the difference between the present value of the Group s obligations under the schemes (calculated using the projected urit credit
method) and the farr value of those schemes assets Actuanial gains or losses are recognised In the period inwhich they artse within the
statement of comprehensive ncome and expense The unwinding of the discount rate on the scherne liabiliies and the expected returm on
scheme assets are presented as a net finance cost n the ncome statement Past service costs are recognised immediately in the income
statement in personnel expenses

Pension costs charged against profits in respect of the Group s defined contnbution schemes represent the amount of the contributions
payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting pertod The Group has no further payment obligations once the confriburions have
beenpaid

Share capital

Ordinary Shares including share prermium are classified as equity

—
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Transformation Year 2
Notes to the financial statements continued
3 Significant accounting policies continued

3b Significant accounting policies continued
Leases

Leases under which substanhally all of the nsk and rewards of ownership are fransferred 1o the Group are finance leases All other leases are
operating leases

Assefs held under finance loases are recognised at the fovrer of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the mirimur lease payments
within property plant and equipment on the balance sheet and depreciated aver the shorter of the lease term or therr expected useful ves
The inferest element of finance lease payments represents a constant prapertion of the capital balance outstanding and 1s charged to the
Incorme sfatermentt over the penad of the lease

Operating lease rentals are charged to the incorne statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Incormne ansing from operating leases where the Group acts as lessor 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term and included
Inoperating income due to its operating nature

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share ophions to certain emnployees as part of therr total remuneratien The far values of the share options are
calculsted at the date of grant using an appropnate ophion pricing model These fair values are charged to the Income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected vesting period of the options with a correspending increase in equity

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1s treated as a capital
contnbuhon The fair value of emplayee services seceived measured by reference to the grant date fair value 1s recognised over the vesting
period as an ncrease to nvestment in subsidiary undertakings with a corresponding credit to equity

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transachons with employees by reference to the fair vaiue of the equity instruments at the date
atwhich they are granted

Insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts

Prermiums written relate to business incepted duning the year together with any differences between rhe booked prermurms for prior years
and thase previcusly accrued, less cancellations Prermiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionally ever the penod
of coverage The portion of premium received on in force contracts that relates to unexpired nsks at the balance sheet date s reportedas a
pravision for unearned premium Premiumns are shown after the deduction of commission end premiumn taxes where relevant

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged fo the incorme staternent as incusred based on the eshimated liability for compensation owed
to policyhelders or third-parties damaged by policyheolders They include best eshimate direct and indirect claims seftlement costs ansing from
events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date even if they have not yet been reported to the Company Where applicable deductions
are made for salvage and other recoveries The Carmpany does not discount its labilihes for unpaid claims

Liabilities For unpaid claimns are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Carnpany and stahistical
analysis for the clairms incurred but nof reparted (IBNR) It 1s assurned that the development pattern of the current claims will be informed
by previous experience

The expected claims are calcutated hawing regard to events that have occurred prior 1o the balance sheet date

Contracts entered nto by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group 1s compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the
Group and that meet the classification requirements for Insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held The benefits towhich
the Group 1s entiiled under ifs reinsurance contracts held are recognised as receivables from reinsurers The Group assesses its reinsurance
assets forimparment on an annual basis

Recewvables and payables are recognised when due These include amounts due to and from insurance policyholders
Revenue recognition

The Group s revenue 1s measured as the aggregate amount of gross revenue receivable from inclusive tours, arrline travel services hatel
services travel agency commussion and other fravel services supplied to custormers in the ordinary course of business The Group records
revenue on a net basis after deduching trade discounts volume rebates, value added tax and compensation vouchers granted to customers
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods or services

Revenue relating to fravel services arranged by the Group s lersure and airline travel providers, ncluding travel agency commission and other
services are faken fo the income statement on the date of holiday and flight departure Revenue relating to other services provided by the
Group 1s taken to the Income statement as earned Revenue from the sale of goods 1s recognised when all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership 15 transferred to the customer, usually on delivery of the goods Monies recewved by the balance sheet date relating to holidays
commencing and flights departing after the period end are included within currens labilities as revenue received in advance

Expenses

Direct expenses relahng toinclusive tours arranged by the Group s leisure travel providers are taken to the incorne starement on holiday
departure or over the period to which they relate as appropriate Indirect expenses are recognised i the incorme statement over the period
rowhich goods and services are received by the Group
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3 Significant accounting policies continued
3b Significant accounting policies confinued
Separately disclosed stems

The Group separately discloses in the income statement non-recurnng itemns, iImpairment of gocdwill and amortisation of business
combination intangibles and 1AS 39 fair value re-measurement

Separately disclosed items namely items that are material either because of therr size or their nature and which are non-recurring are
presented within therr relevant Income staternent category but highlighted through separate disclosure The separate reporfing helps provide
a full understanding of the Group's underlying performance

Iterns which are ncluded within the separately disclosed category include

> profits/(losses) on disposal of assets or businesses and costs of acguisifons

> costs of integration of significant acquisitions and other major restruciunng programrmes

» significant goodwill or ofher asset imparrments

» matenalwite-down of assets/reassessment of accruals reflecting a more cautious evaluation inlight of current trading and econoric
condinons (excluding errors or prior year items) and

> otherindwidually matenal items that are untusuat because of therr size nature ar ncidence

Matenal business combination intangtble assets were acquired as a result of the merger between Thomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group plc and
other business combinations made N subsequent years The amaitisation of these intangible assets s significant and the Group's management
consider that it should be disclosed separately to enabte a full understanding of the Group's results

IAS 39 fair value re-measurement includes movernents in forward points related to foreign exchange forward contracts and time value of
options in cash flow hedging relahonships Both stems are subject to market fluctuahons and unwind when the aptions or forward contracts
mature and therefore are not considered to be part of the Group s underlying performance Interest ncomne and charges ansing on the Group’s
defined benefit pension schemes and interest charges ansing on the unwind of discount on exceptienal provisions and deferred consideration
are not considered to be part of the Group s underlying performance

The Group's management consider that thase terns should be disclosed separately tn enable a full inderstanding of the Grouo s results
Finance ncome and costs

Finance income comprises Interest income on funds invested, changes inthe fair value of held for trading interest related denvatives, and fair
value adjustrents to hedged items in a designated far value hedge

Finance costs comprise Inferest costs on borrowings and finance leases unwind of the discount on provisions net interest cost on pension
plan obligation changes in the farr value of held for frading interest-related denvatives movement in forward points on outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts in cash fiow hedging relanonships and changes in fair value of dervatives designated in a farr value
hedge relaticnship

The movement In forward ponts on outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts in cash flow hedging relationships is included as a
separately disclosed tem in the income statement under the description 1AS 3G fair value re measurement”

The changes in farr value on denvatives designated n a farr value hedge relationship and the fair value adjustment on hedged temnsinafari
value hedge relationship are separately disclosed in Note 8 under the description *I1AS 39 fair value re-measurement”

Tax

Current tax
Current tax s the amount of ncome taxes payable {recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (fax loss) for a period

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxahon authonties based on
tax rates and laws thar are subsrantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferredtax

De{erred tax1s recogrised on all temporary differences ansing fromn differences between the carrying amount of an asset or hability andits

tax base with the following exceptions

> Where the temporary difference arises from the inital recognition of goodwill or the inihal recognition of an asset or kability ina
transachion that 1s not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects nesher the accounhing or raxable profit orloss

> In respect of taxable temporary differences assocated with investmentsin subsicianes associates and joint arrangernents where the
niming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s prebable that the tempaorary differences will nor reverse in
the foreseeable future, and

> Deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
ternporary differences, tax losses or credits carned forward can be utiised

Deferred tax assets and habilihies are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset
15 realised or hability 1s settled based on tax rates and laws substantively enacred at the balance sheet date

Tax s recognised in the ncome statement untess it relates to an item recogrised directly m equity in which case the asseciated tfax is recognised
directly in other comprehensive ncome or equity respectively
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Transformation Year 2

Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies confinued
3b Significant accounting policies continued

Earsmings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earmings per share (EPS) data for its Ordinary Shares Basic EPS is calculaved by dividing the profit or
loss attributable to Qrdinary Shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period Diluted EPS 1s defermined by adjusting the weighted average number of Crdinary Shares outsranding for the effecrs of all dilutive
potential Ordinary Shares EPS measures for continuing operations have been presented in accordance with 1AS 33 The Group also presents
a basic and diluted underlying EPS measure based on underlying profit before tax as defined in separately disclosed items section above
Further details of the EPS calculation are presented in Note 11

3c Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Inapplying its accounting policies the Group has made estimates and assumphans concerning the future which may differ from the related
actual outcomes Those estimates and assumptions which have a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and habilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Revenue recognition

Akey judgement In recognising revenue is fo dishinguish where the Group s businesses act inthe capaaity of pnnaipal or agent so asto
deterrmune the accounhng as erther gross or net respectively inline with IAS 18 Revenue Recognimon The Group exercises judgement fo assess
principal or agency by considering if it 1s the prime obliger in all the revenue arrangements has pricing discretion and s exposed to inventory
and credit nisk in which case the Group will be principal to the arrangement

Residual values of plant, property and equipment

ludgements have been made in respect of the residual values and useful ecanomic lives of arcraft included in property plant and equipment
(see Note 13) Those judgements determine the amount of depreciation charged in the income statement

Impairment of goodwill

Judgerments have been made i respect of the amounts of future cperahing cash flows to be ganerated by certain of the Group's businesses
In order fo assess whether there has been any impairment of the amounts included inthe balance sheet for goodwill or intangible assets with
anindefintte life in relahion to those businesses

Special purpose entihes

The nature of the relationship with certain special purpose entines involved in leasing aircraft to the Group shows that they should be interpreted
as controlied by the Group and therefore consolidated eventhough the Group has no direct or indirect equity interest in those entihies

Recoverable amounts of deposits and prepayments

Eshrnates have been made in respect of the volumes of future trading with hoteliers and the credit worthiness of those hoteliers in order to
assess the recoverable amounts of deposits and prepayments made to those hotehers

Aircraft maintenance provisions

Provisions for the cast of maintaimning leased aircraft and spares are based on forecast aircraft uhiisation, estimates ¢f future maintenance costs
and planned rollover and renewal of the aircraft fleet

Tax

The Group operates in mary fax regimes and the tax implications of its operations are complex It can take several years for tax habilihes to be
agreed with the relevant authorthies Tax assets and labilifies represens rnanagement s estirnates of fax that will be payable or recaverable nthe
future and may be dependent on eshmates of future profitabihty

Inaddifion eshimates have been made in respect of the probable future urilisation of tax losses and deferred tax assets have been recognised
as aresult The recoverability of these assefs s dependent on the agreement of the losses with the relevant authonties and the eshimates of
future profitability

Retirement benefits

The consolidated financial statements include costs in relation to, and provision for retirernent benefit obligahons The costs and the present
value of any related pension assets and hahiliies depend on such factors as Iife expectancy of the members the salary progression of current
employees, the refurns that plan assets generate and the discount rate usedto calculate the present value of the habilities The Group uses
previous expenence and impartial actuanal advice 1o select the values of critical eshimates The eshmates and the effect of vanances in key
eshrnates, are disdosed in Note 32




4 Segmental information

For management purposes the Groupis organised into four geographicbased operating dvisiens UK and Ireland Continental Europe

Thomas Cook Group pic Annual Report & Accounts 2014 ‘I 35

Northern Europe and Airines Germany These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its pnimary segment information
Certain residual businesses and corporate functions are not allocated te these divisions and are shown separately as Corporate

These reportable segrments are consistentwith how information s presented to the Group Chief Executive {chief operahing decision maker)
for the purpose of resaurce allocaron and assessment of performance

The pnmary business of all of these operahing divistons is the provisian of leisure travel services and accordingly no separate secondary

segmental information 1s provided

Segmental information for these activiies 1s presented below

Continental Northern Airlines

UK Europe Europe Germany Corporate Total
Year ended 30 September 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue
Segrment sales 2,585 3958 1,153 1,299 - 8,995
Inter-segrment sales (56) (26) (8) (317) - (uo7)
Total revenue 2,529 3,932 1,145 982 - 8,588
Revenue by product
Tour aperations 7,096
Asrlines 2912
Other 589
Inter-segment saleg (2,009)
Total revenue 8,588
Result
Underlying profit/(loss) from operations 89 102 101 50 (19) 323
Separately disclosed operating iterms (95) (@1) - (16) (67) (219)
impairrnent of goodwill and amertisation of business
combinahon intangibles (48) 2 - - - (50)
Segment result (54) 59 101 34 (86) 54
Share of results of associates 2
Finance income 10
Finance costs (180)
Loss before fax (114)
Tax (1))
Loss for the year (115)
Otherinformation
Capital additions 54 20 15 B2 13 184
Depreciafion 43 7 17 78 1 146
Amortisation of iInfangible assets 1 11 1 - 4 27
Arnorhisahion of husiness combination Intangibles 6 3 - - - 9
Impairment of other intangible assers 1 1 - - - 2
Imparment of goodwili 41 - - - - i
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4 Segmental information confinued

Continental Northern Airhnes
UK Europe Europe Germany Corporate Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Assets
Segrment assels 2,638 3,665 1,523 1,145 7,249 16,220
Inter segment eliminations (10,640)
5,580
Investrnents in associates 14
Tax and deferred tax assets 200
Total assets 5,794
Liabilities
Segment habilihes (2,833) (2,322) (919) (776) (7,487) (14,337)
infer segment elminations 10,258
(4,079)
Tax and deferred tax liabilities (85)
Borrowings and obligations under finance leases (1,345)
Total habilities (5,509)

Inter segment safes are charged af prevailing market prices Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill other intangible assets property
plant and equipment trade and other recevables and cash and cash equivalents

Segment habilhies comprise frade and other payables revenue received in advance and provisicns
Capital addihons comprise additions to other intangible assets (Note 12) and property, plant and equipment {Note 13)

The entity 1s domiciled in the UK Revenue from external customers in the UK was £2,539m (2013 £2,879m) which s denved from the UK
segmental revenue shown above but excluding external revenue in Ireland and Spain-demiciled companies, which would otherwise be included
In the UK segment Revenue from external custorners n Germany was £3 747m (2013 £3 395m)

The total non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax (there are no employment benefits assets or nights ansing under
insurance contracts), located inthe UK was £1,720m (2013 £2,074m)




4 Segmental information continued
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Continental Northern Airhnes
Year ended 30 Septernber 2013 restated m i e e e i
Continuing operations
Revenue
Segmnent sales 2578 4195 1239 1312 — Q724
Inter-segrment safes (L6) (29) 7) (327) - (409
Total revenue 2932 4166 1232 985 — 3315
Revenue by product
Tour operations 7,759
Airdines 2988
Other 620
Inter-segment sales (2,052)
Total revenue 9315
The basis for revenue by product for 2013 has been re presented 1o align with how this infermation 1s now reportedinternally 1in 2014
Result
Underlying profit/{loss) from operations 66 78 109 48 (38) 263
Separately disclosed operating iterns (126) (29) 1 (®) (59) (219)
imparirment of goodwill and amortisation of business
combination intangsbles 27 ()] - - — (31}
Segment result {87) 45 110 42 {97} 13
Share of results of associates 1
Finance income 6
Finance costs (183)
Loss before tax {163}
Tax (50}
Loss for the year from continung operations (213)
Otherinformation
Capital additions 53 23 17 66 18 177
Depreciation 40 8 19 73 1 141
Amorhisation of intangible assets 12 14 1 - 4 31
Amortisation of business combination intangibles 10 4 - - - 14
Impairment of goodwill 17 - - - - 17
Impairment of ot her intangible assets - 8 - - - 8
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 - - - - 14
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4 Segmental information continued

Continental

Northern

Airines

UK Europe Europe Germany Corporate Total
tm £m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 2842 3,610 1687 1139 8414 17692
Inter-segment elirmsinations {11 595)
6 097
Investments in associates 14
Tax and deferred tax assets 174
Total assets 6 285
Liabilihies
Segment habilities (2,731) {2,208} (987) {693) (8,739) (15358)
Inter segment eliminations 11239
L119)
Tax and deferred tax habilhes (102)
Borrowings and obligahons under finance leases (1.516)
Total labiihies (5737)
5 Personnel expenses
2014 203
£m £m
Wages and salanes 792 899
Social security costs 98 120
Share-based payments —equity setiled {see Note 31) 4 8
Defined benefit pension costs (see Note 32} 3 12
Defined contnbution pension costs (see Note 32) 42 37
939 1,076
The average number of employees of the Group during the year was
2014 M3
Number Number
UK 9,720 12,641
Continental Eurcpe 6,568 7,253
Northern Europe 3,120 3,090
Airines Germany 2,997 2917
Corporate 267 247
22,672 26 L4

Disclosures of Directors remuneration share options long term incentive schemas, pension contnbutions and pension entitlements required
by the Comparues Act 2006 and those specified for audit by the Financial Conduct Authority are on page 102 withuin the Rernuneration report

and form part of these audited financial staternents

Disclosures in respect of remuneration of key managerment personne! are mcluded in Note 33
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6 Operating expenses

2014 013

Em L

Adverhsing expenses 144 148
Rents and expenses for bullding maintenance 10 134
Information 1echnology and telecommunication costs 161 138
Travel expenses and ancillary personnel expenses 54 82
Legal and consultancy fees 81 99
Immpairrnent of current and non-current assets, excluding goadwaill 32 b4
Insurance 12 JL
Training expenses 10 9
Qther taxes 2 2
Auditor s remuneration 5 7
Other operating expenses 22 26

633 720
Auditors’ remuneration

204 2013

£m Emn

Fees payable to Company s auditars and its associates for the avdit
of the parent company and consolidated financial statements 1 1
Fees payable to Company's auditor and Its associates for other services
Audit of subsichanes B o 3 2
Total audit fees 4 3
Other assurance services - 1
Othernon audit services not covered above 1 3
Total non-audit services 1 4
Total fees 5 7

Included in the above amount for audit of subsidianies £0 1m (2013 £0 1m) has been incurred in respect of the audits of the Group

pension schemes

Total non-audit services 1s inclusive of £0 7m payable in relation to the Group-wide Transformahion
Fees paid 1o the Company's auditors and their associates for services other than the statutory audit of the Company are not disclosed in

subsidianies accounts since the consolidated accounts of the subsidianes parent Thomas Cook Group plc are required to disclose non-audit

fees on a consolidated basis

A description of the work of the Audit Commuttee is sef cut (n the Corporate governance report on page 48 and includes an explanahon of how
auditor objechvity and independence 13 safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors

—
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7 Separately disclosed items

Restated

2014 2013
£m £m
Affecting profit from operations
Reorganisation and resiructunng costs (124) (127)
Costs associated with refinancing - (18)
Impanrment of goodwill and asset valuation reviews (57) (18
Onerous contracts and legal disputes (79) {59)
Amartisation of busingss combinatian intangibles 9) {14)
Provision for tax dispute resolution 2 {14)
Other (including hime value of options) (2) -

(269) (250)

Affeching net finance costs

Write off of unamorfised bank facility set up and related costs - (7
Nel interest cost on defined benefil obligation (15) {14)
Orher separately disclosed finance charges - (D
Unwind of discount on provisions and other non-current abilines (10) %)
IAS 39 fair value measurernent — forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracis @ 1

@n (31
Total separately disclosed items (296) {281)
Restructuring costs

Restructunng costs of £124m include £30m nrelatien to implementation of the first wave of our Cost-out and profit improvement programime,
and £60mm in relation to Group-wide restructuring achvity inaddihon £11m has been incurred in relation to IT rationalisation projects and £12m
following the disposal of non core UK businesses

Refinancing cosfs
Refinancing costs in the prior year relaled 1o the Group's refinancing announced in May 2015

Goodwill impairment and asset valuation reviews
Pre-disposal impairments were made in respect of Essential Travel (£11m) and Gold Medal (£28rm) and Elegant Resorts (£2m) Assetvaluation
reviews (£16m) relate to the UK and Continental Europe segment

Onerous confracts and legal disputes

In the year, the Group has assessed its posihon in respect of certain onerous contracts and made appropriate adjustments to assets on the
balance sheet and made provision for futuse losses under these cantracts These contracts ncluded £24m i respect of a UK outsouraing
contract This amount also compnises a seftlernent on disposat of £8m and f.41m in relation to EU261 claims As a result of a recent court ruling
the airines are liable fo compensate customers for delays caused by normal technical problems The Group has made a provision of E41m for
the potential Impact of the case on claims relating fo historic delays

Amortisation of business combination mtangibles

Material business combination infangible assets were acquired as a result of the merger between Thormas Coak AG and MyTravel Group plc and
other business combinathons rmade N subsequent years The amortisation of these intangible assets is significant and the Group’s management
conaider that it should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group s results

Provision for tax dispute resolution
A provision of £14m was made in FY13 fallowing an adverse third party sales tax jJudgement relating tc the Tour Operator Margin Scherme
in FY 14, the courts clanfied the law in this area and subsequenily £2m was released

Other
This relates fo the hirne value on fuel denivatives

Finance-related charges

See Nate 8 for details of finance income and costs The Group has provisions for future habilihes ansing from separately disclosed
arcumstances, primarily deferred acquisition consideration A nohonal interest charge of £10m on the discounied value of such prowisions is
recognised within separarely disclosed finance related charges The netinterest cost ansing on the Group's defined benefit pension schemes
15 £15m

IAS 39 farr value re measurement Includes movements in forward paints related to foreign exchange forward contracts and hime value of
options in cash flow hedging refationships Both items are subject to market fluctuations and unwind when the aphions or forward contracts
mature and therefore are nof considered to be part of the Group s underlying performance A £2m charge has been recognised in respect
of IAS39 allocations of the time value of dervative products




8 Finance income and costs
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Restated

204 2013
Em m
Underlying finance income
Income fror toans included in financial assets 1 -
Qtherinterest and similar iIncome 9 6
Underlying finance income 10 6
Underlying finance costs
Bank and bond inferest (89) (90}
Fee amorhisation ()] (7)
Letters of credit an {16)
Otherinterest payable 7 {14)
(132) (127)
Underlying aircraft-related finance costs
Interest payable () (7)
Finance costs inrespect of finance leases (17) (18)
(21) (25)
Underslying finance cost (153) {152)
et Underlying finance cosls (143) (L)
Separately disclosed finance costs
Waise off of unamornised bank facility set up and related costs - {7)
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligation (Note 32) (15) (14)
Discounting of provisions and other non-current liabiities (10) (9)
Other exceptional finance charges - (2)
Forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts 2 1
(27) (31)
Total net interest (170) (77N

Otherinterest payable ncludes fair value gain of £14m (2013 £3m loss) on bedging instrurments and fair value loss of £12m (2013 nil) on

hedged items n farr value hedges
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9 Tax
2014 013
£m [
Analysis of tax charge
Current tax
UK corporation tax charge for the year - -
adjustrments in respect of prior penods - 5
- 5
Overseas corporation fax charge for the year 23 42
adjustments in respect of prior periods (&) (3
17 39
Total current tax 17 L4
Deferred tax
tax (credit)/charge (e6) &
Total deferred tax (16) &
Total tax charge 1 50

The tax onthe Group's koss before tax differs from the thearehical amount that would anse using the UK standard carporation tax rate applicable

ta profits of the Company as follows

Restated

2014 213

Em £m

Tax reconahation

Loss before tax (114) (163)

Expected tax charge at the UK corporation tax rata of 22% {2013 23 5%) (25) (38)

Incorne not hable for tax ©) (1g)
Expenses not deduchble for tax purposes 30 15
Impairment for which no tax relief 1s due 9 7
Losses and other timing differences for which tax reliefis not available Bl 133

Utilisation of tax losses not previously recogrised (4) (n

Recognition of losses not previously recegnised (56) (75)
Derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised 18 G

Difference inrates of tax suffered on overseas earnings 7 (2)
Impact of changes in tax rates 5 7
Other 1 1
Income tax charge in respect of prior pericds (9) 18
Tax charge L 50

In addifion to the amount charged to the income statement, deferred tax relating to actuanal losses on pension schemes and the fair value
of derwative financial Instruments of £9m has been credited directly to equiry (2013 creditof £1m) UK corporation taxis calculated at
22% (2013 23 5%) of the eshmated assessable loss for the year Taxahon for other junsdictions is calculated at the rates prevaiing in the
respective Junsdictions

Surplus losses not recognised in deferred tax of £2 340m (2013 £1941mj) are available predominantly in the UK France and Spain for offset
against future profits




10 Dividends

No dvidends were declared during the year ended 30 September 2014 (2013 nl)

11 Earnings per share
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The calculations for earnings per share based on the weighted average number of shares, are shown inthe fable below The weighted average
number of shares shown excludes 21 milhon shares held by the employee share ownership trusts (2013 8 million)

Restated

2014 2013

Basicand dilutedloss per share £m £m
Net loss attnbutable to owners of the parent (118} (205}
millions milliens

Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted loss per share 1,440 1,196
Effect of diluhve porential Crdinary Shares —share options* 24 22
Weighted average nurnber of shares for diluted earnings per share 1,464 1,218
pence pence
Basic and diluted loss per share from conhinuing operations B2 (71}
2014 2013

Underlying basic and diluted earmings per share £m £m
Underlying net proft attributable to owners of the parent** 163 60
pence pence

Underlying basic earnings per share 13 50
Underlying dilufed earnings per share 11 49

* Awards of shares under the Thomas Cook Performance Share Plan Buy As You Earn Scheme Restricted Share Scherne and Co Investment Plan will be sanisfied by shares held in
trust and therefore are potentially diutive The remainder of the share schermes will be sahisfied by the purchase of existing sharesinthe market and will therefore not result i any
dilution of earnings per share

**Underlying net profit attnbutable to equity holders of the parent is derved from the pre exceptional profit before tax for the yearended 30 September 2014 of £182m
(2013 £118m) and deducning a nohional tax charge of £16m {2013 £67m) and taking nto account non controlling interests
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12 Intangible assets

Goodwill  Compurer software and concessions

Internally

Brandsand
custorner

Order

Qther

Purchased gdenerated relationships hacklog Purchased Total
£m Em fm £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Octrober 2012 3255 155 228 523 43 21 4 225
Additions - 5 48 - - - 53
Disposals (267) (30) 27 (&5) - - (369)
Transfer to non current assets held for sale (Note 27) (16) - - (2) - - (18)
Exchange differences 63 6 5 5 1 - 80
At 30 Septembar 2013 3035 136 254 481 4Ly 21 3071
Addinons - 5 34 — - 1 40
Disposals 89) (L) 9 (52) (2 (1) {170)
Exchange differences (158) (10} (13) (19) §))] 2 (203)
At 30 September 2014 2,788 127 266 410 m 6 3,638
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 October 2012 595 122 137 154 43 15 1066
Impairment loss 17 5 2 1 - - 25
Charge for the year - 6 25 14 - - 45
Disposals (267) {28) (21) (12) - - (328)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale (Note 27) {16) - - )] - - (18)
Exchange differences 15 6 4 — 1 — 26
At 30 Septernber 2013 344 M 47 155 4k 15 816
Imparrment loss - 1 - 1 — — 2
Charge for the year — 5 22 3 - - 36
Disposals 2 3) (8) (23) (2) (14) 62)
Exchange differences 13 (%) (3) - ) (1) 27
At 30 September 2014 319 105 158 142 L1 - 765
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2014 2,469 22 108 268 - b 2,873
A1 30 September 2013 2691 25 107 326 - & 3,155
The carrying value of goodwillis analysed by business segment as follows
2014 203
£m £m
UK 1,631 1756
Continental Europe 159 169
Northern Europe 659 745
Arines Germany 20 21
2,469 2,691

Goodwillimpairment testing

In accordance with accounhing standards the Group tests the carrying value of goodwall for impairment annually and whenever events or

crcumstances change
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12 Intangible assets contfinued

Impairment testing 15 performed by companng the carrying value of each cash-generating umit (CGU) to the recoverable amount determined
on the basis of the CGU's value inuse The value inuse s based on the net present value of future cash fiow projechions discounted af pre-fax
rates appropnate for each CGU The Group's COUs are determined by geographical market and consist UK Continental Europe Northern
Europe and Airines Germany

The future cash flow projections used to determine the value in use are based on the most recent annual budgets and three-year plans for

each of the CGUs The key assumptions used fo determine the business budget and three year plans relate ta capacity and the pricing of
accommaodahen and fuel inputs Capacity s based on management s view of market demand and the constraints to managing capacity such
as arrcraft lease commitments The accommodation pricing 1s primanly driven by the underlying bed rate and the foreign exchange hedges
inplace The forrmer s based on the businesses’ ongoing dialogue wish bed supplers and local cost inflation The fued pricing assumphicnis
prirmarnly driven by the fuel hedges in place and the forward fuel curve at the hme that the budget s set The key assumptions used to deterrmine
the Independent business’ budget and three-year plans relate to passenger volumes and commission rates and are based on the ndmidual
businesses view of the market conditions

Cash flow forecasts for years beyond the three year plan are extrapolated at an estimated average long-term norminal growth rate of 2%
A pre-taxdiscount rate of berween 11 3% — 12 4% reflechng the speaific nsks of each CGU s used to calculate the value in use for each of the CGUs

Sensitivity analysis has not been disclosed as management believe that any reasonable change in assurnptions weuld not cause the carrying
value of the CGUs to exceed ther recoverable amount

13 Property, plant and equipment

Otherproperty plant and equipment

Aircrafi and Freehold land Shart Other
awcraft spares and bulgings leaseholds Other Toral
£m Em Em Em Em
Cost
At 1 October 2012 1108 145 176 202 523
Addihons 95 2 6 21 29
Transfer to non current assets held for sale (Note 27) - - (N (n (12)
Disposals (22) m (329) {32) (72)
Exchange differences ) 7 3 17 27
At 30 September 2013 1227 153 145 197 495
Additians 17 1 7 19 27
Disposals 60) - (32) (40) (72)
Exchange differences and reclasstfications (156) (13) n (13) (15)
At 30 September 2014 1,128 L) 131 163 435
Accumulated depreciation and imparment
At 1 October 2012 508 46 112 123 281
Charge for the year 109 7 10 15 32
Provision for impairment - — - 14 14
Transfer tonon current assets held for sale (Note 27) - - - {L) )
Disposals (18) (1) (20) (26) w7
Exchange differences 25 3 2 16 21
At 30 September 2013 624 55 104 138 257
Charge for the year 123 4 8 11 23
Disposals (58) - (23) (32) (55)
Exchange differences and reclassifications (139) © - @) €3]
At 30 September 2014 550 53 89 16 258
Carrying amount
At 30 Septermber 2014 578 88 42 ur 177

At 30 September 2013 603 98 41 59 198
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13 Property, plant and equipment continued
Freehold land with a cost of £24m (2013 £25m)} has not been depreciated

The net book value of arcraft and aircraft spares includes £270m (2013 E284m) i respect of assets held under finance leases
The net book value of other praperty plant and equipment ncludes £10m (2013 £12m) inrespect of assets held under finance leases

The depreciahion of the owned assets during the year was E85m (2013 £92m) Depreciation for property plant and equipment hetd
under finance leases was £61m (2013 £49m)

2014 013
Capital commutments £m £m
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in the accounts 28 57

The Group 1s centractually commutted to the acquesition of four new Arbus A321 arrcraft as at 30 Septemnber 2014 which had a st price of
$96meach at the time of commitment before escalations and discounts Al are intended to be financed by sale and leaseback at delvery
datein 2016 Leases for two of the arcraft were signed as at 30 September 2014, subject to the purchase taking place and the operaling lease
comrmitment included in Note 29

14 Non-current asset investments

Associates

2014 2013

Em £m

Cost
At 1 October 2013 38 37
Disposals - (1)
Group's share of associates’ profit for the year 2 1
Dwvidend received from associate (2) -
Exchange differences (2) 1
At 30 September 2014 36 38
Amounts wnitten off or provided
At 1 October 2013 24 23
Exchange differences (2 1
At 30 September 2014 22 24
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2014 14 14
At 30 September 2013 14 14

Investments in associates at 30 September 2014 included a 40% interest in Activos Tunsticos S A anincoming agency and hotel company
based in Palma de Mallorca, Spain, and a 25% interestin Hotelera Adeje S L a hotel company based in Santa Cruz, Tenenfe

Summansed financialinformation in respect of associafed undertakings s as follows
2014 2013

£m £m
Total assets 80 102
Totalhabilities (22) (L3)
Net assets 58 59
Group s share of net assets 16 18
Revenue 43 52
Profit for the year 4 2
Group's share of associates’ profit for the year 2 1

The financial staternents of the associated undertakings are made up at different imes to that of the Group For the purposes of applying the
equity method of accounting the most recent financial statements of these underrakings and the management accounts are used to draw up
the finanoial posinon and performance of each associate




Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2014 1 L|7

15 Disposals

Disposals of businesses during the year

Thomas Cock UK Corporate

Egypr & Forewgn Neilsan Essennal Corporate
Thomas Cook Exchange Achve Travel Elegant Travel
Lebarson business  Hokdays Lid Liemred Resorts Gold Medal NATS Business Intounist Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m Em Em Egypt £m

Gross consideration 7 5 9 2 14 45 38 4 - 134
Complefiga adjustments
and transachon costs - 1 (8) 1 - (8 1 N - (1)
Dividend paid to NCI - - - - - - - Q) - Q)
Net consideration 7 6 1 3 14 37 39 9 - 116
Carrying amount of net
assets disposed €2)] (W (3) (3) (1) (37) (36) (1) 7) (126)
Profit/(loss) on disposals 0] 2 (2) - - - 3 () {7 (10)

Cashimpact of
the disposals

Net consideration 7 b 1 3 14 37 39 9 - 116
Cash and cash equivalents (3 (1) )] (1) 6] 9) - (1 - (32)
Net cash mflow/(outflow) 4 2 ) 2 6 28 39 8 - 84

Proceeds on disposal in the Group cash flow staternent includes a £9m termination penalty connected to Gold Medal, detailed below
The dividend paid to NCl of £4m 1s included in the table above and s then presented separately in the cash flow statement None of the
disposals histed below meet the criteria for a discontinued operation

Thomas Cook Egypt & Thomas Cook Lebanon
On 9 Gctober 2013, the Group announced that it had sold 100% of the Thomas Cook Egypt and Thomas Cock Lebanen businesses to Yusuf Bin
AhmedKanoo (Holdings) Co WLL of Bahrain

Thomas Cook CFX Limited
On 18 November 2013 the Group soldits UK Corporate Fereign Exchange business Thomas Cock CFX Ltd to Moneycorp

Netlson Active Holidays Limited
On 10 Decernber 2013 the Group sold its specialist actvity four operator Neilson Achive Holidays Lid to the private equity firm Risk Capital Pariners

Essential Travel Limited
On 24 January 2014 the Group sold its UK ancillary travel products business Essennial Travel Limited ta Holiday Extras Group The Group seftled
deferred consideration of £4m which was agreed at the ime of the acquisition of Essential Travel Lirmited (acquired in March 2010)

Elegant Resorts Limited
On 7 February 2014 the Group sold its UK luxury travel tour operator £legant Resorts Limited ta Al Tayyar aleading global travel group based in
Saudi Arabia

Gold Medal Limited

On 27 February 2074 the Group sold Gold Medal a UK-based distnbuter of leng haul scheduled fights hotels and car bure todnata the
Dubal-based travel company which 1s part of the Emirates Group The disposal generated net cash of £28m before payment of a £9m
termination penalty that crystallised fellowing the sale This payment is ncluded in proceeds on disposal of subsidianes in the cash flow

NATS Holding Limited

0n 19 Novernber 2013 the Group announced that it had agreed to sell 91 5% of its shareholding and loan note interests in The Airine Group
Lirmited which s a 41 9% shareholder in NATS Holding Limited to Universifies Superannuatien Scherme Limited The disposal was completed
on 18 March 2014 following competihion clearance from the European Commussion

Corporate Busness Travel

0On 27 May 2014, the Group announced the sale of the UK corporate travel business (Co operative Travel Management) to Mawasern Travel &
Tounism Ltd for a consideration of £14m The net consideration of £9m includes a £Eum dividend payable to nen controling inferest which s
shown separatety in the cash flow within inveshing activines

intourist Egypt
On 10 Septernber 2014 the Group sold 100% of the incoming agency mtourist Egypt to Essam Michel

Thomas Cook Canada inc and Thomas Cook USA Holdings inc
On 1 May 2013 the Group sold Thomas Cook Canada Inc and Thamas Cook USAHoldings Inc Dunng the year ended 30 September 2014,
the Group recewved the final cash payment of £1mn respect of the sale
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16 Inventories

2014 2013
£m fm
Goods held for resale 10 5
Arrline spares and other operating inventories 24 23
34 28
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense was £185m (2013 £189m)
17 Trade and other receivables
2014 2013
fm fm
Non-current assets
Otherrecevables 13 24
Deposits and prepayments 91 115
Loans 2 3
Securities - 1
106 143
Current assets
Trade recewables 252 270
Other recewvables L 43
Deposits and prepayments 390 Lhy
Loans 4 4
Amounts owed by associates and partiapations* 1 2
Other taxes 14 22
705 785

* Participations are equity investments where the Group has a sigrificant equity partiipation but which are not considered 1o be associates

The average credif peniod faken on invoicing of leisure travel services s 11 days (2013 12 days) Nointerest s charged on the receivables

The credit sk inrespect of direct recevables from custorersis imited as payment is required in full before the services are provided Inthe

case of travel services sold by third-party agents, the credit nsk depends on the creditworthiness of those third-parhies but this nsk s also imited

because of the relatvely short period of credit

Depasits and prepayments include amounts paid In advance o suppliers of hotel and other services in order to guarantee the provision of those

supplies The Group's current policy 1s that deposits and prepayments will normatly be made for penods of up to two years in advance Thereis

a credit risk in respect of the confinued operation of thase suppliers duning those periods Deposits and prepayments also nclude £53m
(2013 £32m) of deposits on aircraft lease arrangements which are pnmarily attributable to the UK airine

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance far smpairment 1s made where there

is an identified event which based on previous experience 15 evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows

Allowances for doubtful debis in respect of trade recevable balances are managed in the business urits where the debts anse and are based
onlocal management experience Factors that are considered include the age of the debt previous experience with the counterparty and local
trading condmons Trade recewvables arise from individual custorners as well as businesses in the travel sector The Directors do not consider

there to be significant concentration of credit nsk relating to trade and other recevables
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17 Trade and other receivables continued
Movement in allowances for doubtful receivables

2014 2013
£m fm
At beginning of year 4y 56
Additional provisions 14 8
Exchange differences - 2
Disposals - m
Transfer to non current assets held for sale - m
Recewables wnitten off (12 (16)
Unused amounts released (®) (&)
Atthe end of year 38 4k
Atthe yearend trade and other receivables of £69m (2013 £110m) were past due but notimparred
The analysis of the age of these financial assetsis set out below
Ageng analysis of overdue trade and other receivables
2004 2013
£m tm
Less than one month overdue 42 56
Berween one and three months overdue 15 30
Between three and twelve months overdue 10 13
Mare than fwelve months overdue 2 11
6% 110
Trade and other receivables are not subject to restnichions on title and no collateral 1s held as securiry
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate to therr farr values
18 Cash and cash equivalents
2014 203
Em £
Cash at bank and in hand L03 L
Term deposits 616 678

1,019 1,089

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bank balances denaminated in Sterling, Euro and other currencies for the purpose of sefting
current liabilities as welt as balances ansing from agency collechon on behalf of the Group s travel agencies

Included within the above balance are the following amounts considered to be restricted

> £38m (2013 £53m) held within escrow accounts in UK Switzerland and the Czech Republic in respect of locat regulatory requirements
> £18m {2013 £14m) of cash held by White Horse Insurance Ireland Limited and Voyager Android lnsurance Services, the Group's capfive
INsurance companies and

» £1m (2013 £8m) of cash held in countrnies where exchange control restrictions are in force (Egypt, Lebanon Tunisia and Morocco) net of cash

available to repay local debt inthose cauntries
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to therr far value
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19 Trade and other payables

2014 2013
£m im
Current habilities
Trade payables 1,268 1296
Amounts owed fo associates and particapations 2 3
Socaal secunty and other taxes 56 68
Accruals and deferred income 613 514
Other payables 144 114
2,083 1995
Non-current lilabilities
Accruals and deferred income 2 4
Other payables 88 93
90 97

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 72 days (2013 66 days)

Included within other payables (non current hatilinies) of £88mis £82m (2013 £75m) that represents the carrying value of a contingent
obligation o acquire from The Co-operative Group and Midlands Co operative (now Central England Co aperative) their shares (representing

a 33 5% ownershup interest) in the UK retail joint venture with the Company, formed by the merger of the three cornpanies high street refall
storesin 2012 The discounted obhigation was recognised at the hme of the merger andits fair value 1s subsequently reassessed at each period
end as the minenity shareholders have the right after 30 September 2016 to require the Company to acquire therr shares at 4 Ox EBITDA of the
Joint venture

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximare to therr fair value

20 Borrowings
2084 2013
Em Em
Short-term borrowings
Unsecured bank loans and other borrowings 82 135
Unsecured bank overdrafts 2 3
84 138
Current portion of long-term borrowings 365 39
449 177
Long-term borrowings
Bank loans and bonds
—repayable within one year 365 39
—repayable between one and five years 308 690
—repayable after five years 407 424
1,080 1153
Less amount due for settlement within ane year shown under current kabilimes (365) (39)
Armount due for seftlement after one year 715 1114
Borrowings by class
2014 203
Current Noa current Current Non current
£m £m tm £m
Croup commutted credit facility (including fransaction costs) 82 (12) - (19)
Aurcraft-related bank loans (ncluding ransaction costs) 53 n 39 65
Bank and other borrowings 4 12 138 15
Issued bonds (including fransaction costs) 310 704 - 1053

449 715 177 1114
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20 Borrowings continued

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group'’s borrowings with a carrying value of £1164m)s £1 227m (2013 carrying value £1,291m,
fair value £1,350m) £1077m (2013 £1,112m) of the farr value which relates to ssued bonds has been calculated using quoted market prices
For all other borrowings the Directors consider that the fair value of £150m (2013 £238m) 1s approximale to the carrying ameount In 2014

the Group has E63m as a secunty to aircraft (2013 £103m) and £14m asa secunty to property (2013 £16m)

Durning the year, £9m (2013 £7m) of the capitalised transacton costs relating to banking facilifies have been recognised within finance costs
In the Income statermnent

0n 27 June 2013 the Group completed a major £1 6bn recapitalisation of the business which included

> a 2 for 5 nghts ssue of 409,029 271 new Ordinary Shares at 76 pence per new Ordinary Share raising gross proceeds of £431m

> 1ssue of a new €525m Eurobond with a coupon of 7 75% which matures inJune 2020 and

> anew £470m four-year banking facility matuning n May 2017 to replace prior facilines together with an addihional £191m faclhty avalable
from 2015 and a separate £30m bonding fackity which maturesin May 2015

Borrowing facihifres

As at 30 Septernber 2014 the Group had undrawn committed debt faciliies of £2%7m (2013 £290m) and undrawn committed debt facilines
plus cash available to repay revolving credit faclity of £1168m (2013 £1 207rm) Whilst these facilifies have certain financial covenants they are
not expected to prevent full utiisahion of the faciities if required The Group has complied with ifs covenants throughout the year

Covenant measures

The covenant measures are tested on a quarterly rolling 12 month basis and consist of a leverage covenant and a fixed charge covenant
The leverage covenant 15 a measure of pre-excephional earnings before interest, tax depreciation amorhisation and awcraft operaning
lease rentals compared to net debt The fixed charge covenant 1s a measure of pre-exceptional earmings before inferest tax depreciation

amortisafion and operating lease charges compared to net interest and operating lease charges The leverage and fixed charge covenant
hurdles vary depending on the penod that they relate to and range between 1 54x 1o 3 59xand 1 84xto 2 45x respectively
21 Obligations under finance leases
Present value of
Minimum lease payments rniTum lease payments.
2014 2013 200, 2013
£m £m £fm £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 47 59 34 43
Between one and five years 148 165 119 126
After five years 35 67 28 56
230 291 181 225
Less future finance charges 9 (66) - -
Present value of {ease obligations 181 225 181 225
Less arnount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current habilities) (34) (4L3)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 147 182
The currency analysis of amounts payable under finance leasesis
2014 2003
Em im
Euro i3 15
US dollar 168 210
181 225

Finance leases principally refate to aircraft and arcraft spares
No arrangements have been ertered into for contingent rental payments

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's finance lease obligahons with a carrying value of £181m was £181m at 30 September
2014 (2013 carrying value £225m, fair value £239m) The fair values quoted were determined on the basts of the interest rates for the
correspending terms to sepayment as at the year end The Group s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessars' nghts over

the leased assets
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22 Financialinstruments

Carrying values of financial assets and habilihes

The carrying values of the Group's financial assets and labilities are as set out below

30September 2014 305eptember 2013
Derivative Denvative
instruments Financial instruments Firanoal
indesignated liabilities at indesignated habibities at
Held hedging Loans & Avartable amorhsed Held hedging Loarss & Avatlable armortised
for trading relationshups  receivables for sale cost fortrading  relahonshrps recenvables for sale cos!
m £m fm fm Em Erm fm £m £rn £m
Non-current asset
Investments - - — - = - - - 1 -
Trade and other recevables - - 397 - - - - 404 1 -~
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,019 - - - - 1,089 - -
Trade and ather payables - - - - (1,898) - - - - (1922)
Borrowings - - - - (1,164) - - - - {1,290}
Obligations under finance
leases - - - - (181) - - - ~ (225)
Provisions ansng from
contractual obligations - — - - (371) - - - ~ (395)
Denvative financial
instrurments (5) 23 - - - @ (4o - - -
{5) 23 1,416 - (3,61W) ) {40} 1493 2 (3832
Denvative financial instruments
The fair values of derivative financial nstrurnents as at 30 Septernber 2014 were
Interest rate Currency Fuel
swaps canfracts confracts Total
£m Em £m £rn
At 1 October 2012 (1) (35) 3] (33)
Maverment in farr value during the year ) (3 (5 Q)
At 1 Ocrober 2013 () (38) 1 “2)
Movement in fair value during the year 16 80 (36) 60
At 30 September 2014 1 42 (35) 18
2014 2013
£m fm
Non-current assets 19 -
Current assets 68 25
Current liabilities (66) (6L
Non-current iabilihes 3) 3)
18 {a2)

Faiwr value hierarchy

The farr values of the Group's financial instruments are disclosed in hierarchy levels depending on the valuation method appled The different

methods are defined as follows
Level 1
Level 2

Level 3
be based on observable market data

valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical inancial Instruments

valued using techniques based on information that can be obtained from observable market data

valued using techriques incorporating information other than chservable market data as at least one mput to the valuahcn cannat




Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounrs 2014 1 5 3

22 Financial instruments continued
The farr values of the Group s financial assets and labilihes are set out below

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Currency contracts - 72 - 72
Fuel contracts - 4 - 4
Interest rate swaps - 11 - 1
Financial habilihies
Currency contracts - (30) - (30)
Fuelcontracts - (39) - (39)
Interest rate swaps — - - -
At 30 September 2014 - 18 - 18
Financial assets
Currency contracts - 15 - 15
Fueld contracts - 10 - 10
Securities 1 - - 1
Financial habilihies
Currency contracts - (53) - {53)
Fuel contracts - (%) - (9)
Interest rate swaps - &) - 5}
Al 30 September 2013 1 (V)] - (41)

The fair values of financial instruments have been calculated using discounted cash flow analysis

The Group uses derivative financial nstruments to hedge sigrificant future iransactions and cash flows denominated in foreign currencres
The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts swapsand options in the managernent of its exchange rate exposures The fair value
of currency contracts designated in a cash fiow hedge as at 30 September 2014 was an asset of £47m {2013 £33m liability)

Currency hedges are entered into up to amaximum of 18 months in advance of the forecasted requirement

As af 30 September 2014 the Group had in place currency hedging derivative financial instruments with a maximum matunty of February
2016 (2013 October 2014)

The Group also uses denvative financial :instrurments fo mitigate the sk of adverse changes in the price of fuel The Group entersinto fixed price
contracts (swaps) and net purchased options in the management of its fuel price exposures All fuel hedges are designated as cash flow hedges

Fuel price hedges are entered intc up to a maximurm of 18 months in advance of forecasted consumption of fuel Trades with maturities longer
than 18 months need additional approval inline with freasury policy As at 30 Septemnber 2014, the Group had in place fuel pnce hedging
dervative financial instrument s with a maximum matunty of Apnk 2016 (2013 December 2014}

In addition the Group uses derwvative financial Instruments to manage (ts Interest rate exposures The Group enters into interest rate swaps

to hedge against interest rafe moverments in cannection with the financing of arcraft and other assets andta hedge against inferest rate
exposures on fixed rate debt The Group alsc enters into cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate and the currency exposure
on foreign currency external borrowings

The farr value of interest rate swaps and cross currency contracts n designated fair value hedge relationshios at 30 September 2014 was an
asset of £11m (2013 £2m labiity) andin designated cash flow hedge relationships at 30 Septernber 2014 was a hability of Enil (2013 £3m
hiability)

Asat 30 Septernber 2014, the maximum matuitty of Interest rate denvatives was lune 2020 (2013 June 2020}

The farr values of the Group's dervative financial instrurnents have been calculated using underbying market prices avallable on
30 September 2014
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22 Financial nstruments continued

During the year, aloss of £45m (2013 £9miloss) was transferred from the hedge reserve to the income statement following recognition of the
hedged transactions The amount included in eachline item n the income statement 1s shown below inaddimon aloss of £2m was recognised
inthe income statement (n respect of the forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging centracts (2013 £2m gan) and a loss of £2m
inrespect of the movement in the fime value of options in cash flow hedging relationships (2013 £am loss)

2014 2013
Em £m
Cost of providing toursm services
—release from hedge reserve (45) )
~time value on optians 2 @)
Finance income/{costs)
—forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts 2) 2
—fair value movements on denvatives in designated farr value hedge 11 (3)

During the year, aloss of £27m (2013 £2m loss) was 1aken directly to the income staferment in respect of held for rading denvatives that are
used to hedge Group balance sheet exposure This has been recorded within net foreign exchange gain for the year of £39m (2013 £12m gain)
which isincluded within cost of providing tounsm services

The closing hedging reserve excluding the impac! of tax, was a gain of £13m (2013 £32mloss) The perods inwhich the cash flows are
expected to occur and when they are expected fo impact the income statement are a gain of E7m (2013 £30m loss) within one year and a gain
of £6rm (2013 £2mloss) between one and five years

Offsetting financial assets and finanaial labilities

The following financial assets and habihinies are subject ro offsething, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements

Related amounts not set off inthe

balance sheet
Gross amounts of
recognised financhal
Grossamountsof  (Liabilities)/assets Net amounts
recognlsed financial set off Inthe presented in the Financial Cash collateral
assets/{liabilihes) balance sheet balance sheet nstruments received Net amount
As at 30 September 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Denvatives financial assets 87 - 87 (u7) - 40
Dernvatives financial liabilities {69) - 69 47 - (22)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,665 (646) 1,019 - - 1,019
Bank overdrafts (648) 646 ()] - - @
Tatal 1,035 — 1,035 - - 1,035
Related amounis not set off in the
balance sheat
Gross amounts
of recognised
Grossamountsof  financel (labilihes) / Netamounrs
recognised inancial assets seroff inthe presentednihe Financial Cash collateral
assers/(labilines) balancesheet balance sheet Instruments recewved Net amount
As at 30 Septernber 2013 £m £ £m £m £m £m
Dernwvatives financial assets 25 - 25 (24) - 1
Dernwvahives financial habilimes 67) - {67) 24 - u3)
Cash and cash equivalents 3,345 (2,256) 1089 - - 1089
Bank overdrafts (2 259) 2,256 (3) - - {3
Total 1,044 - 1,044 - - 1,044

For the financial assets anc labilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar arrangemenis above each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and habiliries when both elect fo seftle an
anet basis Inthe absence of such an election financial assers and habilities will be seftled on a gross basis however each party to the master
nerning agreement or similar agreement will have the ophan to seftle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party
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23 Finanaial risk

The Group Is subject te risks related to changes in interest rates exchange rates, fuel prices counterparty credit and liquidity within the
framework of its business operations

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s subject to risks ansing from nterest rate movernenis in connechon with the issue of Eurobonds bank debt arrcraft finanang
and cashinvestments Interest rate swaps are used o manage these risks and are designated as both cash flow and farr value hedges

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group has activities In a large number of countries and s therefore subject fo the nsk of exchange rate fluctuations These nsks arise
in connectionwith the procurernent of services in destinations outside the scurce market Forexample US Dollar exposure arises on the
procurement of fuel and operating supplies for arrcraft, as well as investments in arcraft

The Group requires segments to identify and approprately hedge all exposures in line with approved freasury policies designed to reflect
the commercial sk of each underlying business Each segmental hedging policy includes the hedging build up and perrmitted instruments
The maximurm hedge tenoris 18 months and each segment should achieve at least an 80% hedge ratio prior to the start of the season

The Group uses currency forwards currency swaps and currency options to manage currency risks and these are usually designated as cash
flow hedges

Fuel price nisk

Exposure ta fuel price nsk anses due o flying costs incurred by the Group's arcraft

The Group requires segments to identify and appropriasely hedge all exposures in ine with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commercial risk of each underlying business Each segmental hedging policy includes the hedging build up and permitted insiruments
The maximum hedge tenoris 18 months and in general each segment should achieve at least an 80% hedge ratio prior ta the start of

the season

The Group uses commodity derivative contracts including fixed price contracts (swaps) and net purchased ophions to manage fuel price nsk
and these are usually designated as cash flow hedges

The market risks that the Group 1s subject to have been identified as interest rate nsk foreign exchange rate nsk and fuel price nsk The impact
of reasonably possible changes in these nsk vanables on the Group based on the period end holdings of financial instruments have been
calculated and are set out In the tables below In each case t has been assumed that all other vanables remain constant As at 30 September
2014 the sensitivity of these risks to the defined scenano changes are set out below

Interest rate nisk

2014 2013
Impact Impact
on profit Impact on proht Impact
before tax onequity beforetax on equity
fm £m Em £m
1% {2013 1%) increase in inferest rates 6 — 4 -
0 25% {2013 0 25%) decrease in interest rates 1) - (1) -
Foreign exchange rate nsk
20ty 20173
Impact Impact
on profit tmpact on profit lmpact
before tax on equity before tax onequity
£m £m Em £m
5% (2013 5%) strengthening of Euro (1) 17 (57) 11
5% (2013 5%) weakerung of Euro - (16) 45 6]
5% (2013 5%) strengthening of US Dollar (5) 70 &) 65

5% (2013 5%) weakening of US Dollar 4 {65) 3 {53)
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23 Financial nsk continued

Fuel price nsk
2014 2013
Impact Impacs
onprofit Impact anproht Impact
before tax oneqguity before tax onequily
Em £m £m £m
10% {2013 10%) increase in fuel pnce 3 52 - 43
10% (2013 10%) decrease in fuel price 3) (52) (5) (38)

Given recent histonical moverments in fuel prices management believes a 10% shift 1s a reasonable possibibty

Liquidity nsk

The iquidity positian of the Group 15 significantly influenced by the beoking and payment pattern of custorners As aresull, hquidity 1s af irs
lowesi In the winter months and at its highest in the surmnmer manths The Group manages the seasonal nature of its hiquicity by making use
of tsbank facility the terms of which Including the covenant measures are detalled in the borrowings note (refer to Note 20) The Group also
uses hquidity swaps to manage short term currency posiions These iquidity swaps are presented as held-for-trading financial instrurments

The undrawn committed debt facility plus the cash avallable ranged besween £168mand £1168m dunng the current financial year
{2013 £218m-£1,234m)

Surplus sharr-term iquidity 15 Invested in accardance with approved treasury policy

Financal labilmes are analysed below based on the time between the penod end and their confractual matunty The amounts shown are
estimates of the undiscounted future cash fiows and will differ from both carrying value and fair value

2014 2013
Amounts due Amounts due
between between
inless than Jand12 between inmore than nless than 3and 12 berween inmore than
3months months 1and5years 5years Total 3 months months  1and 5 years 5years Total
£m £m £m Em £m frn £m £m £m Em
Trade and other payables 1,576 230 88 i 1,898 1753 73 92 4 1922
Borrowings 95 380 365 587 1,427 a7 32 825 644 1648
Oblgatiens under
finance leases 12 34 148 35 229 13 ub 165 &7 291
Denvatve financial
instrumenis
—payable 681 1,31 388 - 2,380 1,084 1234 139 — 2456
—recewable {686) (1,311) (u01) - (2,398) (1079) (119%) {132) — (2 404)
Provisions ansing from
contractual obhgahons 72 157 77 65 in 51 181 124 36 395
1,750 801 665 691 3,907 1969 372 1213 75¢4 4L 308

For all gross seftled denvatwe financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts and swaps, the pay and recetve leg has been
disclosed inthe table above For net settled dervatve financial nstruments such as fuel swaps and options the fair value as at the year end
of those instrumentsin a habiity position has been disclosed in the table above Trade and ofher payables include non-financial kabilihes of
£277m (2013 £170m) which have not been analysed above

Counterparty credit nisk

The Group s exposed to credit nsk in relahon fo deposits outstanding dervatives and trade and other recevables The maximum exposure
in respect of each of these items af the balance sheet date is their carrying value The Group assesses Ifs counterparty exposurein relafion fo
the investrnent of surplus cash fuel coniracts foreign exchange and inferest rate hedging contracts and undrawn credit facilifies The Group
primanly uses published credit rahings fo assess counterparty strength and te define the credir it for each counterparty in accordance with
approved freasury pohcies

The Group's approach to credit nisk in respect of trade and other recevables is explained in Nate 17
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24 Insurance
Management of msurance nsk

Incidental toits main business the Group through its subsidiary White Horse Insurance Ireland Limited issues contracts that transfer significant
insurance nsk and that are classified as nsurance contracts Asa general guideline the Group defines as sigmificant nsurance nisk the possibiliry
of having to compensate the policyhelder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder

Business written includes standard commerciai nisks for the Group and travel insurance for both Group and non-Group customers, however the
commeraial nsks for the Group were fully commuted prior to the financial year end

The prinapal nature of travel insurance nsks 1s ane of short term, low value and high volume Underwriting performance 1s morutored onan
ongoing basis and priang reviewed annually for each individual contract Exposure is capped by specific kmirs within the insurance policy and
by using reinsurance contracts for any daims in excess of these retention imits Commercial policies have been fully comenuted at the year end

Insurance risk 1s spread across several European countries where the Group operates including the UK, Irefand and Confinental Europe

When eshmating the cost of claims outstanding at the year end, the principal assurmption underlying the esiimares s the Group s past
developrnent pattern Thisincludes assumptions in respect of historic claims costs, average dlaims handling expenses and market
developments The Group also uses an independent actuary to review its habilinies to ensure that the carrying values are adequate Any changes
to these vanables are not expected to have & matenal effect on the Group financial statements

The Group operates a reinsurance policy approved by the White Horse Insurance Ireland Ltd Board of Directors which ensures that reinsurers
have a financial stability rahing of A (S&P) The Group has assessed these credit ratings as being satisfactory in diminishung the Group's exposure
tothe credit nsk of itsinsurance recevables

25 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred fax labibhies and assets recognised by the Group and movernents thereon during the current and prior
reparting year

Aurcraft Rehrermnent Fair value Qther
finance benefit of financial termporary
leases obligations nstruments differences Taxlosses Toral
£m Em Em Em Em £m
At 30 September 2013 (63) 43 - (26) 161 115
{Charge)/credit to income () (3) 2 54 (33) 16
Credit/{charge)} to equity - 19 {10) - - 9
Reclassifications - — - (55) 55 -
Disposats - - - 3 - 3
Other - - 4 () - -
Exchange differences 5 (3) - 5 (u) 3
At 30 September 2014 {62) 56 ) (23) 179 146
Certain deferred tax assets and habilihies have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporfing purposes
2014 2013
£m £m
Deferred tax liabilifies u9) (53)
Deferred tax assets 195 168
146 115

At the balance sheet date the Graup had unused fax losses of £3 150m (2013 £2 625m) available for offset against future profits Deferred tax
assets have only been recognised where there is sufficient probability that there will be future taxable profirs aganst which the assets may
be recovered

—
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25 Deferred tax contiued

No deferred tax asset has been recogrised in respect of taxiosses of £2 340m (2013 £1 941m) due to the unpredictability of future
profit sireams

Othenlemporary differences onwhich deferred sax has been provided primarily relate fo the difference in book to fax value on qualfying tax
assets provisions for which tax relief was not aniginally available and fair value accounting on assets acguired as part of the merger

Inadditien the Group had unused other semporary differences in respect of which no deferred tax asser has been recognised amounting
to £295m (2013 £385m) also due to the unpredictability of fuiure prafit streams

Deferred tax habilities were offset against the corresponding deferred fax assets where both items fell within the responsibility of the same
tax authanty

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% (effechive from 1 Apnl 2014) and 20% (effective from 1 Apnl 2015) were
substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 resulting in a UK current tax rate of 22% applicable to the year ended 30 September 2014

The UK deferred tax assels af 30 Septernber 2014, have been calculated based on the rate of 20% substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

26 Provisions

Aircraft Reorganrsafion Deferred and
maintenance OF marker Insurance and  andrestructunng confingent Other

Provisions leases Imgation plans consideranon provisions Total

£m m £m fm fm Em fm

At 1 October 2013 256 30 40 43 5 45 419
Additional provisions in the year 96 1 97 17 - 7 218
Unused amounts released n the year 21 (9) {L) (ts) - (7) (ti5)
Unwinding of discount 6 3 - - - 3 12
Utilisation of provisions 97) <) (u3) (32) (5) (19) {205)
Exchange differences (&) m - m - {1) 9)
At 30 September 2014 234 15 90 23 - 28 390
014 2013

£m fm

Included in current habilities 247 247
Included in non-current labiifies 143 172
390 mn9

The arcraft maintenance provisions relate to mainfenance on leased aircraft and spares used by the Group s arlines in respect of leases which
include contractual return conditions This expendiiure arises al different times over the hife of the arcraft with major overhauls rypically
occurnng between two and ten years The aircraft maintenance provisions are re assessed af least annually in the normat course of business
with a corresponding adjustrnent made to either non current assets (aircraft and arrcraft spares) or arcraft costs

Off market leases relate to leases acquired in previous years through fhie Resort Mallorca Hotels Internanional S LU (HilHotels) acquisition
The Co-operafive Group and Midlands Co-operative and MyTravel Group plc mergers which have commifments in excess of rthe market rate
at the ime of the transaction

Insurance and Imigation represents costs related to legal disputes, custorner compensation claims and estirated costs ansing through insurance
contracts in the Group's subsidiary, White Horse Insurance Ireland Limited Reorgarisahion andrestructuring plans predominantly represent
commuitted restructuning costs in the UK and Conhinental Europe segments

“Other” represenis liabilities where there ts uncerfainty of the hiring or amount of the fufure expenditure required in settlement and includes
such iferns as onerous contracts, dilapidations and emissiens trading kabilihies This grouping contains ne single category larger than £15m
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27 Discontinued operations and assets classified as held for sale
There are no discantinued operaticns or assets classified as held for salein 2014

Following the sale on 1 May 2013 of the business previously disclosed within the North America segment, the results of these businesses have
been included as discontinued operations

Consohdated income statement - discontinued operations

‘Year ended 30 Septerber 2013

Separately
Underlying disclosed
results items Total
£m fm fm
Revenue 175 - 175
Cost of providing tounsm services (1u3) - (143)
Cross profit 32 - 32
Personnel expenses (22) - (22)
Depreciation and amortisation (3 - {3
Net operating expenses ) - Q0
Profit/(loss) on disposal of assets — 4 4
impairment of goodwill and amornisation of business combination intangibles - 1) M
(Loss)/profit from operations (3) 3 -
(Loss)/profit before tax 3 3 -
Tax -
Profit/(loss) for the year -
Cash flows - disconhinued operations
2013
£m
Net cash used in operating activities (30)
Net cash (used in)/from investing actwihies (2)
Assets classified as held-for-sale
2013
fm
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8
Non-current asset investments 57
Inventories 4
Trade and other receivables 16
Cash and cash equivalents 5
70
2013
£m
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 17

17
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28 Called-up share capital

Alotted called up and

Allotied <alled up and fully paid partly pad

Ordinaryshares  Qrdinary Shares  Deferred Shares Deferred shares

Ordinary Shares Crdinary Shares Deferred Shares of 0 i0each of €0 O each of €009 each of £1 each

of 0 10 each of €001 each of €0 09 each £m fm Em 25ppad

Af 1 October 2012 885,600,334 - - 60 — ~ 50000
Exercise of warrants 45,081 604 21800777 - 4 - - —
Capital reorganisation {934981938) 9340981938 934981938 (64) 6 58 -
Private placement - 87591 241 - — 1 - -
Rightsissue - 40902920 - — 4 - -
At 30 Septernber 2013 — 1453403227 934981938 - 11 58 50,000
Exercise of warrants - 7373186 — — - - —
At 30 September 2014 - 1,u60,776,413 934981938 - 11 58 50,000

The Ordinary Shares carry the nght to the profits of the Cornpany available for distnbution and to the return of capital on a winding up of the
Company The Ordinary Shares carry the nght to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company each share holds the nght to one vote
The Ordinary Shares are adrmitred 1o the premium segment of the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange s man market
Both classes of Deferred Shares carry no night to the profits of the Company On a winding up, the holders of the sterling-denominated Deferred
Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each stering-denominated Deferred Share and the holders of the
euro-denominated Deferred Shares would be entitled to receve an amount equal fo the capifal paid up on each euro denorminated Deferred
Share only after the holders of the Ordinary Shares and stering-denorminated Deferred Shares have received, in aggregate the amounts paid
upthereon The holders of both dasses of Deferred Shares are not enhitled to receve notice, attend, spesk or vate (whether on a show of hands
or on a poll) at general meetings of the Company

Contingent nghts to the allotment of shares

As at 30 September 2014 ophions to subscribe for Ordinary Shares were outstanding with respect to the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007
Performance Share Plan the Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Co-lnvestrment Plan the Thomas Cook Restricted Share Plan and the Thomas Cook
Group plc 2008 Save As You Earn Scheme For further details refer to Note 31 On exercise the awards of shares under the plan will be satisfied
by either purchases in the market of existing shares or, subject to nstituhonal guidelines 1ssuing new shares

As part of the £200m bank facility announced on 25 Novernber 2011, the Company issued warrants to cerfain of s fenders, giving holders
the nght at any hme untid 22 May 2015 to subscribe for up fo an aggregate of 42 914 640 Ordinary Shares (representing approximately 4 9%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of ssue) af a subscription price per share of 19 875 pence

On 10 May 2012 the Company issued warrants as part of the bank facility amendment announced on 5 May 2012 to cerfain of its lenders
giving halders the night, at any time unhl 22 May 2015 fo subscribe for up to an aggregate of 43,749,516 Ordinary Shares representing
approximately 5 0% of the issued share capital of the Cornpany at the date of issue (subsequently increased by 4 440,376 Ordinary
Shares ta refiect the Company s Rights Issue and Placing inJune 2013}, at a subscription price per share of €010 {subsequently adjusred
to €0 0857282 toreflect the Campany's Rights Issue and Placing in June 2013) In addition, the Warrants 1ssued as part of the bank facility
announced in Novernber 2011 were re-priced to the same exercise price As at 25 Novernber 2014, three Warrantholders had exercised
their Subscription Rights inrespect of 7 373 186 Warrants (exercised into Ordinary Shares on a one-for one basis)

Own shares held in trust

Shares of the Company are held under trust by EES Trustees International Limited in respect of the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007 Performance
Share Plan, the Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Co Investrment Plan and the Thomas Cook Restricted Share Plan Equinih Share Plan Trustees
Limired hold shares in connection with the Thomas Cook Group plc Buy As You Earn Scheme Inaccordance with IFRS these are treated as
Treasury Shares and are included in - otherreserves’ in the balance sheet

The number of shares held at 30 September 2014 by EES Trustees International Limited and Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited was
20 865104(2013 17 245 721) and 381,015 (2013 438 615) respectively The cumulative cost of acquisiiion of these shares was £30m
(2013 £30m) and the market value at 30 Septemnber 2014 was £25m (2013 £27m) Shares held by the Trust have been excluded from
the weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of earmings per share

Capital management

The Group s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group s ability 1o conhinue as a going concernin order to provide returns
for Shareholders and benefits for other stakehoiders and to mantan an optimal capital structure fo reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure of the Graup consists of debt cash and cash equivatents and equity atinbutable to equity holders of the parent
{as shown in the Group balance sheet) At the balance sheet date the Croup had total caprital of £573m (2013 £931m)
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29 Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payrments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows

Property Aircraftand Property Aircraft and
and other  aircraft spares Total angother  arcraft spares Total
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Em £m £m £m £m Em
Within ane year 72 96 168 60 65 125
Later than one and less than five years 178 357 535 141 241 382
After five years 146 473 619 176 477 653
396 926 1,322 577 783 1160

Operahing lease rentals payable charged to the incorme statermnent for hire of arcraft and arcraft spares was £106m (2013 £101m) and other
£102m (2013 £115m) Operating lease payments principally relate to rentals payable for the Group’s retail shop and hotel properties and for
arcraft and spares used by the Group s arines Shop leases are fypically negotiated for an average termaf five years Leases for new aircraft are
typically negohated for an average term of 12 years, leases for second-hand arrcraft and extensions are typically much shorter

30 Contingent liabilities

2014 2013
£m Em

Contingent habilities 102 101

Conhngent abilines primarily compnse guarantees letters of credit and other contindent habilities including contingent habilihes related
tostructured aircrafi leases all of which anse inthe ordinary course of business The amounts disclosed above represent the Group s
contractual exposure

The Group complies with all the standards relevant fo consumer protection and formal requirernents in respect of package four confracts and
has all the necessary licences for the various sates rarkets The custorners right to reimbursement of the return travel costs and amounts
paid in case of nsolvency or bankruptcy on the part of the tour operator or travel agency s guaranteed in all Thomas Cook sales markets in
line with local legislation and within the vanous guarantee systerns apphed In the United Kingdomn, there 1s a fund rmecharmism whereby travel
companies are required to collect and rernit a smalt charge for each protected custorner upon backing Customer rghts in relafion fo Thomas
Cook Group In Germany, Belgwm and Austna are guaranteed via aninsolvency insurance system n Ireland, Scandinavia and France wia
guarantees provided by banks and insurance companies, and in tha Netherlands via 2 guaranteed fund

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group 1s subject to commercial disputes and tigation including customer claims, employee disputes
and other kinds of lawsuits These matters are inherently difficult to quantfy Inappropriate cases, a provision 1s recognised based on best
estimates and management judgement but there ¢an be no guarantee that these provisions will resulrin an accurate predichion of the actual
costs and habilies that may be ncurred There are also contingent liabilities in respect of ihgahion for which no provisions are made

31 Share-based payments

The Company operates five equity settled share based payment schemes as outlined below The fotal charge recognised dunng the year in
respect of equity-sertled share based payment transactions was £4m (2013 £8m charge)

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2007 Performance Share Plan {PSP) and the HM Revenue & Customs Approved Company
Share Option Sub-Plan (CSOSP)

Executive Directors and senior executives of the Company and its subsidiarigs are granted options to acquire or contingent share awards of

the Ordinary Shares of the Company The awards will vest If performance targets ncluding adjusted eamings per share (EPS), total Shareholder
return (TSR) and the Company s share price are met during the three years following the date of grant Subject to vesting condifions the options
are exercisable up to 10 years after the date of grant

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Co-Investment Plan (COIP)

Executive Directors and serior executives may be required fo purchase the Company’s shares using a proportion of their net bonus
(Lodged Shares) For each Lodged Share purchased, participants may receive up to 3 5 Matching Shares if performance rargets for EPS
return on invested capital (ROIC) TSR and the Company s share price are met duning the three years following the date of grant Subject to
veshing conditions the ophons or contingent share awards are exercisable up to 10 years after the date of grant
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31 Share-based payments contimued
The Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Save As You Earn Scheme (SAYE)

Ehlgible employees across the Group were offered ophions to purchase shares in the Company by entering into a three or four-year savings
contract The option exercise price was set at a 10% (2010 grant) or 20% (2008 grant) discount to the market price at the offer date
Options are exercisable duning the s months after the end of the savings contract

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 HM Revenue & Customs Approved Buy As You Earn Scheme (BAYE)

Eligible UK tax-paying employees are offered the opporturity to purchase shares in the Company by deduction frorm thewr monthly gross pay
For every 10 shares an employee buysin this way the Company will purchase one matching share on therr behalf

The Thomas Cook Group ple Restricted Share Plan (RSP)

Serior executives of the Company and 15 subsichanes are granted options tc acquire or contingent share awards of, the Ordinary Shares of the
Company Executive Directars are excluded from receving awards under the RSP The Company will determmine af the date of award whether
the award will be subject to a performance target and the date of vesting Subject to any vesting condhfions the ophions or contingent share
awards are exercisable up to 10 years after the date of grant

The movements in options and awards during the year and prior year were
20014

PSp Other
Gutstanding at beginning of year 31,899,162 5,440,212
Granted 3,451,942 2,267,869
Exercised (807,281)  (688,342)
Lapsed (2,851,735) (1,929,368}
Cancelled — (244,642)
Forferred {1,204,426) (537,976)
Outstanding af end of year 30,487,662 4,307,753
Exercisable at end of year 95,653 58,260
Exercise price (£) nil 177
Average remaining contractual Ife (years) 13 22

The weighted average share price at the date of exerase for the options exercised during the year ended 30 Septernber 2014 was £1 64

2013 2013

PSP Other

Qutstanding at beginming of year 26561228 7995734
Granted 10791150 895,809
Exercised 164107} (82 642)
Forfeited (8164900) (1675 110)
Lapsed - {115 405)
Cancelled - (2,452803)
Rights issue adjustment 2875791 874,929
Outstanding at end of year 31,899,162 5 440,212
Exercisable at end of year 100682 1882104
Exeraise price {£) nil 197
Average remaining centractual lfe (years) 87 62

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised dunng the year ended 30 September 2013 was £145
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31 Share-based payments confinued

The fair vatue of ophions and awards subject tc adjusted EPS and ROIC performance targets was deterrmned by the use of Black Scholes models
and the fair value of options subject to TSR performance targets was deterrmined by the use of Monte Carlo simulations For opiions and awards
granted during the year the key inputs to the models were

2014 2013

PSP PSP

Weighted average share price at measurement date £1 45 E107
Weighted average exercise price nil il
Expected volahiity 40% 50%
Weighted average option hife (years) 3 3
Weighted average nisk-free rate 13% 09%
Expected dividend yield il nil
Weighted average far value at date of grant £102 £Q 45

Expecied volatiity has been based on the historic volatiity of the Corpany’s shares and the shares of other companies in the same or
related sectors

32 Retirement benefit schemes

Pension schemes for the employees of the Thomas Cook Group consist of defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans with the
defined benefit plans beng both funded and unfunded The cbligations ansing from defined cortnbution plans are satisfied by contribution
payments to both private and state-run insurance prowviders

2014 2013
Present value of funded obligations 1,119 998
Faur value of plan assets (1,001) (890)
Defiat of funded plans 118 108
Present value of unfunded obligations 329 296
Total deficit of defined benefit pension plans L7 Lok

Unfunded defined benefit pension obligations

Unfunded defined beneht pension obligations primarly relate to the Group s employees in the German businesses of Thornas Cook AG and the
Condor Group Pravisions are established on the basis of commitrnents made to those employees for old-age and transifional pensions based
on the legal, tax and economic arcumstances of the ndividual countnies and on the period of employment and level of remuneration of the
respective employees

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations totaling £277m (2013 £252m) were attnibutable to the persion commitments of the Condor
Group {Condor Flugdienst GmbH Condor Berlin GmbH and CF GmbH) For employees who joined a Condor Group cormpany prior fo 1995

the total pension commutment of the pensions authority of the Gerrnan federal government and regional states was adjusted and maintained
in the form of a company pension scherme

The fight crews were additionally entitled 1o a transinonal provision for the penod berween the ferrmination of theirin fight employment
and the hime they became eligible for a state-run or company pension In both cases, the benefit commitment depended onthe final salanes
of the employees concerned prior o the termination of theirin flight employment (final salary plan)

Employees who jained a Condor Group company from 1995 onwards parhicaipate in a company pension scherne under which the pension
entitlernents are based on the average salaries of those employees (average salary plan) The Condor Group also has retirement obligations
arising fromindividual commitments and transitienal provisions
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32 Rethirement benefit schemes contmued

In accordance with IAS 19 alt these commitments are classified as unfunded defined benefit cbligations and classified as such inthese financial
staternents The Condor Greup defined benefit plans have been dased to new entrants (with the exception of pilots) since 2004 There are
additional unfunded defined benefit obligations comprising individual commnitrments to executve staff at Thomas Cock Group and obligations
in respect of past service for empiayees in the Narthern Europe and Continental Eurepe segments The unfunded pension schemes are
accounted for as part of habilhes for retirernent benefit abliganions in the balance sheet The following weighted average actuanal assumptions
were made for the purpose of determining the unfunded defined benefit obligations

2014 m3

% %

Discount rate for scheme labilities 360 375
Expected rate of salary ncreases 262 262
Future pension increases 192 142

The mortaltty tables 2005 G drawn up by Prof Dr Klaus Heubeck were used as the basis for the mortality assurnptions used n armving at the
present value of the pension obligations at 30 September 2014 These assume a hfe expectancy for members currently aged 65 of 19 years for
menand 23 years forwomen

Changes in the present value of unfunded pension obligations were as follows

Restared

2014 2013

£m £m

At beginning of year 296 254

Current service cost™ 10 L

Past service cast™ (6) 1

Interest cost* 10 1
Benefits pad @) (7)
Settlernents* (5) (2)
Curtallments* - (1)
Effect of expenence adjustments and demographic assumptions (2) 6
Effect of changes in financal assumptions 62 14
Business combinations (5) (3)
Exchange differance u) 12
At end of year 329 296

*These amounts have been recognised in the Income statement

Service costs, gains on seftlement and curtailment gans have been included in personnel expenses in the income statement and the
unwinding of the discoun rate of the expected retirement benefit obligahions has been included in finance costs Actuanal gains and losses
have been reported in the staternent of comprehensive income

Funded defined benefit pension obligations

The pension entitlements of employees of Themas Cook UK and employees in Norway and the Netherlands are provided through funded
defined benefit schemes, where pension contnbusions are paid over to the schemes and the assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees

The plans are final salary pension plans which provide benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pensicn payable for [ife

The level of benefits provided depends on a member'slength of service and their salary in the final years of active membership Inthe UK plans
pensions In payment are generally updated in ine with retail price index pensions in deferment are generally updated in line with consumer
price index

Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of qualified acruanes in each country The fair value of the penston assetsineach
scheme at the year end s cornpared with the present value of the retirement benefit abligations and the net difference reported as a pension
asset or retirerment beneht obligation as sppropnate Pension assets are only recognised to the extent that they will result in rembursements
being made or future payrnents being reduced The Thomas Cook UK Pension Plan accounts for approximately 92% (2013 929%) of the fotal
funded defined benefit obhigations The mortality assumptions used in arrving at the present value of those obligations ar 30 September
2014 are based on the PMA92/PFAS2 tables with medium cohort improvernents and a minimum future longewvity improvement per year

of 1% adjusted for recent mortality expenence The mortality assumptions adopted for the plan habilities indicate a further life expectancy
for members currently aged 65 of 23 2 years for men and 25 2 years for women The Company and Board of trustees are responsible for
governance of the plans and ensunng it is sufficiently funded to meet current and future benefits The trustees appoint advisers to carry out
the administration actuanal work and investment advice




32 Retirement benefit schemes confinued

Following the 2011 actuanal valuation of the Thomas Cock UK pension plan a Recovery Plan was agreed with the pension trustees to fund
the actuaral defict Buning the year ended 30 September 2014 Thomas Cock UK paid five instaiments totalling £26m in ine with the

recovery plan

The moverment in the defined benefit obligation over the year 1s as follows
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Restated Pr:::)mxg‘;ahlouz of pIZ?\l :;:::2 Toral
At 10ctober 2012 888 B 77
Current service cost 3 - 3
Interest expense/{income) 39 (36) 3
Expenses paid (3) 3 -
39 (33) 6
Remeasurements
—Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in inferest income - {10) (wo)
—Expenence losses and demographic assumptions 93 - 93
93 o) 53
Exchange differences 2 m 1
Ernployers contributions - (28) (28)
Benefit payments from plan (24) 24 -
At 30 September 2013 968 (839) 109
At 1 October 2013 998 (389) 109
Current service cost 1 - 1
Past service cost (2 - (2)
Interest expense/{income) 45 (uo) 5
i (40) 4
Remeasurements
—Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest incorme - (75) (75)
—Loss from change in financial assumptions 104 - 104
—Expenence losses and demographic assumptions 2 - 2
106 (75) 31
Exchange differences (2) 3 1
Expenses paid - 2 2
Emnployers contributions - (29) 29
Payments from plans
—Setilernent payrments {6) (] -
—Benefit payments 21) 21 -
At 30 September 2014 1,119 (1,001) 118
The significant actuanal assumptions were as follows
2014 2013
“ %
Discount rate for scheme habiines 308 443
Inflation rate (RPI) 247 31k
Expected rate of salary increases 242 002
Future pension increases 221 025
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32 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The martality assumptions adopted for the plan iabilines indicate a further ife expectancy for members currently aged 65 of 21 8years for
menand 24 2 years for wormen

The fair value of the plan assets 1s detaled below

2014 2013
Quoted  Non quoted Total % Quoted Non quoted Total %

Plan assets are comprised as foillows
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - 12 1 5 - 9 1
Equity instruments 280 - 280 28 277 — 277 31
Debtinstruments 249 - 249 25 234 - 234 26
Real estate 86 - 86 9 81 - 81 9
Dervatives 17 - 117 12 50 - 50 6
Investment funds 230 - 230 23 207 — 207 23
Assets held by insurance company 3 24 27 2 3 29 32 4
Total 977 24 1,001 100 861 29 890 100

The scheme assets do not Include any of the Group s own financial instruments nor any property occupied by or orher assets used by the
Group The Scheme currently has part of ifs assets invested in a hability driven investment portfolio These assets, in cornbination with the ofher
protechon assets in the portfolic, provide nterest rate and inflahan rate protection relative to 40% of the value of the tofal scherme assets

Sensihivities of the defined benefit obligation

The Group 1s exposed to a number of risks the most significant of which are detailed below

Asset volatility

The plan liabilihes are calculated using & discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields, if pian assefs underperform thisyseld this will
create a deficit However the Group believes that due 10 the long-term nature of the plan labsities and the strength of the supporning group
alevel of continuing equity Investment 1s an appropriate element of the Group's long term strategy o manage the plans efficiently

Changes in bond yrelds
Adecrease in corporate band yields willincrease plan labilhes although this will be parnially offset by an increase in the value of the plans'
bend holdings

inflation nisk

Same of the Group pension obligations are finked fonflation and higher inflation will lead fo igher labilihes (although in most cases caps
on the leved of inflationary increases are n place o protect the plan against extrerne nflation) The majonty of the plan s assets are ether
unaffected by (fixed interest bonds} or loosely correlated with (equities) nflanon meaning that an increase ninflancr will also ncrease
the deficir

Life expectancy
The major:ty of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the Iife of the member, so ncreases in ife expectancy will resulfin an ncrease
in the plans’ habiihies

The sensitvity of the defined benefit obligation fo changes in the weighted principal assumptions is

Changein Ingreasen Decreasen
Irnpacr on defined benefit obllganon assumphion assumpnon assurnphion
Miscount rate for scherne labilines 025% (6%) &%
Inflation rate 025% 4% (L%)
Mortality 1 year 3% -

The above sensitwity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumphicns constant When calculanng the
sensitvity of the defined benefit abligaion to significant actuanial assumphons the same method has been applied as when calculahng the
pension hability recognised withun the stafement of financial pesinon

The expected future benefit payments are detalled below

Lessthanayear  Betweeni-2years  Between 2-5Syears Over S years
fm

At 30 September 2014 £m £m £m
Pension benefit payments 29 10 33 65
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32 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Defined contnbution schemes

There are a number of defined contrbution schemes in the Group the principal scheme being the Thomas Cook UK DC Pension Scheme which
1s open fo all UK employees Cash contributions paid into the defined coninbution schermes are accounted for as an income staterment expense
as they areincurred The fotal charge for the year inrespect of this and other defined centribution schemes including habilities in respect of
insured benefits relating to workers compensation arrangements amounted to F42m (2013 £37m)

The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees

33 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsiciaries which are related parties, have been eliminated on consohdation and are not disclased
inthisnote Transachions between the Group and its associates are disclosed below Transactions between the Cornpany and its subsidianes
and associates are disclosed in the Company's separate financial staternents

Trading transactions

Duning the year Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members cf the Group

Assoriates
and partiopanons”

2014 2013

fm m

Sale of goods and services 3 13
Purchases of goods and services 1 (i2)
Otherincorne 3 2
Amounts owed by related parties 1 5
Provisions against amounts owed - {3)
Amounts owed to related parties (2) {3)

* Parnicipanons are equity investmenis where the Group has a significant equity particpation but which are not considered (o be associates
Alltransactions are considered to have been made at market prices Qutstanding amounts will normally be settled by cash payment

Remuneration of key management personnel

The reruneration of the Directors and executive members of the Tour Operator Counal and the Air Travel Counall who are the key
management personnel of the Group 1s set ous below In aggregate for each of the categones speaified In 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
Further nformatian about the remuneration of ndwidual Directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Remuneration report on pages 96
to 110

2014 2013
£m £m

Short-rerm ernployee benefirs ) 5
Share-based payments 1 -
5 5

The short-term employee benefits figure includes employer social security payments which are excluded from the Directors’
remuneration report
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Company balance sheet
At 30 September 2014

305eplember  30S5epternber

2014 2013
Netes £m im
Non-current assets
Intangible assets = 5 -
Property plant and equipment 2 3
Investments in subsidiaries 7 1,990 2167
Trade and other receivables 8 583 629
2,580 2799
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 8 911 1,052
Cash and cash equivalents 9 35 Lé
946 1,098
Total assets 3,526 3897
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 10 (154) (173)
Borrowings 13 (310} -
Short-term provisions 12 (3) )
(us7) (174)
Non-current habilihes
Borrowings 13 (297) (629)
Total habilities (764) (803)
Net assets 2,762 3094
Equity
Share caprtal 14 69 68
Share premium account 436 434
Merger reserve 1,429 1,429
Hedging and translation reserves 529 769
Capital redemption reserve 8 9
Retained earmings 329 415
nvestment in own shares (38) (30)
Total equity 2,762 3094

The financial statements an pages 168 to 177 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 November 2034
Signed on behalf of the Board

Michael Healy
Group Chief Financial Officer

Notes 110 19 form part of these financial statements

W




Company cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 September 2014
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Year ended Yearended
30 September 30 September
2014 2013
Em £m
Cash flows from operating activihies
Loss befare tax (88) {112)
Adjustments for
Net interest paid 48 48
Share-based payrments 2 2
{Decrease)/increase in provisions 2 {1
(increase)/decrease in recetvables 104 {56)
(Decrease)/increase In payables a? (228)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 51 {(345)
Investing achivities
Addition of Intangible assets {5) @
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities {5) (2
Finanang activities
Inflow from borrowings - 18
Interest paid (1B) u9)
Shareissue 1 8
Net share prermium on issue of shares 1 405
Investment in own shares (8) {16)
Net cash {used in}/from financing activities (bl 366
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 8) 20
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year L6 26
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 35 46
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Company statement of changes n eunry
For the year ended 30 September 2014

Capital

Share Share Merger  redernphion Translanon Retained Own
capita premum reserve reserve reserve eamings shares Tolal
£m fm fm £m fm £ £m £m
At 1 Octaber 2012 60 29 1,429 9 650 521 (14) 2684
Loss for the year - - - - - (112) - (112)
Other comprehensive Income - - - — 119 - - 19
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - - 119 (112) - 7
Equity debit in respect of share-based payments - - - - - 6 - b
Issise of shares-exercise of warrants 8 - - — - - - 8
Share prernium -~ 405 - - - - - 405
Purchase of own shares - - - — - - {16) (16)
At 30 September 2013 68 434 1,429 9 769 415 (30) 3,094
Loss for the year - - - - - (88) - (88)
Other comprehensive expense - - - m (240) 2) - (243)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - M (240) (90) - (331)
Equity credir in respect of share-based payments - - - - - 4 - 4
Issue of shares-exercise of warrants 1 - - - - - - 1
Share prermium - 2 - - - - - 2
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - 8) (6]
At 30 September 2014 69 436 1,429 8 529 329 (38) 2,762

Other comprehensive Incorme and expense relates fo translation of the balance sheet

The merger reserve arose on theissue of shares of the Company In cannection with the acquisition of the entire share capital of Thornas Cook
AG and MyTravel Group ple on 19 June 2007 and represents the aifference betweenthe nominal value and 1he farr value of the shares acquired

The share premium arose In connechion with the ssue of Ordinary Shares of the Company following the exercise of MyTravel executive
share options

Al 30 Septermber 2014, the Company had distributable reserves of £329m (2013 £414m)
Detalls of the own shares held are set out in Note 28 1o the Group financial statements
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Accounting policies

The accounting palicies apphed in the preparahion of these Company financial statements are the same as those set out in Note 3 to the Group
financial staterents with ihe addion of the following

Investments

Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less provisien for impairment

These policies have been applied consistently to the penieds presented

The functional cusrency of the Company 15 Euro, however the Directors have decided to adopt Sterling as the presentation currency tobe in line
with the consolidated accounts

2 Loss for the year

As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not fo presert its own income statement and staterment
of comprehensive income for the year The loss after tax of the Company amounted to £88m (2013 £112m)

The auditors remuneration for audit services to the Company was £0 2m (2013 £0 2m)

3 Personnel expenses

2014 203

£m fm

Wages and salanes 17 23
Socal security costs 2 2
Share-based paymenis - 2
19 27

2014 2013

Number Number

Average number of employees of the Company during the year 137 110

Emnployees are based in the Urited Kingdom and Germany

Disclosures of Indnidual Directors remuneration share aptions, long-term incentive schemes pension contributions and pension entitlements
regurred by the Companies Act 2006 and specified for audit by the Finanaial Conduct Authonty are on page 102 within the Remuneration
report and form part of these audited accounts

The employees of the Company are members of the Group pension schemes as detailed in Nore 32 of the Group financal statements

4 Tax

At the balance sheet date the Company had unused tax losses of £281m (2013 £139m) and other deductible shori-term temporary
differences of £4rm (2013 £4rm) available for offset aganst future profits No deferred tax asset has been recogrused inrespect of unused
tax losses and other deductible short term himing differences

5 Dividends

The details of the Company s dvidend are disclosed in Note 10 to the Group firancial staternents
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

6 Intangible assets

Gther mianglble assers fm
Cost

At 1 October 2012 -
Disposals -
Exchange differences -
At 30 September 2013 -
Additions 4
Transfer of assets 1
At 30 September 2014 5
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1 Qctober 2012 —
Charge for the year -
At 30 September 2013 -
Charge for the year —
At 30 September 2014

Carrying amount at 30 September 2014 5
Cairying amount at 30 September 2013 -

7 Investment in subsidiaries

fm
Cost and net baok value
At 1 Ocfober 2012 2055
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments 6
Impairment 6
Exchange difference 100
At 30 September 2013 2167
Adjustrent in respect of share-based payments 2
Addihions —
Exchange difference (179)
At 30 September 2014 1,890
Alist of the Company's principal subsidiary undertakings 1s shownin Note 19 to the financial statements
8 Trade and other receivables
2014 ms3
£m f£rm
Current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 879 995
Otherrecevables 3 1
Deposits and prepayments 29 56
911 1052
Non-current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 583 626
Depaosits and prepayments - 3
583 629

Amounts ewed by subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand The average interest on averdue amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakingsis 0 5% (2013 0 4%) The Directors consider the fair value to be equal fo the book value




9 Cash and cash equivalents
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2014 203
£m Em
Cash atbank andin hand 35 L6
35 L6 1
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances which are considered to be restnicted £35m {2013 £46r) 1s held withun escrow accounts g
in Denmmark and Norway in respect of local regulatory requirements The Directors cansider that the carrying amounts of these assets &
approximate therr fair value Ea
&L
10 Trade and other payables 2
2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 106 121
Social security and other taxes 2 3
Orher payables 19 21
Accruals 27 28
154 173
The average interest on overdue amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 150 8% (2013 11%)
Amounts owing to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand The Directors consider the farr value to be equal fo the book value
N 2
11 Financialinstruments .
The Cornpany's financial instruments comprise investment in subsidiary undertakings, amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings §
cash and cash equivalents and other payables and receivables The Company s approach ta the management of financial nsks s ciscusseq z
on pages 4B to 51 The Company believes the value of its inancial assets to be fully recoverable é
The carrying value of the Company’s financial Instruments is exposed to maovernents in foreign currency exchange rates (primartly Sterling}
The Cornpany estirnates that a 5% strengthening in Sterling would increase loss before tax by £5m (2013 increase loss befare tax by £20rm)
while a 5% weakering in Sterling would decrease loss before tax by £5m (2013 decrease loss before fax by £20m)
The carrying value of the Company's financial Instruments 1s exposed fo movernents in interest rafes The Company estimates thar a 1%
increase In inferest rates would increase loss before tax by £1m {2013 0 5% increase in interest rates increase loss before tax by £2m), while a
0 25% decrease in interest rates would decrease loss before tax by frul (2013 0 5% decreasen nterest rates decrease loss before tax by £1m)
Carrying value of financial assets and habibties
The carrying values of the Group's financial assets and habilities as at 30 Septermber 2014 and 30 September 2013 are set out below
Financial
Loans& Other financlal liabitities at
receivables llabilities  amaortised cost Total
At 30 September 2014 £m Em £m £m 3
Trade and other recervables 1,494 - - 1,494
(ash and cash equivalents 35 - - 35 é
Trade and other payables - (154) - (154) E
Borrowings - - (607 (607) g
Prowisions ansing from contractual cbligations - 3) - 3 E
1,529 (157) (607) 765 E
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11 Financial instruments continued

Financial
Loans& Totalother habiliesal
recevables hnancallabitines  amortised cost Total
At 30 September 2013 £m £m £m £m
Trade and other recewvables 168t - - 1681
Cash and cash equivalents 46 - - L6
Trade and other payables - (i73) - (173)
Borrowings - — 629) (629)
Provisions arising from contractual obligations - (1) - (1)
1727 (174) (629) 924

Financial habilimes are analysed below based on the hime between the year end and thesr contractual maturity The amounts shown are
estimates of the undiscounted future cash lows and will differ frormn both carrying value and fair value Any cash flows based on a floating rate

are calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset

Amount due
Infess than  Between3and Between 1and
3months 12months Syears
At 30 September 2014 £m £m fm fm
Trade and other payables (29) (121) - (150)
Borrowings - (348) (341) (689)
Provisions arising from contractual obligahons - (3) - (3)
(29) (u72) (3u1) (842)
Amount due
Inlessthan  Between3and  Belweeni and
Jrmanths 12 months Syears
A1 30 September 2013 Em £m £m £m
Trade and other payables (23) (128) - (151)
Borrowings - (L6) (735) (781)
Provistons ansing from contractual abligations - Q) - M
(23) (175) (735) (933)

The Company 1s exposed fo credif nsk in relation to cash and cash equivalents trade and other receivables, investments in subsidiary

undertaking and amounts due from subsidiary undertakings The maximum exposure inrespect of each of these items at the balance sheet
date s their carrying value The Company assesses its counterparty exposure 1n relation to surplus cash using credit imits based on counterparty

credit ratings

For subsidiary investments and recevables future operahing cash flows are assessed for any indication of impairment In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair value of the Company s investments is not less than the carrying value as stated in the balance sheet As of 30 September
2014 Company recewvables frorn Group undertakings were not past due and were expected to be recavered in full

Ihe Company's approach to credit risk in respect of trade and other recevables 1s explained in Note 17 of the Group financial statements
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12 Provisions

2014 2013

fm £m
At} October () @
Additronal provision in the year (3) )
Release of provision 1 2
At 30 September (3) )

13 Borrowings

Borrowings comprise a €£400m bond issued with an annual coupon of é 75% maturing in June 2015 and a £300m bond with an annual coupon
of 775% matunng njune 2017

14 Called-up share capital

The detals of the Cormpany’s share capital are the same as those of the Group and are disclosed in Note 28 io the Group financial statemnents
in this report

Detalls of share ophions granted by the Company are set out 1n Note 31 fo the Group financial staterments

15 Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Cornpany had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments related 1o property, under
non-cancellable operahing leases, which fall due as follows

2014 2013
£m £m

Within one year 1 -
Later than one year and less than five years 3 1
After five years 3 Z
7 3

16 Confingent liabilities

Ar 30 Seprember 2014, the Company had contingent habulities in respect of counter-guarantees for bank funding letters of credit and
guarantees of amounts owed by subsidianes amounting to £710m (2013 £894 1m} This predarminately relates to a guarantee on the
drawndown portion of the Group banking facility (detailed in Note 20 1o the Group financial statements)

Alsoincluded are guarantees related to arcraft finance lease commitments estimated based on the current book value of the finance lease
llabiities of £180m (2013 £210m)

The Company comphes with all the standards relevant to consumer protection and formal requirements in respect of package four contracts
andhas all the necessary licences In the UK the custorner s night 1o reimbursernent of the return travel costs and amounts paid in case of
insotvency or bankruptcy on the part of the tour operator or fravel agency 1s guaranteed inine with legislation in the UK via a fund mecharism
whereby travel cormpanies are required to collect and rernit a small charge for each profected customer upon booking
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17 Related party transactions
Subsidianes

The Cormpany transacts and has outstanding balances with its subsidianes The Cornpany enters into loans with its subsidianes at both fixed

and floahing rates of interest on acommercial basis Hence the Company incurs interest expense and earns interest ncome on these loans
The Company also received dividend income from ifs subsidiaries during the year

2014 2015
£m fm

Transactions with subsidianes
Interest receivable 1 1
Interest payable (1 (n
Managernent fees and other expenses 28 16
Dividend income recerved 45 41
Year-end balances anising on fransactions with subsidiaries
Loans recewable 731 870
Interest recevable - -
Other recevables 147 125
Loans payable (59) (72)
Other payables (u3) (50)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors who are the key management personnel of the Company 15 set outin Note 33 of the Group
financial staterments

18 Share-based payments

The emplayees of the Cornpany including the Directors collectively participate in all of the Group s equity-settled share-based payment
schernes The detarls relating to these schernes in respect of the Company are identical fo those disclosed in Note 31 fo the Group financial
staternents and have therefore not been re-presented here

The share-based payment charge of £2m (2013 £2m) s stated net of amounts recharged to subsidiary undertakings




19 Principal subsidiaries
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Country of

ncorporahon Proporhenheld  Proportion held

and operaton Nature of the business by Company (%} by Group (%)
Direct subsidiaries
Thomas Cook Invesiments (2) Limited England Holding Company 100 100
Thomas Cook AG Germany Holding Company 100 100
Thomas Cook Finance plc England Finanaing Company 100 100
Thomas Cook Finance (2) Limited England Financing Company 100 100
Thomas Cook Group Management Services Limited England Financing Company 100 100
Thomas Cook Finance {Jersey) Limited England Finanang Company 100 100
Indirect subsidianies
UK
Thomas Cook Airines Limited England Arline 100
Thomas Cook Retall Limited England Travel Agent 100
Thomas Cook Scheduled Tour Operations Lirnited England Tour Operator 100
Thornas Cook Tour Operations Limited England TourOperator 100
Thomas Cook UK Limited England Tour Operator 100
TCCT Retall Limited England Tour Operator 100
Continental Europe
Bucher Reisen GrbH Gerrmany Tour Operator 100
TC Tounstik GmbH* Germany Tour Operator 500023
Thomas Cook Airlines Belgium NV Belgum Asiing 100
Thomas Cook Belgium NV Belgium Tour Operator 100
Thomas Cook SAS France Tour Operator and Travel Agent 100
Thomas Coak Austna AG Austria Tour Operatar 100
Thornas Cook Nederland BY Netherlands  Tour Operatar 100
Neckermann Pelska Biuro Podrozyspz oo Poland Tour Operator 100
Northern Europe
Thomas Cook Airhnes Scandinavia A/S Denmark Arrling 100
Thomas Cook (CIS) AB Sweden Intermediate Holding Company 100
Airlines Germany
Condor Berlin GrbH* Germany Arrline 500023
Condor Flugdienst GmbH* Gerrnany Airhne 500023
Corporate
Thomas Cook Group Treasury Limited England Financng Company 100

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information only in relation to
subsidiary undertakings whose results or financiat posiion in the opinion of the Directors principally affected the financial staterments A full liss
of subsidiaries will be sent to Companies House with the next annual return

*All nisks and rewards continue 1o be held by the Group and 1n accordance with accounting standards the enhity has been Irealed as being 100% controlled and fully consolidated

by the Group
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Shareholder information

Annual General Meehing (“AGM”)

The AGM will be held at 1st Floar North Bullding 200 Aldersgate

St Pauls London ECTA 4HO on Monday 25 February 2015 a1 11 am
The last date for AGM proxy votes fo be received by the Registrar i
Thursday 19 February 2015

All Shareholders can submit therr proxy vote for the AGM electronically
at www sharevote co uk Toregister their vote, Shareholders will need
the numbers detaled on their form of proxy

Alternatively, Shareholders who have already registered

with Shareview can submit their proxy vote by logging onto
www shareview co uk and clicking on the link to vote underneath
therr Thomas Cook Group plc holding

Share register and Shareholder enquiries

The Company s share register 1s maintained by Equint
Queries relabng to Thomas Cook Group plc shares should be
addressedto

The Registrar

Equiniti

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

Wesf Sussex BN99 6DA

Tel 0871 384 2154~
(International telephane nurmber +44 (0)121 415 0182)

* Calls to this number cost 8p per runute plus network extras Lines are open 8 30am
10 5 30pm (London nme) Monday to Friday {excluding UK sublic holidays)

Shareholders should quote the Company reference number 3174
and therr Shareholder reference number (which can be found on
ther share certificates) when contacting the Registrar

Shareview

To be able to access information about therr shares and other
investrents online Shareholders can register with Sharewiew
(www shareview co uk) Regisiration is free Shareholders will
need therr Shareholder reference number which1s shown on their
form of proxy and share certificate By registenng for this service
Sharehalders will

> help reduce paper, print and postage costs

> help the environment,

> be able to submit their guenes by email, and

» be able to manage their shareholding easily and securely online

Once registered, whenever Shareholder documents are avallable
Shareholders will be sent a link to the appropriate website

where the documents will be available to view or download
Receming documents enline does not affect Shareholders’ nghts
inany way

Website

The Company s corporate website www thomascookgroup com
provides informahion including

> news updates pressreleases and regulatory announcerments

> inwestor informanion including the Annual Report, financial results
financial calendar and share price information

> detalls of Shareholder meehngs and poll results

» biographies of the Board of Directors

» the Company s Arficles of Association the terms of reference for the
Committees of the Board and the Board Appointmants Policy and

> sustainability reporting

Multiple accounts on the share register

If 3 Shareholder receves two or more sets of the documents
concerning the AGM this means that there 1s more than one account
in therr name on the Shareholder register perhaps because either
the name or the address appears on each account in a shghtly
different way For security reasons Equintiwill not amalgarmate the
accounts without the Shareholder's written consent Therefore ifa
Shareholder would ke their multiple accounts to be combined they
should wnite ta Equiniti af the address above detalling the different
Shareholder reference numbers andrequest that they be combined
Into one account

Electronic communications

At the AGM on 10 April 2008 the Company passed a resolufion
allowing the Company s corporate website to be used as the pnmary
means of communication withifs Shareholders A consultation card
was sent to Shareholders enabling them to choose either to

» recewe nohfication by email when Shareholder documentation
is available on the website or
» continue to receve Shareholder documentationin hard copy

Shareholders who did not respond were deemed, in accordance
with the Cornpanies Act 2006 to have agreed tareceive
Shareholder documentation via the Company s corporate websire
These arrangerments for electronic Shareholder communications
provide Shareholders with the opporturity to access informationin a
ey manner and help the Company to reduce both its costs and its
environmental impact




Dividends

Information on recent dividend payments s detalled below
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Final dimdend forthe  Intenm dradend for the
financial year ended financial year ended

Final diadend for the  Intenm dwidend for the
fnancial year ended finanvial year ended

Name 0 Septernbier 2009 30 Seprember 2010 30 Seprember 2010 30 September 2011
Amount per share 700p 375 700p 375
Record date 19 March 10 Septernber 18 March 9 September

2010 2010 20M 201
Payment date 8 April 2010 8 October 2010 7 Apni 2011 7 October 2011

No further dividends have been paid or declared since the intenim dwidend for the financial year ended 30 September 2011 paidon

7 October 2011

Thomas Cook AG/MyTravel Group plc merger

Thomas Cook Group plc was farmed in fune 2007 upon the merger
of Thomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group pic

MyTravel Group pic Shareholders received one Thomas Cook Group
plc Ordinary Share for every one MyTravel Group plc share previously
held MyTravel Group plc share certificates are no longer valid and can
be destroyed Replacement Thomas Cook Group plc share certificares
were sent to Shareholders who held shares in cerhficated form on or
around 19 June 2007 If you have any queres relating to this please
contact the Registrar

Warning to Shareholders about share fraud

Fraudsters use persuasive and high pressure tactics to lure investors
info scams

They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non-existent or to buy shares at an inflared price in return for an
upfront payment

While high profits are prormised 1f you buy or sell shares in this way
you will probably lose your money

5 000 people contact the Financial Conduct Authonity about share
fraud each year with vichms losing an average of £20 000

How to avoid share fraud

If you are offered unsohated investment adwice discounted shares
a prermium price for shares you own, or free company or research
reports you should take these steps before handing over any money

1 Keepinmind that firms authorised by the FCA are unlikely 1o
contact you out of the blue with an offer 1o buy or sell shares

2 Donot get info a conwersation note the name of the persen and
firm contacting you and then end the call

(=}

Check the Fimancial Services Register from www fea org uk to see
if the person and firm contaching you 1s authorised by the FCA

4 Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authonsed firm
copying its website or giving you false contact detalls

5 Usethe firm’s contact details listed on the Register (f you want
tocallit back

6 Callthe FCAon 0800 111 67681f the firm does not have contact
details on the Register or you are told they are out of date

7 Search the hist of unauthorised firms to avoid at
www fca org uk/scams

& Constder that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm
you will nof have access fo the Financial Ombudsman Service or
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

9 Think about getting independent inancial and professicnal
adwice before you hand over any money

10 Rermember f it sounds too good to be true 1t probably st

Reportascam

If you are approached about a share scam you should tell the FCA
using the share fraud reporting form at www fca gov uk/scams where
you can find out about the latest investment scams You can also call
the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768 If you have already
paid money o share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on
0300123 2040
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Shareholder information confinued

ShareGift

Sharehaolders with a small number of shares the value of which
make It uneconormicat te sell may wish to consider donating them
fo the chanty ShareGift (Registered Chanty Number 1052686)
which specialises in using such holdings for chantable benefit

Find ocut more about ShareGift at www sharegift org or by
telephoming «4h ()20 79303737

Shareview dealing

Atelephone and internetf dealing service has been arranged

through the Registrar to provide a simple way of buying and selling
Thomas Cook Group plc shares for existing and prospective UK-
based Shareholders Fortelephone dealing call 08456 037 037
(international telephone nurnber 44 (0)121 415 7560) between

8 00am and 4 30pm (London fime) Moanday fo Friday (excluding UK
public holidays) or visit the website www shareview co uk/dealing
Shareholders will need the Shareholder reference nurnber shown on
their share certificate(s)

Analysis of Shareholders as at

30 September 2014

Number of Nurnber of
Distribution of shares by the type of Shareholder holdings shares
Narmmnees and institutional investors 1358 1443,489,290
indviduals 15 256 17,287,123
Total 16614 1460776413

Number of Numberof
Size of Shareholding holdings shares
1-100 G194 296,196
101-500 3230 763,214
501-1000 1,027 773473
100110000 2243 8185211
10001100 000 535 16 007,862
100,001-500000 173 42186 592
500,001-1,000 000 64 44900 363
1,000,001 and above 148 1,347,663 502
Total 16614 1460776413
Registered office

3rd Floor, South Bulding 200 Aldersgate London ECTA 4HD
Registered Number 6091951

Shareholder contacts

Shareholder Helplne 0871 384 2154*
(International telephone number +44 {0)121 415 0182)
Website www thomascookgroup com

Registrar's website www shareview ca uk

Calls to this number cost 8p per minuse plus network extras Lines are open § 30am
1o 5 30pm (Londen hme} Menday to Friday (excluding UK public holidays)

Finanaal calendar

Date Event
11 February 2015 Q1 2015 Intenm Management Statement
23 February 2015 Annual General Meeting
20 May 2015 Interim results for 6 months ended
31 March 2015
30July 2015 (3 2015 Intenm Management Stafement
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www thomascookgroup com

The Thomas Cook Group website provides news

and details of the Group's activities, plus inks to our custormer sites
and up to-date information including

> corporate news

> presentafions

» share price data

» histonc Annual and Sustainability Reports

> half-year results and interm management statements

> newsalerts

> career opportunifies
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